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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2012

or

O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF
1934

For the transition period from to

Commission File Number 1-6249

WINTHROP REALTY TRUST

(Exact name of Registrant as specified in its ceficate of incorporation)

Ohio 34-6513657
(State or other jurisdiction of (IRS Employer
incorporation or organization) Identification Number)
7 Bulfinch Place, Suite 500, Boston, Massachuse 02114
(Address of principal executive offices (Zip Code)

(617) 570-4614

(Registrant’s telephone number, including area code

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) d¢fie Act:

Title of Each Class Name of Exchange on Which Registere
Common Shares, $1.00 par valu New York Stock Exchange
9.25% Series D Cumulative Redeemable Shares, $1 08 value New York Stock Exchange

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) die Act: None

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a welbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405%db#turities Act.  Yed No
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuieed to file reports pursuant to Section 13 ortf®ecl5(d) of the Act. Yes[ No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant @ filed all reports required to be filed by Seetid or 15(d) of the Securities and Exchange Act of
1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for sudrtteh period that the registrant was requiredleoduch reports), and (2) has been subject to such
filing requirements for at least the past 90 day¥es No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant ldsnitted electronically and posted on its corpo¥&eb site, if any, every Interactive Data File
required to be submitted and posted pursuant te R of Regulation S-T (8 232.405 of this chapderjng the preceding 12 months (or for such
shorter period that the registrant was requiresltumit and post such files). YeX] No O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquidiers pursuant to Item 405 of RegulatiorkSs not contained herein, and will not be contdine the
best of registrant’s knowledge, in definitive praxyinformation statements incorporated by refeeeindPart Ill of this Form 10-K or any amendment
to this Form 10-K. O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlezge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, maccelerated filer, or a smaller reporting company
See the definitions of “large accelerated filegttelerated filer,” and “smaller reporting compaiyRule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one):

Large accelerated file [ Accelerated filel
Non-accelerated file O (Do not check if a smaller reporting compa Smaller reporting compar [



Indicate by check mark whether the registrantsbell company (as defined in Exchange Act Rule 2Rb- Yes O No
As of March 1, 2013, there were 33,128,853 Commuaré&s outstanding.
At June 30, 2012, the aggregate market value o€dramon Shares held by non-affiliates was $353(%85,
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DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Portions of the registrant’s definitive Proxy Staent for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders, whichxpected to be filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission within 120 days after the Regiss fiscal year ended December 31, 2012, arerporated by reference into Part Ill hereof.
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CAUTIONARY STATEMENTS CONCERNING FORWARD-LOOKING ST ATEMENTS

Any statements included in this prospectus, inclgdiny statements in the document that are incatpaby reference herein that are not strictly
historical are forward-looking statements withie thheaning of the safe harbor provisions of thed®eiBecurities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Any
such forward-looking statements contained or incaafed by reference herein should not be reliechgsopredictions of future events. Certain such
forward-looking statements can be identified byuke of forward-looking terminology such as “beéisy “expects,” “may,” “will,” “should,” “seeks,”
“approximately,” “intends,” “plans,” “pro forma,"éstimates” or “anticipates” or the negative themmobther variations thereof or comparable
terminology, or by discussions of strategy, plamntions or anticipated or projected events, lter conditions. Such forwaldoking statements a
dependent on assumptions, data or methods thabenmgorrect or imprecise and they may be incapablbeing realized. Such forward-looking
statements include statements with respect to:

» the declaration or payment of dividends by

” o ”ou

» the ownership, management and operation of prese

e potential acquisitions or dispositions of our pndies, assets or other busines:

* our policies regarding investments, acquisitionspalsitions, financings and other matte
e our qualification as a real estate investment taster the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as andemdech we refer to as the Coc
* the real estate industry and real estate markegsrieral.

» the availability of debt and equity financir

* interest rates

» general economic condition

» supply of real estate investment opportunities demdand

» trends affecting us or our asse

» the effect of acquisitions or dispositions on calpifition and financial flexibility

» the anticipated performance of our assets andmfiged properties and businesses, including, withioitation, statements regardi
anticipated revenues, cash flows, funds from operat earnings before interest, depreciation andréiration, property net operating
income, operating or profit margins and sensititityeconomic downturns or anticipated growth orriowements in any of the foregoing;
and

e our ability, and that of our assets and acquiregp@rties and businesses to gr:

You are cautioned that, while forward-looking stagmts reflect our good faith beliefs, they aregudrantees of future performance and they involve
known and unknown risks and uncertainties. Actaallts may differ materially from those in the fard-looking statements as a result of various
factors. The information contained or incorpordbgdeference in this report and any amendment figreuding, without limitation, the information
set forth in “Item 1A - Risk Factors” below or inyarisk factors in documents that are incorpordtgdeference in this report, identifies important
factors that could cause such differences. We tiakieino obligation to publicly release the resaftany revisions to these forward-looking stateraent
that may reflect any future events or circumstances
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PART I

ITEM 1. BUSINESS
General

Winthrop Realty Trust is a real estate investmamttformed under the laws of the State of Ohio.dMeduct our business through our wholly owned
operating partnership, WRT Realty L.P., a Delawianéed partnership, which we refer to as the OpeegaPartnership. All references to the “Trust”,
“we”, “us”, “our”, “WRT" or the “Company” refer tdNinthrop Realty Trust and its consolidated subsidg& including the Operating Partnership.

We are engaged in the business of owning real piyoped real estate related assets which we cagegoto three reportable segments: (i) the
ownership of investment properties, including prtips in joint ventures consolidated or accountadh an equity method basis, which we refer to as
operating properties; (ii) the origination and as@ion of senior loans, mezzanine loans and debtisties collateralized directly or indirectly by
commercial and multi-family real property, includinollateral mortgagbacked securities and collateral debt obligatiausges, which we refer to
loan assets; and (iii) the ownership of equity dalt interests in other real estate investmentst(iREITs), which we refer to as REIT securities.

At December 31, 2012 we held (i) interests in ofiegaproperties totaling $562,822,000 containingragimately 7.4 million square feet of rentable
space and 5,439 apartment units; (ii) loan asetbrtg $239,534,000 (iii) REIT securities with arket value of $19,694,000 and (iv) cash and cash
equivalents of $97,682,000.

Our executive offices are located at 7 BulfinchcelaSuite 500, Boston, Massachusetts 02114 andJévicho Plaza, Jericho, NY 11753. Our
telephone number is (617) 570-4614 and our welsslteated ahttp://www.winthropreit.com The information contained on our website does not
constitute part of this Annual Report on Form 106 our website you can obtain, free of chargeypy ©f our Annual Report on Form 10-K,
Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current ReportE@m 8K and amendments to those reports filed or furrdghasuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d’
the Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, as soorassnably practicable after we file such materietgbnically with, or furnish it to, the Securities
and Exchange Commission, which we refer to as E@.S

History

We began operations in 1961 under the name Firgtl_Real Estate Equity and Mortgage Investmentsciiashged our name to Winthrop Realty T
in 2005. Since January 1, 2004, we have been ettgmanaged by FUR Advisors LLC, which we refea®FUR Advisors or our Advisor. FUR
Advisors is an entity owned by our current exeautifficers and senior management, including Michaéishner who is the managing member of
FUR Advisors and members of senior management di/ARroperty Partners, a New York based real egtagstment advisor.

Commencing January 1, 2004, we began to seek o apportunistic investments across the real estaetrum, whether they be operating
properties, loan assets or REIT securities. Onalgnly 2005 we elected to form the Operating Pastrip and contributed all of our assets to the
Operating Partnership in exchange for 100% of thieesship interests in the Operating Partnership.@perating Partnership structure, commonly
referred to as an umbrella partnership real egtagstment trust, provides us with additional flekiy when acquiring properties as it enablesaus t
acquire properties for cash and/or by issuing lerse as a form of consideration, limited partidgpsnterests in our operating partnership thereby
enabling us to structure transactions which magrdeix gains for a seller while preserving our E@é cash for other purposes.

Management

We have engaged FUR Advisors to administer ouiraffacluding seeking, servicing and managing owestments. For providing these and other
services, FUR Advisors is entitled to a base mamage fee and, in certain instances, an incentigeafel termination fee. See “Employees” below for
a description of the fees payable to FUR Advisors.

Pursuant to our bylaws, the consent of our Boarfrostees is required to acquire or dispose ohaestment with a value in excess of $10,000,000.
Our executive officers are permitted to acquiréispose of an investment with an aggregate val®&i0f000,000 or less without the consent of our
Board of Trustees. However, if such transactionith (i) our Advisor (and any successor advisorjcihdel Ashner, or any of their respective affilg
(ii) certain stated entities which are, or werdiliated with us; (iii) a beneficial owner of mothan 4.9% of our outstanding common shares of
beneficial interest which
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we refer to as our Common Shares, either directlypon the conversion of any of our preferred siave (iv) a beneficial owner of more than 4.9% of
any other entity in which we hold a 10% or greatégrest, then regardless of the amount of thes&retion, such transaction must be approved by a
majority of our independent trustees, acting inrtbapacity as members of our Conflicts Committee.

Investment, Operating and Capital Strateqy

We are engaged in the business of owning and magagal property and real estate related assetsh@iness objective is to maximize long term
shareholder value through a total return value @gogr to real estate investing which emphasized gigberior risk adjusted returns. These investments
may have returns weighted towards the back endeoinivested life which may negatively impact cutrearnings. As a result of our emphasis on total
return, while we seek to achieve a stable, prellietdividend for our shareholders, we do not sedechanage our investments for short-term dividend
growth, but rather towards achieving overall supetotal return. While this approach may resulliort-term uneven earnings, we believe this
approach will ultimately result in long term incsea share value.

We are a diversified REIT and as such we are abilevest in transactions which a dedicated REIhwirrow investment parameters would be un

to consider resulting in a broad range of investno@portunities. These opportunities include défarinvestment types, sectors and geographic areas
all at varying levels in the capital stack. In autdi, because of our size we are able to make imagts in transactions that are smaller and would
generally be disregarded by larger real estatestove. Further, we also acquire assets throughyeintures and strategic alliances which allowus
employ third party co-investment capital to maxiendiversification of risk and reduce capital corcation and, in certain instances, leverage off our
joint venture partnés experience and expertise in specific geographéas and/or specific asset types.

As value investors we will focus and aggressivelyspe our investment activity in the segment wéelelwill generate the greater overall return to us
given market conditions at the time. In prior yeaeshave demonstrated our ability to adjust ouirtass plan to capitalize on evolving market
conditions both with respect to business segmethtapital structure. Based on market conditior?0h2, we focused our investment activity in our
loan asset segment and to a lesser extent, ouatopgeproperties segment with a view toward investn assets that provided a current yield as asl|
the potential for long term appreciation. Two sfgpaint transactions in 2012 which highlight ouragégy were our investment in the Sullivan Center
property in Chicago, lllinois, and our recently queted venture with respect to 701 Seventh Avenuke Times Square area of New York City, both
of which were done in joint ventures.

We expect to be able to continue to execute orstrédegy during 2013 and currently we expect toceatrate our investment activities in assets that
we believe are higher quality office, retail andltisiamily properties, along with high-end hospitalassets. We will mine our existing portfolio for
follow-on opportunities and will seek to timely realizeuras on such investments subject only to the disipo restrictions under the Internal Reve
Code in order to maintain our REIT status.
Subject to economic and credit market conditiorswill seek to:
e acquire operating properties of specific propeypes and locations that we belie
+ are undervaluec
e present an opportunity to outperform the marketplabile providing recurring current or potentialgcurring cash flow, ¢
» can provide superior returns through an infusionagital and/or improved manageme
» acquire portfolios or interests in portfolios abperties within characteristics similar to the ads

e acquire loan assets using the same criteria foratipg properties, as well as consideration of lassets that may present an opportunity for
acquire through foreclosure an equity intereshexunderlying real estate collatet

* acquire securities issued by other REITs we bels@eaundervalued; ar

» divest investments as they mature in value to thietpvhere we may be unlikely to achieve bettenthrarket returns in order to redeploy capital
to what we believe to be higher yielding opporti@sit Consistent with our total return approachtesting, it is not possible to predict when we
will exit any particular investmen

We believe that the economic recovery, while shall,continue throughout 2013 with gradually incséay rental demand across most asset classes ir
most major markets. We also believe that lendeliscamtinue to take advantage of their improvedabak sheets by accelerating the disposition of
their real estate related assets, both debt ah@nazerty. Accordingly, we anticipate no diminisént in value opportunities for investing in 2018da

we believe that new investments in loan assetsedisaw preferred equity will continue to provide timost opportunity.
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Our primary sources of income are rental incometanent recoveries from leases of our operatinggmees, interest income and discount accretion
from our loan assets, and interest and dividendnrecand appreciation from our investments in REIJusities.

To enhance our total return, we utilize leverage. 3&ek to limit risk associated with utilizationle¥erage by seeking to make our investments thr
discrete single purpose entities in which we doguatranty, other than customary environmental andurse carve-out guarantees and, in certain
instances, interest guarantees as credit enhantgrttendebt of our single purpose subsidiariesethy limiting the risk of loss to that particular
investment or joint venture.

As a REIT, we are primarily dependent on extergality and debt financing to fund the growth of buisiness because of the dividend requirements
for a REIT which significantly limits our abilityotre-invest cash flow and capital proceeds. We sterically used public equity markets, joint
venture equity, and secured financing as our psirsaurces of capital including raising capital thgb public offerings of equity and debt securitiec

this regard, during 2012 we issued an additior22@/000 shares of our 9.25% Series D CumulativeeBedble Preferred Shares, which we refer to as
Series D Preferred Shares and $86,250,000 of 7S&8ior Notes due August 2022, which we refer touasSenior Notes. We expect to continue to
fund our investments through one or a combinatiocash reserves, borrowings under our credititgciledeployment of capital from timely asset
sales, property loans, the issuance of debt otyegecurities and the formation of joint venturemally, we maintain a stock purchase and dividend
reinvestment plan which enables our existing shadeins to reinvest their dividends as well as pasehadditional shares at a discounted price.

Assets
Operating Properties

See Item 2. Properties for a description of ourr@jrey Properties

Operating Property Acquisition Activities

Deer Valley Operating Proper— Non-Controlling Interest On March 29, 2012 we purchased the 3.5% non-glting ownership interest of our
consolidated office property joint venture, WRT-IY.C, for $400,000. As a result of this transactiasg, now own 100% of WRT-DV LLC which
holds title to our operating property located ireb¥alley, Arizona.

Waterford Place ApartmentsOn April 17, 2012 we acquired for a purchaseedtapproximately $21,473,000 a 320 unit classulirfiamily
property situated on 27.9 acres in the Germantoulfiétville submarket of Memphis, Tennessee commoeferred to as Waterford Place. The
property which had been foreclosed on by the mgedeander in May 2011 was constructed in 2001 aasl 87% occupied at acquisition.

One East Erie Operating Property — Non-Controllimgerest- On June 1, 2012 we purchased from Marc Realt®0% non-controlling interest in FT-
Ontario Holdings LLC (“One East Erie”) for $5,850@ The property contains 126,000 square feettafl rend office space consisting of the first six
floors in a mixed use building together with 208kireg spaces located at One East Erie, Chicagonpidl. As a result of this transaction, we now own
100% of One East Erie.

Cerritos— On October 4, 2012 we purchased from an affiliteUR Advisors for $75,000 (the affiliate’s cosat)l00% membership interest in the
entity that holds fee simple title to a nine stdk87,000 square foot, 53% occupied, Class B offigi&gling located 20 miles south of Los Angeles in
Cerritos, California. In addition, we funded a $I0®00 leasing reserve and a $264,000 loan restimgtfee as part of the transaction. Concurrently
with the acquisition of the property, we entereit ia modification agreement with the first mortgégeder pursuant to which the loan was split into a
$23,000,000 non-recourse A Note and a $14,500,66&ecourse B Note. The A Note bears interest®8%.% per annum and requires monthly
payments of interest only. The B Note bears inteae6.6996% per annum and requires monthly paysnefrapproximately $12,000 with the balance
of the interest accruing. In connection with thedifioation, after payment of required monthly debtvice on the A Note and the B Note, we are
entitled to receive from property cash flow a 9.@%urn on any additional funding to the propertcluding the $1,500,000 leasing reserve). With
respect to a capital transaction, all net procgedirst to satisfy the A Note, second to us uwtl receive a return of our additional funding te th
property plus our 9.0% return thereon, third 5050s and the first mortgage lender until the ppaktamount of the B Note and accrued interest
thereon is fully satisfied and fourth to us. Tharlanodification agreement provides for a partiégrafeature whereby the B Note can be fully sagibfi
with proceeds from the sale of the property, aftereceive a 9.0% priority return of capital, darin specified time period as defined in the loan
modification document. The property is currentiy@eased.
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Lake Brand- On November 2, 2012 we acquired for a purchase jof $17,500,000 a 284 unit multi-family propeldgated in Greensboro, North
Carolina. The purchase price consisted of approely&3,900,000 of cash and the assumption of BO®O of indebtedness. The assumed debt is a
non-recourse mortgage loan which bears interé&sPa% per annum, matures on August 1, 2016 andresgpayments of interest only.

Houston, Texas Operating Prope— Non-Controlling Interest During the fourth quarter of 2012 we conducteeraler offer to acquire additional
limited partner units in 5400 Westheimer Holding C®/estheimer”). Westheimer is a consolidated gntihich holds title to a 100% leased, 614,000
square foot office property located in Houston, 8®Xn connection with the tender offer we acquaeddditional 5.5 limited partner units
representing 22% of Westheimer for a purchase jfi¢d,650,000 ($300,000 per unit). The units warguired effective November 30, 2012. As a
result of this transaction, we now own 30% of Westter.

Operating Property Acquisitions through our Equityestments

Sullivan Center — Equity Investment Operating Prope On February 3, 2012 we entered into a joint venturangement with Elad Canada Inc.
(“Elad”) pursuant to which two joint venture ergit, WRT-Elad Lender LP and WRT-Elad Equity LP (ediively “WRT-Elad”), were formed to
acquire for approximately $128,000,000 an exis#ifig0,300,000 first mortgage loan and accrued istere$6,886,000 (the “Prior Mortgage Loan”).
The Prior Mortgage Loan was secured by the 942s90@re foot, office and retail property locate@at South State Street in downtown Chicago,
lllinois (“Sullivan Center”). Concurrently, the lnavas restructured into a $100,000,000 non-recaurségage loan provided by a third party lender, a
$47,458,000 mezzanine loan made to One South Stiaet Investors, L.L.C. (“*OSSS”) and held by WRIgd&and a 65% future profits participation
in favor of WRT-Elad in OSSS. We contributed a totfa$24,201,000 for a 50% interest in WRT-Elad @thconsolidates the operations of OSSS.

Mentor Building—Equity Investment Operating Propert®n May 10, 2012 we acquired for $300,000 a 20%éstan the entity which owns the
Mentor Building located in Chicago, lllinois. Thetérest was purchased from a third party membemansimultaneously made a $200,000 capital
contribution to acquire an additional interesthie entity which resulted in a 49.9% aggregate gdqmitestment for $500,000.

Vintage Housing Holdings LLC — Equity Investmerd 8neferred Equity InvestmenOn June 1, 2012 we contributed an additional $5(EDto our
Vintage Housing Holdings LLC (“VHH") equity investnt platform consisting of $1,500,000 in commonisggand $4,000,000 in preferred equity
with a 12% return. In connection with the transatiVHH acquired a general partner interest aneldgwnent fees relating to a residential
development project referred to as Vintage at UBanter, a tax credit apartment community in Lynd,d&/ashington with a proposed village
development of 395 multi-family rental units an@@) square feet of retail space.

On November 8, 2012 we made an additional $750p0€f@rred equity investment in VHH. The contribativas used by VHH to acquire the general
partner interest in a residential development ptajeferred to as Quilceda Creek, a tax credittapamt community in Marysville, Washington with a
proposed development of 204 residential units.

701 Seventh Avenue — Equity Investment OperatioggPty— On October 16, 2012 we entered into a joint vento acquire and redevelop a 120,000
square foot property and associated air rightstéatat 701 Seventh Avenue in New York City. Theperty is on the northeast corner of Seventh
Avenue and 4T Street in Times Square. The propastlelopment will include an expansion of theitsgace to approximately 80,000 square feet,
installation of an approximately 22,000 square fiate of the art LED sign, and potential developinag a hotel. We made an initial contribution of
$28,971,000 on a preferred equity basis to acqui@.9% interest in the venture. We have commttigdvest up to $68,000,000 on a preferred equity
basis.

Wateridge Pavilion — Equity Investment Operatingparty— On December 21, 2012 we entered into a ventutegnway Properties pursuant to
which the venture acquired for $9,200,000 a 62 ddifare foot class B office building located in 8ato Mesa (San Diego), California. We
contributed a total of $7,522,000 of which $6,000,@s a preferred equity investment which entitledo a 12% priority return which is to be paid 8%
currently from operating cash flow and the remag™fo is deferred. The additional $1,522,000 wadritnrted for a 50% common equity interest in
the venture.

Operating Property Disposition Activity

Churchill — Operating Property ©n May 14, 2012 we sold the portion of the ChutcRiénnsylvania property that was not leased totWgsouse for
$914,000. We agreed to provide financing to theebtiy cover property operating expenses. At

8
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closing, we provided $324,000 of financing to coayers expenses and real estate taxes due. Atioaddis179,000 was advanced in each of August
2012 and November 2012 directly to the taxing atityh¢o cover real estate taxes due on the soldgbait December 31, 2012 the total loan
outstanding was $683,000. The loan is interest antybears interest at LIBOR plus 3.75%, maturedume 1, 2015 and is collateralized by the
property.

Memphis (Kroger- Operating Property The Kroger Co., a tenant which net leased 100%@E&pace of our Memphis, Tennessee retail property,

vacated the building in October 2011 but continigepay rent as contractually required. On Septer@aBeR012, the Kroger Co. terminated its lease
and paid a cancellation fee of $600,000. On theesdate, we sold the Memphis property for $600,@08 third party buyer.

Indianapolis (Circle Tower- Operating Property On September 28, 2012 we sold our Indianapaidiaha property referred to as Circle Tower for
approximately $6,300,000. A portion of the proceeflthe sale were used to satisfy the $4,655,080rortgage on the property.

Operating Property Dispositions through our Eguityestments

Marc Realty— Sale of Equity Investment Operating Properti@uring 2012 we sold our equity investments in diwar Marc Realty joint ventures to
Marc Realty, our joint venture partner. Detailgle sales are as follows:

e On March 1, 2012 we sold our 50% interest in thapprty located at 3701 Algonquin Road, Rolling Maagdlllinois for $250,000

* On May 31, 2012 we sold our 50% equity interestRier Road LLC (Des Plains, lllinois), Salt CrddkC (Schaumburg, lllinois) and 900
Ridgebrook LLC (Northbrook, Illinois) for $1,000,00$0 and $1,100,000, respective

« On May 31, 2012 we sold our 50% equity interestlinhigan 30 LLC (Chicago, lllinois) for $10,300,000he purchase price was financed with
a $6,550,000 secured promissory note which boezast at 10% per annum, required payments of stterdy and matured on May 31, 2015.
This note was fully satisfied on August 3, 20

e On November 30, 2012 we sold our 70% equity investnm 180 North Michigan (Chicago, lllinois) fo? 200,000. The purchase price was
paid $2,000,000 in cash and the remainder wasdadmwith a $5,200,000 secured promissory note wihézhs interest at 8.25% per annum,
requires monthly payments of interest only and meston December 1, 201

Operating Property Financing Activity

Waterford Place - Operating PropertyOn July 19, 2012 we obtained a $13,500,000 firstgage loan collateralized by our 320 Unit Classlti-
family Memphis, Tennessee (Waterford Place) propthet was acquired on April 17, 2012. The loanrbéaterest at LIBOR plus 2.5% annually with

a LIBOR floor of 0.5%, requires monthly paymentgahcipal and interest and matures on August 1428ubject to two, one-year extensions. On the
same date we purchased an interest rate cap wichLdBOR at 0.5%. The loan will have an outstagdialance at the initial maturity date of
$12,928,000.

Newbury Apartment- Operating Property- On October 2, 2012 we refinanced the first mayggdebt on our 180 unit mufamily property located il
Meriden, Connecticut. The new loan has a princgmabunt of $21,000,000, bears interest at 3.95%upeum and matures on October 2, 2022. The
loan requires payments of interest only for thetfd#4 months and then payments of principal aretaést for the remaining term. After repayments on
the existing debt and settlement expenses we eteigt proceeds of approximately $7,308,000.

701 Arboretum — Operating PropertyOn October 2, 2012 we fully satisfied our mortgégan payable of $1,657,000 collateralized bylasie,
lllinois property referred to as 701 Arboretum.

223 West Jackson - Equity Investme®in July 2, 2012 together with Marc Realty, weheaontributed $3,524,000 to our unconsolidatedt jeamture
investment property located at 223 West Jacks@hioago, lllinois. The proceeds were used to p&yhef existing first mortgage loan collateralized
by this property. On September 25, 2012 the jo@mture obtained a $9,500,000 first mortgage ongtaperty. As a result of the financing we recei
a return of capital cash distribution of $3,524,000
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Operating Property Leasing Activity

Westheimer On September 17, 2012 Westheimer executed a éasadment with the existing net lease tenant, t&p&nergy, which leases the
entire 614,000 square foot premises. The initaséewas signed in 2004 and was scheduled to eXpiik30, 2018. The new lease extends the lease
through April 30, 2026. The Westheimer propertgrisumbered by a mortgage with a maturity date ofl 16. Negotiated annual lease payments
on the modified lease remain unchanged ($7,974®®8,255,000 annually) through the maturity ddtthe mortgage debt, then the base rate
decreases to $4,260,000 annually, subject to anmeralases thereafter up to $5,478,000 in annuél re

Crossroads F On September 5, 2012 we executed a new leaséHitétbhi Data Systems for 53,000 square feet ofdtwssroads | office property
located in Englewood, Colorado. The lease was ieggdtfor a ten year lease term commencing in MaBd8 at market rates. As a result of leasing
activity the Crossroads | property is 90% leaseldestember 31, 2012.

Loan Asset:

The following table sets forth certain informatigaiating to our loans receivable, and loan se@gitiarried at fair value. All information presenteds
of December 31, 2012 (in thousands).

Carryin
Loan Stated Interes Amgun? Maturity Senior
Name Position Asset Type Location Rate (1) (2 Par Value Date (3) Debt (4)
Loans Receivabl
1515 Market Street Whole loai Office Philadelphia, P. 5.828% $ 58,65( $70,00C  01/09/1: $ —
Hotel Wales Whole loat Hotel New York, NY LIBOR +4% (6) 20,10: 20,00( 10/05/1¢ —
Shops at Wailea B Note Retail Maui, HI 6.150% 5,37¢ 7,692 10/06/1+« 108,05!
Legacy Orchart Securec Corporate Loa n/a 15.00% 9,75C 9,750(5) 10/31/1¢ —
Rennaisance Wal Mezzanine Mixed use Atlanta, GA LIBOR + 12% 3,00( 3,00c 01/01/1¢ 4,00(¢
San Marbeyi Whole loar Multi-Family  Tempe, AZ 5.88% 27,14¢ 29,90 01/01/1% —
Fenway Shea Whole loat Office Phoenix, AZ 12.00% 2,27:  2,25C  04/05/1¢ —
127 W 25th Street Mezzanine Mixed use New York, NY 14.00% 8,681 8,58¢ 04/30/1¢ 35,18(
Churchill * Whole loar Mixed use  Churchill, PA  LIBOR + 3.75% 682 6832 06/01/1¢ —
Queensridge Towers Whole loar Multi-Family Las Vegas, N\LIBOR +11.5% (7 39,17( 38,77: 11/15/1¢ —
180 N. Michigan * Mezzanine Office Chicago, IL 8.25% 5,231 5,20( 12/01/1* 17,09(
Rockwell Mezzanine Industrial Shirley, NY 12.00% 32 1,48¢  05/01/1¢ 16,56(
50C-512 7th Ave B Note Office New York, NY 7.19% 10,00¢ 11,14¢ 07/11/1¢ 244,88°
Pinnacle Il * B Note Office Burbank, CA 6.313% 4,65 5,131 09/06/1¢ 84,70:
Poipu Shopping Village B Note Retail Kauai, HI 6.618% 1,94¢ 2,85«  01/06/1" 28,85¢
Disney Building * B Note Office Burbank, CA 5.897% 9,04 10,00( 04/06/1" 135,00(
Wellington Tower Mezzanine Mixed use New York, NY 6.79% 2,681 3,50z 07/11/1° 22,50(
Mentor Building* Whole loar Retail Chicago, IL 10.00% 251: 2,497 09/10/1° —
$211,25(
Loan Securitie!
WBCMT 2007 WHLS8 CMBS Hotel Various LIBOR + 1.75% $ 11 1,13( 06/09/1: 1,231,54.
$ 11
Loans in Equity Investmer(8)
Stamford Office * Mezzanine Office Stamford, CT LIBOR +3.25% $ 8,501 9,40(C 08/06/1+ 400,00(
10 Metrotech * Whole Office Brooklyn, NY 9.00% 10,84 13,33  08/06/1« —
$ 19,34¢

* Loan Asset was acquired in 2012. Additional loaseasletails are described belo

(1) Represents contractual interest rates withivihg effect to loan discount and accretion. Thatedd interest rate may be significantly different
than our effective interest rate on certain loaregtments

(2) Carrying amount includes all applicable accruedriest and accretion of discou

(3) After giving effect to all contractual extensiol

(4) Debt which is senior in payment and priority to éoan.

(5) Par Value is presented at the borrowers discoyrdgdff option (DPO) amoun

(6) Minimum rate of 7.0%

(7)  Minimum rate of 12.0%

(8) Does not include our equity interests in Concord, DO Management and WI-Elad.
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Loan Asset Acquisition Activi

Mentor Building— Loan Asset ©n March 6, 2012 we purchased a first mortgage &danar for $2,521,000 with a fixed interest rat& 6% per

annum, required monthly payments of principal andrest, and a maturity date of September 10, ZDi2loan is collateralized by a 6,571 square
foot retail condominium building known as the MenBuilding located in Chicago, lllinois which isjadent to the Sullivan Center property held by
our WRT-Elad joint venture. On May 10, 2012, we iified the terms of the loan increasing the interat to 10% per annum, requiring payments of
interest only and extending the maturity date tpt&maber 10, 2017.

Broward Financial Cente— Loan Asset On May 23, 2012 we acquired for approximately, 889,000 a matured first mortgage loan with a fadae

of $42,098,000 collateralized by a 326,000 squact-fommercial building located at 500 East BrowBodlevard, Ft. Lauderdale, Florida, containing
approximately 47,000 square feet of retail spack2at®,000 square feet of office space. Followirggabquisition of this loan, we entered into a
modification with the borrower, pursuant to whitke tmaturity date was extended until October 1522@1e interest rate was increased to 9.836% per
annum and the borrower made a payment of approglyn$i2,800,000, which reduced the outstandingcpal balance of the loan to $30,000,000.
This loan was repaid in full on October 9, 2012.

B-Note Portfolio Acquisitior- On September 27, 2012 we acquired for approxism&20,696,000 a portfolio of four performing B-Mdban assets

with an aggregate par value of approximately $25020. The loans are collateralized by four sepasffice and retail assets located in Californid an
Hawaii as follows:

»  Burbank Centre- We acquired for $9,000,000 a performing B Notéhvei face value of $10,000,000 collateralized 24,990 square foot
Class A office building located in Burbank, Califida that is currently 100% leased to Walt Disneyrpany affiliates with leases expiring in
2014 and 2017. The loan bears interest at 5.89#%rprim, requires monthly payments of interest amlg matures in April 2017. The B Note
is subordinate to $135,000,000 of senior financ@dg.January 25, 2013 we sold this loan to an afélof the borrower for $9,000,0(

» Pinnacle II- We acquired for approximately $4,631,000 a penfog B Note with a face value of $5,145,000 colalieed by a 230,000 square
foot Class A office building located in Burbank,li@ania that is currently 100% leased to WarneotBers through 2021. The loan bears inte
at 6.313% per annum, requires monthly paymentsion€ipal and interest, and matures in Septembe620ie B Note is subordinate to
$84,701,000 of senior financin

* The Shops at Waile- We acquired for approximately $5,154,000 a perfagrB Note with a face value of $7,719,000 colldteea by 166,00(
square feet of premier shopping and dining estaflents, with more than 70 boutiques, shops, remtésiand galleries located on the island of
Maui, Hawaii. The property is 97% leased. The Ibaars interest at 6.15% per annum, requires mopthlynents of principal and interest, and
matures in April 2017. The B Note is subordinat&108,055,000 of senior financir

* Poipu Shopping Villag- We acquired for approximately $1,911,000 a perfagr® Note with a face value of $2,861,000 colldieea by
40,800 square feet of retail space on the islarithofi, Hawaii. The property is 97% leased. Thalbaars interest at 6.618% per annum,
requires monthly payments of principal and inteegst matures in January 2017. The B Note is subatelito $28,856,000 of senior financi

1515 Market Street — Loan Asse©n December 12, 2012 we acquired for $58,650e0900,000,000 noperforming first mortgage loan collaterali:

by a 20 story, 514,000 square foot office buildiocated in Philadelphia, Pennsylvania. The loan wasaturity default and was accruing interest at
the default rate of 10.83% per annum. On Februa®013 in lieu of foreclosing, we restructured lien to increase the outstanding principal balance
to $71,629,000 (which included accrued and unp#ierést and expenses and an additional advan@26f@0), adjust the interest rate to be the
greater of 7.5% per annum or LIBOR plus 6.5%, extidre maturity date to February 1, 2016 and profade 40% participation in all capital event
proceeds. In addition, we acquired for $10,000nairéct 49% interest in the property and becameémeral partner of the property owner.

Loan Asset Origination Activit

Fenway She— Loan Asset ©n April 5, 2012 we originated a $2,250,000 firsirtgage loan which bears interest at 12% per aremammatures on
April 5, 2014, with one, one-year extension rigftie loan requires monthly payments of interest ovith a balloon payment due at maturity. The loan
is collateralized by a 45,655 square foot, two3staulti-tenant office building located at 4545 E&$iea Boulevard, Phoenix, Arizona.
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127 West 28 Street — Loan Assén May 14, 2012 we originated a $9,000,000 menesioan collateralized by 100% of the member s in the
entity that holds title to the 104,000 square fd@tstory building located at 127 West 25th Strbtnhattan, New York. The loan bears interest at a
rate equal to the greater of 14% per annum or LIBRR 10%, requires payment of principal and irdeesd matures on April 30, 2015. The loan is
subordinate to a mortgage loan of $35,180,000 whédrs interest at a rate of 4.5% per annum andresgpayments of interest only. On March 1,
2013 this loan was repaid in full.

Queensridge Towers — Loan Assédn November 15, 2012 we originated a $40,000f@80mortgage loan collateralized by 67 luxury dominium

units at Queensridge Towers located in Las Vegasabla. The loan bears interest at LIBOR plus 1i%a LIBOR floor of 0.5%, requires month
payments of interest only and matures on NovembgfQ14, subject to one twelve month extensiomdisal payments are required to be made basec
on predetermined release prices upon the saleeafittividual units. During 2012 we received aggtegaincipal payments of $1,230,000 on this loan.

Simultaneously with the loan origination, we ob&tira $25,000,000 loan from KeyBank National Corfiona(“KeyBank”) which is collateralized by
the Queensridge Towers loan. The KeyBank loan hieterest at LIBOR plus 4%, requires monthly paytaef interest only and is co-terminus with
the Queensridge Towers loan. Principal paymentsegyaired to be made in accordance with principainpents received on the Queensridge Towers
loan. As such, during 2012 we made aggregate pahpayments of $1,230,000. The KeyBank loan isuese to us and our wholly owned operating
partnership.

Loan Asset Repayment Activ

160 Spear Street — Loan Ass€n May 9, 2012 our 160 Spear loans receivable wipar value of $19,645,000 were paid off at pyathle borrower.
Our outstanding investment in these loans prigrayoff was $8,054,000.

Magazine- Loan Asset On May 9, 2012 our Magazine loan receivable witpar value of $20,000,000 was paid off at pamieyttorrower. Our
outstanding investment in this loan prior to payeés $17,525,000.

Loan Asset Activity through our Equity Investme

Southern California Office Portfolio — Equity Ine®ent Loan Asset©on January 6, 2012 our venture that holds the $D07000 C Note in a
$798,000,000 first mortgage encumbering a 4,500s@0@re foot 31 property office portfolio in south€alifornia (the “SoCal Loan”), obtained a
$40,000,000 recourse repurchase facility (the 1fg8iwith an affiliate of Blackstone Real Estabebt Strategies. The Facility bore interest at LBBO
plus 11% per annum with a LIBOR floor of 1%. TheCabLoan venture received net proceeds of appraeiyn&38,100,000 after origination fees,
interest reserves and closing expenses, which isaghdted entirely to us in partial redemptionoeir interest in the SoCal Loan venture resulting in
decrease in our ownership interest from approxityat@% to approximately 56%.

On April 6, 2012 WRT-SoCal Lender LLC (“SoCal Lemtea consolidated joint venture that holds ariest in the SoCal Loan venture, amended
and restated its operating agreement to allowhferadmission of IX SoCal Holdings LP (“Starwood$)amember. Starwood contributed $3,500,000
for a 10.2178% interest in SoCal Lender. We reakdvspecial distribution from SoCal Lender equébtarwood’s contribution. As a result, we owned
a 50.2% effective interest in the SoCal Loan investt on a fully-diluted basis for a net investmefi$29,754,000.

On September 28, 2012 SoCal Loan received a logoffpat par by the borrower. After repayment of te&ated repurchase agreement, we received
$38,407,000 in cash proceeds.

Stamford Portfolio — Equity Investment Loan Ass@in-ebruary 17, 2012 we invested $8,036,000 andirshjia 20% interest in a venture with Mack-
Cali Realty Corporation that acquired for $40,000,@& senior mezzanine loan with a face value of B0)000. The venture’s investment is
subordinate to $400,000,000 in senior debt. The fyavides for a credit to the borrower of up tg0R®,000 of any principal proceeds above
$47,000,000. The loan bears interest at LIBOR Bl@5% per annum and matures on August 6, 2013esutnj one one-year extension. The loan is
collateralized by the equity interests in a seveitding portfolio containing 1,670,000 square feeClass A office space and 106 residential rental
units totaling 70,500 square feet, all locatechim $tamford, Connecticut Central Business District.

RE CDO Managemel- Additional Equity InvestmertDuring March 2012 we and our joint venture parineRE CDO Management LLC (“RE

CDOQ") each contributed $550,000 to the joint veattRE CDO acquired a 5.52% interest in (i) a farsdrity mortgage loan collateralized by land
located in Las Vegas, Nevada (the “Land”), whicandears interest at LIBOR plus 40% with a curpanyt rate of 7.5% and the balance accruing and
compounding and which had an outstanding
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balance of $18,218,000 at March 30, 2012, (ii)aoad priority mortgage loan collateralized by trent which bears interest at 10% per annum, all of
which accrues, and which had an outstanding balah$82,177,000 at March 30, 2012 and (iii) a 5.5@%mbership interest in the entity that was
formed to acquire the Land.

10 Metrotech — Equity Investment Loan Asseh-April 18, 2012 we funded $75,000 for a 33.33%ii@st in a joint venture (“10 Metrotech JV”).
These funds were used to acquire from Sorin Reak&€DO |V Ltd., a $21,000,000, B Participatiorttie whole loan secured by a 364,968 square
foot, seven story, Class B/C office building on.a8acre land parcel in Brooklyn, New York refertechs 10 Metrotech. On August 6, 2012 10
Metrotech JV acquired the $39,300,000 senior gpetion in the loan secured by 10 Metrotech for,$80,000. As a result of these transactions, 10
Metrotech JV now holds the entire mortgage loatioing consummation of the acquisition, 10 MettelV entered into a forbearance agreement
with the borrower pursuant to which, among othéargs, (i) the interest rate on the loan was inedde 9%, (ii) the principal amount of the loan was
reset to $40,000,000 and (iii) 10 Metrotech JV adr® forbear from foreclosing on the property parg to the current maturity default for two years,
subject to any further defaults by the borrower.

Concord - Additional Equity Investmen®n May 1, 2012 we acquired from Lexington Redltyst its 33.33% interest in both Concord Debt Htuid
LLC (“Concord”) and CDH CDO LLC (“CDH CDQ") and it80% interest in the collateral manager of Condoedl Estate CDO 2006-1, Ltd. for an
aggregate purchase price of $7,000,000. As a resalhow hold a 66.67% interest in both Concord@BdH CDO and 100% of the economics of the
collateral manager. In the event of a sale of ntarest in CDH CDO or our interest in the collatenanager, additional proceeds may be payable to
Lexington Realty Trust if the sales price excedwtspgurchase price paid by us.

Riverside— Equity Investment Loan Assédn September 18, 2012 our 50% owned joint ventdRET-ROIC Riverside LLC, which held an investmt
in a loan collateralized by Riverside Plaza rgtailperty received a loan pay off at par by the dwar. We received $7,800,000 in cash proceeds from
this loan which was originally purchased at par.

REIT Securities

During the first half of 2012 we acquired an addifl 1,054,686 shares of common stock in CedartyR€alst, Inc. (“Cedar”) for an aggregate
purchase price of approximately $5,038,000. Accealyi, as of June 30, 2012 we held 6,250,716 steresmmon stock in Cedar representing
approximately 8.7% of Cedar’s total outstanding oam stock. On October 18, 2012 we sold approximd2? of our holdings of Cedar in a block
sale at a price of $5.28 per share. As of Decerdbe?012 we held 3,000,716 shares of common stwckpproximately 4.2% of Cedar.

Also during 2012 we sold all of our remaining REdfeferred share holdings and received net prooafe$i$,302,000.
At December 31, 2012 our investments in REIT séiesrconsisted of the following (in thousands):

Cost Fair Value

REIT Common Shares $15,87¢ $19,96¢
$15,87¢ $19,96¢

Revolving Line of Credit

On March 3, 2011 we amended our existing revolime of credit with KeyBank National Associationcsuthat (i) the maximum borrowing was
increased to $50,000,000 with an accordion featfitgp to $150,000,000 and (i) the maturity dateswatended to March 2014 with an option to
extend the maturity date to March 2015. The amercdedit facility bears interest at LIBOR plus 3%.

Employees

As of December 31, 2012 we had no employees. Gairafire administered by our Advisor pursuantiterms of an advisory agreement which on
February 1, 2013 was amended and restated to, aatbegthings, extended the term for five year$jestt to earlier termination by us for both cause
(as defined) and without cause), modified the neglireturn on the threshold amount for which theeitiive fee is payable as discussed below and
provided for a supplemental fee payable to our Advin the event of an early termination of theisoiy agreement under certain circumstance or on
the liquidation or disposition of the Trust. Weaefo the advisory agreement, as the same may beded from time to time, as the “Advisory
Agreement.”
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Under the Advisory Agreement, we pay to our Adviaajuarterly base management fee equal to 1.5%tbk(issuance price of our outstanding ec
securities plus (ii) 0.25% of any equity contrilutiby an unaffiliated third party to a venture ngedby us. The Advisory Agreement provides that
any dividends paid on account of Common Sharesésalt in a reduction of the threshold amountd@scribed below) at the date of our liquidatiol
disposition are deemed a reduction in the aggregstiance price of the Common Shares, therebytiggith a reduction of the base management fee.
In addition to receiving a base management feeAduisor is entitled to receive an incentive feeddministering the Trust and, in certain instanees
supplemental fee upon an early termination of tdeigory Agreement under certain circumstances @fitjuidation of disposition of the Trust.

Further, our advisor, or its affiliate, is alsoi#at! to receive property management fees and ngeigin management fees at commercially reasonable
rates.

The incentive fee is equal to 20% of any amounéslalle for distribution in excess of the threshaidount and is only payable at such time, if at all

(i) when holders of our Common Shares receive aggeedividends above the threshold amount or gigrutermination of the Advisory Agreement, if
the net value of our assets exceeds the threshaddrat based on then current market values and igpfgaThat is, the incentive fee is not payable
annually but only at such time, if at all, as shatders have received dividends in excess of treshiold amount (set at $534,224,000 on Decembi
2012 plus the issuance price for any equity interigsthe Trust issued from and after January 132flus an annual return thereon equal to the great
of (x) 4% or (y) the 5 year U.S. Treasury YieldpR15% (such return, the “Growth Factor”) less diwdends paid from and after January 1, 2013).
The incentive fee will also be payable if the Advis Agreement is terminated, other than for caasadéfined) by us or with cause by our Advisor,

if on the date of termination the net value of Tmast’s assets exceeds the threshold amount. Aémber 31, 2012 the threshold amount required to be
distributed before any incentive fee would be péyab FUR Advisors was $534,224,000, which was eajent to $16.18 per diluted Common Share.

With respect to the supplemental fee, it is onlygide if there is (i) a termination of the Advisokgreement for any reason other than for cause (as
defined) by us or with cause by our Advisor, (idliaposition of all or substantially all of our ats or (iii) an election by us to orderly liquidaiur
assets. The supplemental fee, if payable, is @équbk lesser of (i) the base management fee paidrt Advisor for the prior twelve month period or

(ii) either (x) in the case of a termination of thévisory Agreement, 20% of the positive differepiéany between (A) the appraised net asset vaflue
our assets at the date of termination and (B)hteshold amount less $104,980,000, or (y) in tise cd a disposition or liquidation, 20% of any
dividends paid on account of our Common Shareadt 8me as the threshold amount is reduced to 8804000, which will be achieved at such time
as aggregate distributions of approximately $1&0&xcess of the Growth Factor have been paidekample, if the Trust had been liquidated at
January 1, 2013, the supplemental fee would onlg lieeen payable if total dividends of approxima&l®.00 per Common Share had been paid, and
then only until the total supplemental fee paid ldchave equaled $8,953,000 (the base managemefuarfealendar 2012), which amount would be
achieved when total dividends paid per Common Seaqualed approximately $14.36.

In the event that the supplemental fee is payabé®nnection with a disposition, the entire fepagable upon such disposition. In all other cadesre
the supplemental fee is payable, we are permittettter payment of the first $3,000,000 of the $eimental fee for 30 days and the balance, if aor
a period of six months. If it is determined tha #upplemental fee is less than $3,000,000, oursadis obligated to promptly return to us the
difference between the $3,000,000 paid to it aedatttual supplemental fee.

Upon the termination of the Advisory Agreement amoection with a disposition, all the fees paydbleur Advisor are required to be paid in
immediately available funds. In all other casesngtibe Advisory Agreement is terminated, we araliregl to pay the supplemental fee, if any, in
immediately available funds and the incentive feany, may be paid in a number of freely trada®@mmon Shares (subject only to standard sect
law restrictions) equal to the amount due to ouvisar divided by the greater ¢f) the closing price for the Common Shares ondidie of terminatio
of the Advisory Agreement or (y) $11.05 (which whas closing price of the Common Shares on Dece®bge?012).

In connection with the modifications entered imdrebruary 2013 with respect to the Advisory Agreamwe issued to Michael L. Ashner, our
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, and Carolyffiahiy, our President, 66,667 and 33,333 restri@echmon Shares, respectively, which Common
Shares were issued under our 2007 Long Term IneeRian. In addition, our Board has authorizeddbheance of an additional 500,000 restricted
Common Shares which will be issued at such timat, #ll, as we are authorized to issue additioesttricted Common Shares to our officers, our
Advisor and
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employees of our Advisor or its affiliates that yire services to us. The Common Shares issued tédhmer and Ms. Tiffany and, if and when
issued, the additional Common Shares, are sulgjehttfollowing restrictions:

* The Common Shares awarded to any person will Beifed if such person does not remain in continusmrsice with our Advisor through
January 1, 201¢

» The Common Shares will immediately vest and no éorg subject to forfeiture on the earlier of éhdary 1, 2018, (ii) upon a change in
control, (iii) if the Advisory Agreement is termiteal by us for any reason other than cause, or byAduisor for cause, or (iv) the death or
disability of the holder. Change in control is aefil as the occurrence of any of the following,rie transaction or a series of related
transactions: (1) any “person” (as such term isliseSections 13(d) and 14(d) of the Securitiesharge Act of 1934, as amended (the
“Exchange Act")) becoming a “beneficial owner” @afined in Rule 13d-3 under the Exchange Act),dliyeor indirectly, of our securities
representing more than 50% of the voting poweruwftben outstanding securities; (2) our consolatgtequity exchange, reorganization or
merger resulting in our equity holders immediaf@lipr to such event not owning at least a majarftyhe voting power of the resulting entity’s
securities outstanding immediately following sueler; (3) the sale or other disposition of all obstantially all of our assets; or (4) our
dissolution.

* So long as the Common Shares awarded are subjigfadure, our secretary has the sole and exadusght to exercise all voting rights with
respect to the awarded Common She

» Until the Common Shares awarded are no longer sutgjdorfeiture, all cash dividends payable theraadll be payable as follows: (i) the holder
will receive a portion of the dividend equal tof{j)e percent, multiplied by (ii) the number of fgblendar quarters that have transpired between
January 1, 2013 and the applicable dividend paymatat, less any required tax withholding and (i§ temaining portion of the dividend will be
held by us in escrow and will only be paid to tloddier thereof if and when the Common Shares awaadedo longer subject to forfeiture. If the
Common Shares awarded are forfeited, then theetids held in escrow will similarly be forfeite

Competition

We have competition with respect to our acquisitboperating properties and our acquisition arigiation of loan assets with many other
companies, including other REITSs, insurance comggrdiommercial banks, private investment fundsgéddnds, specialty finance companies and
other investors. Some competitors may have a loastrof funds and access to funding sources teat@ravailable to us. In addition, some of our
competitors may have higher risk tolerances or nutififerent risk assessments, which could allow thieronsider a wider variety of investments. We
cannot assure you that the competitive pressurdaaeewill not have a material adverse effect ontusiness, financial condition and results of
operations.

We will continue to capitalize on the acquisitiomdanvestment opportunities that our Advisor britgsis as a result of its acquisition experience as
well as our partners in ventures. We derive sigaift benefit from our present advisor structuregmgtour Advisor's experienced management team
provides us with resources at substantially less ttan if such persons were directly employeddyTirough its broad experience, our Advisor's
senior management team has established a netwodatdcts and relationships, including relationshijith operators, financing sources, investment
bankers, commercial real estate brokers, poteeti@nts and other key industry participants.

Environmental Regulations

Our operations and properties are subject to variederal, state and local laws and regulations@ming the protection of the environment including
air and water quality, hazardous or toxic substareeel health and safety. These are discussedifumbder Item 1A — Risk Factors.

Seament Data
Business segment data may be found under ltemiBanéial Statements and Supplementary Data Note 21.
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Additional Information

The following materials are available free of chatigrough our website at www.winthropreit.com agrsas reasonably practicable after they are
electronically filed with or furnished to the SE@der the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amiende

e our Annual Reports on Form -K and all amendments there
* our quarterly reports on Form-Q and all amendments there
e our current reports on Forn-K and all amendments there

» other SEC filings

e organizational document

* Audit Committee Charte

* Compensation Committee Chart

*  Conflicts Committee Charte

* Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee €l

* Code of Business Conduct and Ethics;

» Corporate Governance Guidelin

We will provide a copy of the foregoing materialgh®ut charge to anyone who makes a written reqestir Investor Relations Department, c/o F
Advisors, LLC, 7 Bulfinch Place, Suite 500, P.OxB507, Boston, Massachusetts 02114.

We also intend to promptly disclose on our webasitg amendments that we make to, or waivers foiToustees or executive officers that we grant
from, the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics.

New York Stock Exchange Certification

As required by applicable New York Stock Excharigirlg rules, on May 8, 2012, following our 2012riral Meeting of Shareholders, our Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer submitted to the Newky8tock Exchange a certification that he was madra of any violation by us of New York Stock
Exchange corporate governance listing standards.

ITEM 1A — RISK FACTORS

We, our assets and the entities in which we inaessubject to a number of risks customary for REpPFoperty owners, loan originators and holders
and equity investors as well as a number of riskelived in our investment, operating, and capitategy policy that not all REITs may have. Matk
factors that may adversely affect our businessatjmers and financial conditions are summarizedwelo

Risks incidental to real estate investmel

As a REIT our investments are limited to direct evahip and operation of operating properties, gsets secured, directly or indirectly, by opetatin
properties, and investments in other REITs. Acawglyi, an investment in us depends upon our findpeegormance and the value of our operating
properties held from time to time as well as theseuring our loan assets, and those held by th&RiElwhich we invest, which operating properties
are subject to the risks normally associated viighdwnership, operation and disposal of real estajgerties and real estate related assets, imgudi

» adverse changes in general and local economic timmsliwhich affect the demand for real estate as
e competition from other propertie

+ fluctuations in interest rate

* reduced availability of financinc

» the cyclical nature of the real estate industry poskible oversupply of, or reduced demand forp@rides in the markets in which our
investments are locate

» the attractiveness of our properties to tenantspamchasers

* how well we manage our properti

» changes in market rental rates and our abilityetd space on favorable tern

« the financial condition of our tenants and borrawiecluding their becoming insolvent and bankr
» the need to periodically renovate, repair ar-lease space and the costs ther

* increases in maintenance, insurance and operaistg;
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e civil unrest, armed conflict or acts of terrorisgainst the United States; a
» earthquakes, floods and other natural disasteastsrof God that may result in uninsured los

In addition, changes to applicable federal, statklacal regulations, zoning and tax laws and pé@klability under environmental and other laws
affect real estate values. Further, throughoup#réd that we own real property, regardless ofthwreor not a property is producing any income, we
must make significant expenditures, including thimseroperty taxes, maintenance, insurance amdegicharges and debt service. The risks
associated with real estate investments may adyeaffect our operating results and financial poosit and therefore the funds available for
distribution to you as dividends.

We may change our investment and operational pagi

We may change our investment and operating stragiglygr voluntarily or as result of changing ecoimoonditions, including our policies with
respect to investments, acquisitions, growth, dpers, indebtedness, capitalization and divideridsg time which could result in our making
investments that are different from, and possitdkier than, our current investments. A changeuniovestment strategy may increase our expost
interest rate risk, default risk and real estateketafluctuations, all of which could adverselyedt our financial condition, results of operatiosisare
price and our ability to pay dividends.

We may not be able to invest our cash reservesciretive investments.

As of December 31, 2012, we had approximately $&llfon of cash and cash equivalents availableéfdgestment. Our ability to increase our overall
net worth is dependent upon our ability to grow asset base by investing these funds, as welldiaml funds which we may raise or borrow, in
real estate related assets that will ultimatelyegate returns in excess of our cost of capital.

We may not be able to obtain capital to make invesbts.

As a REIT, we are in a capital intensive businbas is dependent primarily on third party debt agdity financing to fund the growth of our business
because one of the requirements for a REIT isitldistribute at least 90% of its annual REIT talkeaincome, subject to certain adjustments, to its
shareholders. Access to third party capital soudegends, in part, on general market conditioresihrket’s perception of our growth potential, our
current and expected future earnings, our cashdlosvthe market price of our Common Shares. Aduilig, we may not be able to obtain debt or
equity financing on favorable terms. Accordingfpwie cannot obtain capital from third parties osifch access is on unfavorable terms, it will kel
have a material adverse affect on our financiabld@n and results of operations, our stock price aur ability to pay dividends to our shareholders

We are subject to significant competition and we ymaot compete successfully.

We have significant competition with respect to acquisition of operating properties and our adtjaisand origination of loan assets with many
other companies, including other REITs, insurarareganies, commercial banks, private investmentduhddge funds, specialty finance companies
and other investors some of which may have a lawst of funds and access to funding sources teat@ravailable to us. In addition, many of our
competitors have greater resources than we doaarti§ and other reasons, we may not be ablertgpete successfully for particular investments.

Investing through ventures presents additional rsl

Our investments in ventures present additionakr&lch as our having objectives that differ froomsthof our partners or in the investments we make,
becoming involved in disputes concerning operationpossibly competing with those persons for gtreents unrelated to our venture. In addition,
where we do not control the venture, we rely onititernal controls and financial reporting controfour partners and, as such, their failure to gigm
with applicable standards and maintain effectiverimal controls over financial reporting may adegrsffect us.

Investing in private companies involves specifisks.

We have held and may acquire additional ownersfigrésts in private companies not subject to therteng requirements of the SEC. Investments in
private businesses involve a higher degree of legsiand financial risk, which can result in sulishlosses and accordingly should be considered
speculative. There is generally no publicly avd#ahformation about these private companies, aedwll rely significantly on the due diligence of
our Advisor to obtain information in connection wibur investment decisions.
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Our due diligence may not reveal all of the lialties associated with a proposed investment and matyreveal other weaknesses.

There can be no assurance that due diligence bgaxisor in connection with a new investment witlaover all relevant facts which could adversely
affect the value of the investment and the sucekfte investment.

We face risks associated with property acquisitions

We acquire properties and portfolios of propertiesiuding large portfolios that would increase sire and potentially alter our capital
structure. Although we enter into these acquisgtisith the belief that they will enhance our futirencial performance, the success of such
transactions is subject to a number of factorduding the risk that:

* we may not be able to obtain financing for acqigis& on favorable term
» acquired properties may fail to perform as expec
» the actual costs of repositioning or redevelopioguired properties may be higher than our estim

* acquired properties may be located in new markbéerevwe may have limited knowledge and understgnafithe local economy, an
absence of business relationships in the areafamilfarity with local governmental and permittipgocedures; an

* we may not be able to efficiently integrate acadiipeoperties, particularly portfolios of properti@so our organization and manage new
properties in a way that allows us to realize sasings and synergie

In the future we may acquire properties or port®Idf properties through tax deferred contributiamsactions in exchange for partnership interiests
our Operating Partnership. This acquisition striectuas the effect, among other factors, of reduttiegamount of tax depreciation we can deduct over
the tax life of the acquired properties, and tyjyjceequires that we agree to protect the contobsitability to defer recognition of taxable gahrdugh
restrictions on our ability to dispose of the acgdiproperties and/or the allocation of partnerslaipt to the contributors to maintain their tax

bases. These restrictions on dispositions could tar ability to sell an asset during a specifiiede, or on terms, that would be favorable abseahs
restrictions.

Acquired properties may subject us to known and aokvn liabilities.

Properties that we acquire may be subject to knawchunknown liabilities for which we would have me@ourse, or only limited recourse, to the
former owners of such properties. As a result lidbility were asserted against us based upon oshifeof an acquired property, we might be required
to pay significant sums to settle it, which coutiVersely affect our financial results and cash floilmknown liabilities relating to acquired propesi
could include:

» liabilities for cleal-up of pre-existing disclosed or undisclosed environmentatammation;
» claims by tenants, vendors or other persons ar@ingccount of actions or omissions of the formeners of the properties; al
» liabilities incurred in the ordinary course of uesss,

Failure to renew expiring leases could adverselyeat our financial condition.

We are subject to the risk that, upon expiratieases may not be renewed, the space may not beréhe terms of renewal or reletting, includiheg t
cost of any required renovations, may be less &lerthan the prior or current lease terms. Thisis substantial with respect to our net leased
properties. As of December 31, 2012, our 13 siteyl@nt properties, containing an aggregate of agpagely 2,238,000 square feet of space are net
leased to 10 different tenants. Gross leases atinguor approximately 8% of the aggregate annaaiebrent from our operating properties for 2012,
representing approximately 7% of the net rentafjlexse feet at the properties, were scheduled tweekp2013. Other leases grant tenants early
termination rights upon payment of a terminationglty. Lease expirations will require us to locagsv tenants and negotiate replacement leases with
them. The costs for tenant improvements, tenantegsions and leasing commissions with respectwolesses are traditionally greater than costs
relating to renewal leases. If we are unable tonptty relet or renew leases for all or a substaptigtion of the space subject to expiring leases,

the rental rates upon such renewal or reletting@ificantly lower than expected, our revenue aetlincome could be adversely affected.
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We are subject to risks associated with the finai@ondition of our tenants and our borrower’s tents.

Our tenants or tenants at properties securingaaur ssets may experience a downturn in their bssiresulting in their inability to make rental
payments when due. In addition, a tenant may deekrotection of bankruptcy, insolvency or simleaws, which could result in the rejection and
termination of such tenant’s lease and cause atiedun our cash flow. If this were to occur atet lease property, the entire property would bezom
vacant.

We cannot evict a tenant solely because of itsdfifor bankruptcy. A bankruptcy court, however, naayhorize a tenant to reject and terminate its
lease. In such a case, our claim against the tdoapast due rent and unpaid future rent wouldldgect to a statutory cap that might be substéntia
less than the remaining rent owed under the ldasey event, it is unlikely that a bankrupt tenait pay the entire amount it owes us under a
lease. The loss of rental payments from tenantkl@mversely affect our financial condition andules of operations.

Similarly, if a tenant at a property securing anl@sset fails to meet its rental obligations, tbedwer may have insufficient funds to satisfy tiedbt
service resulting in a default on our loan assddifionally, the loss of a tenant at a propertyusig a loan asset could negatively impact theealu
the property and, therefore, our collateral.

The loss of a major tenant could adversely affeat éinancial condition.

We are and expect that we will continue to be sutlifea degree of tenant concentration at certb@upoperating properties and the properties
securing our loan assets. As indicated above, wsurject to risks associated with the financialdition of our tenants and tenants at properties
securing our loan assets. In the event that a teaupying a significant portion of one or moreoof properties or whose rental income represents a
significant portion of the rental revenue at suobperty or properties were to experience finanei@hkness, default on its lease, elect not to retsew
lease or file bankruptcy it would negatively impaat financial condition and results of operatioBsnilarly, if a tenant occupying a significant fion

of one or more of the properties securing our lassets or whose rental income represents a sigmifportion of the rental revenue at such property
properties experiences financial weakness defaulits lease, elects not to renew its lease o8 fide bankruptcy, it would negatively impact our
financial condition and results of operations.

We may experience increased operating costs, wiidght reduce our profitability.

Our properties are subject to increases in opgratipenses such as for cleaning, electricity, hgatientilation and air conditioning, administrativ
costs and other costs associated with securitgstaaping and repairs and maintenance of our piepehh general, under our leases with tenants, we
pass through all or a portion of these costs tmthEhere can be no assurance that tenants wilhlyctoear the full burden of these higher costghat
such increased costs will not lead them, or othesgective tenants, to seek office space elsewHayperating expenses increase, the availability o
other comparable office space in the geographidketsuof our properties might limit our ability todrease rents; if operating expenses increase wi

a corresponding increase in revenues, our profiitalbbbuld diminish and limit our ability to paydends to shareholders.

We leverage our portfolio, which may adversely affeur financial condition and results of operatien

We seek to leverage our portfolio through borrowin@ur return on investments and cash availaby@yadividends to holders of our Series D
Preferred Shares and Common Shares may be redutiesl éxtent that changes in market conditions nmake borrowings or refinancing of existing
debt difficult or even impossible or cause the afgiur financings to increase relative to the meathat can be derived from the assets. Our debt
service payments, including interest payable onSamior Notes, reduce the cash available to pagetids to holders of Series D Preferred Shares anc
Common Shares. We may not be able to meet oursgelite obligations and, to the extent that we ogre risk the loss of some or all of our assets
to foreclosure or forced sale to satisfy our ddligations. A decrease in the value of the assetglead to a requirement that we repay certairtiagi

or future credit facilities. We may not have thads available, or the ability to obtain replacenfargncing, to satisfy such repayments.
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Interest rate fluctuations may reduce our investrtageturn.

Certain of our loan obligations and loan assetefiating interest rates. In such cases, an isereainterest rates would increase our loan otiiga
while a decrease in interest rates would decrdasiterest received on our loan assets. Wheréhp@sge seek to mitigate these risks by acquiring
interest rate cap agreements, rate collars and sitindar protections. To the extent we have ndigated these risks or our actions are ineffectve,
fluctuation in interest rates could negatively iropaur cash flow due to an increase in loan ohiligator a decrease in interest received on our loan
assets.

We engage in hedging transactions that may limitiggor result in losses.

We have and may continue to use hedging instruneiisr risk management strategy to limit the eeaf changes in interest rates on our
operations. A hedge may not be effective in elirtingpall of the risks inherent in any particularsgion. Further, we have and could in the future
recognize losses on a hedge position which adweestects our financial condition and results oéogtions. In addition, we run the risk of defaujta
counterparty to a hedging arrangement.

We may be unable to refinance our existing debtpoeferred share financings or obtain favorable refincing terms.

We are subject to the normal risks associated @etit and preferred share financings, includingigiethat our cash flow will be insufficient to ntee
required payments of principal and interest on @elot dividends and redemption payments to holdepsaferred shares and the risk that indebtedness
on our properties, or unsecured indebtednessnafilbe able to be renewed, repaid or refinancedwlue, or that the terms of any renewal or
refinancing will not be as favorable as the termsuzh indebtedness. If we were unable to refindmdebtedness or preferred share financings on
acceptable terms, or at all, we might be forcedispose of one or more of our investments on disathgeous terms, which might result in losses to
us, which could have a material adverse affectsoand our ability to pay dividends to our holderpr@ferred shares and Common

Shares. Furthermore, if a property is mortgageal loan pledged to secure payment of indebtednese/arare unable to meet the debt payments, the
lender could foreclose upon the property or tha l@@point a receiver or obtain an assignmentribrand leases or pursue other remedies, all with a
consequent loss of revenues and asset value kmreslosures could also create taxable income withccompanying cash proceeds, thereby
hindering our ability to meet the REIT dividend uggments.

The loans we invest in are subject to delinqueneyddoss.

Our loan assets are directly or indirectly secumgéhcome producing property. The ability of a lmever to make payments on the loan underlying
these securities is dependent primarily upon tleeesssful operation of the property rather than uperexistence of independent income or assets of
the borrower since the underlying loans are gelyemah-recourse in nature. These loans are sutgaettks of delinquency and foreclosure as well as
risk associated with the capital markets. If a baer were to default on a loan, it is possible thatwould not recover the full value of the loan.

We may be unable to foreclose on the collateraliséwy our loan assets on a timely basis or our loassets may be subject to unfavorable treatn
in a borrower bankruptcy.

In certain states foreclosing on a property caa lngthy and costly process. In addition, a boerogan file for bankruptcy or raise defenses toatd
delay our ability to realize on our collateral otimely basis. In such instances, the increasets @l time required to realize on our collateraiild
likely result in a reduced return or loss on theestment. Further, if a borrower were to file fankruptcy protection, a plan could be approved over
our objection that would extend our loan for a perof time at an interest rate that is less tharcost of funds, thereby having a negative impact o
our cash flow.

The subordinate loan assets in which we invest anbject to risks relating to the structure and tesrof the transactions, and there may not be
sufficient funds or assets to satisfy our subordieanotes, which may result in losses to

We invest in loan assets that are subordinateympat and collateral to more senior loans. If adeer defaults or declares bankruptcy, after thea
senior obligations are satisfied, there may naufécient funds or assets remaining to satisfy subiordinate notes. Because each transaction is
privately negotiated, subordinate loan assets eayin their structural characteristics and lemitghnts, including our rights to control the defaoit
bankruptcy process. The subordinate loan assdta/éhavest in may not give us the right to deméordclosure as a subordinate debt

holder. Furthermore, the presence of intercredigpeements, co-lender agreements and participagiggements may limit our ability to amend the
loan documents, assign the loans, accept prepagnmexrcise remedies and control decisions mablarikruptcy proceedings relating to
borrowers. Bankruptcy and borrower litigation cagngicantly increase the time needed for us toulregpossession of underlying collateral in the
event of a default, during which time the collatenay decline in value. In addition, there are gigant costs and delays associated with the
foreclosure process.
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The widening of credit spreads could have a negatimpact on the value of our loan assets and RE@btlsecurities.

The fair value of our loan assets is dependent tiperyield demanded on these assets by the maaketlon the underlying credit as well as general
economic conditions. Although many of our diredisld loan assets were purchased at significanbdigs, a further deterioration of the real estate
markets or a large supply of these loan assettasl@ifor sale combined with reduced demand willegally cause the market to require a higher yield
on these loan assets, resulting in a higher, odéwi spread over the benchmark rate of such Igaata. Under these conditions, the value of the loa
assets in our portfolio would decline.

Our investments in REIT debt securities are aldjest to changes in credit spreads as their valdependent upon the yield demanded on these
securities by the market based on the underlyiaditrExcessive supply of these securities combimédreduced demand will generally cause the
market to require a higher yield on these realtestecurities, resulting in the use of a highefwader,” spread over the benchmark rate to valuehs
securities. Under such conditions, the value ofEIT debt securities portfolio would tend to deeli Such changes in the market value of our
portfolio may adversely affect our financial comalit and results of operations.

Deterioration of the credit markets may have an adse impact on the ability of borrowers to obtaieplacement financing

The deterioration of credit markets has made iteewely difficult for borrowers to obtain mortgagedncing. The inability of borrowers to obtain
replacement financing has led and will likely cont to lead to more loan defaults thereby resultirexpensive and time consuming foreclosure
actions and/or negotiated extensions to existingddeyond their current expirations on terms whiely not be as favorable to us as the existing
loans.

A prolonged economic slowdown, a lengthy or sevegession or continued instability in the credit mieets could harm our operations an
viability.
A prolonged economic slowdown, a lengthy or seveoession or the continued instability in the dretirket has affected and will affect our
operations and viability in a number of ways indhgd

» Depressing prices for our investments, operating@rties and loan asse

» Decreasing interest income received or increasegenest expenses pa

* Reducing the number of potential purchasers forassets

» Increasing risk of default on loan ass:

» Limiting the ability to obtain new or replacemeirtancing; anc

» Limiting the ability to sell additional debt or dtyusecurities

Many of our investments are illiquid, and we maytoe able to adjust our portfolio in response toastges in economic and other conditions, whi
may result in losses to us.

Many of our investments are relatively illiquid artderefore, our ability to sell or purchase asBetesponse to a change in economic or other
conditions may be limited. The requirements of@ogle that we hold assets for a set period of tinresk losing status as a REIT also may limit our
ability to sell investments. These consideratiamdd make it difficult for us to dispose of assetgen if a disposition were in the best interestuf
shareholders. As a result, our ability to adjustmrtfolio in response to changes in economicathér conditions may be relatively limited, which
may result in losses and lost opportunities.

Our investments in REIT securities are subject foesific risks relating to the particular REIT issueof the securities and to the general risks of
investing in REITSs.

Our investments in REIT securities involve spedilts. These risks include many, if not all, of fbeegoing risks which apply to an investment in us
including: (i) risks generally incident to intergsh real estate assets; (ii) risks associated twéHailure to maintain REIT qualification; (iiijsks that
may be presented by the type and use of a pantiptd@erty; and (iv) risks that the issuer of teewgity may reduce or eliminate expected dividend
payments.
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Some of our potential losses may not be coverethbyrance.

We use our discretion in determining amounts, cayeidimits and deductibility provisions of insuranavith a view to maintaining appropriate
insurance coverage on our investments at a reasooaét and on suitable terms. This may resulbuiance coverage that, in the event of a
substantial loss, would not be sufficient to pag filll current market value or current replacentarst of the lost investment and also may result in
certain losses being totally uninsured. Inflatiohanges in building codes, zoning or other landasd@ances, environmental considerations, lender
imposed restrictions or other factors might not ensifeasible to use insurance proceeds to rephacbuilding after such building has been damag
destroyed. Under such circumstances, the insuganooeeds, if any, received by us might not be aagio restore our economic position with respect
to such property. With respect to our net leasepgnties, under the lease agreements for such piegehe tenant is required to adequately intuze
property, but should a loss occur their failurénability to have adequate coverage might adveragct our economic position with respect to such

property.

We have significant interest obligations to holdestour Senior Notes and dividend obligations toltiers of our Series D Preferred Shares.

The provisions of our Senior Notes require us tp quaarterly interest presently aggregating $1,694 & $6,684,375 annually. The provisions of our
Series D Preferred Shares require us to pay qliadierdends presently aggregating $2,786,562 dr,$46,250 annually before any dividends may be
paid on our Common Shares.

Covenants and other provisions in our debt instrumg could adversely affect our financial conditicend our ability to make future investments.

Debt instruments under which we are an obligor @iontustomary covenants such as those that limiability, without the prior consent of the lend
to further encumber, directly or indirectly, thepipable property. Our credit facility contains,daother loans that we may obtain in the future may
contain, customary restrictions, requirements ghdrdimitations on our ability to incur indebtedise These restrictions can include, among other
things, a limitation on our ability to incur detased upon the level of our ratio of total debitaltassets, our ratio of secured debt to totadtaseur
ratio of earnings before interest, taxes, deprieciand amortization (which is commonly referreto“EBITDA”) to interest expense and fixed
charges, and a requirement for us to maintaintaicdevel of unencumbered assets to unsecured @ebtability to borrow under our credit facility
with KeyBank National Association is subject to q@iance with certain other covenants includingdheence of factors both within and outside of
control. In addition, the Indenture governing oen®r Notes provides that it is an event of defaalier the Indenture if (i) our consolidated legera
ratio (as defined in the Indenture) is equal tgreater than 60% on the last day of any calendartepuor (ii) subject to certain exceptions, weny ol
our consolidated subsidiaries do not pay when dite;, the expiration of any applicable grace pertbd principal of indebtedness in the aggregate
principal amount of $7,500,000 or more, or the Begion of our or our consolidated subsidiary’dehtedness in the aggregate principal amount of
$7,500,000 or more so that it becomes due and pabefore the date on which it would otherwise hb&eome due and payable. If we fail to comply
with our covenants, it would cause a default uriderapplicable debt instrument, and we may thereqeired to repay such debt with funds from o
sources which may not be available to us, or bdable only on unattractive terms. Further, a défander a debt instrument could limit our ability
obtain additional equity or debt financing in theure, either of which would adversely affect omahcial condition and results of operations.

Increased market interest rates may hurt the valfeour common and preferred share

We believe that investors consider the dividend oat REIT shares, expressed as a percentage pifitkeof the shares, relative to market interetgtsra
as an important factor in deciding whether to bugell the shares. If market interest rates ggupspective purchasers of REIT shares may expect a
higher dividend rate. Higher interest rates woikdly increase our borrowing costs and might desedfands available to pay dividends. Thus, higher
market interest rates could cause the market pfioeir common and preferred shares to decline.

Future issuances and sales of equity or debt instgemay affect the market price of our Common Sh&ed the amount of dividends payable to
our shareholders.

We can issue preferred and Common Shares withootnam shareholder approval. The actual issuancddifianal common or preferred shares or
sale of debt securities by us may decrease theangrice of our Common Shares. In paying dividemd®ur Common Shares we endeavor to hav
dividends track recurring cash flow from operatiofscordingly, as we issue additional Common Shatesper share dividend will likely decrease
until such time as we deploy the proceeds from ssglmnce of Common Shares in investments whiglease our recurring cash flow.
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Our focus on total return investing may impact oability to maintain our dividend rate.

Our focus on a total return value approach to itieggnay result in our inability to maintain thercent dividend rate as we do not necessarily seek
assets that provide recurring or potentially reiogrcash flow but seek to invest in assets thabelive will provide us with a superior risk-adpdt

total return which encompasses both current renchcapital appreciation. Accordingly, the trueueabf an investment may not be realized until such
investment is liquidated.

If we issue preferred equity or debt we may be esqubto additional restrictive covenants and limitats on our operating flexibility, which coul
adversely affect our ability to pay dividends.

If we decide to issue preferred equity or debhimfuture, it is likely that they will be governbgl an indenture or other instrument containing
covenants that may restrict our operating flextpivhich could have an adverse effect on the maskee of our Common Shares or our ability to pay
dividends.

The change of control conversion feature of our 325 D Preferred Shares may make it more difficulirfa party to take over our company or
discourage a party from taking over our company.

Upon the occurrence of a change of control, holdétee Series D Preferred Shares will have thiet fignless we timely provide notice of our election
to redeem the Series D Preferred Shares) to coseet or all of their Series D Preferred Sharesaotr Common Shares (or equivalent value of
alternative consideration). Upon such a convergimaholders will be limited to a maximum numbeoaf Common Shares equal to the applicable
share cap multiplied by the number of Series Ddfrefl Shares converted. If the Common Share wiless than $4.44, subject to adjustment, the
holders will receive a maximum of 5.6306 Commonr8aaer share of Series D Preferred Shares, whéghresult in a holder receiving a value the
less than the liquidation preference of the Sebiégeferred Shares. In addition, the change ofrobobnversion feature of the Series D Preferred
Shares may have the effect of discouraging a trartly from making an acquisition proposal for oampany or of delaying, deferring or preventing
certain change of control transactions of our camgpander circumstances that otherwise could prothideholders of our Common Shares and Ser
Preferred Shares with the opportunity to realipeeanium over the then-current market price or dgireholders may otherwise believe is in their best
interests.

We may fail to remain qualified as a REIT, which wta reduce the cash available for dividends to alrareholders.

Qualification as a REIT for federal income tax pases is governed by highly technical and complexipions of the Code for which there are only
limited judicial or administrative interpretatior@ur qualification as a REIT also depends on variagts and circumstances that are not entirelyim
our control. In addition, legislation, new regutetts, administrative interpretations or court deeisimight change the tax laws with respect to the
requirements for qualification as a REIT or thedied income tax consequences of qualification REHA . Although we currently intend to operate i
manner designed to allow us to continue to qualifya REIT, future economic, market, legal, taxtbeoconsiderations might cause us to elect to
revoke the REIT election. In that event, we andshareholders would no longer be entitled to tlerfal income tax benefits applicable to a REIT.

If, with respect to any taxable year, we were tbtéamaintain our qualification as a REIT or eléctrevoke our REIT election, we would not be gble
deduct dividends paid to our shareholders in comguur taxable income and would have to pay fddemgorate income tax (including any
applicable alternative minimum tax) on our taxahlome. If we had to pay federal income tax, th@ant of money available to distribute to our
shareholders would be reduced for the year or yieaodved. In addition, we would be disqualifiedin treatment as a REIT for the four taxable years
following the year during which qualification wasst and thus our cash available to pay dividenasitashareholders would be reduced in each of
those years, unless we were entitled to relief unelevant statutory or regulatory provisions.

In order to maintain our status as a REIT, we max fforced to borrow funds or sell assets during unémable market conditions

As a REIT, we must distribute at least 90% of cumual REIT taxable income, subject to certain adjests, to our shareholders. To the extent the
satisfy the REIT dividend requirement but distribléss than 100% of our taxable income, we wilsbigject to federal and, where applicable, state
corporate income tax on our undistributed taxad®ie. In addition, if we fail to distribute at ##®0% of our annual REIT taxable income, subje
certain adjustments, we will be subject to a 4%dealuctible excise tax.
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From time to time, we may have taxable income gretltan our cash available to pay dividends tosbareholders (for example, due to substantial
non-deductible cash outlays, such as capital expead or principal payments on debt). If we did have other sources of funds available in these
situations, we could be required to borrow funeéd,isvestments at disadvantageous prices or fitelrative sources of funds to pay dividends
sufficient to enable us to pay out enough of oxalde income to satisfy the REIT dividend requiretrend to avoid income and excise taxes in a
particular year. Additionally, we could elect toypaportion of our required dividend in Common SsalEach of these alternatives could increase our
operating costs and diminish our rate of growth.

Factors that may cause us to lose our New York &tBxchange listing.

We might lose our listing on the New York Stock Bange depending on a number of factors, includaiigre to qualify as a REIT, or our not meel
the New York Stock Exchange’s requirements, ingigdhose relating to the number of shareholdeesptite of our Common Shares and the amount
and composition of our assets.

Ownership limitations in our bylaws may adverselffext the market price of our Common Shares.

Our bylaws and the certificate of designationsdior Series D Preferred Shares contain ownershigaliions that are designed to prohibit any transfer
of Common Shares or Series D Preferred Sharesvthadd result in our being “closely-held” within tlmeeaning of Section 856(h) of the Code. This
ownership limitation, which may be waived by ouraBa of Trustees, generally prohibits any singlashalder, or any group of affiliated sharehold
from beneficially or constructively owning more th@.8% of our outstanding Common Shares or SeriBselferred Shares. Our Board of Trustees has
waived this ownership limitation in the past whtrere is believed to be a benefit derived by umfgranting such waiver and the party obtaining the
waiver provides assurances that the issuance afdhesr will not result in us becoming, or likelgdoming, “closely held.” Unless the Board of
Trustees waives the restrictions or approves albglaendment, Common Shares or Series D PreferaeSbwned by a person or group of persons
in excess of 9.8% of our outstanding Common Shar&eries D Preferred Shares are not entitledyovating rights, are not considered outstanding
for quorum or voting purposes, and are not entiibedividends, interest or any other distributiovith respect to the Common Shares. The ownership
limit may have the effect of inhibiting or impediagchange of control or a tender offer for our Canrghares.

We must manage our investments in a manner thabals us to rely on an exemption from registrationder The Investment Company Act in ord
to avoid the consequences of regulation under tihat.

We intend to operate our business so that we amgixfrom registration as an investment companyeutite Investment Company Act of 1940, as
amended. Therefore, the assets that we may invest acquire, are limited by the provisions of leestment Company Act and the rules and
regulations promulgated thereunder. If we are reguio make investments in order to be exempt fr@gistration, such investments may not represent
an optimum use of our capital when compared toratkiailable investments.

Certain of our subsidiaries are required to comphith the Investment Advisers Act of 1940.

RE CDO Management LLC, an entity in which we hole08 economic interest, and WRP-Management LL&rdity in which we hold a 100%
economic interest, are registered as investmensadvunder the Investment Advisers Act of 194Graended (the “Advisers Act”) because they
provide collateral management services to privatel$ as defined under the Advisers Act. As regstémvestment advisors, these subsidiaries are
required to operate in compliance with the Advisgeswhich results in increased cost to us. Furtlieve were to fail to comply with the Advisers
Act, we could be subject to sanctions, up to aestuging no longer being permitted to provide segsgito private funds which could have an adverse
effect on our results.

Compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Aahd fire, safety and other regulations may requiss to make unanticipated expenditures that
adversely affect our financial condition and resslbf operations.

All of our properties are required to comply wittetAmericans with Disabilities Act, which we referas the ADA. The ADA has separate complia
requirements for “public accommodations” and “comere facilities,” but generally requires that kilifigs be made accessible to people with
disabilities. Although we believe that our propestare in compliance with the ADA, it is possililattwe may have to incur additional expenditures
which, if substantial, could adversely affect omahcial condition and results of operations.
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In addition, we are required to operate our progetih compliance with fire and safety regulatidmsi)ding codes and other land use regulations, as
they may be adopted by local, state and federatmonental agencies and bodies and become applicable properties. We may be required to v
substantial capital expenditures to comply withstheequirements and these expenditures could maae\eerse effect on our financial condition and
results of operations.

We may incur costs to comply with environmental kw

The obligation to pay for the cost of complyinglwéxisting environmental laws, ordinances and guis, as well as the cost of complying with
future legislation, may increase our operatingsddnder various federal, state and local envirantaléaws, ordinances and regulations, a current or
previous owner or operator of real property mayidd@e for the costs of removal or remediation afardous or toxic substances on or under the
property. Environmental laws often impose liabilithether or not the owner or operator knew of, aswesponsible for, the presence of such
hazardous or toxic substances and whether or gbtsubstances originated from the property. Intaafdithe presence of hazardous or toxic
substances, or the failure to remediate such ptppeoperly, may adversely affect our ability torkmw by using such property as collateral. We
maintain insurance related to potential environmlessues on our properties which are not net teadéch may not be adequate to cover all possible
contingencies. In 2011 we were conveyed title ®lémd underlying our Churchill, Pennsylvania pmiypePrior to the conveyance of the land, a Phase
Il environmental study was performed. The studynfibthat there were certain contaminants at thequtpll of which were within permitted

ranges. In addition, given the nature and useeptperty currently and in the past, it is pogstbit additional contamination could occur which
could require remediation. We believe that basedppiicable law and existing agreements any sutiedétion costs would be the responsibility of a
prior owner or tenant.

Ability of our Advisor and other third parties dily affects our financial condition

Other than for severe economic conditions or nhfaraes which may be unanticipated or uncontrddathe ultimate value of our assets and the
results of our operations will depend on the abiit our Advisor and other third parties we retairoperate and manage our assets in a manner
sufficient to maintain or increase revenues androbour operating and other expenses in ordeetweate sufficient cash flows to pay amounts du
our indebtedness and to pay dividends to our sbitets.

We are dependent on our Advisor and the loss of Adwvisor’'s key personnel could harm our operatioasd adversely affect the value of our
shares.

We have no paid employees. Our officers are emp®wpé our Advisor. We have no separate facilitied @are completely reliant on our Advisor who
has significant discretion as to the implementatbour investment and operating strategies. Wesabgect to the risk that our Advisor will termirat
its Advisory Agreement with us and that no suitailglacement will be found. Furthermore, we areedejent on the efforts, diligence, skill, network
of business contacts and close supervision ofalets of our business by our Advisor and, in paldir, Michael Ashner, Chairman of our Board of
Trustees and our chief executive officer, Carolyffefiy, our president, as well as our other exeeutfficers. While we believe that we could find
replacements for these key personnel, the logseaf $ervices could have a negative impact on perations and the market price of our shares.

The supplemental fee and incentive fee payableuo Advisor may be substantial.

Pursuant to the terms of our Advisory Agreemenhwitir Advisor, our Advisor is entitled to receive iacentive fee and, in certain instances, a
supplemental fee equal to 20% of any amounts ataifar distribution in excess of a threshold amoiihe incentive fee is only payable at such time,
if at all, (i) when holders of our Common Shareseree aggregate dividends above a threshold amayuii} upon termination of our Advisory
Agreement, if the value of our net assets exceedhiteshold amount based on then current markeésand appraisals. That is, the incentive fee is
not payable annually but only at such time, iflatess shareholders have received the thresholdiatrar, if the Advisory Agreement is terminateds th
net assets of the Trust exceed the threshold amatBtecember 31, 2012, the threshold amount requio be distributed before any incentive fee
would be payable to FUR Advisors was approxima$&ig4,224,000 which was equivalent to $16.18 fohed#mur Common Shares on a fully diluted
basis. The threshold amount required to be didegtbbefore any supplemental fee payable to FUR gafgiwas approximately $429,243,000 which
was equivalent to $13.00 for each of our Commornr&han a fully diluted basis. At such time as shal@ers’ equity in accordance with generally
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accepted accounting principles exceeds the apjichteshold amount, we will record a liabilityadur financial statements equal to approximately
20% of the excess of shareholders’ equity in acwed with generally accepted accounting principtesthe applicable threshold amount.

Termination of the Advisory Agreement may be costhynot in our best interest.

Termination of the Advisory Agreement either bywithout cause or by our Advisor for cause may b&tlgoUpon termination of the Advisory
Agreement, our Advisor would be entitled to theeintive fee that would be paid as if we sold albof assets for an amount based on appraised
valuation of our assets assuming we were thendaad. In addition, unless the Advisory Agreemsrieiminated by us for cause or by our Advisor
without cause, our Advisor will also be entitledthe supplemental fee upon the termination of tbeigory Agreement or the liquidation or disposit
of all or substantially all of our assets. The amtquayable on termination of the Advisory Agreementiquidation or disposition, could be substar
which may have a negative effect on the price ef@ammon Shares. Further, affiliates of our Advisold approximately 11.6% of our outstanding
Common Shares and serve as our executive offidecardingly, if we were inclined to terminate thelisory Agreement, the ownership position of
our Advisor in our Common Shares could result imleotadverse effects to us and the price of our Com&hares.

ITEM 1B — UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.
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ITEM 2 — PROPERTIES
CONSOLIDATED OPERATING PROPERTIES
The following table sets forth a schedule of coitkstbd operating properties at December 31, 2012 pOrtfolio of consolidated properties consists of

23 commercial properties consisting of 3,509,00asg feet and three residential apartment complexesisting of 784 units.

Trust’'s ($00C's)
Depreciatec Debt
Owner- Major Tenants Major Cost per Owner- ($00C's) Maturity
Description and Year Rentable (**) (Lease /Options Tenant Cost Square ship Debt & Int
Location Acquired _ship Square Feet % Leasec Expiration) Sq. Ft. Basis Foot or Unit  of Land Balance Rate
Office
Ambherst, NY 2005 10(% 200,00 100% Ingram Micro Systen 200,00 $ 16,18¢ $ 81 Fee $ 15,22¢ 10/2013
2 5.65%
(2013/2023
Andover, MA 2005 10(% 93,000 100% PAETEC Comm. 93,00 6,91: 74  Fee (1) 1)
(2022/2037.
Cerritos, CA 2012 10(% 187,000 60% Marina Medical 44,00( 21,42 115 Fee 23,18« 01/2017
Billing 5.07%
(2018)
Chicago, IL 2005 10C% 126,00 94% The Gettys Group  13,00( 21,03¢ 167 Fee 20,20( 03/2016
(One East Erie (2012/2016; 5.75%
River North Surgery 15,00(
(2015/ n/a;
Chicago, IL 2007 60% 253,000 50% ITAV 35,00( 14,71¢ 58 Fee 8,70( 04/2015
(River City / (2024/2029) 6.25%
Marc Realty
MFS/Worldcom 60,00(
(2019/2023'
Deer Valley, 2010 10C% 82,00C 96% United Healthcare  42,00( 10,60( 12¢  Fee Q) Q)
AZ (2017/2027
Premier Research  14,00(
(2016/2026'
Southwest Dese 9,00(
Cardiology
(2022/2037’
Englewood, CC 2010 10(% 118,00 90% Hitachi Data 53,00( 7,55¢ 64 Fee Q) Q)
Crossroads | (2024) 17,00(
RGN-Denver LLC
(2015/ 2025
Englewood, CC 2010 10C% 118,00 87% TIC Holdings 74,00( 10,41¢ 88 Fee (D) Q)
Crossroads (2019 / 2044
Houston, TX 2004 30% 614,000 100% Spectra Energy  614,00( 56,91¢ 93 Fee 52,05: 04/2016
(2018/2028' 6.15%



Lisle, IL

Lisle, IL

Lisle, IL
(Marc Realty)

New York, NY
(450 West 14t

Orlando, FL

Plantation, FL

South
Burlington,
VT

Subtotal-
Office

2006

2006
2006

2011

2004

2004

2005

10C%

10C%
60%

70%

10C%

10C%

10C%

169,00(

67,00(
54,00(

105,00(

257,00(

120,00(

54,00(

2,617,001

82%

1%
100%

82%

100%

100%

100%

United Healthcare  41,00(
(2014/n/a)

No tenants over 10¢ —

Ryerson
(2018/2028; 54,00(
Alice + Olivia 27,000
(2021/2031)
Fast Retailing 23,00(
(2026/2036,

Access Industries  14,00(
(2021/2031

Siemens Real Estat 257,001
Inc. (2017/2042)

AT&T Service, Inc. 120,00(
(2020/2035
54,00(

Fairpoint Comm.
(2014/2029)

27

19,38¢
5,28¢

3,71¢
58,43¢

13,77¢

11,12:

2,82¢

$280,32t

115

79

69
557

54

93

52

Fee

Fee

Fee

Grounc

Lease

Grounc

Lease

Fee

Grounc

Lease

5,752 10/2014
Libor+2.5%

03/2017
5,54: 5.55%

51,98: 05/2016
Libor +2.5%

37,58( 07/2017
6.40%

10,81: 04/2018
6.48%

@ @
$231,02¢

(Continued on next pac
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CONSOLIDATED OPERATING PROPERTIES (Continued)

Description

and Location

Retail
Atlanta, GA

Denton, TX

Greensboro,
NC

Louisville, KY

Seabrook, T
Subtotal Retail

Other
Warehoust

Jacksonville,
FL

Mixed Use

Churchill, PA
Residentia

Meriden, CT

Memphis, TN

Greensboro,
NC

Subtotal- Other

Total Consolidated Properties

Trust’s
Major Tenants ($00C's) Owner-
Owner- (Lease /Options  Major Depreciatec Cost per Square ($00C's) Deb Debt
Year Rentable (**) Tenant ship Maturity
Acquired ship Square Fee % Leasec Expiration) Sq. Ft. Cost Basis Foot or Unit of Land Balance & Int Rate
The Kroger Co. Ground
200¢ 10(% 61,00( 10C% (2016/2026, 61,00 $ 1,95¢ $ 32  Lease (1) (1)
Diesel Fitness
200¢ 10(% 46,000 10C% (2016) 29,00( 1,77¢ 39 Fee 1) 1)
Harbor Freight
Tools (2022, 17,00(
The Kroger Co Ground
200¢ 10(% 46,000 10C% (2017/2037; 46,000 3,02¢ 66  Lease 1) 1)
The Kroger Co
200¢ 10(% 47,000 10C% (2015/2040; 47,00( 2,54¢ 54 Fee (1) 1)
The Kroger Co
200¢ 10(% 52,00( 10C% (2015/2040; 52,00( 1,72¢ 33 Fee 1) 1)
252,00( $ 11,03¢
1)
Football Fanatic
200¢ 10(% 588,00( 10C% (2015/2024;  561,00( 10,42¢ 18 Fee (1)
Westinghouse
200¢ 10(% 52,00( 10C% (2024) 52,00( 5,74% 11C Fee — —
11/2022
201(C 10(% 180 unit: 97% n/a n/e 23,67 132 Fee 21,00( 3.95%
08/2014
Libor +
201z 10(% 320 unit: 94% n/a n/e 20,89¢ 65 Fee 13,40¢ 2.5%
08/2016
201z 10(% 284 unit: 92% n/a WE 18,33¢ 65 Fee 15,13¢ 6.22%
640,00( $ 79,07« $ 49,54’
3,509,001 $ 370,43l $ 280,57¢

(**) Occupancy rates include all signed leases, inctugpace undergoing tenant improveme

Notesto Consolidated Properti- Selected Dat

(1)
@)

These properties collateralize our revolving lifier@dit.
The Amherst, New York office property consisfswo separate buildings. The ground underlyirghoperties is leased to us by the local

development authority pursuant to a ground leaselwiequires no payment. Effective October 31, 204@al title to the ground will vest with

us.
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UNCONSOLIDATED OPERATING PROPERTIES

The following table sets forth a schedule of unctidated operating properties at December 31, 2012.portfolio of unconsolidated properties is
accounted for under the equity method of accounfiingse properties consist of 11 commercial priggedonsisting of 3,893,000 square feet and 27
residential apartment complexes consisting of 416%6.

Major Tenants Major (Iiggl(t; )
Year Trust's Rentable (**) (Lease / Options Tenants Investment  Ownership  ($00C's) Debr Debt Maturity
Acquired  Ownership Square Fee % Leasec Expiration) Sq. Ft. Balance of Land Balance (1) & Int Rate

Marc Realty Portfolio- Equity Investments
223 West Jacksc
Chicago, IL No tenants over 09/2017
(Brooks Building) 200t 5C% 168,00( 7€% 10% — % 7,98 Fee $ 6,967 Libor+ 2.75%
4415 Wes

Harrison North American
Hillside, IL Medical Mgmt 12/2015
(High Point) 200t 5C% 192,00( 62% (2015/2020 20,40( 2,241 Fee 4,432 5.62%
1701 E. Woodfielc No tenants ove 09/2015
Schaumburg, 1L 200t 50%  175,00( 87% 10% — 1,971 Fee 5,50¢ Libor + 3% (2

Consumer
220%-55 Enterprist Portfolio
Westchester, Il 200t 5C% 130,00 91% (2014/2019 18,90(

Uro Partners 10/2019

(2015/ NA) 14,50( 2,67¢ Fee 8,96¢ 4.30%
Total - Marc Realty Portfolio 665,00( $ 14,88( $ 25,86¢
Sealy Venture Propertie- Equity Investments

09/2015

Atlanta, GA Libor + 5.35%
(Northwest Original Mattres:

Atlanta) 200¢ 6C% 472,00( 7% (2020/2025; 57,000 $ 8,10¢ Fee $ 13,77 3)
Atlanta, GA No tenants over 11/2016
(Newmarket) 200¢ 68% 470,00( 52% 10% — — Fee 37,00¢( 6.12%
Nashville, TN No tenants ovel 05/2012
(Airpark) 2007 50% 1,155,00! 83% 10% — — Fee 74,00( 5.77%
Total - Sealy Venture Properties 2,097,001 $ 8,10/ $ 124,77.

Mentor Retail LLC- Equity Investment
39 South State American Appare

Street 09/2017

Chicago, IL 2012 5C% 7,00( 10(% (2022/ NA) 7,000 $ 551 Fee $ 2,49 10%



WRT-Elad One South State - Equity Investment

One South Stat
Street
Chicago, IL 2012

701 Seventh WRT Invest«- Equity Investment

701 Seventh
Avenue
New York, NY 201z

WRT-Fenway Wateridge - Equity Investment

10525 Viste
Sorrento
Parkway San
Diego, CA 201z

Target

(2038 /2063 147,000 $ 25,10¢

Walgreens

(2022/2027 95,00(
Illinois Dept. of

Employment

(2014/2019.  243,00(
Art Institute of

Chicago
(2020/2030]  153,00(

(11) —

Verint Americas

(2018 / NA) 6,50(
Flores Lunc
(2017 / NA) 10,00¢(
Quidel Corp.

(2013 /NA) 11,00

Verizon Wireles:

(2013/NA) 15,00

(**) Occupancy rates include all signed leases inclusiige undergoing tenant improveme

29

02/2015

$ 105,57 11%

10/2015

LIBOR +

$ 375,000  10.20% (4)

(Continued on next pac
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UNCONSOLIDATED OPERATING PROPERTIES - (Continued)

Vintage Housing Holdings LLC - Equity Investment

Agave Associates

Elk Grove, CA
Vintage at Ben

Bend, OR

The Bluffs Apartments
Reno, NV

Bouquet Canyon Seniors
Santa Clarita, C/
Vintage at Bremerton
Bremerton, WA
Vintage at Burien
Burien, WA

Vintage at Chehalis
Chehalis, WA

Elk Creek Apartments
Sequim, WA

Vintage at Everett
Everett, WA

Falls Creek Apartmen
Couer ¢ Alene, ID

Forest Creek Apartments
Spokane, W/

Hamilton Place Seniol
Bellingham, WA
Heritage Place Apartments
St. Ann, MO

Holly Village Apartments
Everett, WA

Larkin Place Apartments
Bellingham, WA

Vintage at Mt. Vernon
Mt. Vernon, WA

Vintage at Napa

Napa, CA

Vintage at Richland
Richland, WA
Rosecreek Senior Living
Arlington, WA

Vintage at Sequir
Sequim, WA

Silver Creek Apartments
Pasco, WA

Vintage at Silverdal:
Silverdale, WA

Vintage at Spokane
Spokane, W#

Seven Hills/St Rose
Henderson, N\

Twin Ponds Apartments
Arlington, WA

Vintage at Vancouver
Vancouver, WA

Vista Sonoma Seniors Apts
Santa Rosa, C.

Subtotal- Vintage Properties

30

Year Trust’s % Ownership  ($00C's) Debr Debt Maturity Subordinated Subodinated
Acquired  Ownership Units Leasec of Land Balance (1) & Int Rate (6) Debt ($00(s)  Debt Maturity
10/2036 12/2036
2011 5) 18¢ 95% Fee $ 14,60( SIFMA+1.17% $ 2,50 3.50%
12/2036
2011 (5)  10€ 97% Fee 550  SIFMA + 1.20%
10/2035 7/2033
2011 5) 30C 95% Fee 18,70( SIFMA + 1.38% 8 3%
712028
2011 5) 264 9%% Fee 11,06: 6.38%
3/2033
2011 (5) 14z 91% Fee 6,20C  SIFMA + 1.09%
Grounc
1/2038
2011 (5) 101 97%  Least 6,78C  SIFMA + 1.47%
6/2040
2011 (5)  15C 94% Fee 8,19C SIFMA + 1.62% (7,
11/2039
2011 5) 13¢ 9%% Fee 7,352 6.54%
1/2038
2011 5) 25¢ 97% Fee 16,39¢ SIFMA + 1.44%
12/2040
2011 5) 17C 91% Fee 8,33( 6.26%
6/2040
2011 5) 252 95% Fee 13,68( SIFMA + 1.62%
712033 712014
2011 5) 94 98% Fee 3,59( SIFMA + 1.43% 10¢& 5.88%
712015 5/2039
2011 5) 113 95% Fee 1,77¢ 8.37% 50€ 1.0%
7/2032
2011 (5) 14¢  10(% Fee 7,038 SIFMA + 1.44%
7/2033
2011 5) 101 94% Fee 4,82¢ SIFMA + 1.40%
1/2037
7,50  SIFMA + 1.65% (8]
2011 (5) 154 97% Fee 1,04C  SIFMA + 1.65% (9
6/2034
2011 5) 11¢ 96% Fee 6,04: 6.21%
1/2038
2011 (5)  15C 93% Fee 7,53t SIFMA + 1.76%
12/2037
2011 (5)  10C 99% Fee 3,327  SIFMA + 0.43%
3/2038
2011 5) 11¢€ 9%% Fee 6,30¢ SIFMA + 2.30%
1/2018
2011 5) 24z 93% Fee 12,98¢ SIFMA + 1.66%
9/2039
2011 (5)  24cC 96% Fee 14,880 SIFMA + 2.87% (1C
8/2040
2011 5) 287 95% Fee 16,29¢ SIFMA + 1.37%
10/2035
2011 5) 244 96% Fee 14,77( SIFMA + 1.37%
1/2038
5,51¢ SIFMA + 1.60%
2011 5) 134 95% Fee 1,297 6.20%
1/2035
7,72¢ SIFMA + 2.16%
2011 5) 154 98% Fee 64¢ 8.12%
1/2032
2011 5) 18¢ 94% Fee 10,05( 6.562%
4,65F  units $ 249,92 $ 3,11¢

(Continued on next pac
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UNCONSOLIDATED OPERATING PROPERTIES - (Continued)
Notes to Unconsolidated Operating Properties T

(1) Debt balance shown represents the property lev®lefeeumbering the propertie

(2) Aninterest rate swap agreement with a notionaliarnof $5,632 effectively converts the intereserat a fixed rate of 4.78¢

(3) Aninterest rate cap was purchased that caps LIBORA6.

(4) Thereis a LIBOR floor of 1%

(5) The Vintage equity investment of $30,534 repnts a 75% interest in Vintage Housing Holdings LBE entity which owns the general
partnership interests in the properties listed ab

(6) SIFMA = Securities Industry and Financial Maséssociation Municipal Swap Index. Each of thatdge floating rate debt instruments is
subject to an interest rate cap ranging from 5.50%8.25%

(7) Aninterest rate swap agreement with a notionalarhof $7,951 effectively converts the intereserat a fixed rate of 4.689

(8) Aninterest rate swap agreement with a notionaliarnof $7,500 effectively converts the intereserat a fixed rate of 5.239

(9) Aninterest rate swap agreement with a notionaliarnof $1,039 effectively converts the intereserat a fixed rate of 5.989

(10) An interest rate swap agreement with a notionaliarnof $14,464 effectively converts the interest¢ ta a fixed rate of 5.709

(11) There are no major tenants as the property is tlyrien development

LEASE EXPIRATIONS

The following table sets forth a schedule of leaggirations at our consolidated and unconsolidptegerties respectively, with respect to leases in
place at December 31, 2012 for each of the negtyfaars and thereafter (assuming that no tenaatsis& renewals or cancellation options and that
there are no tenant bankruptcies or other tendatllg). Annual contractual rent under expiringskesrepresents base rent charges for the year endec
December 31, 2012 and does not reflect any strdiightent adjustments or expense reimbursemehts aVerage annualized revenue per square foot
as of December 31, 2012 was $17.47 for consolidatdt-tenant operating properties and $8.79 forsaidated single tenant operating properties.
Annualized revenue represents contractual basdaeBiecember multiplied by twelve.

The following tables set forth certain informatiooncerning lease expirations:

Net Rentable
Square Feet

Percentage of Leas
Square Footage

Annual Contractui

Annual Rent Per
Leased Square Fc

Number of Subject to Represented by Rent Under of Expiring

Year of Lease Expiratior Expiring Lease Expiring Lease Expiring Leases (% Expiring Leases (¢ Leases ($

Consolidated Multi Tenant

Operating Properties:

2013 16 52,00( 6% $ 875,00( $ 16.8:

2014 19 122,00( 14% 1,937,001 15.8¢

2015 16 67,00( % 1,218,001 18.1¢

2016 10 97,00( 11% 1,267,001 13.0¢

2017 and Thereaftt 49 562,00( 62% 10,426,00 18.5¢
10(%

Consolidated Single Tenant

Operating Properties:

2013 1 200,00( 9% 2,016,00! 10.0¢

2014 1 54,00( 2% 820,00( 15.1¢

2015 3 660,00( 30% 1,163,001 1.7¢

2016 2 88,00( 4% 380,00( 4.3z

2017 and Thereaftt 7 1,236,001 55% 15,301,00 12.3¢
10(%

Unconsolidatec

Operating Properties:

2013 12E 539,00( 19% 4,998,00! 9.27

2014 59 564,00( 20% 7,899,00! 14.0C

2015 74 440,00( 16% 4,453,00! 10.1z

2016 34 222,00( 8% 2,508,00! 11.3(

2017 and Thereafte 45 1,014,001 37% 14,133,00 13.9¢
10C%
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TENANT DIVERSIFICATION

The following table sets forth information regamglithe leases with respect to the five largest tisnarour consolidated properties portfolio, basad
the amount of square footage leased by our tem@scember 31, 2012.

Percentage ¢
Aggregate Percentage ¢
Remaining Portfolio Aggregate
Lease Termii Total Lease Leased Squa Portfolio Annua
Tenan Property months Square Fe Feet (%) (1. Rent (%) (2
Spectra Energ Houston, TX 16C 614,00( 19.5% 19.6%
Football Fanatics, Inc Jacksonville, F 31 561,00( 17.€% 1.%
Siemens Real Estate, Ir Orlando, FL 6C 257,00( 8.1% 8.8%
The Kroger Compan Various (3) 41 206,00( 6.5% 2.%
Ingram Micro, Inc. Amherst, NY 1C 200,00( 6.2% 5.1%

(1) Represents percentage of square footage leasediggimonth to month lease

(2) Represents base rent plus straight line rent adgris less concessions and abatem

(3) The Kroger Company is a tenant in four net leasegerties located in Georgia, Kentucky, North Cabnd Texas. Remaining lease t
represents a weighted average based on squargdamtd percentage of annual rent represents aagaidgrof all four propertie

GROUND LEASES

On certain of our properties we own the improveraamid lease the land underlying the improvementsupnt to ground leases.

The following table sets forth the terms of theugrd leases:

Current Terr

Renewal Term

Lease Term Ren
Per Annurr

Property Locatiot Expiration
Atlanta, GA 09/30/1¢
Greensboro, N( 12/31/1°
Orlando, FL 12/31/1°
South Burlington, VT 01/02/1¢
450 West 14th Street 05/31/5:
New York, NY

Two 5-Year
Renewal Options
(Extended Term 202¢

Two E-Year anc
15 one-year
Renewal options
(Extended Term 204:

Five 5-Year
Renewal Options
(Extended Term 2037)

Three 5-Year and
One 10-Year
Renewal Options
(Extended Term 204(

None

Ground lease calls for $30,000/yr. plus
1/2 of 1% of sales greater than
$27,805,800. (1

Ground lease calls for $83,041/
increased by approximately $12,000 for
each successive renewal period plus 1%
of sales over $37,405,200. |

Ground lease calls for $2/yr. of rent
though the current term and then fair
market value for each successive
renewal period. (1

Ground lease calls for $51,854/yr.
though the current term and then fair
market value. (1)

Ground Lease calls for $103,591/month
plus increases of 3% per annum each
June as well as $100,000 increases of
3% per annum on November 1, 2013,
2015 and 2017

(1) The lease requires the tenant to perform all cavisnander the ground lease including the paymegtaind rent

32



Table of Contents

MORTGAGE LOANS
Information pertaining to the terms of the firstmgages for each of the properties is includedh@ntable at the beginning of Item 2 - Properties.

ITEM 3 — LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The Trust is involved from time to time in litigati on various matters, including disputes with mea@and disputes arising out of agreements to
purchase or sell properties. Given the nature efTtlust’s business activities, these lawsuits arsidered routine to the conduct of its businekg. T
Trust does not expect that the liabilities, if athgt may ultimately result from such legal actiovi have a material adverse effect on the conlstéd
financial position, results of operations or cdslws of the Trust. As of December 31, 2012, thesTwas not involved in any material litigation.

ITEM 4 — MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
Not Applicable.

33



Table of Contents

PART Il
ITEM 5 - MARKET FOR TRUST'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED SHAREHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF
EQUITY SECURITIES
Market Information
Our Common Shares are listed for trading on the Mevk Stock Exchange, under the symbol “FUR.”

The table below sets forth the high and low satesep as reported by the New York Stock Exchangedo Common Shares for each of the periods
indicated.

High Low

Year Ended December 31, 20:

First quartel $13.1¢ $11.42

Second quarte 12.4¢ 11.5¢

Third quartel 12.0¢ 8.54

Fourth quarte 10.5¢ 8.1€
Year Ended December 31, 20:

First Quartel 12.2¢ 10.3:2

Second Quarte 12.2¢ 10.0¢

Third Quartel 12.67 10.5¢

Fourth Quarte 11.5C 10.3:2

Holders

As of December 31, 2012 there were 536 record h®ldieour Common Shares. This does not includefi@aleowners for whom Cede & Co. or
others act as nominee.

Dividends

In order to retain REIT status, and thus avoid pgyederal corporate tax, we are required by theéeGo distribute at least 90% of our REIT taxable
income. Dividends declared on Common Shares in gaatter for the last two years are as follows:

Quarter Ende: 2012 2011

March 31 $0.162¢ $0.162¢
June 3( 0.162¢ 0.162¢
September 3 0.162¢ 0.162¢
December 3. 0.162¢ 0.162¢

Pursuant to the terms of our Series D PreferredeShave are required to pay quarterly dividend8®578125 per Series D Preferred Share.

While we intend to continue paying regular quaytelividends to holders of our Common Shares, futlivelend declarations will be at the discretion
of our Board of Trustees and will depend on ounalctash flow, our financial condition, capital ségments, the annual dividend requirements under
the REIT provisions of the Code and such othemwfacas our Board of Trustees deems relevant. Tioalazash flow available to pay dividends will be
affected by a number of factors, including, amotiwers, the risks discussed under “Risk Factorg?art I, Item 1A and “Management’s Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Result©gierations” in Part Il, Iltem 7 of this Annual Repor
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We do not believe that the financial covenants @ioed in our loan agreements will have any advienpact on our ability to pay dividends in the
normal course of business to our common and pegfesinareholders or to distribute amounts nece$samaintain our qualifications as a REIT.

See Item 7 — Common and Preferred Share Dividesrds further description of our dividend policy.

The following table sets forth the shares repuretiakiring the fourth quarter of 2012.

Total Number ¢ Average Pric¢ Total Number of Share Maximum Number of Shar

Common Shar¢ Paid per Purchased as Part of Publicly that May Yet Be Purchased
Perioc Purchase! Common Shai Announced Plans or Progra Under the Plans or Progra
11/1/12 — 11/30/12 70,040 $ 10.52 70,040 1,429,96(

Performance Graph

The following graph is a comparison of the fivedyeamulative return of Common Shares, a peer giodgx and the Morgan Stanley REIT Index
(“MSCI US REIT”) for the periods shown. The peeogp consists of REITs with diverse investments Wligcin contrast to REITs which target a

certain asset type, class or geographic locatibe.peer group REITs also have current market vases January 24, 2013 under $750,000,000. The

graph assumes that $100 was invested on Decemp20@Z in our Common Shares, a peer group indexttenorgan Stanley REIT Index and that
all dividends were reinvested without the paymérery commissions. There can be no assurancehgterformance of our shares will continue in

line with the same or similar trends depicted i gihaph. It should also be noted that if Commonr&hwavere purchased at times after December 31,
2007, the results depicted would not have beesahee.

Total Return Performance

150

—#—Winthrop Realty Trust

125 | —&— MSCI US REIT (RMS)

—r— FLUR Peer Group Index®

100

Index Value
=
o

50

25
12-31-07 12-31-08 12-31-08 12-31-10 12-31-11 12-31-12
Period Ending
Index 12/31/07 12/31/0¢ 12/31/0¢ 12/31/1C 12/31/11 12/31/12
Winthrop Realty Trust 100.0C 44.6C 49.4¢ 61.31 51.8¢ 59.6:
MSCI US REIT (RMS] 100.0C 62.0¢ 79.7¢ 102.5( 111.47 131.2
FUR Peer Group Index 100.0¢ 65.5:¢ 74.8¢ 93.7¢ 71.1% 88.1¢

* Peer Group consists of REITs with a diversity atiteoproperty focus and have a current market valsef January 3, 2013 of Less than $75
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ITEM 6 — SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following table sets forth selected, historicalinsolidated financial data for the Trust andusthde read in conjunction with the Consolidated
Financial Statements of the Trust and Notes theretbManagement’s Discussion and Analysis of Firgu@ondition and Results of Operations
included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Years Ended December &

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
Operating Results
(in thousands, except per share d
Revenue $ 72,49¢ $ 68,247 $ 53,40: $ 45,33t $ 41,87
Income (loss) from continuing operations $ 24,69¢ $ 10,27¢ $ 18,21¢ $(85,547) $(70,60)
Income (loss) from discontinued operations (67) 65E (1,740) 1,19¢ 2,42¢
Net income (loss 24,63:  10,93: 16,471 (84,347 (68,176
Preferred dividend (9,28%) (929 (28¢€) (147) —
Net income (loss) applicable to Common Shi $ 15,34¢ $ 10,00¢ $ 16,18¢ $(84,499) $(68,17¢)
Per Common Sha
Income (loss) from continuing operations, bt $ 04€¢ $ 03C $ 08 $ (520 $ (4.7
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, bagj — 0.02 (0.0¢) 0.07 0.1€
Net income (loss) applicable to Common Sharesgl $ 04€¢ $ 032 $ 072 $ (519 $ (459
Income (loss) from continuing operations per Comi8bare, diluter $ 04€ $ 03C $ 08 $ (5200 $ (4.7
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, dilt — 0.0z (0.0¢) 0.07 0.1€
Net income (loss) applicable to Common Sharestedil(3) $ 046 $ 032 $ 072 $ (519 $ (459
Dividends declared per Common Share $ 06t $ 06 $ 065 $0912¢f $§ 1.3¢
Balance Sheet Data
(in thousands
Total Assets $923,16: $733,93! $610,12¢ $493,19. $578,09-
Total Debt $421,42: $300,09( $277,19: $238,06° $299,86!
Non-Controlling redeemable preferred inter $ — $ — $ 3221 $1216¢ $ —
Total Shareholde’ Equity $454,51( $387,80: $295,77: $217,08! $248,25(

(1) Income (loss) from continuing operations, includpey share data, are net of -controlling interests

(2) The results of Ventek and the Biloxi, Mississipppjperty were classified as discontinued operatfon2008. The results of the Athens, Geol
property were classified as discontinued operation2008 through 2010. The results of the Lafagdibuisiana; Knoxville, Tennessee;
Sherman, Texas; and St. Louis, Missouri propertiee classified as discontinued operations for 200@ugh 2011. The results of the
Creekwood apartment property were classified asdiinued operations for 2008 and 2009. The resilise Indianapolis, Indiana and
Memphis, Tennessee properties were classifiedsasulinued operations for 2008 through 2(

(3) In November 2008 Winthrop Realty Trust effectetl-for-5 reverse stock split of its Common SharfeBeneficial Interest pursuant to which
each of five shares of its Common Shares issuedarstanding as of the close of the market on Ndesr28, 2008 were automatically
combined into one Common Share, subject to theimdition of fractional share
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ITEM 7 — MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FI NANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Certain statements coritaed herein constitute forward-looking statementsueh term is defined in Section 27A of the SemsgifAct of 1933, as
amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchangef 1934, as amended. Forward-looking statemare not guarantees of performance. They
involve risks, uncertainties and assumptions. Qturé results, financial condition and business diiffgr materially from those expressed in these
forward-looking statements. You can find many & statements by looking for words such as “apprates,” “believes,” “expects,” “anticipates,”
“intends,” “plans,” “would,” “may” or similar exprgsions in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Theswérd-looking statements are subject to
numerous assumptions, risks and uncertainties. Mathe factors that will determine these itemstagond our ability to control or predict. Factors
that may cause actual results to differ materifalyn those contemplated by the forward-lookingestants include, but are not limited to, those set
forth under “Forward Looking Statements” and “Itéé — Risk Factors,” as well as our other filinggtwihe SEC. For these statements, we claim the
protection of the safe harbor for forward-lookirgtements contained in the Private Securities afitign Reform Act of 1995. We expressly disclaim
any responsibility to update forward-looking stagets, whether as a result of new information, ®iewents or otherwise. Accordingly, investors
should use caution in relying on forward-lookingtetnents, which are based on information, judgmemdsestimates at the time they are made, to
anticipate future results or trends.

The preparation of financial statements in conféymiith accounting principles generally acceptethia United States of America requires
management to make estimates and assumptiondfiettthe reported amounts of assets and liaksligied disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statemeantsl the amounts of revenues and expenses dugrnglorting periods. Actual results could differfr
those estimates. This section should be read ijucction with the financial statements, footnotesreto and other items contained elsewhere in this
report.

Overview

As a diversified REIT, we operate in three strateggigments: (i) operating properties; (ii) loareéssand (iii) REIT securities. As value investos
will focus and aggressively pursue our investmetivey in the segment we believe will generate gneater overall return to us given market
conditions at the time. In prior years we have destrated our ability to adjust our business placapitalize on evolving marketing conditions both
with respect to business segment and capital streidBased on market conditions in 2012, we focesednvestment activity in our loan asset segt
and to a lesser extent our operating propertiesisagwith a view toward investing in assets thawted a current yield as well as the potential for
long term appreciation. We will continue to invesbpportunities which we believe will yield supariisk adjusted returns. These investments may
have returns weighted towards the back end ofrihested life which may negatively impact currenhésgs.

We expect to be able to continue to execute orstrégegy during 2013. We will mine our existingtfalio for follow-on opportunities and will seek
to timely realize returns on such investments slgaly to the disposition restrictions under theetnal Revenue Code in order to maintain our REIT
status.

We believe that the economic recovery, while shail, continue throughout 2013 with gradually incsgzg rental demand across most asset classes ir
most major markets. We also believe that lendeliscamtinue to take advantage of their improvedhbak sheets by accelerating the disposition of
their non-performing real estate related assets, éebt and real property. Accordingly, we antitgpao diminishment in value opportunities for
investing in 2013, and we believe that new investimé loan assets as well as preferred equityasifitinue to provide the most opportunity.

During 2012 we invested $295,162,000. See ItenFBiancial Statements and Supplementary Data, Néte & description of our acquisitions. In li
of the favorable investing environment, we suppleteé our cash reserves with $77,563,000 of netege from our offering of 9.25% Series D
Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Shares, which fgeteas our Series D Preferred Shares, in Ma@di2 2and with $83,228,000 in net proceeds
from our issuance of 7.75% Senior Notes due Aug022 which we refer to as our Senior Notes. Addaity, during 2012 we received $166,915,000
from loan repayments and a return of our capitastment from our equity investments. See additidatails in our “Liquidity and Capital
Resources” section below.

We often acquire assets through joint ventures kvaitow us to employ third party davestment capital to maximize diversification tkrand reduc
capital concentration and in certain instancesrgge off of our joint venture partner’s experieaod expertise in specific geographic areas and/or
specific asset types. Our most notable joint ventavestments made in 2012 include our investnretité Sullivan Center property in Chicago, Illin
and our recently completed venture with respe@0tb Seventh Avenue in the Times Square area of X City.
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With respect to our operating results for 2012,inebme attributable to Common Shares was $15,806y0 $0.46 per Common Share as compared
with net income in 2011 of $10,009,000 or $0.32@emmon Share. The most significant factors in thisnge in net income were the impairment
charges of $7,600,000 taken on our consolidateggsties and other-than-temporary impairment chaof&21,058,000 on our equity investments in
2011. Funds From Operations attributable to ComBiweres was $46,187,000 or $1.40 per Common ShaP@1@ as compared to Funds From
Operations of $58,236,000 or $1.85 per Common Sha&611. See “Results of Operations” below.

Loan Assets

Our investment strategy in 2012 focused heavilponloan asset segment which we believed wouldrgéaéhe greatest overall return to us through
interest payments as well as appreciation eithreutih acquiring loan assets at a discount or aicguioan assets with the expectation of a borrower
default or recapitalization that will lead to aruéy ownership interest.

During 2012 we received repayment in full on fiears receivable for a total repayment of $80,350,00e also had two loans held in equity
investments that were fully repaid resulting iruratof capital distributions to us totaling $84,0®. Additionally, our West Olive bonds which are
classified as loan securities were paid at partiagun proceeds to us of $6,359,000.

In addition, during 2012 we invested approximatl®1,136,000 in new loan assets consisting of wioales, B-notes, mezzanine loans and preferred
equity as well as loans held in joint ventures.a&gsult of our loan repayments, operating incorom floan assets decreased by $2,819,000 to
$33,401,000 for the year ended December 31, 20dpared to $36,220,000 for the year ended Decenthe2(@ 1. For a description of our loan as
acquired during 2012 see Item 8. Financial Statéséiote 4.

We intend to continue our loan asset acquisitiah@igination strategy in 2013 with a focus on Ipavith underlying collateral value, future income
return potential and in certain cases, acquisitafnmson-performing loans in the fulcrum positioniathhave a high possibility that our debt position
the capital stack will be converted into equitytigpation. An example of this strategy is our meicacquisition of the first mortgage loan on a H04,
square foot office building located at 1515 MarB&eet in Philadelphia, Pennsylvania. This loan imasaturity default at the time of our acquisition
Subsequent to year end we restructured this l@apuireed for $10,000 an indirect 49% interest in pheperty, including an additional 40% profits
participation and became the general partner optbperty owner.

Operating Properties

In addition to the opportunities captured in owari@sset segment, we are experiencing growth inmenating properties portfolio. This growth can
also be attributed to distressed loans as len@eists divest of real estate on which they prevjofeseclosed or loans which have a maturity defaul
under which we are able to foreclose and take ostmigiof the property. For instance, our 320 unittrfamily property located in Memphis,
Tennessee, Waterford Place, was acquired in APiliPZrom a lender who had previously foreclosedhenproperty.

During 2012 we acquired three new consolidatedaipey properties and purchased non-controlling@ss in three additional consolidated operating
properties. We also made equity investments indiyerating properties in 2012. During 2012 we sbtde consolidated operating properties and four
of our Marc Realty equity investments. For detafl®ur operating property activity see ltem 8 —&fioial Statements, Note 4.

Consolidated Operating Properties

During 2012 we saw increases in our operating irefnom our operating properties as a result of fable operating results from same store
properties, that is, properties held for all 12 therof both 2012 and 2011, complemented by oursteve property operating results. As of
December 31, 2012 our consolidated properties agpeoximately 89.9% leased compared to approxima#2% leased at December 31, 2011.
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Tenant Concentration At December 31, 2012, we had two tenants, Specteady and Siemens Real Estate, which represenfgdxamately 19.6%
and 8.8%, respectively, of our annualized baseateavenues from consolidated commercial opergihogerties and 10.6% and 4.8% , respectivel
total revenue.

Equity and Preferred Equity Investme

Vintage Housing— During 2012 we invested an additional $6,779,000unVintage platform. These investments wereagdito acquire the general
partnership interests in two development stageiffartiily properties. During the years ended Decen@ie 2012 and 2011, we recorded net income
from our investment in Vintage Housing of $4,603 @Mhd $113,000, respectively and received castiligons of $6,023,000 and $1,561,000,
respectively. The Vintage properties were 96% ommipt November 30, 2012. We have elected to rézegiur earnings on a one month lag.

Sullivan Center- During the first quarter of 2012 we increased equity investment operating property portfoliotwitur investment in Sullivan
Center, a 942,000 square foot, office and retaipprty in downtown Chicago. Our contribution of 81,000 represents a 50% interest in (i) a
$47,458,000 mezzanine loan collateralized by theol@r’s equity in the property and (ii) a 65% frgprofits participation. We recognized income of
$903,000 in 2012 on our aggregate investment ifiv@nl Center. The Sullivan Center was 91% leasddoaember 30, 2012. We have elected to
recognize our earnings on a one month lag.

701 Seventh Avenue In October 2012 we entered into a joint ventoradquire and redevelop a 120,000 square foot pyoped associated air rights
located at 701 Seventh Avenue, New York, New Y¥®vle made an initial investment of $28,971,000 inwteeture. We have elected to recognize our
earnings on a three month lag.

Sealy- Two of the investment properties are located iraith, Georgia, (Northwest Business Park and Newetiankhich had occupancies, inclusive
of leases signed not yet commenced, of 70% andré8pectively, at December 31, 2012 as compareddopancy of 77% and 52%, respectively at
December 31, 2011. The third Sealy investmentdatkd in Nashville, Tennessee and was 84% and 88%p®d at December 31, 2012 and
December 31, 2011, respectively.

The loans secured by the Newmarket property anll&shville, Tennessee property continue to be é@eigpservicing. We, together with our venture
partner, are attempting to negotiate a restruauirthe debt with the special servicers. Therelmano assurance that a restructuring of the lodlhs
be accomplished.

Marc Realty— During 2012 we sold six of the Marc Realty equityeéstments to our joint venture partner for aggiegaoceeds of $19,850,000. As of
December 31, 2012 we held equity interests in pyaperties with Marc Realty which consist of an@ggte of approximately 665,000 rentable sq
feet of office and retail space which was 78% octiat December 31, 2012 as compared to 79% oatapiBecember 31, 2011.

REIT Securities
During the fourth quarter of 2012 we sold a sigmifit portion of our investment in common sharestoér REITs, particularly in Cedar Realty Trust
Inc. for net proceeds of approximately $17,160,0GMecember 31, 2012 we held 3,000,716 sharesmimon stock in Cedar Realty Trust.

During the year ended December 31, 2012 we invekig@b5,000 in REIT securities. We sold REIT sd@siwith an original cost of $13,338,000 ¢
received cash proceeds of $21,774,000. As of DeeeBith 2012 our portfolio of REIT securities hafdia value of $19,694,000 compared to an
original acquisition cost basis of $15,876,000.

Liguidity and Capital Resources

At December 31, 2012, we held $97,682,000 in urinéstl cash and cash equivalents and $19,694,0B&If securities. In addition, as of
December 31, 2012 we had, subject to covenant ¢anga, $50,000,000 available to draw on our revigjtine of credit.

We believe that cash flow from operations will done to provide adequate capital to fund our ofiegeand administrative expenses, as well as debt
service obligations in the short term. As a REI'€, must distribute annually at least 90% of our R&lable income. As a result of this dividend
requirement, we, like other REITs, are unable bovest all of our operating cash flow and are deleer on raising capital through equity and debt
issuances or forming ventures with investors

39



Table of Contents

to obtain funds with which to expand our busindgsordingly, we anticipate that capital with whichmake future investment and financing activi
will be provided from return of capital receivediin proceeds from loan maturities and prepaymentsotyvings, the issuance of additional equity and
debt securities as well as proceeds from salegistirey assets.

Our primary sources of funds include:
» the use of cash and cash equivale
* rents and reimbursements received from our operatioperties
e payments received under our loan as¢
» disposition of REIT securitie:
» sale of existing assel
» cash distributions from joint venture
»  borrowings under our credit facilit
e asset specific borrowings; a
» the issuance of equity and debt securi

Public Offerings

On March 23, 2012 we executed an underwritten pudffering of 3,220,000 shares of our Series Ddtrefl Shares. The shares were issued at a price
of $25.0385 per share before underwriter’'s discaunat we received net proceeds of approximately368/000 after underwriting discounts,
commissions and expenses.

The Series D Preferred Shares rank senior to omm@mn Shares. Generally, we are not permitted teewdthe Series D Preferred Shares prior to
November 28, 2016, except in limited circumstan@ssor after November 28, 2016, we may, at ourooptiedeem the Series D Preferred Share
whole or in part, at any time or from time to tinfier, cash at a redemption price of $25.00 per shdws all accrued and unpaid dividends on such
Series D Preferred Shares up to but excludingatlemption date.

In August 2012 we closed on an underwritten pubiifering of $86,250,000 of our Senior Notes atssué price of 100% par value. We received net
proceeds, after deducting the underwriting disc@and commission and estimated offering expen$&83)213,000. We are required to pay quarterly
interest on the Senior Notes on each of Februagay, Mugust and November 15. In addition we may eedéhe Senior Notes, in whole or in part, at
any time or from time to time on or after August 2815 at a redemption price in cash equal to 16086e principal amount redeemed plus accrued
and unpaid interest to, but not including, the region date.

Debt Maturities

At December 31, 2012, our balance sheet contaimtgage debt payable of $280,576,000. We have $53)22 of mortgage debt maturing in 2013,
$19,160,000 maturing in 2014 and $8,700,000 madurir015 with the remainder maturing in 2016 eedaWith respect to our debt maturing in
2013, we anticipate seeking replacement financpaniexecution of a lease extension we are curreethyptiating with the current tenant at our
Amherst, New York property. We have a $50,000,88@®lving line of credit which matures in March 204#h an option to extend to March 2015.
December 31, 2012, we had no amounts outstanditigeoline of credit. We continually evaluate oubtmaturities and except as noted above on our
Sealy equity investments, based on our currensassmt, we believe there are viable financing afidancing alternatives for debts as they mature
that will not materially adversely impact our lidity or our expected financial results.

Net Loss Carry Forward

At December 31, 2011, we had a net operating lasy éorward of approximately $4,830,000 which egpiin 2023. We do not anticipate having to
utilize any of the net operating loss carry forwar@012. The utilization of a majority of our regterating loss carry forward will limit our abilitp
shelter taxable income in the future which may nejus to distribute funds and reduce cash avail&dl reinvestment on a going forward basis. We
had capital loss carry forwards of $43,430,000 etdnber 31, 2011 which expire from 2014 throughb20ie anticipate utilizing $12,266,000 of the
capital loss carry forward in 2012.
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Cash Flows

Our liquidity based upon cash and cash equivalenteased by approximately $56,730,000 from $4Q@%82at December 31, 2011 to $97,682,000 at
December 31, 2012.

Our cash flow activities for the year ended Decem®ie 2012 are summarized as follows (in thousands)

Net cash flow provided by operating activit $ 46,43
Net cash flow used in investing activiti (109,44°)
Net cash flow provided by financing activiti 119,74

Increase in cash and cash equivali $ 56,73(

Operating Activities

For the year ended December 31, 2012, our operatitigities generated consolidated net income df324,000 and positive cash flow of
$46,435,000. Our cash provided by operations reflear net income adjusted by: (i) a decreasedaraash items of $13,285,000 representing
primarily current period loan discount accretiom amrealized gains on loan securities offset byragack depreciation and amortization expenses
and $3,260,000 for impairment charges; (ii) anéase of $15,720,000 for discount accretion receivedsh; (iii) an increase for $21,690,000 of
distributions from non-consolidated interests; émjla net decrease due to changes in other opgratisets and liabilities of $2,074,000. See our
discussion of Results of Operations below for add#l details on our operations.

Investing Activitie:

Cash flow used in investing activities for the yeaded December 31, 2012 was approximately $1098@7as compared to cash flows used in
investing activities of approximately $105,350,00the comparable period in 2011. The change 26l of approximately $4,097,000 resulted
primarily from increased investments in loans reable and real estate assets offset by decreasestiment in equity investments and increased r¢
of capital distributions from our equity investmgnt

Net cash used in investing activities of $109,4@8,for the year ended December 31, 2012 was coetppemarily of the following
+ $58,650,000 for the acquisition of our 1515 Mark&e8&t loan receivable
«  $40,000,000 for the origination of our Queensridgsvérs loan receivabli
« $30,000,000 for the acquisition of our Broward |loaneivable
*  $29,025,000 for investment in our 70 Avenue joint venture
» $21,473,000 for the acquisition of our Memphis, Tessee (Waterford) proper
»  $20,696,000 for the acquisition of fou-Notes;
* $14,051,000 for investment in our W-Elad joint venture
* $12,305,000 for investment in capital and tenantrompments at our operating properti
* $11,933,000 for three new loan originatio
e $10,915,000 for investment in our 10 Metrotech jeianture;
» $8,036,000 for investment in our WI-Stamford loan joint venturt
* $7,522,000 for investment in our Wl-Fenway Wateridge joint ventur
» $7,000,000 for the acquisition of Lexington Realtyd' s investment in Concor
*  $6,817,000 for investment in our Vintage Housingdtiad) joint venture
*  $5,655,000 for purchases of REIT securities caraiefir value;
*  $4,972,000 for investment in our Marc Realty eqirityestments
*  $3,900,000 for the acquisition of our Greensbororth€arolina (Lake Brandt) property; a
* $2,521,000 for the acquisition of our Mentor loanaigable.

These uses of cash flow were offset primarily by:
e $72,342,000 in return of capital distributions framr SoCal Office Portfolio Loan equity investme
« $68,824,000 in collection of loans receival
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e $21,774,000 in proceeds from the sale of securitesed at fair value

+ $7,800,000 in return of capital distributions fromr &ROIC-Riverside equity investmer

* $7,024,000 in proceeds from the sale of our Churdbitcle Tower and Kroge- Memphis real estate investmer
* $6,359,000 in proceeds from the payoff of par ohlsacurities

* $4,297,000 in proceeds from the sale of two of oard/Realty investments and our Fll-invest investment; ar
*  $3,524,000 in return of capital distributions fromr dMarc Realty equity investmen

Financing Activities
Cash flow provided by financing activities for thear ended December 31, 2012 was approximately,$22®00 as compared to cash flow provided
by financing activities of approximately $61,358)00r the comparable period in 2011. This changeppiroximately $58,384,000 resulted primarily
from proceeds from new mortgage loans payable ges from the issuance of our Senior Notes, pracierh the issuance of Series D Preferred
Shares and a decrease in principal payments omordgage loans payable.
Net cash provided by financing activities of $142 000 for the year ended December 31, 2012 wasgiisad primarily of the following

* $86,250,000 in proceeds from the issuance of S&Nutes Payable

« $77,563,000 in proceeds from the issuance of SErieseferred Share

» $25,000,000 in proceeds from the secured financiraupQueensridge Tower loa

* $21,000,000 in proceeds from a new mortgage loaafgayon our Meriden, Connecticut prope

* $13,500,000 in proceeds from a new mortgage loaalgayn our Memphis, Tennessee prope

*  $3,500,000 paid to us in exchange for an interestimconsolidated SoCal Office joint venture;

* $2,397,000 in advances on our 450 Wt Street property mortgage loan payal

These sources of cash flow were offset primarily by
e $40,000,000 for payments on our revolving line @&dit;
» $25,584,000 for mortgage loan repayme
+ $21,488,000 for dividend payments on our Common &
*  $9,285,000 for dividend payments on our Series Defred Shares
* $7,242,000 for distribution to n-controlling interests, primarily for our SoCal @ffi joint venture
*  $4,198,000 for deferred financing cos
*  $1,650,000 for the acquisition of r-controlling interests in our Westheimer prope
» $1,230,000 for payments on our secured financingd
»  $400,000 for the acquisition of n-controlling interests on our Deer Valley prope

Future Cash Commitmen
Future Funding Requirements

In addition to our initial purchase price of centé¥dans and operating properties, inclusive of pases made through equity investment ventures, we
have future funding requirements which total apprately $39,104,000 at December 31, 2012. Of thiswnt, approximately $39,029,000 represents
our future commitment to our 701 Seventh Avenudwen

Common and Preferred Share Dividends

As a result of our emphasis on total return, whigeseek to achieve a stable, predictable dividenddr shareholders, we do not select or manage our
investments for short-term dividend growth, buheattowards achieving overall superior total retWkthile we intend to continue paying dividends
each quarter, the amount of our dividend will depen the actual cash flow, financial condition, italrequirements, utilization of available capital
losses, distribution requirements for REITs untierlnternal Revenue Code, and such other factavaraBoard of Trustees deem relevant. Subject to
the foregoing, we expect to continue distributing current cash flow from operations after resegviormal and customary amounts to maintain
adequate capital reserves. In addition, when degmetent or necessitated by applicable dividendireqments for REITs under the Internal Revenue
Code, we may make one or more special dividendsglany particular year. However, during a favoeaiblvesting environment, we expect that we
will utilize our carry forward capital losses toedter gains from the disposition of our assets sanay use the proceeds for investment. We expect to
continue applying these standards with respectitalividends on a quarterly basis which may cabsedtvidends to increase or decrease dependi
these various factors.
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During 2012 we paid a regular quarterly dividenc0f1625 per Common Share. We paid a regular quadieidend of $0.578125 per Series D
Preferred Share.

Contractual Obligations

The following table summarizes our payment obligiagi under contractual obligations, including adéfi and variable rate debt obligations, except as
otherwise noted, as of December 31, 2012 (in thulsa

Payments Due By Peric
Less thar After

Total 1 Year 2-3 Years 4-5 Years 5 Years
Mortgage loans payable (principal and interest, $350,82: $35,907 $ 66,23¢ $214,820 $ 33,85¢
Senior notes payab 150,58° 6,684 13,36¢ 13,36¢ 117,16!
Secured financing 56,85( 16,25¢ 40,59: — —
Revolving line of credit (principal and interest) — — — — —
Ground lease obligations ( 116,81¢ 1,28 2,86¢ 3,24¢ 109,41¢
Advisors fee (3) 45,95( 9,19( 18,38( 18,38( —

$721,02¢  $69,32:  $141,44¢ $249,82(  $260,43!

(1) Does not reflect financing activity subsequent tc&mber 31, 201.

(2) This obligation relates to the ground lease atppaperty located at 450 West th Street, New York, New York which expires May 31530

(3) Advisor's fee based upon the terms of the Advisory Agreémih our external advisor, effective January @12, with no effect given to ar
equity that may be issued or repurchased afteridbee31, 2012. No amounts have been included tigesiuent renewal periods of the
Advisory Agreement

We carry comprehensive liability and all risk pragensurance covering fire, flood, extended cogerdacts of terrorism,” as defined in the Terroris
Risk Insurance Act of 2002 and rental loss insugamith respect to our operating properties wherkerage is not provided by our net lease tenants.
Under the terms of our net leases, the tenantligadbd to maintain adequate insurance coverage.

Our debt instruments, consisting of mortgage Iaa@tsired by our operating properties (which are igdigenon-recourse to us), contain customary
covenants requiring us to maintain insurance. Algiowe believe that we have adequate insuranceageeinder these agreements, we may not be
able to obtain an equivalent amount of coverageadonable costs in the future. Further, if lendesist on greater coverage than we are able @irobt
at reasonable costs, it could adversely affectbility to finance and/or refinance our propertsl expand our portfolio.

Comparability of Financial Data from Period to Period

The comparability of financial data from periodgeriod is affected by several items including lig timing of our acquisitions and leasing actistie

(ii) the purchases and sales of assets and invattn(@) when material other-than-temporary intpant charges on assets in our portfolio are taken;
and (iv) the reclassification of assets. In thigarel, the comparability of financial results foe tyears presented were impacted by other-thamporary
impairment charges on our equity investments reieeginin 2011, property impairments recognized it28nd 2011, the addition of three operating
properties in 2012, the acquisition of several lagsets in 2012 and 2011, the divestiture of seREH securities in 2012 and 2011, and the sale of
several of our Marc Realty equity investments ia20
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Results of Operations

Our results of operations are discussed below ggnsat:
»  Operating Propertie- our wholly and partially owned operating properti
» Loan Asset- our loans receivable, loan securities carriediatvilue, and equity investments in loan ass
* REIT Securitie our ownership of equity and debt securities in pthal estate investment trusts; ¢

» Corporate — non-segment specific results whictuthelinterest on cash reserves, general and adrathistexpenses and other non-
segment specific income and expense ite

The following table summarizes our assets by segjateyear end (in thousands):

2012 2011
Operating properties $562,82: $442,20¢
Loan asset 239,53« 217,17:
REIT securities 19,69 28,85¢
Corporate
Cash and cash equivalel 97,68: 40,952
Restricted cas — 3,91¢
Accounts receivable and prepa 33€ 504
Deferred financing cos! 3,09t 31¢
Discontinued Operatior — 6
Total Assets $923,16: $733,93!

The increase in operating property assets was dionagly to the acquisition of three wholly ownetbperties, investment in four new operating
property joint ventures and an additional investmemur Vintage Housing portfolio which acquirdtetgeneral partnership interest in two
development projects. These additions were partidfset by the sale of our Indianapolis, Indiaffiice property and our Memphis, Tennessee retalil
property.

The increase in loan assets was due primarilyan &cquisitions of $138,403,000 and loan origimetiof $52,733,000. These additions were offset by
$84,026,000 in return of capital distributions riged, primarily from our SoCal Office Loan equityiestment, and $82,889,000 in loan receivable
collections, including the repayment in full of ddagazine, 160 Spear, Broward, 30 North Michigad 28 East Madison loans receivable.

The decrease in REIT securities assets was printhglresult of the sale of 52% of our shares afaE®Realty Trust in 2012. In total, we received
proceeds of $21,774,000 from the sale of secuiiti@®12. During 2012 we invested a total of $5,688.

The following table summarizes our results fromtaoring operations by segment for each of the yeaded December 31 (in thousands):

2012 2011 2010
Operating properties $ 156 $(15,017) $ 2,31(
Loan asset 31,78¢ 35,29¢ 19,21¢
REIT securities 8,011 3,89¢ 8,27<
Corporate expenst (15,507) (13,08¢) (10,699
Consolidated income from continuing operati $ 24,45 $11,09: $ 19,10¢
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Comparison 2012 to 2011
Operating Properties

The following table summarizes our results fromtaaring operations for our operating propertiesnsegt for the years ended December 31, 201:
2011 (in thousands):

2012 2011
Rents and reimbursemer $ 51,37¢ $ 42,78¢
Operating expenst¢ (15,66¢) (14,389
Real estate taxe (4,76%) (4,427)
Equity in loss of Marc Realty investmer (132) (982)
Equity in income (loss) of Sealy Northwest Atla (38¢) 4,30¢
Equity in loss of Sealy Airpark Nashuvil — (1,039
Equity in loss of Sealy Newmark (2,81)) (2,936)
Equity in income of Vintage Housir 4,60: 112
Equity in income of WR-Elad 903 —
Operating incom: 33,11¢ 23,444
Depreciation and amortization expel (17,66€) (13,239
Interest expens (13,019 (12,815
Impairment loss on investments in real es (2,562) (7,600)
Impairment loss on Marc Realty equity investm — (15,764
Gain on consolidation of proper — 81¢&
Settlement incom — 5,86¢
Impairment loss on Sealy equity investme — (5,299
Gain (loss) on extinguishment of de (121) 9,35¢
Gain on sale of equity investmel 397 207
Operating properties net income (lo $ 15€ $(15,019)

Operating income from our operating properties,clvhe define for our consolidated operating prapsras all items of income and expense directly
derived from or incurred by this segment beforerdejation, amortization, interest expense and atlberrecurring non-operating items, and including
our share of income or loss from equity investmentseased by $9,675,000 compared to the priar yeaod.

The following table breaks out our operating restibm same store properties (properties held tiirout both the current and prior year reporting
periods) and new store properties (in thousands):

Consolidated Operating Properties

For the Year Ended December

2012 2011
Rents and reimbursemer
Same store propertis $ 41,74¢ $ 41,86¢
New store propertie 9,627 921
51,37¢ 42,78¢
Operating expens¢
Same store propertis 10,23: 14,06(
New store propertie 5,43t 327
15,66¢ 14,38:
Real estate taxe
Same store propertis 3,631 4,36(
New store propertie 1,12¢ 67
4,76t 4,42
Consolidated operating properties operating inc
Same store propertis 27,88( 23,44¢
New store propertie 3,064 527

$ 30,94« $ 23,97t
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The increase in operating income for our same gaperties was primarily the result of a decreasgperating expenses of $3,829,000 and a dec
in real estate taxes of $723,000. The same steudtsevere supplemented by positive results fromnew store properties.

+ Rental revenues increased by $8,586,000 due tcstore revenues of $8,706,000, while there waggatsliecrease in same store revenues
of $120,000. The decrease in same store revenuéheassult of

. The sale of a portion of our Churchill, Pennsyheapioperty which occurred May 14, 20:

. An amendment to the lease terms for Spectra Erar§$00 Westheimer located in Houston, Texas. Todified lease reduces t
average annual contractual obligation but extenedgdrm of the lease through April 30, 20

. A decrease in average occupancy at 701 Arboretuoatdd in Lisle, Illinois from 48% to 169

. Parking revenue at our One East Erie property &atat Chicago, lllinois resulting from spaces takemt of service due to a
restoration projec

Which were partially offset by increases from:

. Lease termination income of $785,000 from a 558ftare foot tenant at our Chicago, lllinois propé&riown as River City,
which tenant terminated the lease effective Aug04r;

. Increased average occupancy at our property lodateder Valley, Arizona from 67% to 91¢
. Increased average occupancy at our property knav@rassroads Il located in Englewood, Colorado &% to 82%
. Increased average occupancy at our property knavib@/650 Corporetum located in Lisle, lllinoisfr®8% to 75%

* Operating expenses increased by $1,279,000 dueemses at our new store properties of $5,43588Me store operating expenses
decreased by $3,829,000 due primarily to a decrieaesgpenses of $3,240,000 at our Churchill, Pelwasya property, which had incurred
$1,423,000 of costs associated with pursuing &esstht in 2011, and $599,000 at our Chicago, lis{River City) property

* Real estate tax expense increased by $338,008easlaiof our new store properties. Real estat®t&d,128,000 at our new store
properties was offset by a decrease of $723,000ratame store properties. The reduction at ouessare properties was primarily due
lower taxes at our Churchill, Pennsylvania and &g lllinois (River City) properties while we expnced increased taxes due to a
revaluation at our Meriden, Connecticut prope

Depreciation and amortization expense increasep432,000 in 2012 primarily as a result of our ret@re properties. Interest expenses related t
operating properties increased by $196,000 primasla result of interest expense of $1,594,0@ahew store property located in New York, New
York. These decreases were partially offset bynegfcing our Meriden, Connecticut property and astel. lllinois properties which resulted in
decreased interest expense of $734,000.

During 2012 we recognized impairment charges of 33,000 on our Atlanta, Georgia retail property &884,000 on our Denton, Texas property as a
result of changes to the respective holding perodthese properties. During 2011 we recognizepiaiinment charges of $4,600,000 on our Churchill,
Pennsylvania property and $3,000,000 on one of.ile, lllinois properties. In addition, we recogad income of $5,868,000 in connection with the
settlement of the litigation at our Churchill, Pepivania property. We also recognized $8,514,008airi on extinguishment of debt in connection \
the early satisfaction of the debt on our Lislendlis properties and $844,000 of gain in connectidgth the satisfaction of the debt at our Conreeti
multi-family property. As a result of a change omtrol at our 450 W 14  Street property effectivevBimber 1, 2011, we began consolidating this
property in 2011, and we recognized a gain on dafet®mn of $818,000 in 2011.

Non-Consolidated Operating Properties: Equity Investsen

Net operating income from equity investments wad #2,000 for the year ended December 31, 2012 cadpiea a net loss of $531,000 for the y
ended December 31, 2011. The increase was duerplyitioa

»  Operating income from our Vintage portfolio incred$y $4,490,000 primarily due to recognizing &¥ehr's income in 2012, a decrease
in amortization expense and the addition of twgpprties. Our initial investment in the Vintage folib closed on June 24, 201
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» Operating loss from our Sealy Airpark Nashvilleestment decreased by $1,034,000 as a result aidawitten this investment down to
$0 as of December 31, 201

e Operating income from our combined WHITad investment which closed February 3, 2012 v@8$00 for the year ended December
2012.

*  Operating loss from our Marc Realty investmentsegsed by $850,000 primarily as a result of the e&five investments during 2012.
We recognized a gain of $165,000 on these s

Partially offset by:

*  Operating income from our Sealy Northwest Atlamteeistment decreased by $4,696,000 due primarilyetaliscounted payoff of the first
mortgage loan in June 2011. The discounted pagsfilted in an allocation of cancellation of delobime to us of approximately
$5,502,000

We recognized other-than-temporary impairment absuaf $15,764,000 on our Marc Realty equity investts in the fourth quarter of 2011 as a result
of continued decline in operations particulariythe suburban Chicago, lllinois assets, togethdr imitreased capital needs both of which have medult
in an effort by us to divest of certain of theseeistments. We recognized $5,294,000 of other-tharpbrary impairment charges on our Sealy
investments due primarily to overleverage concamwell as continued market declines on these piiepe

Loan Asset
The following table summarizes our results from loan assets segment for the years ended Decerhp2@B2 and 2011 (in thousands):

2012 2011
Interest $11,73¢ $11,07:
Discount accretiol 8,33 13,40
Equity in earnings of preferred equity investmenbarc Realty — 33¢
Earnings of Concord Debt Holdin 422 3,21¢
Earnings of CDH CDC( 1,71¢ 48C
Earnings of Le-Win Concord — 25€
Equity in earnings of ROI-Riverside 70€ 93¢
Realized gain on sale of securities carried atMaine 614 —
Unrealized gain on loan securities carried atvalue 447 2,73¢
Equity in earnings (loss) of ROIC Lakeside Ee (42) 664
Equity in earnings of 46th Street Goth — 621
Equity in earnings of Sofite — 2,17
Equity in earnings of RE CDO Managem: 67 46
Equity in earnings of SoCal Office Loan Portfa 9,70¢ 272
Equity in loss of Concord Debt Holdings ( (45€) —
Equity in loss of CDH CDO (1 (997) —
Equity in earnings of WR-Stamford 76¢ —
Equity in earnings of 10 Metrote« 33t —
Equity in Earnings of Mentc 46 —
Operating incom: 33,40: 36,22(
Interest expens (1,499 (850)
General and administrative expel (121) (75)
Loan assets net incon $31,78¢ $35,29¢

(1) Represents the interest acquired from LexingtoritiR@aust on May 1, 201z
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Operating income from loan assets, which we dedmall items of income and expense directly derfveah or incurred by this business segment
before general and administrative and interestes@edecreased by $2,819,000 as compared to threypar period. The decrease was due primarily
to:

* a$5,068,000 decrease in discount accretion dusapity to the repayment of our Metropolitan Towed&aeverly Hilton loans in 2011
which was partially offset by an increase relatedur 160 Spear and Magazine loans in May 2

* a$3,270,000 decrease in earnings from our Corinwestment primarily due to a loan loss reserv&€oncor(s Thanksgiving Tower log
in 2012; anc

* a$2,291,000 decrease in unrealized gain on loaurisies carried at fair valus

Partially offset by:
* a$6,871,000 increase in net earnings from ourateity investment loan assets primarily due tmiegs of $9,706,000 on our SoCal
office portfolio loan investment which resultedritahe payoff of the underlying loan asset at

Interest expense represents interest on (i) thel$0300 senior participation held by Concord Hesthte CDO 2006-1, Ltd. (“*CDO-1"), an
unaffiliated third party, on our San Marbeya loanaivable, (ii) the $14,000,000 senior participatield by CDO-1 on our Hotel Wales loan and

(iii) on the $23,770,000 recourse secured financimg@ur Queensridge Towers loan receivable. Both@&enior participations are treated as secured
financings for financial statement purposes.

REIT Securitie!
The following table summarizes our results from B&IT securities segment for the years ended DeeeSth 2012 and 2011 (in thousands):

2012 2011
Dividends $1,05¢ $ 984
Gain on sale of securities carried at fair ve 41 122
Unrealized gain on securities carried at fair vi 6,91¢ 2,78¢

Operating incom $8,011 $3,89¢

Operating income from REIT securities, which weinkefas all items of income and expense directlivddrfrom or incurred by this business segment
before interest expense, increased by $4,116,000rapared to the prior year period. The increase pvenarily due to a $4,128,000 increase in
unrealized gain on securities carried at fair vatimarily as a result of a change in the valuewfshares of Cedar acquired subsequent to
September 30, 2011.

Corporate
The following table summarizes our results from comporate business segment for the years endeehiiter 31, 2012 and 2011 (in thousands):

2012 2011
Interest and other income $ 69¢ $ 1,17¢
General and administrati\ (12,399 (12,179
Transaction cosi (427) (519
Interest expens (3,157 (2,099
Loss on redemption of Serie-1 Preferred Share — (200
State and local taxe (325) (379

Operating los: $(15,597) $(13,086)

The increase in operating loss from corporate djpersfor the comparable periods was due primaeilst $1,220,000 increase in general and
administrative expense due primarily to an increagke base management fee paid to our Advis@1¢#63,000 and an increase of $361,000 in
accounting fees which was partially offset by a44860 decrease in legal fees, and an increasepoete interest expense of $1,059,000 resulting
from the issuance of our Senior Notes.
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Comparison 2011 to 2010
Operating Properties

The following table summarizes our results fromtaaring operations for our operating propertiesnsegt for the years ended December 31, 2011
2010. Certain balances have been reclassifiedesu#t of discontinued operations (in thousands):

2011 2010
Rents and reimbursemer $ 42,78¢ $ 36,27«
Operating expenst¢ (14,389 (7,75¢)
Real estate taxe (4,427) (2,417)
Equity in income (loss) of Marc Realty investme (982) 1,77¢
Equity in income (loss) of Sealy Northwest Atla 4,30¢ (710
Equity in loss of Sealy Airpark Nashuvil (1,039 (1,109
Equity in loss of Sealy Newmark (2,93¢) (1,199
Equity in income of Vintage Housir 112 —
Operating incom: 23,44« 24.,87(
Depreciation and amortization expel (13,234 (9,62¢)
Interest expens (12,815 (12,937
Impairment loss on investments in real es (7,600 —
Impairment loss on Marc Realty equity investm (15,764 —
Gain on consolidation of proper 81¢ —
Settlement incom 5,86¢ —
Impairment loss on Sealy equity investme (5,299 —
Gain on extinguishment of de 9,35¢ —
Gain on sale of equity investmel 207 —
Operating properties net income (lo $(15,019) $ 2,31

Operating income from our operating properties,clvhve define for our consolidated operating prapsras all items of income and expense directly
derived from or incurred by this segment beforeréeiation, amortization and interest expense ahdraton-recurring non-operating items and our
share of income or loss from equity investmentsretesed by $1,426,000 compared to the prior yaawge

The following table breaks out our operating restidm same store properties (properties held titrout both the current and prior year reporting
periods) and new store properties (in thousands):

Consolidated Operating Properties

For the Year Ended December

2011 2010
Rents and reimbursemer
Same store propertit $ 34,66¢ $ 35,44
New store propertie 8,121 831
42,78¢ 36,27
Operating expenst
Same store propertis 11,14 7,212
New store propertie 3,24z 54€
14,38" 7,75¢
Real estate taxe
Same store properti 3,17: 1,90¢
New store propertie 1,254 50¢€
4,427 2,412
Consolidated operating properties operating inc
Same store propertis 20,35( 26,327
New store propertie 3,62t (223%)

$ 23,97¢ $ 26,10«
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The decrease in operating income for our same ptogeerties was primarily the result of operatingenses and real estate taxes at our Churchill,
Pennsylvania property and a decline in rents aimltn@rsements at our Lisle, lllinois properties. ™eeline in same store results was partially offfst
positive results from our new store properties.

* Rental revenues increased by $6,515,000 due tcstwe revenues of $8,121,000, while same storentmsedeclined by $775,000. The
decrease in same store revenue was the resultlieieat our Churchill, Pennsylvania property and Lisle, Illinois property which wetr
partially offset by increased revenue at our AndpMassachusetts property and our One East Eriea@bi lllinois property

» Operating expenses increased by $6,629,000 duertesised expenses at our same store properti@s9¥3p000 and at our new store
properties of $2,696,000. The increase in the sgtore operating expenses relates primarily to dipgraxpenses of $4,607,000 (includ
$1,423,000 of costs associated with pursuing ttieeseent) at our Churchill, Pennsylvania propertyie in prior years was paid by the
tenant under a net lease; ¢

* Real estate tax expense increased by $2,015,00@ doereased expenses at our new store propeftEs46,000 and increases at our
same store properties of $1,269,000. The incree8eeisame store real estate tax expense was pyihae to real estate taxes of $836,
at our Churchill, Pennsylvania property and inceglaal estate taxes at the Lisle, lllinois, Ri@éy Chicago, lllinois, and One East Erie
Chicago, lllinois properties as a result of taxtebgents recorded in 201

Depreciation and amortization expense increase®Bi§06,000 in 2011 primarily as a result of ourrfproperty acquisitions in 2010. Interest expet
related to our operating properties remained ratbticonsistent but were affected by an increask96fL,000 in interest expense on our Connecticut
multi-family property acquired in the fourth quarté 2010 and $627,000 of interest expense on tant&tion, Florida property which was financed in
March 2011. These increases were partially offgegelductions at our Lisle, lllinois; Andover, Masbkasetts; and Burlington, Vermont properties as a
result of our satisfying the loans.

During 2011 we recognized impairment charges 08@3,000 on our Churchill, Pennsylvania property $8@00,000 on one of our Lisle, lllinois
properties. In addition, we recognized income gB$8,000 in connection with the settlement of thigdtion at our Churchill, Pennsylvania property.
We also recognized $8,514,000 of gain on extingnéft of debt in connection with the early satiséacof the debt on our Lisle, Illinois properties
and $844,000 of gain in connection with the satisé@ of the debt at our Connecticut multi-familgoperty. As a result of a change in control at our
450 W 14 Street property effective November 1, 2@&Inow consolidate this property and we recognigdin on consolidation of $818,000.

Nor-Consolidated Operating Properties: Equity Investien

Net operating loss from equity investments was $831 for the year ended December 31, 2011 comparadhet loss of $1,234,000 for the year er
December 31, 2010.

* Operating income from our Sealy Northwest Atlamteeistment increased by $5,018,000 due primaritheadiscounted payoff of the first
mortgage loan in June 2011. The discounted pagsfilted in an allocation of cancellation of delobime to us of approximately
$5,502,000

» Operating loss from our Sealy Newmarket investnireereased by $1,743,000 due primarily to $1,275 @0fdditional interest expen
allocated to us in 2011 as a result of the firsttgamge loan being in default while it is in spedatvicing. Rental revenues were also lower
at this property during the current periods assaltef the loss of a significant tenant in Aprd12L.

»  Operating income from our Marc Realty investmemsrdased by $2,758,000 primarily as a result oféte of three investments on
June 1, 2011. We recognized a gain of $207,000iesetsale:

e Operating income from our Vintage portfolio whidesed June 24, 2011 was $113,000 for 2011. Wewvedaiash distributions of
$1,561,000 from this investment in 20

We recognized other-than-temporary impairment absuaf $15,764,000 on our Marc Realty equity investts in the fourth quarter of 2011 as a result
of continued decline in operations particularlthe suburban Chicago, lllinois assets, togethdr imitreased capital needs both of which have regult
in an effort by us to divest of certain of theseeistments. We recognized $5,294,000 of other-tharpbrary impairment charges on our Sealy
investments due primarily to overleverage concamwell as continued market declines on these piiepe
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Loan Asset

The following table summarizes our results from loan assets segment for the years ended Decerhp2@B1 and 2010 (in thousands):

2011 2010
Interest $11,07: $ 5,691
Discount accretiol 13,40: 8,78:
Equity in earnings of preferred equity investmefilarc Realty 33¢ 33¢
Equity in earnings of Le-Win Concord 25¢ —
Unrealized gain on loan securities carried atvalue 2,73¢ 5,011
Gain on sale of securities carried at fair ve — 46¢
Equity in loss of PSW NY( — (1,24¢)
Equity in earnings of ROIC Riversit 93¢ 4732
Equity in earnings of Concord Debt Holdin 3,21¢ —
Equity in earnings of CDH CDt 48( —
Equity in earnings of ROIC Lakeside Eas 664 —
Equity in earnings of 46th Street Goth 621 —
Equity in earnings of Sofite 2,17 —
Equity in earnings of RE CDO Managem 46 —
Equity in earnings of Socal Office Loan Portfa 272 —
Operating incom: 36,22( 19,51¢
General and administrative expel (75) (300)
Interest expens (850) —
Loan assets net incon $35,29¢ $19,21¢

Operating income from loan assets, which we dedmall items of income and expense directly derfveah or incurred by this business segment
before general and administrative expense, incaebg&16,702,000 from $19,518,000 in 2010 to $38,220 in 2011. The increase was due primarily

to:

a $5,382,000 increase in interest income due pifyrtarthe acquisition of new loans throughout 2Gt@ 2011

a $4,619,000 increase in discount accretion dumapily to the recognition of $1,261,000 on our Mzige loan acquired in 2011, and
increases on our 160 Spear loan and Metropolitavet toan of $2,489,000 and $1,036,0

a $4,213,000 increase in equity in earnings rea@aghin 2011 on our loan assets held in joint vesg@acquired subsequent to June 30,
2010; anc

$3,954,000 in earnings from our Concord investméaitfgrm as a result of cash distributions receiveg011.

These increases were partially offset by a $2,DiBdecrease in unrealized gain on loan securiti@®d11 as compared to the same period in 2010.

Interest expense represents interest on the $1.90®8enior participation held by a third partycam San Marbeya loan receivable and on the
$14,000,000 senior participation held by a thirdyan our Hotel Wales loan. Both of the seniortisgrations are treated as secured financings for
financial statement purposes.
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REIT Securitie:
The following table summarizes our results from B&IT securities segment for the years ended DeeeSith 2011 and 2010 (in thousands):

2011 2010
Dividends $ 984 $2,65¢
Gain on sale of securities carried at fair ve 12Z 55¢
Unrealized gain on securities carried at fair vi 2,78¢ 5,06(

REIT securities net incomn $3,89¢ $8,27¢

Operating income from REIT securities, which weinkefas all items of income and expense directlwvddrfrom or incurred by this business segment
before interest expense, decreased by $4,378,0Cw prior year period. The decrease was dueapitinio:

* a$2,272,000 decrease in unrealized gain on smesucirried at fair value
+ a$1,671,000 decrease in dividend income primaslyhe result of the sale of various securities;
* a$435,000 decrease in realized gain on the saeauirities carried at fair valu

Corporate
The following table summarizes our results from comporate business segment for the years endeehiter 31, 2011 and 2010 (in thousands):

2011 2010
Interest and other income $ 1,17¢ $ 13¢
General and administrati\ (12,179 (8,199
Transaction cosi (519 (321)
Interest expens (2,099 (2,187)
Loss on redemption of Serie-1 Preferred Share (200 —
State and local taxe (379) (133)
Operating los: $(13,086) $(10,69%)

The increase in operating loss from corporate djpersfor the comparable periods was due primaeilst $2,975,000 increase in general and
administrative expense due primarily to an increagke base management fee paid to our Advis@2¢594,000, an increase of $198,000 in
transaction costs and an increase of $268,000ofiegsional fees which was partially offset by 2080,000 increase in corporate interest and other
income which is primarily a forfeited deposit.

Discontinued Operations

Our properties in Athens, Georgia; Indianapolislidgna; Lafayette, Louisiana; St. Louis, Missoumdgville, Tennessee; Memphis, Tennessee and
Sherman, Texas are classified as discontinued tipesa

In October 2009 a tenant of our retail net leageperties, The Kroger Company (“Krogertiotified us of its intention not to exercise itase renewe
options on six buildings containing approximate81 000 square feet of retail space. Concurrentipgkr also notified us that it would be exercising
its option to purchase one of these six propertiesAthens, Georgia property, resulting in oussigying that property in discontinued operations
effective with the fourth quarter of 2009. Uponewat of the notice, management actively marketed&maining locations for lease or sale.

The Lafayette, Louisiana and Sherman, Texas lotsiticere classified as discontinued operations &epfember 30, 2010. During the quarter ended
September 30, 2010, management determined thabtbatial market rents were not sufficient to coperspective ground lease payments plus the
costs to convert these properties to midtiant facilities. Therefore we decided to perimit dwnership of the Sherman, Texas and Lafayetteisiane
properties to revert back to the land owners adafember 1, 2010. We recorded a $704,000 impairrcieentge related to these investments which is
included in discontinued operations for the yeateshDecember 31, 2010.
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The Knoxville, Tennessee location has also beessifiad as discontinued operations since SepteB8the2010. During the quarter ended
September 30, 2010, management determined thathafteng exercised its purchase option under ibsigd lease and acquiring the land in October
2010 the best course of action was to pursue a§#ie real estate. As a result, we recorded & 6D impairment charge which is included in
discontinued operations for the year ended Dece®ibe2010. In August 2011, we sold our Knoxvillenhessee property for net proceeds of
$2,151,000.

With respect to Kroger’s purchase of the Athengr@ia property, in accordance with a three parrgagent between us, Kroger and the land owner,
an appraisal process was conducted to determirfaith@arket value of the property. As a resultte finalization of the appraisal process, we
recorded an impairment charge of $1,390,000 dutieg/ear ended December 31, 2010.

In January 2011 the St. Louis, Missouri property weclassified into discontinued operations. Inrkaty 2011 we entered into an agreement to sell
this property. In December 2011, we sold our StiisoMissouri property for net proceeds of $1,488,0

In September 2012 we classified our Indianapatidjana property as discontinued operations upogriegtinto a purchase contract for, and the
subsequent sale of this property. We also classifie Memphis, Tennessee property as discontinpedations in the third quarter of 2012. The
Kroger Co. terminated its lease on this property jpaid a cancellation fee of $600,000. Concurremify sold the property to an independent third
party for $600,000. We recorded a $698,000 impaitroharge in connection with the sale of the proper

Funds From Operations

We have adopted the revised definition of Fundsif@perations (“FFO”), adopted by the Board of Gowes of the National Association of Real
Estate Investment Trust (“NAREIT"). Management ddass FFO to be an appropriate measure of perfacmmaha REIT. We calculate FFO by
adjusting net income (loss) (computed in accordavitte GAAP, including non-recurring items), for gai(or losses) from sales of properties, real
estate related depreciation and amortization, didsament for unconsolidated partnerships and vestand impairments. Management believes tt
order to facilitate a clear understanding of ostdrical operating results, FFO should be consitlareonjunction with net income as presented & th
consolidated financial statements included elseevherein. Management considers FFO to be a usefasunement for reviewing our comparative
operating and financial performance because, bludity gains and losses related to sales of prelalepreciated operating real estate assets and
excluding real estate asset depreciation and aratidh (which can vary among owners of identicak#s in similar condition based on historical cost
accounting and useful life estimates), FFO can bapcompare the operating performance of a con'paegl estate between periods or as compared
to different companies.

Calculation of FFO may not be directly comparabl&FO reported by other REITs or similar real estampanies that have not adopted the term in
accordance with the current NAREIT definition oatlnterpret the current NAREIT definition diffetgn FFO is not a GAAP financial measure and
should not be considered as an alternative toneenie (loss), the most directly comparable findmo@asure of our performance calculated and
presented in accordance with GAAP, as an indicatfaur performance. FFO does not represent casérgeed from operating activities determine
accordance with GAAP and is not a measure of liguimt an indicator of our ability to pay dividend&/e believe that to further understand our
performance, FFO should be compared with our regaret income and considered in addition to cashsflin accordance with GAAP, as presente
our consolidated financial statements.

Based on the October 31, 2011 and January 6, 20d2ed guidance on reporting FFO, we have excludpdirment losses on depreciable real estate
as well as other-than-temporary impairment on estdte equity method joint ventures in the caleuatof FFO and have restated prior period
calculations to be consistent with this presentafidhe other-than-temporary impairments have baeluded as they relate to decreases in the fair
value of depreciable real estate held by the imeest
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The following presents a reconciliation of net immto funds from operations for the years endeceber 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 (in thousands,

except per share amounts):

Basic

Net income attributable to Winthrop Realty Tr

Real estate depreciatis

Amortization of capitalized leasing costs and igiates

Gain on sale of real este

Gain on sale of equity investmel

Gain on property consolidatic

Real estate depreciation and amortization of urmaleted interest
Impairment loss on investments in real es

Impairment loss on equity investme

Less: Norcontrolling interest share of depreciation and arnation
Funds from operatior

Preferred dividend of Series C Preferred Sh

Preferred dividend of Series D Preferred Sh

Allocation of earnings to Series-1 Preferred Share

Allocation of earnings to Series C Preferred Sh

FFO applicable to Common Share:- Basic

Weighted-average Common Share
FFO Per Common Share- Basic

Diluted

Funds from operatior

Preferred dividend of Series C Preferred Sh
Preferred dividend of Series D Preferred Sh
Allocation of earnings to Series-1 Preferred Share
Allocation of earnings to Series C Preferred Sh
FFO applicable to Common Share:
Weightec-average Common Shar

Stock options

Convertible Series C Preferred She

Diluted weighted-average Common Share

FFO Per Common Share- Diluted

Off-Balance Sheet Investments

We have six off-balance sheet investments in operairoperties totaling $84,235,000 and eight affalnce sheet investments in loan assets totaling
$50,624,000 at December 31, 2012. Our exposukestoi$ limited to our investment balance. See Benptinancial Statements, Note 8 for additional

information on these investments.
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2012 2011 2010
$24,63]  $10,93:  $16,47
11,28: 8,64¢ 6,39¢
6,78¢ 4,89t 3,71z
(945) (392) —
(199) (207) —
— (81¢) —
13,75: 11,46¢ 8,95¢
3,26( 7,60( 2,72(
— 21,05¢ —
(2,83 (3,489 (3,179
55,73 59,60¢ 35,00
— (585) (28¢)
(9,28%) (339) —
— (325) (63)
— (219) (241)
$46,44¢  $58,23¢  $34,50:
33,06 31,42¢ 22,56¢
$ 14C $ 18 $ 15z
$55,73¢  $59,60¢  $35,09¢
— (585) —
(9,285) (339) —
— (325) (63)
— (219) —
$46,44¢  $58,23¢  $35,03:
33,06 31,42¢ 22,56¢
— — 2
— — 38¢
33,06 31,42¢ 22,95¢
$ 14C $ 18 $ 15z
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Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Below is a discussion of the accounting policie thanagement believes are critical to our operatid/e consider these policies critical becausg the
involve difficult management judgments and assuomi require estimates about matters that areentigruncertain and because they are important
for understanding and evaluating our reported firelmesults. These judgments affect the reporteduats of assets and liabilities and our disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the dafehefinancial statements and the reported amaafimsvenue and expenses during the reporting ge
With different estimates or assumptions, materidifferent amounts could be reported in our finahstatements. Additionally, other companies may
utilize different estimates that may impact the panability of our results of operations to thoseompanies in similar businesses. Our most seasitiv
estimates involve the allocation of the purchaseepof acquired properties and evaluating our estdte-related investments for impairment.

Investments in Real Estate

Upon the acquisition of real estate, we assesfathealue of acquired assets (including land, dinjs and improvements, and identified intangibles
such as above and below market leases and acdquripdace leases and tenant relationships) and eemjliabilities and we allocate purchase price
based on these assessments. We assess fair vedukedreestimated cash flow projections and utdizgropriate discount and capitalization rates and
available market information. Estimates of futuastt flows are based on a number of factors incutlie historical operating results, known trends,
and market/economic conditions that may affectptfuperty.

Impairment

Operating properties We evaluate the need for an impairment loss one®talte assets when indicators of impairment a&sept and the projected
undiscounted cash flows from an asset are notcserfti to recover an asset’s carrying amount. Thgairment loss is measured by comparing the fair
value of the asset to its carrying amount. Thequtign of cash flows used in the impairment evadumeinvolves significant judgment by management.

Loan asset— Loan assets are periodically evaluated for possibpeirment in order to determine whether it ises=ary to establish a loan loss
allowance. In some instances if a borrower is éepemg difficulties making loan payments we magiststhe borrower to address the problems, w
could include extending the loan term, making addél advances, or reducing required payments.af Esset is considered to be impaired when,
based on current information and events, it is abtdthat we will be unable to collect all amouthi® according to the existing contractual termthe
loan. Impairment is then measured based on theprgalue of expected future cash flows or, iflden is collateral dependent, the fair value of the
collateral. When a loan is considered to be implainee will establish an allowance for loan lossed eecord a corresponding charge to earnings.
Significant judgments are required in determinimgairment. We do not record interest income on inegdoans. Any cash receipts on impaired Ic
are recorded as a recovery reducing the allowasrdedn losses.

Preferred equity investmer—We have certain investments which are classifiggreferred equity investments. Determining whethpreferred
equity investment is other-than-temporarily impdirequires significant judgment. This evaluatiocluies consideration of the length of time and
extent to which the fair value of an investment baen less than its cost basis, our intent andyatilhold the investment until a forecasted remgv
in value and the collateral underlying the invesiime

Equity investment- Equity investments are reviewed for impairmentquiically. For equity investments in which the rgémg value exceeds the fair
value, we evaluate if these are other-than-tempyiarpaired.

Contingent liabilities- Estimates are used when accounting for the atioe/éor contingent liabilities and other commitneeriEstimating probable
losses requires analysis of multiple forecastsaftah depend on judgments about potential anditied of actions by third parties such as regutato
All of the estimates and evaluations are susceptdbthange and actual results could differ froeehtimates and evaluations.

Variable Interest Entities

Consolidated Variable Interest Entities
Consolidated variable interest entities are tholsera/we are the primary beneficiary of a variabterest entity. The primary beneficiary is the part
that has a controlling financial interest in theEyivhich is defined by the entity having both
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of the following characteristics: 1) the power tredt the activities that, when taken together, ns@mificantly impact the VIE's performance, and 2
the obligation to absorb losses and right to rexéie returns from the VIE that would be significemthe VIE. We have no consolidated variable
interest entities.

Variable Interest Entities Not Consolidated

Equity Method and Preferred Equity Investme— We have reviewed our various equity method aeéepred equity investments and identified 11
investments for which we hold a variable interesa VIE. Of these 11 interests, there are sevessinvents for which the underlying entities do not
have sufficient equity at risk to permit them toance their activities without additional subordethfinancial support. There are four additiondltess
for which the VIE assessment was primarily basetherfact that the voting rights of the entity herislare not proportional to their obligations to
absorb expected losses and rights to receive igidiurns of the legal entities. These unconstdidifoint ventures are those where we are not the
primary beneficiary of a VIE.

Loans Receivable and Loan Securi— We have reviewed our loans receivable and loanrgies and certain of these assets have beelifiddras
variable interests in a VIE because the equitystment at risk at the borrowing entity level is nohsidered sufficient for the entity to finance it
activities without additional subordinated finarn@apport.

Certain loans receivable and loan securities whare been determined to be VIEs are performinggsseeting their debt service requirements, and
the borrowers hold title to the collateral. In thesises the borrower holds legal title to the estdte collateral and has the power to direct thieites
that most significantly impact the economic perfance of the VIE, including management and leasatigides. In the event of default under these
loans we only have protective rights and have ifleto absorb losses only to the extent of our lo@estment. The borrower has been determined
the primary beneficiary for these performing assets

We have determined that we do not currently hageptiwer to direct the activities of the ventureliateralizing any of its loans receivable and loan
securities. For this reason, we believe that waataontrol, nor are we the primary beneficiaryhadse ventures. Accordingly, we account for these
investments under the guidance for loans receivatidereal estate debt investments.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards
See “Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplemeliaty - Note 2.”
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ITEM 7A — QUANTITATIVE & QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES AB OUT MARKET RISK
Interest Rate Risk

We have exposure to fluctuations in market interatgts. Market interest rates are highly sensttveany factors beyond our control. Various finait
vehicles exist which would allow management to gaité the potential negative effects of interes flaictuations on our cash flow and earnings.

Our liabilities include both fixed and variablegatebt. As discussed in Item 7 — Management’s B&on and Analysis of Financial Conditions and
Results of Operations, we seek to limit our riskterest rate fluctuations through match finanangour loan assets as well as through hedging
transactions.

The table below presents information about the fl3werivative financial instruments at December 3112 (in thousands):

Notional
Amount o Estimated Fa
Type Maturity Strike Rat Hedge Cost of Hedg Value of Cag
Cap Oci-14 1.0(% $ 5,75 $ 174 $ 1
Cap May-13 1.25% 51,98: 19€ —
Cap May-14 1.75% 51,98: 434 —
Cap Aug-14 0.5(% 13,40¢ 22 6

The fair value of our mortgage loans payable ardreel financings, based on discounted cash flowseaturrent rate at which similar loans would be
made to borrowers with similar credit ratings foe remaining term of such debt, was less tharaitying value by $9,319,000 and $12,452,000 at
December 31, 2012 and 2011 respectively. The &irevof our Senior Notes, based on quoted marlket,pvas greater than its carrying value by
$2,933,000 at December 31, 2012.

The following table shows what the annual effechange in the LIBOR rate would have on intereseesp based upon our variable rate debt at
December 31, 2012 (in thousands):

Change in LIBOR (2

021% 1% 2% 3%

Change in consolidated interest expense $(90) $39z $ 60t $ 872
Prc-rata share of change in interest expense of dehbr-consolidated entities ( (24 464 2,17¢  3,95¢
(Increase) decrease in net inco $(114) $85€ $2,78¢ $4,831

(1) Represents our pro-rata share of a changeereist expense in our Marc Realty and Sealy edguigstments. The amount does not reflect our
equity investment in Concord which has been writtewn to zero
(2) The one month LIBOR rate at December 31, 2012 w2337 %.
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The Trusts equity investment in Vintage, which is reportedac30 day lag, holds floating rate debt of appr@tely $171,762,000 and bears intere
a rate indexed to the Securities Industry and FisMMarkets Association Municipal Swap Index (SIKMThe following table shows what the ann
effect a change in the SIFMA rate would have orpprty level interest expense based upon the unhdalgances in variable rate debt at
November 30, 2012 (in thousand

Change in SIFMA(1

-0.12% 1% 2% 3%
Change in consolidated interest expense $

S—= $ — s =
Prc-rata share of change in interest expense on Virdabt (11€) 871 1,71( 2,51¢
(Increase) decrease in net inco $(116)  $871 $1,71( $2,51¢

(1) The on-month SIFMA rate at November 30, 2012 was 0.1

We may utilize various financial instruments toigate the potential negative impact of interest fatctuations on our cash flows and earnings,
including hedging strategies, depending on ounaigbf the interest rate environment and the castsrisks of such strategies.

The following table shows what the annual effechange in the LIBOR rate would have on interesbine based upon our variable rate loan assets at
December 31, 2012 (in thousands):

Change in LIBOR (1

-0.21% 1% 2% 3%
Change in consolidated interest income $ (4  $29¢ $70% $1,18¢
Prc-rata share of change in interest income of loaatass nor-consolidated entitie (21) 10C 20C 30C
Increase (decrease) in net inco $ (25  $39< $90¢ $1,48:

(1) The one month LIBOR rate at December 31, 2012 w2387 %.

Market Value Risk

Our hedge transactions using derivative instrumalsts involve certain additional risks such as ¢erparty credit risk, the enforceability of hedging
contracts and the risk that unanticipated and Bggmit changes in interest rates will cause a fianit loss of basis in the contract. We beliewa th
there is a low likelihood that these counterpantiéifail to meet their obligations. There can he assurance that we will adequately protect agtie
foregoing risks.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

To the Board of Trustees and Shareholders of Woptiealty Trust:

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated bzdasheets and the related consolidated statemfeope@tions and comprehensive income,
shareholders’ equity and cash flows present fainlgll material respects, the financial positidriwdinthrop Realty Trust and its subsidiaries at
December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, and shég®f their operations and their cash flowsdach of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2012 in conformity with accountingipiples generally accepted in the United Statesnoérica. In addition, in our opinion, the
financial statement schedules listed in the indgearing under Item 15(a)(2) present fairly, innaditerial respects, the information set forth threre
when read in conjunction with the related consaéddinancial statements. Also in our opinion, @@mpany maintained, in all material respects,
effective internal control over financial reporting of December 31, 2012, based on criteria estagiininternal Control—Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatigrike Treadway Commission (COSO). The Companyaagement is responsible for these
financial statements and financial statement sdesdior maintaining effective internal control @¥mancial reporting and for its assessment of the
effectiveness of internal control over financigboeting, included in Management’s Report on Inté@entrol over Financial Reporting appearing
under ITEM 9A. Our responsibility is to expressropns on these financial statements, on the firrdustatement schedules and on the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting basedoam integrated audits. We conducted our audite@oalance with the standards of the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board (United Stat€apse standards require that we plan and perfoenatidits to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are fremaiérial misstatement and whether effective interaatrol over financial reporting was maintained
in all material respects. Our audits of the finahstatements included examining, on a test bagidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements, assessing the accouptingiples used and significant estimates made dyagement, and evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. Our audit of internal adrtver financial reporting included obtaining amderstanding of internal control over financial
reporting, assessing the risk that a material weskexists, and testing and evaluating the desidroperating effectiveness of internal control lase
on the assessed risk. Our audits also includedmeirig such other procedures as we considered segeis the circumstances. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company'’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed to provide reasonablessesuregarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statetsiéor external purposes in accordance with gelyesatepted accounting principles. A company’s
internal control over financial reporting includi®se policies and procedures that (i) pertaif¢onbaintenance of records that, in reasonableldetai
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions dispositions of the assets of the company; (ii)jat®e reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation ofi¢iahstatements in accordance with generally aedegccounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made ordg@ordance with authorizations of management amttdirs of the company; and (iii) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or tidetgction of unauthorized acquisition, use, opatstion of the company’s assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢tmisstatements. Also, projections of any evadumati
of effectiveness to future periods are subjechéorisk that controls may become inadequate bea#ud®wnges in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may ritatate.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Boston, Massachusetts
March 13, 2013
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WINTHROP REALTY TRUST
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands, except share and per share data)

December 31
2012 2011
ASSETS
Investments in real estate, at ¢
Land $ 4325. $ 36,49
Buildings and improvemen 378,73 327,33
421,98¢ 363,83:
Less: accumulated depreciati (51,557 (44,55¢)
Investments in real estate, net (variable intezaity $21,423 and $0, respective 370,43t 319,27t
Cash and cash equivalel 97,68: 40,95:
Restricted cash held in escro 13,25( 3,91¢
Loans receivable, ni 211,25( 114,33
Accounts receivable, net of allowances of $374 $6@D, respectivel 3,88¢ 4,28¢
Accrued rental incom 17,24: 11,85¢
Securities carried at fair valt 19,69 28,85¢
Loan securities carried at fair val 11 5,30¢
Preferred equity investmer 12,25( 5,52(
Equity investment 134,85¢ 162,14:
Lease intangibles, net (variable interest entityt83 and $0, respectivel 37,74« 36,30¢
Deferred financing costs, n 4,86¢ 1,18(
TOTAL ASSETS $923,16: $733,93:
LIABILITIES
Mortgage loans payable (variable interest entity,$24 and $0 respectivel $280,57¢ $230,94(
Senior notes payab 86,25( —
Notes payable (variable interest entity $876 and&gpectively 1,67¢ —
Secured financing 52,92( 29,15(
Revolving line of credi — 40,00(
Accounts payable and accrued liabilit 21,05¢ 14,07%
Related party fees payat 2,664 2,097
Dividends payabl 5,36¢ 5,36¢
Deferred income 1,13¢ 50z
Below market lease intangibles, | 2,25¢ 2,967
TOTAL LIABILITIES 453,89¢ 325,09
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
EQUITY
Winthrop Realty Trust Sharehold’ Equity :
Series D Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Sharéspé2share liquidation preference, 5,060,000 shanéhorized and
4,820,000 shares outstanding at December 31, 2@12,840,000 shares authorized and 1,600,000 sbatgtsinding
at December 31, 201 120,50( 40,00(
Common Shares, $1 par, unlimited shares author&&0:18,711 and 33,041,034 issued and outstantidg@mber 31
2012 and December 31, 2011, respecti 33,01¢ 33,04:
Additional paic-in capital 618,42¢ 626,09¢
Accumulated distributions in excess of net incc (317,384 (311,244
Accumulated other comprehensive i (50 (92
Total Winthrop Realty Trust Sharehold Equity 454 51( 387,80:
Non-controlling interest: 14,75¢ 21,03¢
Total Equity 469,26- 408,83t
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $923,16: $ 733,93

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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WINTHROP REALTY TRUST

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHEN SIVE INCOME (LOSS)

(in thousands, except per share data)

Years Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
Revenue
Rents and reimbursemet $51,378  $42,78¢  $36,27¢
Interest, dividends and discount accret 21,12 25,45¢ 17,12¢
72,49¢ 68,24 53,40
Expenses
Property operatin 15,66¢ 14,38’ 7,75¢
Real estate taxe 4,765 4,42 2,417
Depreciation and amortizatic 17,66¢ 13,23« 9,62¢
Interest 17,65¢ 15,75¢ 15,11
Impairment loss on investment in real es 2,562 7,60( —
General and administrati\ 3,561 3,55¢ 3,40z
Related party fee 8,95¢ 7,69( 5,09¢
Transaction cosl 421 51¢ 321
State and local taxce 234 37¢ 133
71,48¢ 67,55! 43,86¢
Other income (loss)
Equity in income (loss) of equity investments (usil’e of impairments of $0, $21,058 and 14,84: (12,717 (2,007
Realized gain on sale of securities carried atvalne 41 12z 55¢
Unrealized gain on securities carried at fair ve 6,91¢ 2,78¢ 5,06(
(Loss) gain on extinguishment of debt, (121) 9,25¢ —
Realized gain on loan securities carried at falne 614 — 46¢
Unrealized gain on loan securities carried atvalue 447 2,73¢ 5,011
Earnings from preferred equity investme — 33¢ 33¢
Settlement incom — 5,86¢ —
Gain on consolidation of proper — 81¢ —
Interest and other incon 69¢ 1,17¢ 13¢
23,43¢ 10,39¢ 9,56¢
Income from continuing operatiol 24,45 11,09: 19,10¢
Discontinued operations
Net (loss) income from discontinued operati (67) 65E (1,74
Consolidated net income 24,38¢ 11,747 17,36¢
Net (income) loss attributable to r-controlling interes 247 (814) (88¢)
Net income attributable to Winthrop Realty Trust 24,63 10,93: 16,47
Preferred dividend of Series C Preferred Sh — (585) (28¢)
Preferred dividend of Series D Preferred Sh (9,285) (339 —
Net income attributable to Common Share: $15,34¢  $10,00¢  $16,18¢
Per Common Share date- Basic
Income from continuing operatiol $ 046 $ 03C $ 0.8C
(Loss) income from discontinued operatic — 0.0z (0.0¢)
Net income attributable to Winthrop Realty Tr $ 046 $ 03z $ 0.72
Per Common Share date Diluted
Income from continuing operatiol $ 046 $ 03C $ 0.8C
(Loss) income from discontinued operatic — 0.0Z (0.0¢)
Net income attributable to Winthrop Realty Tr $ 04¢ $ 03z $ 0.72
Basic Weightec-Average Common Share: 33,06: 31,42¢ 22,56¢
Diluted Weighted-Average Common Share: 33,06: 31,42¢ 22,56¢
Comprehensive income
Consolidated net incon $24,38:  $11,747  $17,36¢
Change in unrealized gain on available for salesges — — 2
Change in unrealized gain (loss) on interest ratevdtive 42 (29) 22
Consolidated comprehensive inco 24,42¢ 11,71¢ 17,38¢
Net (income) loss attributable to r-controlling interes 247 (814) (88¢)
Other comprehensive income attributable to-controlling interes — — —
Comprehensive income attributable to -controlling interes 247 (814) (88¢)
Comprehensive income attributable to Winthrop Realy Trust $24,67¢ $10,90¢ $16,50]

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Preferred Shares

WINTHROP REALTY TRUST
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012, 2011 AND 201
(In thousands except per share data)

Common Shares (

Accumulatec

Beneficial Interes Beneficial Interes Accumulatec Com(grtgﬁtransi\ Nor-
Additional Distributions Controlling
Paid-In in Excess of
Shares Amount Shares Amount Capital Net Income Income (Loss Interests Total

Balance, December 31, 20 — $ — 20,37t $20,37F $498,11¢ $ (301,31) $ (87) $12,11: $229,20(
Net income attributable to Winthrop Rea

Trust — — — — — 16,477 — 0 16,471
Net income attributable to n-controlling

interests — — — — — — — 88¢ 88¢
Distributions to no-controlling interest: — — — — — — — (354) (359
Contributions from nc-controlling interest: — — — — — — — 1,431 1,431
Dividends paid or accrued on Common Shi

of beneficial interest ($0.65 per sha — — — — — (15,659 — — (15,654
Dividends paid or accrued on Series C Prefe

Shares ($1.625 per sha — — — — — (28¢) — — (28¢)
Change in unrealized loss on available for sale

securities, net of reclassification adjustments

for amounts included in net incor — — — — — — 2 — 2
Change in unrealized gain on interest

derivatives — — — — — — 22 — 22
Conversion of Series C Preferred Shares to

Common Share — — 714 714 8,23¢ — — — 8,94¢
Net proceeds from Common Shares offel — — 5,75C 5,75( 61,02¢ — — — 66,77¢
Stock issued pursuant to dividend reinvestment

plan — — 191 191 2,21( — — — 2,401
Balance, December 31, 20 — $ — 27,03( $27,03( $569,58t $(300,78) $ (63) $14,07¢ $309,84°
Net income attributable to Winthrop Rea

Trust — — — — — 10,93: — — 10,93
Net income attributable to n-controlling

interests — — — — — — — 814 814
Distributions to no-controlling interest: — — — — — — — (35€) (35€)
Contributions from nc-controlling interest: — — — — — — — 6,52¢ 6,52¢
Dividends paid or accrued on Common Shares

of beneficial interest ($0.65 per sha — — — — — (20,479 — — (20,477
Dividends paid or accrued on Series C Prefe

Shares ($1.43 per sha — — — — — (58%) — — (58%)
Dividends paid or accrued on Series D Prefe

Shares ($0.212 per sha — — — — — (339 — — (339
Change in unrealized loss on interest rate

derivatives — — — — — — (29) (26) (55
Net proceeds from Common Shares offel — 5,75C 5,75( 55,63¢ — — — 61,38¢
Net proceeds from Series D Preferred Sh

offering 1,60C 40,00( — — (1,627 — — — 38,37¢
Stock issued pursuant to dividend reinvestment

plan — — 261 261 2,49¢ — — — 2,76(
Balance, December 31, 20 1,60C $40,00C 33,04 $33,04. $626,09¢ $ (311,24 $ (92 $21,03¢ $408,83¢

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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WINTHROP REALTY TRUST
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012, 2011 AND 201
(In thousands except per share data, continued)

Accumulate: Accumulated
Preferred Shares of Common Shares of Additional Distributions Nor-
Beneficial Interes Beneficial Interes Paid-In in Excess of  Comprehensiv  Controlling
Shares Amount Shares Amount Capital Net Income Income (Loss Interests Total

Balance, December 31, 2011 1,60C $ 40,000 33,04: $33,04. $626,09¢ $(311,24) $ (920 $21,03: $408,83¢
Net income attributable to Winthrc

Realty Trus — — — — — 24,63: — — 24,63
Net income attributable to n-

controlling interest: — — — — — — — (247) (247)
Distributions to non-controlling

interests — — — — — — — (7,247) (7,242)
Contributions from non-controlling

interests — — — — — — — 4,57¢ 4,57¢
Purchase of nc-controlling interest: — — — — (4,537%) — — (3,367 (7,900
Dividends paid or accrued on Comm

Shares of Beneficial Interest ($0.€

per share — — — — — (21,48% — — (21,48%)
Dividends paid or accrued on Series D

Preferred Shares ($1.92628 per

share) — — — — — (9,285 — — (9,285)
Series D Preferred Share offeri 3,22( 80,50( — — (2,937) — — — 77,56
Change in unrealized gain on interest

rate derivative: — — — — — — 42 — 42
Stock issued pursuant to dividend

reinvestment pla — — 48 48 46¢ — — — 517
Stock buybacl — — (70) (70) (672) — — — (742)
Balance, December 31, 20 4,82( $120,50( 33,01¢ $33,01¢ $618,42( $(317,38) $ (50) $14,75¢ $469,26:

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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WINTHROP REALTY TRUST
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(in thousands)

Years Ended December 31
2012 2011 2010

Cash flows from operating activities
Net income $ 24,38 $ 11,74 $ 17,36¢
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigeal by operating activitie:
provided by operating activitie
Depreciation and amortization (including amortiaatdf deferred financing costs and fail

Net cash used in investing activiti

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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value of debt 11,82« 9,417 6,98¢
Amortization of lease intangible 6,74¢ 4 47; 3,03¢
Straigh-line rental income (5,415 (2,907 403
Loan discount accretic (8,337) (13,40 (8,782)
Discount accretion received in ce 15,72( 13,29( —
Earnings of preferred equity investme — (33¢) (33¢)
Distributions of income from preferred equity intregnts 97 571 34C
(Income) loss of equity investmer (14,679 12,71 2,007
Distributions of income from equity investmel 21,59: 12,69¢ 5,27(
Restricted cash held in escro (3,477) 1,431 1,167
Gain on sale of securities carried at fair ve (41) (223%) (55¢)
Unrealized gain on securities carried at fair ve (6,91¢€) (2,78¢%) (5,060
Gain on sale of real estate investme (94£) (392) —
Gain on sale of loan securities carried at faiug: (614 — (469)
Unrealized gain on loan securities carried at\falue (4479) (2,73¢) (5,01
Impairment loss on investments in real es 3,26( 7,60( 2,72(
Loss (gain) on extinguishment of de 121 (9,25¢) —
Gain on consolidation of proper — (81¢) —
Tenant leasing cos (4,250) (1,319 (2,99¢)
Bad debt (recovery) expen (265) 377 (643%)
Net change in interest receival (51¢) 37 (361)
Net change in accounts receivable and other a 72€ (785) 2,17z
Net change in accounts payable and accrued liebi 7,861 (796) 2,36t
Net cash provided by operating activit 46,43! 39,68 19,61:
Cash flows from investing activities
Issuance and acquisition of loans receivi (163,80() (67,619 (122,30)
Investments in real este (37,679 (9,75)) (23,489
Investment in equity investmer (78,679 (151,219 (25,637)
Investment in preferred equity investm (20,750 (7,564) —
Return of capital distribution from equity investnie 84,02¢ 31,89( 9,62t
Return of capital distribution from securities éadrat fair value — — 181
Purchase of securities carried at fair ve (5,655 (29,32 (13,229
Proceeds from sale of investments in real e: 7,02¢ 3,62¢ 1,75(
Proceeds from sale of equity investme 4,297 6,00( —
Proceeds from sale of securities carried at feires 21,77 26,40¢ 31,24¢
Proceeds from sale of available for sale secul — — 20t
Proceeds from payoff of loan securit 6,35¢ 8,74¢ 2,27:
Proceeds from sale of loans receive — — 12,87¢
Restricted cash held in escro (5,600 3,16( (1,509)
Collection of loans receivab 68,82« 70,28¢ 15,06+
Cash from foreclosure on propert 411 — 27F

(109,44) (105,35() (112,65()

(Continued on next page)
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WINTHROP REALTY TRUST
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(in thousands, continued)

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from mortgage loans paye
Proceeds from notes payal
Payment of notes payak
Proceeds from revolving line of crei
Payment of revolving line of crec
Principal payments of mortgage loans pay:i
Proceeds from issuance of senior notes pay
Proceeds from secured financi
Payment of secured financii
Restricted cash held in escro
Deferred financing cos’
Purchase of nc-controlling interest:
Contribution from no-controlling interes
Distribution to nor-controlling interes
Issuance of Common Shares under Dividend ReinvestRian
Issuance of Common Shares through offe
Buyback of Common Shar:
Issuance of Series D Preferred Shi
Dividend paid on Common Shar
Dividend paid on Series C Preferred Shi
Dividend paid on Series D Preferred She
Redemption of Series-1 Preferred Share
Redemption of Series C Preferred Shi

Net cash provided by financing activiti
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
Cash and cash equivalents at end of

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Informatior
Interest paic

Taxes paic

Supplemental Disclosure on No-Cash Investing and Financing Activities

Dividends accrued on Common Sha
Dividends accrued on Series C Preferred Sk
Capital expenditures accru

Transfer from preferred equity investme
Transfer from loans receivak

Transfer to equity investmer

Transfer from equity investmer

Transfer to loans receivak

Transfer to additional pa-in capital

Transfer to no-controlling interest:

Transfer to preferred equity investme
Transfer to investments in lease intangit
Transfer to investments in real est

Transfer to below market lease intangik
Assumption of mortgage loan on investment in retdte
Transfer from loan securitie

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Years Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
$36,89 $3249% $ —
88C — —
(80) — —
— 67,32 25,45(
(40,000 (52,779 —
(25,58) (72,579 (10,199
86,25( — —
25,00 29,15( —
(1,230 — —
(42) 89 1,52(
(4,199) (78¢) (252)
(2,050) — —
4,57¢ 1,34¢ 1,431
(7,247) (35€) (354)
517 2,76( 2,401
— 61,38¢ 66,77
(742) — —
77,56 38,37¢ —
(21,480 (19,499 (14,579
— (624) (396)
(9,28%) (33¢) —
— (21,400) —
— (3,221) —
119,74 61,35¢ 71,80:
56,73( (4,305 (21,236
40,95: 45,25 66,49:
$ 97,68. $40,95. $ 45,25,
$ 16,467 $16,24¢  $ 14,24(
$ 33 $ 3% $ 132
$ 5366 $ 539 $ 4,39
$ — $ — $ 39
$ 4011 $ 4285 $ 104¢
$ 3920 $ 784 $§ —
$ 293 $ — $ —
$ (686) $(503) $ —
$17,60( $1254¢ $ —
$(11,750 $ (6539 $ —
$ 548) $ — $ —
$ (363 $ — $ —
$ —  $(202) $ —
$  —  $(11,909 $ (3,209
$  —  $(52,779 $(41,42
$ — $ 1005 § 128
$ 13,60 $49,090 §$23,87¢
$ — $ 662 $ —
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WINTHROP REALTY TRUST
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Amounts related to number of buildings, squaredget occupancy and tenant data are unaudited.

1. Business

Winthrop Realty Trust (“WRT?"), a real estate invesnt trust (“REIT”) under Sections 856-860 of theetnal Revenue Code (the “Code”), is an
unincorporated association in the form of a businasst organized in Ohio under a Declaration afstdated August 1, 1961, as amended and
restated on May 21, 2009, which has as its statedipal business activity the ownership and manag# of, and lending to, real estate and
related investments.

Since January 1, 2005, WRT has conducted its bssiteough WRT Realty L.P., a Delaware limited parship (the “Operating Partnership”).
WRT is the sole general partner of, and owns dirextd indirectly, 100% of the limited partnersiiperest in the Operating Partnership. All
references to the “Trust” refer to WRT and its aitiated subsidiaries, including the Operating Renghip.

The Trust is engaged in the business of owningpeglerty and real estate related assets whidtegorizes into three segments: (i) ownership
of investment properties including wholly owned pedies and investments in joint ventures which @noperties (“operating properties”);

(ii) origination and acquisition of loans and dsbturities collateralized directly or indirectly bgmmercial and multi-family real property,
including collateral mortgage-backed securities ewithteral debt obligation securities (collectivéloan assets”); and (iii) equity and debt
interests in other real estate investment truR&(T securities”).

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Consolidation and Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements representdheolidated results of WRT, its wholly-owned tabeeREIT subsidiary, WRT-TRS
Management Corp. (“TRS"), and the Operating Pastnipr TRS’ sole assets are its nominal ownershgrast in the Operating Partnership and
an indirect interest in CDH CDO LLC. All majorityamed subsidiaries and affiliates over which thesthas financial and operating control and
variable interest entities (“VIE"s) in which theugt has determined it is the primary beneficiag/iacluded in the consolidated financial
statements. All significant intercompany balanaes tiansactions have been eliminated in consotidafihe Trust accounts for all other
unconsolidated joint ventures using the equity meétbf accounting. Accordingly, the Trust's sharetwf earnings of these joint ventures and
companies is included in consolidated net income.

Reclassifications

Certain prior year balances relating to gain or sélequity investments have been reclassifiedjtityg income, and certain prior year balances
of accounts receivable have been reclassifieddnuad rental income in order to conform to the entiyear presentation. Discontinued
operations for the periods presented include thist® properties in Athens, Georgia; Indianapdtisjana; Lafayette, Louisiana; St. Louis,
Missouri; Knoxville, Tennessee; Memphis, TennessekSherman, Texas.

Out of Period Adjustments

During the quarter ended June 30, 2010, the Tdesttified an error in its year ended December 8092llocation of fair value attributable to
the building component of its Athens, Georgia propehich was assessed for impairment in conneatiith its reclassification as held for sale
and its presentation in discontinued operationsa Assult, net loss was understated by approxisn&i#0,000 for the year ended December 31,
2009. The Trust determined that this amount wasnagerial to the years ended December 31, 2010@9,2r to the three and six months er
June 30, 2010. As such, a charge of approximaf&® $00 has been recorded in the consolidatechstateof operations within discontinued
operations as an out of period adjustment in teerse quarter of 2010. There was no impact on dashffom operations.
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During the quarter ended December 31, 2010, thstTdentified an error related to the capitalizatad certain legal costs in its year ended
December 31, 2009 financial statements. As a raseloss was understated by approximately $228@0the year ended December 31, 2009.
The Trust determined that this amount was not rizter the year or any quarter for the years eridedember 31, 2010 or 2009. As such, a
charge of $228,000 has been recorded in the caolageti statement of operations as an out of pedpgstment for the year ended December 31,
2010. There was no impact on cash flow from openati

During the quarter ended December 31, 2011, thsetTdentified an error related to lease terminatemincome for its St. Louis, Missouri
property, included in discontinued operations, \atsbould have been in its December 31, 2010 fimdstitements. As a result, net income was
understated by $450,000 for the year ended DeceBihe010. This income was recorded by the Trugtémuarter ended December 31, 2011.
The Trust determined that this amount was not rigtierthe year or any quarter for the years eridecdember 31, 2011 or 2010. There was no
impact on cash flow from operations.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conféymiith accounting principles generally acceptethia United States of America (“GAAP”)
requires management to make estimates and assms\ptidetermining the values of assets and ligslitdisclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the consolidated finahstatements and the amounts of revenue and eepénsing the reporting period. The estimates
that are particularly susceptible to managementginent include but are not limited to the impaintnef real estate, loans and investments in
ventures and real estate securities carried avddiie. In addition, estimates are used in accogritr the allowance for doubtful accounts. All
the estimates and evaluations are susceptibleatogehand actual results could differ from the estss and evaluations.

Investments in Real Estate

Real estate assets are stated at historical cqsenBitures for repairs and maintenance are expgaas@curred. Significant renovations that
extend the useful life of the properties are céipitd. Depreciation for financial reporting purpsse computed using the straight-line method.
Buildings are depreciated over their estimateduldizes of 40 years, based on the properge, overall physical condition, type of condion
materials and intended use. Improvements to thdibgs are depreciated over the shorter of thenedéd useful life of the improvement or the
remaining useful life of the building at the tinteetimprovement is completed. Tenant improvememslapreciated over the shorter of the
estimated useful life of the improvement or thertef the lease of the tenant.

Upon the acquisition of real estate, the Trustessthe fair value of acquired assets (includind,lbuildings and improvements, and identified
intangibles such as above and below market leasba@uired in-place leases and tenant relatiosghipd acquired liabilities and the Trust
allocates purchase price based on these assessitten{Brust assesses fair value based on estirnasidflow projections and utilizes
appropriate discount and capitalization rates arailable market information. Estimates of futursltlows are based on a number of factors
including the historical operating results, knowends, and market/economic conditions that maycttffee property. If the acquisition is
determined to be a business combination, therellaged acquisition costs will be expended. If tbguésition is determined to be an asset
acquisition, then the related acquisition costs vél capitalized.

Real estate investments and purchased intangiblgscs to amortization are reviewed for impairmehenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amouinoiisset group may not be recoverable. Recoveyatiilieal estate investments to be held and
used is measured by a comparison of the carryirmuatof an asset group to estimated undiscountedefecash flows expected to be generated
from the use and eventual disposition of the agpsrip. If the carrying amount of an asset grougeess its estimated undiscounted future cash
flows, an impairment charge is recognized equéhéoamount by which the carrying amount of the tags®ip exceeds the fair value of the asset

group.
Assets to be disposed of that qualify as being fezldale are separately presented in the baldrext saind reported at the lower of the carrying

amount or fair value less costs to sell. The ass®ddiabilities are classified separately as lietdale in the consolidated balance sheet and are
no longer depreciated.
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Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include all highly ligoicestments purchased with maturities of three titmoor less. The Trust maintains cash and
cash equivalents in financial institutions in exxesinsured limits, but believes this risk is miétied by only investing in or through major
financial institutions.

Restricted Cash

Restricted cash in escrow accounts include cagnves for tenant improvements, leasing commissiaad, estate taxes and other expenses
pursuant to the loan agreements. The classificatioastricted cash within the Consolidated Stateté Cash Flows is determined by the na
of the escrow account.

Loans Receivable

The Trust’s policy is to record loans receivableadt, net of unamortized discounts unless suahieeeivable is deemed to be impaired.
Discounts on loans receivable are amortized oelifi of the loan receivable using the effectinterest method based upon an evaluation of
prospective future cash flows. The amortizatioreffected as an adjustment to interest income. 1Qtb&ts incurred in connection with acquiring
loans, such as marketing and administrative castsgcharged to expense as incurred. Loan feesieatd dosts associated with loans originated
by the Trust are deferred and amortized over theofithe loan as interest income.

The Trust evaluates the collectability of the iettrand principal of each of its loans to deternpiogntial impairment. A loan receivable is
considered to be impaired when, based on currémtiration and events, it is probable that the Twiitbe unable to collect all amounts due
according to the existing contractual terms oflt@n receivable. Impairment is then measured basdte present value of expected future cash
flows or the fair value of the collateral. Wheroan receivable is considered to be impaired, thwstiwill record a loan loss allowance and a
corresponding charge to earnings equal to the atiuwhich the Trust’s net investment in the loaneeds its fair value. Significant judgments
are required in determining impairment. The Trussinot record interest income on impaired loaosivable. Any cash receipts on impaired
loans receivable are recorded as a recovery regltioenallowance for loan losses. The Trust chaugesllectible loans against its allowance for
loan loss after it has exhausted all economicadlyranted legal rights and remedies to collect #veivables or upon successful foreclosure and
taking of loan collateral.

Certain real estate operating properties are aedjtinrough foreclosure or through deed-in-lieuas&€losure in full or partial satisfaction of non-
performing loans that the Trust intends to holderape or develop for a period of at least twelvenths. Upon acquisition of a property, tangible
and intangible assets and liabilities acquiredracerded at their estimated fair values and degtieci is computed in the same manners as
described in “Investments in Real Estate” above.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are recorded at the contraetmalunt and do not bear interest. The allowancddabtful accounts is the Trust's best
estimate of the amount of probable credit losseisting accounts receivable. The Trust reviewesalfowance for doubtful accounts monthly.
Past due balances are reviewed individually folectdbility. Account balances are charged off agfdine allowance for doubtful accounts after
all means of collection have been exhausted anpdtential for recovery is considered remote.

Securities and Loan Securities at Fair Value

The Trust has the option to elect fair value fask financial assets. The Trust elected the fairevaption for real estate securities to mitigate a
divergence between accounting and economic expésiutieese assets. These securities are recorddte@onsolidated balance sheets as
securities carried at fair value and loan secwiti@ried at fair value. The changes in the fdineaf these instruments are recorded in unrea
gain (loss) on securities and loan securities edrai fair value in the Consolidated StatementSu#rations.

Preferred Equity Investment

The Trust has certain investments in ventures waittfile it to priority returns ahead of the otheembers in the ventures. At the inception of
each such investment, management must determingaevigich investment should be accounted for aarg preferred equity, equity or as real
estate. The Trust classifies these investmentsedsrped equity investments and they are accouoteasing the equity method because the 1
has the ability to significantly
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influence, but not control, the entity’s operatenad financial policies. Earnings for each investhae recognized in accordance with each
respective investment agreement and where apptichbted upon an allocation of the investment'siegéts at adjusted book value as if the
investment was hypothetically liquidated at the ehdach reporting period.

At each reporting period the Trust assesses wh#tkez are any indicators of declines in the falue of preferred equity investments. An
investment’s value is impaired only if the Trust'stimate of the fair value of the investment is ldgn the carrying value of the investment and
such difference is deemed to be other-than-temporfarthe extent impairment has occurred, the $bsdl be measured as the excess of the
carrying amount of the investment over the estichéa@ value of the investment.

Equity Investments

The Trust accounts for its investments in entitieahich it has the ability to significantly inflaee, but does not have a controlling interest, by
using the equity method of accounting. Factors déinatconsidered in determining whether or not thesifexercises control include (i) the righ
remove the general partner or managing membetuatgns where the Trust is not the general padnenanaging member, and (ii) substantive
participating rights of equity holders in signifitebusiness decisions including dispositions ampisitions of assets, financing, operations and
capital budgets, and other contractual rights. Utite equity method, the investment, originallyareted at cost, is adjusted to recognize the
Trust’'s share of net earnings or losses as theyraoa for additional contributions made or disitibns received. To recognize the character of
distributions from equity investments, the Trusiie at the nature of the cash distribution to deiee the proper character of cash flow
distributions as either returns on investment, Whiould be included in operating activities, oures of investment, which would be includet
investing activities.

At each reporting period the Trust assesses wh#tbkez are any indicators or declines in the falug of the equity investments. An investment’
value is impaired only if the Trust’s estimate loé fair value of the investment is less than theyaag value of the investment and such
difference is deemed to be other-than-temporanth&aextent impairment has occurred, the loss Sleatheasured as the excess of the carrying
amount of the investment over the estimated fdirevaf the investment.

Lease Intangibles

The fair value of the tangible assets of an acquar@perty is determined by valuing the propertyf éiswere vacant, and the “as-if-vacanélue

is then allocated to land, building and improverseartd fixtures and equipment based on managendsgigsmination of the fair values of these
assets. Factors considered by management in pénfpthese analyses include an estimate of caryasgs during the expected leageperiods
current market conditions and costs to executel@in@ases. In estimating carrying costs, managéemeludes real estate taxes, insurance and
other operating expenses and estimates of lostlnevtenue during the expected lease-up periodsdbas current market demand. Management
also estimates costs to execute similar leasesdimg leasing commissions.

In estimating the fair value of the identified intgble assets and liabilities of an acquired propebove-market and below-market lease values
are recorded based on the difference between thentin-place lease rent and a management estohaterent market rents. Below-market
lease intangibles are recorded as a liability andréized into rental revenue over the reamcelable periods of the respective leases péutetim

of any below-market fixed rate renewal optionsgrif. Above-market leases are recorded as partaridgible assets and amortized as a direct
charge against rental revenue over the non-caregtabtion of the respective leases. In-place leatges are based upon the Trust’s evaluation
of the specific characteristics of each tenantdekactors considered include estimates of carmgrsgs during a hypothetical lease up period
considering current market conditions and cosexgxute similar leases. The in-place leases aceded as intangible assets and amortized as a
charge to amortization expense.

Deferred Financing Costs

Direct financing costs are deferred and amortized straight-lined basis over the terms of theteelagreements as a component of interest
expense which approximates the effective intereshod.
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Financial Instruments

Financial instruments held by the Trust includehcaisd cash equivalents, restricted cash, reakes¢gurities, loans receivable, interest rate
hedge agreements, accounts receivable, revolviegoli credit, accounts payable and long term dedh and cash equivalents, restricted cash,
real estate securities and interest rate hedgemgms are recorded at fair value. The fair vafiecoounts receivable and accounts payable
approximate their current carrying amounts.

Derivative Financial Instruments

The Trust’s interest rate swap and interest rgpeaggeements are carried on the balance sheet aslize. An interest rate swap is carried as an
asset if the counterparty would be required totbayTrust, or as a liability if the Trust would Euired to pay the counterparty to settle the
swap. For the Trust’s interest rate contractsdhatdesignated as “cash flow hedgéise’ change in the fair value of such derivativeeiorded ir
other comprehensive income or loss for hedgegjiaify as effective and the change in the faiuedk transferred from other comprehensive
income or loss to earnings as the hedged itemtaféarnings. The ineffective amount of the interatt swap agreement, if any, is recognized in
earnings.

Upon entering into hedging transactions, the Tdoestuments the relationship between the interestfirgincial instrument agreements and the
hedged item. The Trust also documents its risk ig@mant policies, including objectives and stratgegis they relate to its hedging activities.
Both at inception of a hedge and on an on-goingsbd® Trust assesses whether or not the hedbegldy effective” in achieving offsetting
changes in cash flow attributable to the hedged.ifEhe Trust discontinues hedge accounting on speaiive basis with changes in the
estimated fair value reflected in earnings whenit (8 determined that the derivative is no longgective in offsetting cash flows of a hedged
item (including forecasted transactions); (ii)sitio longer probable that the forecasted transaetith occur; or (iii) it is determined that
designating the derivative as a hedge is no loagpropriate. The Trust utilizes its interest rat@s and interest rate cap agreements to manage
interest rate risk and does not intend to enterdietrivative transactions for speculative or trgdirposes.

Revenue Recognition

The Trust accounts for its leases with tenantpasating leases with rental revenue recognized sireight-line basis over the minimum non-
cancellable term of the lease. The straight-lime agljustment increased revenue by $2,400,00012 26d $1,681,000 in 2011, and decreased
revenue by $730,000 in 2010. The accrued straigatrent receivable amounts at December 31, 20d26ah1 were $17,241,000 and
$11,858,000, respectively.

Leases typically provide for reimbursement to thest of common area maintenance costs, real datete and other operating expenses.
Operating expense reimbursements are recognizearasd.

Pursuant to the terms of the lease agreementgesgtiect to net lease properties, the tenant atpraglerty is required to pay all costs associated
with the property including property taxes, grouadt, maintenance costs and insurance. Thesearest®t reflected in the consolidated
financial statements.

Tenant leases that are not net leases generallidprtor (i) billings of fixed minimum rental and)(billings of certain operating costs. The Tr
accrues the recovery of operating costs basedtaalamsts incurred.

The Trust recognizes lease termination paymenagscasnponent of rental revenue in the period reckipeovided that the Trust has no further
obligations under the lease; otherwise, the leaiseihation payment is amortized on a straight-biasis over the remaining obligation period.

Income Taxes

The Trust operates in a manner intended to enatdecontinue to qualify as a REIT. In order to lifyeas a REIT, the Trust is generally required
each year to distribute to its shareholders at B@% of its taxable income (excluding any net tdgains). There is also a separate requirement
to distribute net capital gains or pay a corpolael tax. The Trust intends to comply with theefgoing minimum dividend requirements.
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In order for the Trust to continue to qualify aBBIT, the value of the TRS stock cannot exceed 20%e value of the Trust’s total assets. The
net income of TRS is taxable at regular corporateates. Current income taxes are recognized gt period in which transactions enter into
the determination of financial statement incomehwleferred income taxes being provided for tempyodiferences between the carrying val

of assets and liabilities for financial reportingrposes and such values as determined by incomawax Changes in deferred income taxes
attributable to these temporary differences arkided in the determination of income. The Trust &RSE do not file consolidated tax returns.

The Trust reviews its tax positions under accognginidance which require that a tax position maly be recognized in the financial statements
if it is more likely than not that the tax positi@sill prevail if challenged by taxing authoritieBhe Trust believes it is more likely than not that
tax positions will be sustained in any tax examomatThe Trust has no income tax expense, deféapedssets or deferred tax liabilities
associated with any such uncertain tax positiongh® operations of any entity included in the Goidsited Statement of Operations and
Comprehensive Income.

Preferred Shares

On November 28, 2011 the Trust closed on a pulflériog of 1,600,000 9.25% Series D Cumulative Redable Preferred Shares of Beneficial
Interest (the “Series D Preferred Shares”) at eepof $25.00 per share, par value of $1 per side Trust received net proceeds, after
underwriting discounts and expenses, of $38,378,000

On March 23, 2012 the Trust closed on a publicrofépof 3,220,000 Series D Preferred Shares aice pf $25.0385 per share, par value of $1
per share. The Trust received net proceeds, aftirwriters discounts and expenses, of $77,563 10 Series D Preferred Shares rank senior
to the Common Shares with respect to dividend siginid liquidation or dissolution rights. The SefeBreferred Shares have no stated maturity
date and are not subject to mandatory redemptiemypssinking fund. Holders of the Series D Pref@i®dares will generally have no voting
rights except for limited voting rights if we fdad pay dividends for six or more quarterly periotlse Series D Preferred Shares are classified as
a component of permanent equity at December 312 aad 2011.

Concurrent with the Series D Preferred Sharesioffethe Trust entered into an agreement with tilddrs of the Series B-1 Cumulative
Convertible Redeemable Preferred Shares (“Serig$Beferred Shares”) and Series C Cumulative CoibleeRedeemable Preferred Shares
(“Series C Preferred Shares”) to repurchase albthistanding shares prior to the consummation®Staries D Preferred Shares closing and
issuance. The Trust repurchased 100% of the SBrieRreferred Shares and the Series C Preferre@$&ba November 18, 2011 at a price of
$25,000,000 plus accrued dividends. The Trust neiced a loss of $100,000 on the repurchase of ¢hie$SB-1 Preferred Shares.

Earnings Per Share

The Trust determines basic earnings per share lmastte weighted average number of Common Shatstaoding during the period and

reflects the impact of participating securitiesoPto November 18, 2011, when the Trust repurcthd€¥% of the Series B-1 Preferred Shares
and the Series C Preferred Shares, the holdehedfrust’s Series B-1 Preferred Shares and thesS€rPreferred Shares were entitled to receive
cumulative preferential dividends on a quarterlgib@qual to the greater of (i) $0.40625 per shaeeterly (6.5% of the liquidation preference

on an annualized basis) or (ii) cash dividends pkeyan the number of Common Shares into which #vé&eS B-1 Preferred Shares and Series C
Preferred Shares (assuming for this purpose teatdhversion price of the Series C Preferred Stegeals the conversion price of the Series B-
1 Preferred Shares) were convertible. The Trustpetes diluted earnings per share based on the teeigiverage number of Common Shares
outstanding combined with the incremental weiglaeerage effect from all outstanding potentiallytiite instruments.

The Trust has calculated earnings per share irrdaooe with relevant accounting guidance for pgrigtng securities and the two class method.
The reconciliation of earnings attributable to Coom$hares outstanding for the basic and dilutewimgs per share calculation is as follows (in
thousands, except per share data):
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2012 2011 2010
Basic
Income from continuing operatiol 24,45 $11,09: $19,10¢
Income attributable to n-controlling interes 247 (814) (88¢)
Preferred dividend of Series C Preferred Sh — (585) (28¢)
Preferred dividend of Series D Preferred Sh (9,285 (339 —
Income from continuing operations applicable to @un Share 15,41 9,35¢ 17,93(
Income (loss) from discontinued operatic (67) 655 (1,74
Net income applicable to Common Shares for earniegshare purpos: 15,34¢ $10,00¢ $16,18¢
Basic weighte-average Common Shar 33,06: 31,42¢ 22,56¢
Income from continuing operatiol $ 0.4¢€ $ 0.3C $ 0.8C
Income (loss) from discontinued operatic — 0.0z (0.0¢)
Net income per Common Shg $ 0.4¢€ $ 0.32 $ 0.7
Diluted
Income from continuing operatiol $24,45 $11,09: $19,10¢
Income attributable to n-controlling interes 247 (814) (88€)
Preferred dividend of Series C Preferred Sh — (58E) (28¢)
Preferred dividend of Series D Preferred Sh (9,28F) (339 —
Income from continuing operations applicable to @mn Share 15,41 9,35¢ 17,93(
Income (loss) from discontinued operatic (67) 655 (1,74
Net income applicable to Common Shares for earniegshare purpos: $15,34¢ $10,00¢ $16,18¢
Basic weighte-average Common Shar 33,06: 31,42¢ 22,56¢
Series I-1 Preferred Shares ( — — —
Series C Preferred Shares — — —
Stock options (3 — — 2
Diluted weighte-average Common Shar 33,06: 31,42¢ 22,56¢
Income from continuing operatiol $ 0.4¢€ $ 0.3C $ 0.8C
Income (loss) from discontinued operatic — 0.0Z (0.0¢)
Net income per Common She $ 0.4¢ $ 0.3 $ 0.72

Q) The Series -1 Preferred Shares are i-dilutive for the years ended December 31, 2011281d and are not included in t
weightec-average shares outstanding for the calculationlated earnings per Common She

2) The Series C Preferred Shares were anti-déutiv the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2@1l@oaincluded in the weighted-
average shares outstanding for the calculationlated earnings per Common She

3) The Trus's stock options were dilutive for the years endedddnber 31, 2012 and 2010. The weig-average stock options f
the years ended December 31, 2012 were less tlethonsand shares. The stock options were antindilior the year ended
December 31, 2011 are not included in the weighteztage shares outstanding for the calculationlated earnings per Common
Share.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

On February 5, 2013, FASB issued ASU No. 2013-@nfrehensive Income (Topic 220): Reporting of AmeuReclassified Out of
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income, to imptbeegransparency of reporting the reclassificatiohsignificant amounts out of
accumulated other comprehensive income. This go@lagquires entities to present the effects otiteetems of net income of significant
reclasses from accumulated other comprehensivenieceither where net income is presented or imtities, as well as cross-reference to other
disclosures currently required under U.S. GAAPdirer reclassification items (that are not requirader U.S. GAAP) to be reclassified diret

to net income in their entirety in the same repgriperiod. The new disclosure requirements wilefiective for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2013. The newlaisces will be required for both interim and arime@orting. The Trust has evaluated this
new guidance and does not anticipate its adoptithawve a material impact on its consolidated ficial statements.
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On December 16, 2011, FASB issued ASU No. 2011Balance Sheet (Topic 210)—Disclosures about Offigeftssets and Liabilitieshich
requires entities to disclose both gross infornmagiod net information about both instruments aaddactions eligible for offset in the financial
statements particularly for transactions relatedeivatives, sale and repurchase agreements warseesale and repurchase agreements, and
securities borrowing and securities lending arramggs. The new disclosure requirements will bectiffe for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2013. The newlaiseces will be required for all prior comparatperiods presented. The Trust has evaluated
this new guidance and does not anticipate its doloptill have a material impact on its consolidafiedncial statements.

On December 14, 2011, FASB issued ASU No. 2011Rt6perty, Plant, and Equipment (Topic 360)—Deredtgm of in Substance Real
Estate—a Scope Clarificatigrelarifying that a parent company should not dectidate an in substance real estate subsidiamhich the parel
loses a controlling interest as a result of defanlthe subsidiary’s non-recourse debt until titléhe in substance real estate is transferred to
legally satisfy the debt. This ASU resolves a diitgrin practice of applying existing consolidatignidance. The amendments in ASU No. 2011-
10 should be applied prospectively to deconsolisiagivents occurring after the effective date, tioearly adoption is permitted. Prior periods
should not be adjusted. For public entities, theraments are effective for periods beginning oaftar June 15, 2012. The adoption did not
have a material impact on the Trust's consolidéiteghcial statements.

3. Fair Value Measurements

The accounting standards establish a frameworkfasuring fair value as well as disclosures akaiotalue measurements. They emphasize
that fair value is a market based measuremengmentity-specific measurement. Therefore a fdinevaneasurement should be determined
based on the assumptions that market participaotsdawse in pricing the asset or liability. As aisafor considering market participant
assumptions in fair value measurements, the stdadgtablish a fair value hierarchy that distingessbetween market participant assumptions
based on market data obtained from sources indepen€ithe reporting entity (observable inputs tivat classified within Levels 1 and 2 of the
hierarchy) and the reporting entity’s own assummiabout market participant assumptions (unobsenmputs classified within Level 3 of the
hierarchy).

Level 1 inputs utilize unadjusted quoted priceadtive markets for identical assets or liabilitieat the Trust has the ability to access. Level 2
inputs are inputs other than quoted prices incliddaevel 1 that are observable for the assetatnility, either directly or indirectly. Level 2
inputs may include quoted prices for similar assets liabilities in active markets, as well as itsptinat are observable for the asset or liability
other than quoted prices, such as interest raigsigh exchange rates, and yield curves that ssereable at commonly quoted intervals. Level 3
inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset bilitlawhich are typically based on an entity’s oassumptions, as there is little, if any, related
market activity. In instances where the determaratf the fair value measurement is based on irfpoits different levels of the fair value
hierarchy, the level in the fair value hierarchyhin which the entire fair value measurement fallbased on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement in itdrety. The Trust's assessment of the significamica particular input to the fair value
measurement in its entirety requires judgment,@msiders factors specific to the asset or lighilit

Level 1 financial investments include highly ligigdvernment bonds, mortgage products and exchaaded equities. If quoted market prices
are not available, then fair values are estimayedsing pricing models, quoted prices of securitis similar characteristics, or discounted c
flows. Examples of such instruments, which wouldegally be classified within Level 2 of the valuatihierarchy, include certain derivative
financial instruments. In certain cases where tigelienited activity or less transparency arounglits to the valuation, securities are classified
within Level 3 of the valuation hierarchy. Secwi#ticlassified within Level 3 include, for examplesidual interests in securitizations and other
less liquid securities, investments in joint veegiand real estate investments.

The following is a description of the valuation m&dologies used for instruments measured at fhilreyas well as the general classification of
such instruments pursuant to the valuation hiesarch

Recurring Measurements

Securities Carried at Fair Value
Securities carried at fair value are classifiechimit_evel 1 of the fair value hierarchy.
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Loan Securities Carried at Fair Value

The Trust uses a third party pricing model to dihlvalues for the loan securities in its portfolihe Trust also performs further analysis of the
performance of the loans and collateral underlyirggsecurities, the estimated value of the col®rpporting such loans and a consideration of
local, industry and broader economic trends antbfacSignificant judgment is utilized in the ultite determination of fair value. The signific
assumptions used in this analysis include marketést rates and interest rate spreads. This vauatethodology has been characterized as
Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy.

Derivative Financial Instruments

The Trust uses interest rate swaps and interestagis to manage its interest rate risk. The vialuaff these instruments is determined using
both quantitative and qualitative valuation teclueig| including discounted cash flow analysis orettigected cash flows of each derivative as
well as potential credit risks with the swap coupéety. This analysis reflects the contractual ®eohthe derivatives, including the period to
maturity, and uses observable market-based inpaisiding interest rate curves, and implied voitis. The fair values of interest rate swaps
and interest rate caps are determined using thketnstandard methodology of netting the discoufiéate fixed cash receipts (or payments)
the discounted expected variable cash paymentgdeipts). The variable cash payments (or rece@pespased on an expectation of future
interest rates (forward curves) derived from obable market interest rate curves.

The Trust incorporates credit valuation adjustmémisppropriately reflect both its own nonperformamisk and the respective counterparty’s
nonperformance risk in the fair value measuremeéntadjusting the fair value of its derivative cats for the effect of nonperformance risk,
Trust has considered the impact of netting as asliny applicable credit enhancements, such agemll postings, thresholds, mutual puts and
guarantees.

Although the Trust has determined that the majaitthe inputs used to value its derivatives fathim Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy, the
credit valuation adjustments associated with itsvdéves utilize Level 3 inputs, such as estimaiksurrent credit spreads, to evaluate the
likelihood of default by itself and its counterpast However, the Trust has assessed the signiicafithe impact of the credit valuation
adjustments on the overall valuation of its defx@positions and has determined that the crediitateon adjustments are not significant to the
overall valuation of its derivatives. As a resthie Trust has determined that the derivative vadaoatin their entirety should be classified in Lk
2 of the fair value hierarchy.

The table below presents the Trust’'s assets abilities measured at fair value on a recurring asi of December 31, 2012, according to the
level in the fair value hierarchy within which tleosreasurements fall (in thousands):

Quoted Prices in Significant
Active Markets Other Significant
for Identical Assel Observabl Unobservabl
and Liabilities Inputs Inputs
Recurring Basi: (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
Assets
Securities carried at fair vali $ 19,69 $ — $ — $19,69¢
Loan securities carried at fair val — — 11 11
Interest Rate Caf — 8 — 8
$ 19,69+ $ 8 $ 11 $19,71:
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The table below presents the Trust's assets ahilities measured at fair value on a recurring $asi of December 31, 2011, according to the
level in the fair value hierarchy within which tleosneasurements fall (in thousands):

Recurring Basi:

Assets

Quoted Prices in
Active Markets
for Identical Asse!

and Liabilities
(Level 1)

Securities carried at fair val $
Loan securities carried at fair val
Interest Rate Caf

$

Significant Othe Significant
Unobservabl
Observable
Inputs Inputs
(Level 2) (Level 3) Total
$ — $ — $28,85¢
— 5,30¢ 5,30¢
85 — 85
$ 85 $ 5,30¢ $34,25(

During the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2&t& tvere no transfers between Level 1 and Letal Zalue assets and liabilities.

The table below includes a roll forward (in thoussinof the balance sheet amounts from Januaryl) @0December 31, 2012, including the
change in fair value, for financial instrumentsssified by the Trust within Level 3 of the valuatibierarchy. When a determination is made to
classify a financial instrument within Level 3 bitvaluation hierarchy, the determination is bagmeh the significance of the unobservable
factors to the overall fair value measurement.

Fair value, January 1, 2010
Purchase

Sale/repaymer

Realized gair

Unrealized gain, ne

Transfers in and/or out of Level
Fair value, January 1, 20:
Purchase

Sale/repaymer

Payoff at pal

Realized gair

Unrealized gain, ne

Transfers in/fand or out of Level
Fair value, January 1, 20:
Purchase

Sale/repaymer

Realized gair

Unrealized gain, ne

Transfers in and/or out of Level

Fair value, December 31, 20
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Loan Securitie

Securities Carrie

Carried at Fa

at Fair Value Value

$

692 $ 1,661
— 7,11z
(692) (2,272)
— 46¢
— 5,011

— 11,981

_ (662)
—_ (8,74%)

— 2,73¢
— 5,30¢

— (6,35¢)
— 614
— 447

— $ 11
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Twelve Months Twelve Months
Ended Ended
December 31, 20: December 31, 20:
The amount of total gains or losses for the period
included in earnings attributable to the change in
unrealized gains or losses relating to assetshstidl
at the reporting dai $ 23 $ 65¢

Quantitative Information about Level 3 Fair Value®dsurements

At December 31, 2012 the trust held only one laagusty which is valued at $11,000, or 1% of faetue. The minimal valuation is based on
highly speculative probability of recovery.

Non-Recurring Measurements

Equity and Preferred Equity Investments

Equity and preferred equity investments are asddss@ther-than-temporary impairment when theyiag value of the Trust's investment
exceeds its fair value. The fair value of equityeistments is determined using a discounted cashrflodel which incorporates a residual value
utilizing an income capitalization approach consiug prevailing market capitalization rates. TheiStrreviews each investment based on the
highest and best use of the investment and masgkétipation assumptions. The significant assummgiosed in this analysis include rental
revenues, operating expenses, inflation rates, ehathsorption rates, tenanting costs, the disaatatand capitalization rates used in the income
capitalization valuation. The Trust has determitied the significant inputs used to value its MRealty and Sealy equity investments fall wit
Level 3. The Trust recognized other-than-temponayairment losses of $0, $21,058,000, and $0 osetirevestments during the years ended
December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

The Trust has determined that the significant isusted to value certain of its preferred equityestments fall within Level 3. There were no
impairment losses recorded on these preferredyeiqiéstments during the years ended December@2,2011 and 2010.

Investments in Real Estate and Assets Held For Sale

During 2012, 2011, and 2010 the Trust recognizgehirment charges of $3,260,000, $7,600,000 and2$)00, respectively, relative to
investments in real estate and assets held for BageTrust assesses the assets in its portfalicetmverability based upon a determination of the
existence of impairment indicators including sigraht decreases in market pricing and market rantbange in the extent or manner in which
real estate assets are being used or a decliheiimphysical condition, current period losses comath with a history of losses or a projection of
continuing losses, and a current expectation #rltastate assets will be sold or otherwise digposeefore the end of their previously estim:
useful lives. When such impairment indicators existanagement estimates the undiscounted cashfflomshe expected use and dispositio
the asset. Significant inputs for this recoverapdinalysis include the anticipated holding
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period for the asset as well as assumptions omglreevenues, operating expenses, inflation rat@sket absorption rates, tenanting and other
capital improvement costs and the asset’s estinratgdual value. For those assets not deemedfidlpeecoverable, the Trust records an
impairment charge equal to the difference betwhercarrying value and estimated fair value of tbsetless costs to sell the asset. Managemen
determines the fair value of those assets usirigame valuation approach based on assumptiordiéves a market participant would utilize.
Significant assumptions include discount and céipétion rates used in the income valuation appnoac

At December 31, 2012 the Trustegaluated its business plan and revised its hold@rgpd for two assets in the operating propedegment. A
a result, it was determined that due to the shbwkt period, the carrying value of the Atlanta,o@ga and Denton, Texas properties were no
longer fully recoverable. Impairment charges of7f88,000 and $824,000 were recorded on the Atl@argia and Denton, Texas assets,
respectively.

The Trust’'s Memphis, Tennessee property was platedliscontinued operations during the period eénSeptember 30, 2012. The carrying
value of the property exceeded the fair value ¢esss to sell resulting in a $698,000 impairmerargh.

The table below presents as of December 31, 2@ Zrilst’'s assets and liabilities measured at f&iner as events dictate, according to the level
in the fair value hierarchy within which those ma@@snents fall (in thousands):

Quoted Prices i
Active Markets fo

Significant Othe
Identical Assets ai Observable Significant
Inputs Unobservable
Non-Recurring Basi: Liabilities (Level 1 (Level 2) Inputs (Level 2 Total
Investments in real estate $ — $ — $ 3,73¢ $3,737
$ - $ - $ 373 $3,73¢

The table below presents as of December 31, 2@ Trilst’'s assets and liabilities measured at fainer as events dictate, according to the level
in the fair value hierarchy within which those ma@@snents fall (in thousands):

Quoted Prices i
Active Markets fo

Significant Othe
Identical Assets ai Observable Significant
Inputs Unobservable
Non-Recurring Basi: Liabilities (Level 1 (Level 2) Inputs (Level 3 Total
Equity investments $ — $ — $ 28,13t $28,13¢
Investments in real este — — 10,794 10,79
$ - $ - $ 38,92 $38,92¢

The following table provides quantitative infornaatiabout the significant unobservable inputs useaién-recurring fair value measurements
categorized within Level 3 at December 31, 201ZeR® “Assets measured at fair value on a nonsregy basis” for a complete valuation
hierarchy summary.
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Assets
Measured at Weightec
Fair Value
(in thousand: Valuation Techniqut Unobservable Inpt Input Rang Average
Investments in real estate $ 1,95¢ Discounted cash floy Discount Rat¢ 6%-10% 9%
Investments in real este $ 1,77¢ Indicative Bids® Indicative Bid: N/A N/A

@ This fair value measurement was developed fromrehase contract currently in negotiati

Fair Value Option

The current accounting guidance for fair value meament provides a fair value option election tilliws companies to irrevocably elect fair
value as the measurement attribute for certaiméizd assets and liabilities. Changes in fair vd@reassets and liabilities for which the election
is made are recognized in earnings on a quartedisibased on the then market price regardlessether such assets or liabilities have been
disposed of at such time. The fair value optiordgaote permits the fair value option election tartaele on an instrument by instrument basis
when it is initially recorded or upon an event thates rise to a new basis of accounting for tisaetor liability. The Trust has elected the fair
value option for all loan securities and REIT s#@s.

The Trust recognized a net unrealized gain of $(BH, $5,526,000, and $10,071,000 for the yeatsdDecember 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010
respectively, as a result of the change in faiueaf the securities and loan securities carriddiatvalue, which is recorded as an unrealized
in the Trusts Consolidated Statements of Operations. Incona¢ebko securities carried at fair value is recdrae interest and dividend incor

The following table presents as of December 312241d December 31, 2011 the Trust’s financial adeetwhich the fair value option was
elected (in thousands):

Financial Instruments at Fair Val December 31, 20: December 31, 20:
Assets
Securities carried at fair valu
REIT Preferred share $ — $ 4,271
REIT Common share 19,69« 24,57¢
Loan securities carried at fair val 11 5,30¢
$ 19,70¢ $ 34,16¢

The table below presents as of December 31, 2@ difference between fair values and the aggregatgactual amounts due for which the -
value option has been elected (in thousands):

Fair Value at Amount Due
December 31, 20: Upon Maturity Difference
Assets
Loan securities carried at fair val $ 11 $ 113 $1,11¢
$ 11 $ 1,13( $1,11¢

4. Acquisition, Disposition, Leasing and Financing Advities
Operating Properties

Operating Properties Acquisition Activities

79



Table of Contents

Waterford Place ApartmentsOn April 17, 2012 the Trust acquired for a cashchase price of approximately $21,473,000 a 320alass A
multi-family property situated on 27.9 acres in Germantown/Collierville submarket of Memphis, Teasee commonly referred to as
Waterford Place. The property, which had been fossdl on by the mortgage lender in May 2011, wasitocted in 2001 and was 87%
occupied at acquisition. Costs incurred to comple¢eacquisition have been expensed as incurred.

Cerritos— On October 4, 2012 the Trust purchased from fillatd of FUR Advisors for $75,000 (the affiliatetost) a 100% membership
interest in the entity that holds fee simple titlea nine story, 187,000 square foot, 53% occuiéaks B office building located 20 miles south
of Los Angeles in Cerritos, California. In additighe Trust funded a $1,500,000 leasing reserveagbb4,000 loan restructuring fee as part of
the transaction. Concurrently with the acquisitidrthe property, the Trust entered into a modif@atagreement with the first mortgage lender
pursuant to which the loan was split into a $23,000 non-recourse A Note and a $14,500,000necnurse B Note. The A Note bears intere
5.0691% per annum and requires monthly paymeritgerest only. The B Note bears interest at 6.6998%@annum and requires monthly
payments of approximately $12,000 with the balasfdbe interest accruing. In connection with thedifioation, after payment of required
monthly debt service on the A Note and the B Ntfte,Trust is entitled to receive from property cistv a 9.0% return on any additional
funding to the property (including the $1,500,088ding reserve). With respect to a capital traimacill net proceeds go first to satisfy the A
Note, second to the Trust until it receives a retfrits additional funding to the property plus @.0% return thereon, third 50 to the Trust ar
the first mortgage lender until the principal ambahthe B Note and accrued interest thereon ly 8dtisfied and fourth to the Trust. The loan
modification agreement provides for a participatieature whereby the B Note can be fully satisfigith proceeds from the sale of the property,
after the Trust receives its 9.0% priority retufrcapital, during a specified time period as dddiimethe loan modification document. The
property is currently 77% leased.

Lake Brandt On November 2, 2012 a wholly-owned subsidiaryhef Trust acquired for a purchase price of $17@Ia 284 unit multi-family
property located in Greensboro, North Carolina. phichase price consisted of approximately $3, 9D cash and the assumption of
$13,600,000 of indebtedness. The assumed delstde-aecourse mortgage loan which bears intere&&2206 per annum, matures on August 1,
2016 and requires payments of interest only.

The fair value of the assets and liabilities of &leguired properties was calculated by an indep@ntigd party valuation firm and reviewed by
management. The methodology used by the Trustuigrgses of allocating the fair value of the acqlijppeoperties to tangible and intangible
assets and liabilities is discussed in Note 2.

The following table summarizes the allocation & #ygregate purchase price of Waterford Placejt@eand Lake Brandt at their respective
dates of acquisition (in thousands):

Waterforc
Place Cerritos Lake Branc Total
Land $ 3,08( $ 4,11¢ $ 1,961 $ 9,15¢
Building 15,08¢ 14,94 15,36¢ 45,391
Other improvement 2,121 427 82¢ 3,37¢
Fixtures and equipme 27¢ — 28¢€ 56&
Tenant improvement — 894 — 894
Working capital assume — 1,68¢ — 1,68¢
Lease intangible 90¢ 2,91: 664 4,48t
Above market lease intangibl — 641 — 641
Below market lease intangibl — (54) — (54)
Total fair value of asset acquir 21,47: 25,56¢ 19,10° 66,14¢
Less indebtedness assun — (23,000 (13,600 (36,600
Above market debt adjustment assur — (1,085 (1,607%) (2,697
Net assets acquire $21,47: $ 1,48¢ $ 3,90( $ 26,85¢
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Intangible assets acquired and intangible liabsitassumed for Waterford Place, Cerritos and Lakad consisted of the following (in

thousands):
Weighted
Carrying Average
Amortization
Value Period (years
Intangible asset:
In place lease intangibl $2,87: 2.t
Above market lease intangibl 641 5.C
Tenant relationship valt 1,26( 10.C
Lease commissions, legal and marketing 353 5.C
Total $5,12¢ 5.€
Intangible liabilities:
Below market lease intangibl $ (54 5.C

Waterford Place contributed approximately $2,246,60revenue and a loss of approximately $676,000¢ Trust for the period from April 17,
2012 through December 31, 2012. Cerritos contribafgroximately $576,000 of revenue and a losppfaximately $420,000 to the Trust for
the period from October 4, 2012 through Decembef812. Lake Brandt contributed approximately $888,0f revenue and a loss of
approximately $252,000 to the Trust for the pefiedn November 2, 2012 through December 31, 2012.

The accompanying unaudited pro forma informatiarttie years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011ssmqe as if the acquisition of

(i) Waterford Place on April 17, 2012, (ii) Cergton October 4, 2012 and (iii) Lake Brandt on Noken?2, 2012, had occurred on January 1,
2011. This unaudited pro forma information is baspdn the historical consolidated financial statete@nd should be read in conjunction with
the consolidated financial statements and notestitieT his unaudited pro forma information doesmatort to represent what the actual results
of operations of the Trust would have been hadti@/e occurred, nor do they purport to predictréselts of operations of future periods.

Pro forma (unauditec For the year ende
(In thousands, except for per share d December 31
2012 2011

Total revenue $77,09: $76,04¢
Income from continuing operatiol 24,73¢ 8,29¢
Net income attributable to Winthrop Realty Tr 24,91¢ 8,14(
Per common share de- basic 0.47 0.2¢
Per common share de- diluted 0.47 0.2¢

Deer Valley Operating Property — Non-Controllingdrest -On March 29, 2012 the Trust purchased the 3.5%aoortrolling ownership intere
of the consolidated joint venture, WRT-DV LLC, #400,000 paid in cash. The Trust now owns 100% BfTYDV LLC which holds title to the
operating property located in Deer Valley, Arizofae Trust accounted for the purchase of the 3rigtest as an equity transaction recording
the differences in the carrying value of the aceghinon-controlling interest and the purchase m@ia reduction in paid-in capital.

One East Erie Operating Property — Non-Controllimgerest- On June 1, 2012 the Trust purchased from MardtiRes 20% non-controlling
interest in the consolidated joint venture, FT-@otéloldings LLC (“One East Erie”), for $5,850,00Dhe property contains 126,000 square feet
of retail and office space consisting of the fgist floors in a mixed use building together witt82@arking spaces located at One East Erie,
Chicago, lllinois. As a result of this transactitim Trust now owns 100% of One East Erie. The flaasounted for the purchase as an equity
transaction recording the difference in the $368,6@rying value of the acquired non-controllinteest and the purchase price as a $5,487,00C
reduction in paid-in capital.
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Houston, Texas Operating Property — Non-Controllingerest— During the fourth quarter of 2012, a wholly-owrsedsidiary of the Trust
conducted a tender offer to acquire additionaltiehipartner units in 5400 Westheimer Holding LP é€8theimer”) Westheimer is a consolidai
entity which holds title to a 614,000 square foffice property located in Houston, Texas. In coriwecwith the tender offer the Trust acquired
an additional 5.5 limited partner units represemfi2% of Westheimer for a purchase price of $1@5D($300,000 per unit) paid in cash. The
units were acquired effective November 30, 2012aAasult of this transaction, the Trust now owd%3f Westheimer. The Trust accountec
the purchase as an equity transaction recordindiffezence in the carrying value of the acquiredi+tontrolling interest as a $1,162,000
increase in paid-in capital.

Operating Property Acquisitions through our Equityestments

Sullivan Center — Equity Investment Operating Prope On February 3, 2012 the Trust entered into a jpémture arrangement with Elad
Canada Inc. (“Elad”) pursuant to which two joinntare entities, WRT-Elad Lender LP and WRT-Elad iBquP (collectively “WRT-Elad”),
were formed to acquire for approximately $128,000,8n existing $140,300,000 first mortgage loanaratued interest of $6,886,000 (the
“Prior Mortgage Loan”). The Prior Mortgage Loan wsesured by the 942,000 square foot, office aralligtoperty located at One South State
Street in downtown Chicago, lllinois (“Sullivan Qer’). Concurrently, the loan was restructured iat$100,000,000 norecourse mortgage lo
provided by a third party lender, a $47,458,000 zaaine loan made to One South State Street Ingedtdr.C. (“OSSS”) and held by WRT-
Elad and a 65% future profits participation in faed WRT-Elad in OSSS. The Trust contributed altofe$24,201,000 for a 50% interest in
WRT-Elad which consolidates the operations of OSSS.

Mentor Building —Equity Investment Operating PragerOn May 10, 2012 the Trust acquired for $300,0@0% interest in the entity which
owns the Mentor Building located in Chicago, IllisoThe interest was purchased from a third pasynimer and the Trust simultaneously ma
$200,000 capital contribution to acquire an addgidnterest in the entity which resulted in a 48.8ggregate equity investment for $500,000.

Vintage Housing Holdings LLC — Equity Investmerd &neferred Equity InvestmenOn June 1, 2012 the Trust contributed an additional
$5,500,000 to the Vintage Housing Holdings LLC (“MH equity investment platform consisting of $1,5000 in common equity and
$4,000,000 in preferred equity with a 12% retumcdnnection with the transaction, VHH acquireceagyal partner interest and development
fees relating to a residential development prajefdrred to as Vintage at Urban Center, a tax teggirtment community in Lynwood,
Washington with a proposed village developmentd Bwlti-family rental units and 4,000 square fefetetail space.

On November 8, 2012 the Trust made an additiona@P00 preferred equity investment in VHH whichites it to a 12% return. The
contribution was used by VHH to acquire the genpaatner interest in a residential developmentgutojeferred to as Quilceda Creek, a tax
credit apartment community in Marysville, Washingteith a proposed development of 204 residentidgbun

701 Seventh Avenue — Equity Investment OperatiagePty— On October 16, 2012 the Trust entered into a jeémture to acquire and redeve

a 120,000 square foot property and associatedghisriocated at 701 Seventh Avenue in New Yorly Cihe property is on the northeast corner
of Seventh Avenue and 47 Street in Times Square pfbposed redevelopment will include an expansfdhe retail space to approximately
80,000 square feet, installation of an approxinya2&,000 square foot state of the art LED sign, oténtial development of a hotel. The Trust
made an initial contribution of $28,971,000 on eferred equity basis to acquire a 60.9% intereiténventure. The Trust has committed to
invest up to $68,000,000 on a preferred equitysha%ie Trust is entitled to a 12% preferred retfrvhich 8% is to be paid currently with the
remaining 4% accruing.

Wateridge Pavilion — Equity Investment Operatingparty— On December 21, 2012 the Trust entered into tuvenvith a third party pursuant
to which the venture acquired for $9,200,000 a B2 dquare foot class B office building located amr8nto Mesa (San Diego), California. The
Trust contributed a total of $7,522,000 of which(B®,000 is a preferred equity investment whiclitlestthe Trust to a 12% priority return of
which 8% is to be paid from operating cash flow #meremaining 4% will be accrued. The additiortsb22,000 was contributed for a 50%
common equity interest in the venture.

Operating Property Disposition Activity

Churchill — Operating Property ©n May 14, 2012 the Trust sold the portion of thrihill, Pennsylvania property that was not leased
Westinghouse for $914,000. No gain or loss wasgeized as a result of this transaction, and it
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resulted in a $632,000 reduction of the basisénChurchill property by the net proceeds receilidek Trust agreed to provide financing to the
buyer to cover property operating expenses. Atignpghe Trust provided $324,000 of financing te@obuyer’s expenses and real estate taxes
due. An additional $179,000 was advanced in ea¢kugiist 2012 and November 2012 directly to thertguéuthority to cover real estate taxes
due on the sold parcel. At December 31, 2012 tta liman outstanding was $683,000. The loan ig@steonly and bears interest at LIBOR +
3.75%, matures on June 1, 2015 and is collatethbyethe property.

Memphis (Kroger) - Operating PropertyThe Kroger Co., a tenant which net leased 100%etpace of the Trust’'s Memphis, Tennessee retalil
property, vacated the building in October 2011dunuttinued to pay rent as contractually required.September 28, 2012, the Kroger Co.
terminated its lease and paid a cancellation f&g660,000. On the same date, the Trust sold thepMenproperty for $600,000. The transaction
resulted in a loss from discontinued operationapgroximately $50,000.

Indianapolis (Circle Tower) - Operating PropertyOn September 28, 2012 the Trust sold its Indialispindiana property referred to as Circle
Tower for approximately $6,300,000. Proceeds ofstile were used to satisfy the $4,655,000 firstgage on the property. The sale resulted in
a gain to the Trust of approximately $945,000. Thest paid $574,000 in defeasance costs in relatidhe satisfaction of the debt in
conjunction with the sale which has been recordeidtarest expense.

Operating Property Dispositions through our Eguityestments

Marc Realty — Sale of Equity Investment Operatingperties —-During 2012 the Trust sold its equity investmentsik of its Marc Realty joint
ventures to Marc Realty, the Trust’s joint ventpagtner. Transactions are as follows:

e On March 1, 2012 the Trust sold its 50% intereshproperty located at 3701 Algonquin Road, RgliMeadow, Illinois for $250,000,
which approximated its carrying valt

* On May 31, 2012 the Trust sold its 50% equity ie$ts in River Road LLC (Des Plains, lllinois), Saieek LLC (Schaumburg, lllinois)
and 900 Ridgebrook LLC (Northbrook, Illinois) fot 00,000, $0 and $1,100,000, respectively. ThatTrecognized an aggregate
$16,000 gain on the transaction which is refleateglquity earnings

* On May 31, 2012 the Trust sold its 50% equity ies¢in Michigan 30 LLC (Chicago, lllinois) for $810,000. The purchase price v
financed with a $6,550,000 secured promissory whiieh bears interest at 10% per annum, requirempays of interest only and matures
on May 31, 2015. This note was fully satisfied amglist 3, 2012. The Trust recognized a loss of agmetely $95,000 on the transaction
which is reflected in equity earning

e OnJanuary 1, 2012 the Trust restructured its imvest in Michigan 180 LLC (Chicago, lllinois) anedtassified the investment from loz
receivable and preferred equity to an equity inwesit. On November 30, 2012 the Trust sold this 8oty investment for $7,200,000.
The purchase price was paid $2,000,000 in caslirendemainder was financed with a $5,200,000 selquremissory note which bears
interest at 8.25% per annum, requires monthly paysnef interest only and matures on December 152

Operating Property Financing Activity

Waterford Place - Operating PropertyOn July 19, 2012 the Trust obtained a $13,500,@008recourse first mortgage loan secured by its 320
Unit Class A multifamily Memphis, Tennessee (Waterford Place) prgpdit was acquired on April 17, 2012. The loanrbéaterest at LIBOF
plus 2.5% per annum with a LIBOR floor of 0.5%, uggs monthly payments of principal and interest avatures on August 1, 2014, subject to
two, oneyear extensions. On the same date the Trust pwdlasinterest rate cap which caps LIBOR at 0.986.[®an will have an outstandi
balance at the initial maturity date of $12,928,000

Newbury Apartments — Operating PropertyDn October 2, 2012 the Trust refinanced the firsttgage debt on its 180 unit multi-family
property located in Meriden, Connecticut. The neanlis non-recourse to the Trust, has a principailent of $21,000,000, bears interest at a
fixed rate of 3.95% per annum and matures on Oct®p2022. The loan requires payments of interelst for the first 24 months and then
payments of principal and interest for the remajrterm. After repayments on the existing debt aitlesnent expenses the Trust received net
proceeds of approximately $7,308,000.
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701 Arboretum — Operating PropertyOn October 2, 2012 the Trust fully satisfiedrnitertgage loan payable of $1,657,000 collaterallzeids
Lisle, Illinois property referred to as 701 Arbaret.

223 West Jackson - Equity Investme®in July 2, 2012 the Trust contributed $3,524,0i@s unconsolidated joint venture investment erbp
located at 223 West Jackson in Chicago, lllinofse Joint venture partner, Marc Realty, also madergribution of $3,524,000. The proceeds
were used to pay off the existing first mortgaganl@ollateralized by the property. On SeptembefR32 the joint venture obtained a
$9,500,000 non-recourse first mortgage on the ptppas a result of the financing the Trust and MRealty each received a return of capital
cash distribution of $3,524,000.

Operating Property Leasing Activity

Westheimer On September 17, 2012, 5400 Westheimer LimitethBeship, a partially owned consolidated entityref Trust, executed a lease
amendment with the existing net lease tenant, &pé&atergy, which leases the entire 614,000 squartepfemises. The initial lease was signe
2004 and was scheduled to expire April 30, 201& fAéw lease extends the lease through April 306.20e Westheimer property is
encumbered by a mortgage with a maturity date ofl 016. Negotiated annual lease payments on thdifiad lease remain unchanged
($7,974,000 to $8,255,000 annually) through theumitgtdate of the mortgage debt, then the basedmtesases to $4,260,000 annually, subject
to annual increases thereafter up to $5,478,000&dkyn

Crossroads + On September 5, 2012 the Trust executed a leiflsétitachi Data Systems for 53,000 square fe¢hefCrossroads | office
property located in Englewood, Colorado. The Ides®a ten year term commencing in March 2013 akehaates. As a result of leasing activity
the Crossroads | property is 90% leased at DeceBhet012.

Loans
Loan Asset Acquisition Activities

Mentor Building — Loan AssefOn March 6, 2012 the Trust acquired at par a firsttgage loan for $2,521,000. The loan bore intexes

7.5% per annum, required monthly payments of ppigcind interest and matured on September 10, A02loan is collateralized by a 6,571
square foot retail condominium building known as Mentor Building located in Chicago, lllinois whids adjacent to the Sullivan Center
property held by our WRT-Elad joint venture. On MEy; 2012, the Trust modified the terms of the loameasing the interest rate to 10% per
annum, required payments of interest only and eddrthe maturity date to September 10, 2017.

Broward Financial Center — Loan AsseDn May 23, 2012 the Trust acquired for approxaha$42,800,000 a matured first mortgage loan with
a face value of $42,098,000 collateralized by a@2® square-foot commercial building located at E@8t Broward Boulevard, Ft. Lauderdale,
Florida, containing approximately 47,000 squaré¢ édeetail space and 279,000 square feet of offfz@ce. Following the acquisition of this lc
the Trust entered into a modification with the loarer pursuant to which the maturity date was ex@dnghtil October 15, 2012, the interest rate
was increased to 9.836% per annum and the bornmade a payment of approximately $12,800,000, wtedliced the outstanding principal
balance of the loan to $30,000,000. The loan waaiden full on October 9, 2012.

B-Note Portfolio Acquisitior On September 27, 2012 the Trust acquired forceqapiately $20,696,000 a portfolio of four performgiB-Note
loan assets with an aggregate par value of appairign$25,725,000. The loans are collateralizetbhy separate office and retail assets located
in California and Hawaii as follows:

»  Burbank Centre The Trust acquired for $9,000,000 a performing BeNwith a face value of $10,000,000 collateralibgd 421,99(
square foot Class A office building located in Bamk, California that is currently 100% leased tolMdésney Company affiliates with
leases expiring in 2014 and 2017. The loan betesdst at 5.897% per annum, requires monthly paysrarinterest only and matures in
April 2017. The B Note is subordinate to $135,000,0f senior financing. On January 25, 2013 thesiTsold this loan to an affiliate of t
borrower for $9,000,000. No gain or loss was reaeghin connection with this sal
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» Pinnacle II- The Trust acquired for approximately $4,631,0@@dorming B Note with a face value of $5,145,@00ateralized by a
230,000 square foot Class A office building locate@urbank, California that is currently 100% ledso Warner Brothers through 2021.
The loan bears interest at 6.313% per annum, regjaiionthly payments of principal and interest, muiadlures in September 2016. This B
Note is subordinate to $84,701,000 of senior fiancThe Trust is accreting the discount on tha liméo income

* The Shops at WaileaThe Trust acquired for approximately $5,154,0@@eorming B Note with a face value of $7,719,@00ateralized
by 166,000 square feet of premier shopping anddiastablishments, with more than 70 boutiquegpyshestaurants and galleries located
on the island of Maui, Hawaii. The property is 9#4sed. The loan bears interest at 6.15% per anmguires monthly payments of
principal and interest, and matures in April 20Ifis B Note is subordinate to $108,055,000 of sefimancing. The Trust is accreting the
discount on the loan into incorr

» Poipu Shopping Villag— The Trust acquired for approximately $1,911,0@@dHorming B Note with a face value of $2,861,000
collateralized by 40,800 square feet of retail spac the island of Kauai, Hawaii. The property 79®leased. The loan bears interest at
6.618% per annum, requires monthly payments otjpé and interest and matures in January 201& Bhilote is subordinate to
$28,856,000 of senior financing. The Trust is aiegethe discount on the loan into incor

1515 Market Street — Loan Asse©n December 12, 2012 the Trust acquired for S&88@0 a $70,000,000 non-performing first mortglage
collateralized by a 20 story, 514,000 square fdite building located in Philadelphia, PennsyhariThe loan was in maturity default and was
accruing interest at the default rate of 10.83%gmerum.

On February 1, 2013 in lieu of foreclosing, the simestructured the loan to increase the outstgrutimcipal balance to $71,629,000 (which
included accrued and unpaid interest and expemskaraadditional advance of $925,000), adjustrterést rate to be the greater of 7.5% per
annum or LIBOR plus 6.5%, extend the maturity datEebruary 1, 2016 and provide for a 40% partidypain all capital event proceeds. In
addition, the Trust acquired for $10,000 an indi#9% interest in the property and became the gépeartner of the property owner. As a result
of the restructuring, the Trust expects to constéidhe joint venture and is in the process of tdating the aggregate purchase price allocation.

Loan Asset Originations

Fenway Shea — Loan Assédr April 5, 2012 the Trust originated a $2,250,6@& mortgage loan which bears interest at 12%gpeium and
matures on April 5, 2014, with one, one-year extangght. An origination fee of 1% of the princigamount or $22,500 was paid to the Trust at
closing. The loan requires monthly payments ofrggeonly with a balloon payment due at maturitye Toan is collateralized by a 45,655 sqt
foot, two-story multi-tenant office building locatat 4545 East Shea Boulevard, Phoenix, Arizona.

127 West 28 Street — Loan Assé&n May 14, 2012 the Trust originated a $9,000,0@2zanine loan collateralized by 100% of the membe
interests in the entity that holds title to the D00 square foot, 12-story building located at ¥2&st 25th Street, Manhattan, New York. An
origination fee of 1% of the principal amount 00§30 and commitment fees totaling $591,500 wei@ foethe Trust. The loan bears interest at
a rate equal to the greater of 14% per annum oORBlus 10%, requires payment of principal andregeand matures on April 30, 2015. The
loan is subordinate to a mortgage loan of $35, BDyohich bears interest at a rate of 4.5% per anaudrequires payments of interest only.
This loan was paid off at par on March 1, 2013.

Queensridge Towers — Loan Assédn November 15, 2012 the Trust originated a M@0 first mortgage loan collateralized by 67ulyx
condominium units at Queensridge Towers locatddamVegas, Nevada. An origination fee of 1% ofghiacipal amount or $400,000 was paid
to the Trust at closing. The loan bears interettBOR plus 11.5% with a LIBOR floor of 0.5%, reges monthly payments of interest only and
matures on November 15, 2014, subject to one twalweth extension. Principal payments are requivdaetmade based on predetermined
release prices upon the sale of the individualkuliuring 2012 the Trust received aggregate praigpyments of $1,230,000 on this loan.

Simultaneously with the loan origination, the Trabtained a $25,000,000 loan from KeyBank Natigksgociation (“KeyBank”) which is
collateralized by the Queensridge Towers loan. KégBank loan bears interest at LIBOR plus 4%, reggimonthly payments of interest only
and is coterminus with the Queensridge Towers loan. Pringpstiments are required to be made in accordantepsincipal payments receiv
on the Queensridge Towers loan. As such, durin@ 204 Trust made aggregate principal payments @381000. In addition, the Trust paid
KeyBank a $250,000 origination fee. The KeyBankl@arecourse to the Trust and the Operating Patti and is classified as a secured
financing on the Consolidated Balance Sheet.
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Loan Asset Repayment Activity

160 Spear Street — Loan Ass€@n May 9, 2012 the Trust'160 Spear loans receivable with a par value 8fé&b,000 were paid off at par by
borrower. The Trust's outstanding investment irséhivans prior to payoff was $8,054,000.

Magazine - Loan AssetOn May 9, 2012 the Trust's Magazine loan recdizatith a par value of $20,000,000 was paid offat by the
borrower. The Trust’s outstanding investment iis tban prior to payoff was $17,525,000.

Loan Asset Activity through our Equity Investments

Southern California Office Portfolio — Equity Inee®ent Loan Asseton January 6, 2012 the Trust's venture that hdlds$t. 17,900,000 C Note
in a $798,000,000 first mortgage encumbering aGi(8D square foot 31 property office portfolio authern California (the “SoCal Loan”),
obtained a $40,000,000 recourse repurchase fafttiey“Facility”) with an affiliate of Blackstoned®l Estate Debt Strategies. The Facility bore
interest at LIBOR plus 11% per annum with a LIBO®&bf of 1%. The SoCal Loan venture received netg@eds of approximately $38,100,000
after origination fees, interest reserves and ofpsixpenses, which was distributed entirely toTthest in partial redemption of its interest in the
SoCal Loan venture resulting in a decrease in thst’® ownership interest from approximately 73%pproximately 56%.

On April 6, 2012 WRT-SoCal Lender LLC (“SoCal Lemtjea consolidated joint venture that holds ariest in the SoCal Loan venture,
amended and restated its operating agreemenbts &dt the admission of IX SoCal Holdings LP (“Staod”) as a member. Starwood
contributed $3,500,000 for a 10.2178% interesta@& Lender. The Trust received a special distitioufrom SoCal Lender equal to Starwosd’
contribution. As a result, the Trust owned a 50&f#éctive interest in the SoCal Loan investmenadully-diluted basis.

On September 28, 2012 SoCal Loan received a logoffpat par by the borrower. After repayment of teated repurchase agreement, the Trust
received $38,407,000 in cash proceeds. The loaofipggnerated $20,927,000 in accretion income dtlwthe Trust's allocable share was
$10,505,000.

Stamford Portfolio — Equity Investment Loan Ass@in-ebruary 17, 2012 the Trust invested $8,036a0@Dacquired a 20% interest in a ven
with Mack-Cali Realty Corporation that acquired $#0,000,000 a senior mezzanine loan with a fateewvaf $50,000,000. The venture’s
investment is subordinate to $400,000,000 in sedebt. The loan provides for a credit to the boeoaf up to $3,000,000 of any principal
proceeds above $47,000,000. The loan bears inttre#88OR plus 3.25% per annum and matures on AgUR013, subject to one one-year
extension. The loan is collateralized by the equitgrests in a seven building portfolio containin§70,000 square feet of Class A office space
and 106 residential rental units totaling 70,500asq feet, all located in the Stamford, Connect@emtral Business District.

RE CDO Management - Additional Equity InvestmeBuring March 2012 the Trust and its joint ventpegtner in RE CDO Management LLC
(“RE CDQ") each contributed $550,000 to the joiahture. RE CDO acquired a 5.52% interest in (iyst priority mortgage loan collateralized
by land located in Las Vegas, Nevada (the “LangdBich loan bears interest at LIBOR plus 40% wittuarent pay rate of 7.5% and the balance
accruing and compounding and which had an outstgriatilance of $18,218,000 at March 30, 2012, §¢eond priority mortgage loan
collateralized by the Land which bears interestQ® per annum, all of which accrues, and whichdradutstanding balance of $32,177,000 at
March 30, 2012 and (iii) a 5.52% membership inteireghe entity that was formed to acquire the Land
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10 Metrotech — Equity Investment Loan Asseh-April 18, 2012 the Trust funded $75,000 for a33%6 interest in a joint venturel(® Metrotec
JV”). A portion of these funds were used to acqérioen Sorin Real Estate CDO IV Ltd. a $21,000,0B®Rarticipation in the whole loan secured
by a 364,968 square foot, seven story, Class Bff€edfuilding on a 0.58 acre land parcel in BroakliNew York referred to as 10 Metrotech.
August 6, 2012 10 Metrotech JV acquired the $39@BIMsenior participation in the loan secured byEirotech for $32,500,000. As a resul
these transactions, 10 Metrotech JV now holds itieeemortgage loan. Following consummation of élequisition, 10 Metrotech JV entered
into a forbearance agreement with the borroweryamnsto which, among other things, (i) the interast¢ on the loan was increased to 9%,

(ii) the principal amount of the loan was rese$4®,000,000 and (iii) 10 Metrotech JV agreed tdéar from foreclosing on the property
pursuant to the current maturity default for twange subject to any further defaults by the borrowe

Concord - Additional Equity Investmen®n May 1, 2012 the Trust acquired from LexingRemlty Trust its 33.33% interest in both Concord
Debt Holdings LLC (“Concord”) and CDH CDO LLC (“CDBDO”) and its 50% interest in the collateral magragf Concord Real Estate CDO
2006-1, Ltd. for an aggregate purchase price di(¥,000. As a result, the Trust now holds a 66.@&"&sest in both Concord and CDH CDO
and 100% of the economics of the collateral manag@s transaction did not result in a change oftica. In the event of a sale of our interest in
CDH CDO or our interest in the collateral managelditional proceeds may be payable to LexingtoritR&aust if the sales price exceeds the
purchase price paid by the Trust.

Riverside — Equity Investment Loan AssBh September 18, 2012 the Trust's 50% owned ja@nture WRT-ROIC Riverside LLC, which held
an investment in a loan collateralized by Riverdiieza retail property received a loan pay offatlgy the borrower. The Trust received
$7,800,000 in cash proceeds from the loan whichasiginally purchased at par. No gain or loss waognized by the Trust upon the repayr
of the loan.

REIT Securities Activity

During the first half of 2012 the Trust acquiredaaiditional 1,054,686 shares of common stock ina€&ealty Trust, Inc. (“Cedar”) for an
aggregate purchase price of approximately $5,088 A6cordingly, as of June 30, 2012 the Trust ltek50,716 shares of common stock in
Cedar representing 8.70% of Cedar’s total outstandommon stock. On October 18, 2012 the Trust gpjoximately 52% of its holdings of
Cedar in a block sale for net proceeds of approteéipn&17,160,000. As of December 31, 2012 the The&d 3,000,716 shares of common stock
of Cedar.

Also during 2012 the Trust sold all of its remamiREIT preferred share holdings and received retqeds of $4,302,000.
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5. Loans Receivable
The Trust’s loans receivable at December 31, 2022811 are as follows (in thousands):

Carrying Amoun Contractue
December 3: December 3:
Statec Maturity

Description Loan Positior Interest Rat 2012 2011 Date
Hotel Wales Whole Loan LIBOR +4.0% (2) $ 20,10 $ 20,10 10/05/1:
Renaissance Wa Mezzanine LIBOR + 12.0% (3) 3,00( 3,00  01/01/1¢
Fenway Shea (1 Whole Loan 12.0% 2,27: — 04/05/1+
The Shops at Waile B-Note 6.15% 5,37¢ — 10/06/1+«
Legacy Orchard (1 Corporate Loa 15.0% 9,75( 9,75C 10/31/1¢
Queensridgt Whole Loan LIBOR + 11.5% (7) 39,17( — 11/15/1¢
San Marbeyi Whole Loan 5.88% 27,14¢ 26,50 01/01/1¢
127 West 25th Stre Mezzanine 14.0% 4) 8,681 — 04/30/1¢
Churchill (1) Whole Loan LIBOR + 3.75% 683 — 06/01/1¢
180 N. Michigar Mezzanine 8.25% 5,231 — 12/01/1t
1515 Marke! Whole Loan (8) 58,65( — (8)
Rockwell Mezzanine 12.0% 328 275 05/01/1¢
50C-512 7th Ave B-Note 7.19% 10,00¢ 9,97¢  07/11/1¢
Pinnacle Il B-Note 6.31% 4,652 — 09/06/1¢
Popiu Shopping Villag B-Note 6.62% 1,94¢ — 01/06/1"
The Disney Building B-Note 5.90% 9,04: — 04/06/1°
Wellington Tower Mezzanine 6.79% 2,681 2,56  07/11/1°
Mentor Building Whole Loan 10.0% 2,512 — 09/10/1°
180 N. Michigar Mezzanine — — 2,93( (5)
160 Spear (6 B-Note — — 11,55¢ (6)
160 Spear (6 Mezzanine — — 4,84¢ (6)
Magazine (6 Mezzanine — — 18,80¢ (6)
Marc Realty- 29 East Madison (€ Mezzanine — — 4,02¢ (6)

$ 211,25 $ 114,33:

(1) The Trust determined that certain loans red#évare variable interests in VIEs primarily basedhe fact that the underlying entities do
not have sufficient equity at risk to permit theigrto finance its activities without additionaltsordinated financial support. The Trust
does not have the power to direct the activitiethefentity that most significantly impact the g economic performance and is not
required to consolidate the underlying ent

(2) LIBOR floor of 3%.

(3) LIBOR floor of 2%.

(4) Interest rate is equal to the greater of 14.0%IBAR plus 10%

(5) Converted to equity investment during the three tmoended March 31, 201

(6) The loans were satisfied during the year ended mbee 31, 2012

(7) LIBOR floor of 0.5%.

(8) This loan was in maturity default at the tinfeoquisition. The loan was modified on Februar@13. See Note 4 — Acquisition,
Disposition, Leasing and Financing Activity for diés on the modificatior
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The carrying amount of loans receivable includeswed interest of $1,016,000 and $500,000 at Deeeib, 2012 and December 31, 2011,
respectively, and cumulative accretion of $2,52@,80d $9,914,000 at December 31, 2012 and Dece®ih@011, respectively.

The Trust uses an independent third party serviceiger to estimate the fair value of its loanseigable. Fair value measurements, including
unobservable inputs, are evaluated for reasonatddresed on current transactions and experienmealiestate and capital markets. The input
used in determining the estimated fair value offthest’s loans receivable are categorized as [@welthe fair value hierarchy. The fair value of
the Trust's loans receivable, exclusive of intereseivable was approximately $222,246,000 and $B23000 at December 31, 2012 and
December 31, 2011, respectively.

At December 31, 2012, the Trust’s loan receivahbege accretable discount yet to be recognizedcasria totaling $9,865,000.
The weighted average coupon on our loans receiwedde?.65% and the weighted average yield to nigitwas 11.43% at December 31, 2012.

With the exception of the San Marbeya, Hotel Waled Queensridge Tower loans receivable, none dbtres receivable are directly financed.
On January 14, 2011, the Trust restructured theMBabeya first mortgage loan to create a $15,18Ds@hior participation which bears interest
at 4.85% and a $15,744,000 junior participationchibears interest at 6.4%. The Trust issued therskean participation to CDO-1 at par and
retained the junior participation. On October 712the Trust restructured the Hotel Wales firsttigeage loan to create a $14,000,000 senior
participation which bears interest at LIBOR + 1.2&Ath a 3% LIBOR floor, and a $6,000,000 junior fi@pation. The Trust issued the senior
participation to CDQt at par and retained the junior participation. Thest accounts for the senior loan participationsSan Marbeya and Ho
Wales as non-recourse secured financings.

On November 15, 2012 the Trust obtained a $25,000@an from KeyBank collateralized by the Queedgsi Towers loan. The loan bears
interest at LIBOR plus 4%, requires monthly paymeitinterest only and is derminous with the Queensridge Towers loan withagumity datt
of November 15, 2014, subject to one, twelve menxtiension. Principal payments are required to baenirm accordance with principal payme
received on the Queensridge Tower loan. The KeyBaauk payable is recourse to the Trust and the &iperPartnership. The Trust accounts
for the loan as a recourse secured financing.

Loan Receivable Activity
Activity related to loans receivable is as follo(rs thousands):

Year Ended Year Ended
December 3: December 3:
2012 2011

Balance at beginning of year $ 114,33¢ $ 110,39¢
Purchase and advanc 175,55( 67,61¢
Interest accrued (received), 51€ (37
Repayment: (68,829 (70,289
Loan accretior 8,33t 13,401
Discount accretion received in ce (15,720 (13,290

Conversion of 180 North Michigan loan to equityéstment (2,939¢) —
Transfer from loan securitie — 662
Transfer Marc Realty seller financing from equityéstment: — 12,544
Transfer Sealy loan to equity investme — (4,650
Transfer 450 W 14th St bridge loan to preferredtggovestments — (2,027)
Balance at end of ye: $ 211,25( $ 114,33
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The following table summarizes the Trust's interasd dividend income for the years ended Decembe2@®12, 2011 and 2010 (in thousands):

2012 2011 2010
Interest and dividends detz
Interest on loan asse $11,73¢ $11,07: $ 5,691
Accretion of loan discour 8,33¢ 13,40: 8,78:
Interest and dividends on REIT securit 1,05¢ 984 2,65¢
Total interest and dividenc $21,12¢ $25,45¢ $17,12¢

The 160 Spear loan and the San Marbeya loan epofsenting more than 10% of interest income, douted approximately 34% of interest
income of the Trust for the year ended DecembeRB12. The 160 Spear loan and the Metropolitan Tdean each representing more than
10% of interest income, contributed approximated%edof interest income of the Trust for the yearezh®ecember 31, 2011. The same two
loans, each of which represented more than 10%tefdést income, contributed approximately 74% tdnest income of the Trust for the year
ended December 31, 2010.

Credit Quality of Loans Receivable and Loan Losses

The Trust evaluates impairment on its loan porfoln an individual basis and has developed a loadirngg system for all of its outstanding lo
that are collateralized directly or indirectly Bat estate. Grading categories include debt yidf service coverage ratio, length of loan,
property type, loan type, and other more subjectargables that include property or collateral kima, market conditions, industry conditions,
and sponsor’s financial stability. Management regieach category and assigns an overall numeritedoa each loan to determine the loan’s
risk of loss and to provide a determination as betlver an individual loan is impaired and whethspecific loan loss allowance is necessary. A
loan’s grade of credit quality is determined qudyte

All loans with a positive score do not require arldoss allowance. Any loan graded with a neutrates or “zero” is subject to further review of
the collectability of the interest and principakbd on current conditions and qualitative factordetermine if impairment is warranted. Any I
with a negative score is deemed impaired and manegiethen would measure the specific impairmemach loan separately using the fair
value of the collateral less costs to sell. Managr@mestimates the loan loss allowance by calcatie estimated fair value less costs to sell of
the underlying collateral securing the loan basethe fair value of the underlying collateral, amiparing the fair value to the loan’s net
carrying value. If the fair value is less than tiet carrying value of the loan, an allowance istad with a corresponding charge to the provision
for loan losses. The allowance for each loan isaaied at a level the Trust believes is adequasbdsorb losses.

The table below summarizes the Trust’s loans redsé/by internal credit rating at December 31, 20d2housands, except for number of

loans).

Carrying

Value of Mezzanini

# of Loans # of Whole # of # of

Internal Credit Quality Loan: Receivable Loan: Loans Loan: B-Notes Loan: Loans
Greater than zero 18  $211,25( 8 $160,28t¢ 5 $31,02¢ 5 $19,93¢
Equal to zerc — — — — — — — —
Less than zer — — — — — — — —
Subtotal 18  $211,25( 8 $160,28t¢ 5 $31,02¢ 5 $19,93¢
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The table below summarizes the Trust’s loans redsév/by internal credit rating at December 31, 204 thousands, except for number of

loans).
Carrying in
value of Mezzanin
# of Loans # of Whole # of # of
Internal Credit Quality Loan: Receivable Loans Loans Loan: B-Notes Loan: Loans
Greater than zero 12 $114,33¢ 3  $56,35: 2 $21,53¢ 7 $36,447
Equal to zerc — — — — — — — —
Less than zer — — — — — — — —
Subtotal 12 $114,33: 3  $56,35: 2 $21,53¢ 7  $36,44.

Non Performing Loans

The Trust considers a loan to be non-performing@ades loans on non-accrual status at such timesasgement determines it is probable that
it will be unable to collect all amounts due acdogdto the contractual terms of the loan. Whilenmm-accrual status, based on the Trust's
judgment as to collectability of principal, loan® @ither accounted for on a cash basis, whereesttencome is recognized only upon actual
receipt of cash, or on a cost-recovery basis, whkiash receipts reduce a loan’s carrying vdfuend when a loan is brought back into
compliance with its contractual terms, the Trudt eisume accrual of interest.

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011 there were ngpesforming loans and no past due payments. Thesenearovision for loan loss recorded
during the years ended December 31, 2012, 201 2@hal

6.  Securities Carried at Fair Value
Securities carried at fair value are summarizethéntable below (in thousands):

2012 2011

Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value

REIT Preferred shares $ — $ — $ 2,067 $ 4,277
REIT Common share 15,87¢ 19,69¢ 21,49 24,57¢
15,87¢ 19,69¢ 23,55¢ 28,85¢

Loan securitie: 161 11 1,661 5,30¢

$16,031 $19,70¢ $25,22( $34,16¢

During the years ended December 31, 2012, 2012@hd available for sale securities, securitiesiedrat fair value and loan securities carried
at fair value were sold or paid off for total prede of approximately $28,133,000, $35,156,000 &8J7426,000, respectively. The gross realized
gains on these sales and payoffs totaled approaiyn®655,000, $123,000 and $1,027,000 in 2012, 2012010, respectively. For purpose of
determining gross realized gains, the cost of $tesiis based on specific identification.

For the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 ar® #tH Trust recognized net unrealized gains oilabla for sale securities, securities
carried at fair value and loan securities carrigiia value of $7,363,000, $5,526,000 and $10,000Q, respectively, as the result of the chan
fair value of the financial assets for which thi falue option was elected.

7.  Preferred Equity Investments

On December 21, 2012 the Trust made a $6,000,3d6rped equity contribution to its WRT-Fenway Watge joint venture. The Trust is
entitled to a 12% priority return which is to bdgp8% currently from operating cash flow and thenaéning 4% is deferred.
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During 2012 the Trust made contributions of $4,880,to VHH in preferred equity with a 12% return.

During 2012 the Trust converted its loan of $1,800,to its Vintage Housing venture to preferredigquith a 12% return. During 2011 the Ic
bore interest at 12% with no payments due untileth® operating cash flow from the property. Nooime was recognized in 2012 or 2011 on
investment.

The Trust recognized earnings from its Marc Regitgferred equity investments of $338,000 for eddh@years ended December 31, 2011 and
2010, respectively. On January 2, 2012 the Trisgtuetured its 180 North Michigan preferred equityestment of $3,923,000 and its loan
receivable of $2,938,000 to an equity investment.
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8.  Equity Investments
The Trust’s equity investments consist of the feilog at December 31, 2012 and December 31, 201thdunsands):

Nominal % Ownershi

December 3: December 3:

Venture Partne Equity Investmen at December 31, 20: 2012 2011
VHH LLC (1) Vintage Housing LLC 75.0% $ 30,53 $ 29,88
Elad Canada Ltd WRT-Elad One South State

Equity LP 50.0% 46C —
Elad Canada Lt WRT-Elad One South Sta

Lender LP 50.0% 24,64+ 10,15(
Mack-Cali WRT-Stamford LLC 20.0% 8,501 —
Atrium/Northstar 10 Metrotech Loan LL( 33.3% 10,84¢ —
Atrium Holding RE CDO Management LL! 50.0% 1,77¢ 1,29¢
Freed Mentor Retail LLC 49.9% 551 —
Inland/Lexingtor Concord Debt Holdings LL( 33.3% — —
Inland/Lexingtor CDH CDO LLC 33.3% — —
Inland (5) Concord Debt Holdings LL¢ 33.3% 3,97¢ —
Inland (5) CDH CDO LLC 33.3% 322 —
Sealy (1) Northwest Atlanta Partners L 60.0% 8,10¢ 8,531
Sealy (1) Newmarket GP LLC 68.0% — 2,811
Sealy (1) Airpark Nashville GF 50.0% — —
Marc Realty (1, Brooks Building LLC 50.0% 7,98 7,67¢
Marc Realty (1 High Point Plaza LLC 50.0% 2,241 2,441
Marc Realty (1 1701 Woodfield LLC 50.0% 1,977 2,047
Marc Realty (1 Enterprise Center LL( 50.0% 2,67¢ 2,67¢
Marc Realty (2] Michigan 30 LLC N/A — 10,04¢
Marc Realty (2] Salt Creek LLC N/A — —
Marc Realty (2] River Road LLC N/A — 1,00(¢
Marc Realty (3 3701 Algonquin Road LL( N/A — 25C
Marc Realty (2] 900 Ridgebrook LLC N/A — 1,00(¢
ROIC WRT-ROIC Lakeside Eagle LL 50.0% — 7
ROIC (6) WRT-ROIC Riverside LLC 50.0% — 7,88:
New Valley/Starwood (6 Socal Office Portfolio Loan LL( 73.0% 8 72,62¢
Broadway Partners ( Fll Co-Invest LLC 27.9% — 1,80(
New Valley/Witkoff 701 7th WRT Investors LL( 60.9% 28,73t —
Fenway WRT-Fenway Wateridge LL( 50.0% 1,527 —

$ 134,85¢ $ 162,14.

(1) The Trust has determined that these equitysitmrents are investments in VIEs. The Trust hagihéted that it is not the primary
beneficiary of these VIEs since the Trust doeshawe the power to direct the activities that magtiicantly impact the VIEs economic
performance

(2) Interest sold to Marc Realty on May 31, 20

(3) Interest sold to Marc Realty on March 1, 20

(4) Interest was redeemed on April 12, 20

(5) Represents the interests acquired from LexingtatiR&rust on May 1, 201:

(6) The underlying loan investments was satisfied airp&eptember 201.:
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The following table reflects the activity of theuBt’s equity investments for the year ended Decerdbg2012 (in thousands):

Balance at Balance at
December 3. . December 3.
Equity
Income
Investmen 2011 Contribution: (loss) Distributions Sales Pric: 2012
Vintage Housing LLC $ 29,881 $ 2,067 $ 4,60: $ (6,029 $ — $ 30,53/
WRT-Elad One South State Equity | — 2,83¢ (2,37%) — — 46(
WRT-Elad One South State Lender 10,15( 11,21: 3,281 — — 24,64
WRT-Stamford LLC — 8,03¢ 76¢ (304) — 8,501
10 Metrotech LLC — 10,91¢ 33t (40%) — 10,84t
RE CDO Management LL! 1,29¢ 55C 67 (134 — 1,77¢
Mentor Retail LLC — 50& 46 — — 551
Concord Debt Holdings LL( — — 422 (422) — —
CDHCDO LLC — — 1,71¢ (1,715 — —
701 7th WRT Investors LL! — 29,02t — (290 — 28,73t
WRT-Fenway Wateridge LL( — 1,52 — — — 1,52:
CDH CDO LLC (1) — 2,50(C (997 (1,187 — 32z
Sealy 11,34¢ — (3,199 (45) — 8,10/
Marc Realty 27,14¢ 11,83: 33 (4,11¢) (20,01%) 14,88(
WRT-ROIC Lakeside Eagle LL! 7 35 (42) — — —
WRT-ROIC Riverside LLC 7,88: — 70€ (8,589 — —
SoCal Office Portfolio Loan LL( 72,62¢ — 9,70¢ (82,329 — 8
FIl Co-invest LLC 1,80( — 23z — (2,037 —
Concord Debt Holdings LLC (1 — 4,501 (45€) (72) — 3,974
Total $ 162,14: $ 85,54( $14,84: $(105,619 $(22,04) $ 134,85¢
(1) Represents the interests acquired from LexingtaadtiR@rust on May 1, 201:
The following table reflects the activity of theuBt's equity investments for the year ended Decer@bg2011 (in thousands):
Balance a Balance a
December 3: . December 3:
Equity
Income
Investmen 2010 Contribution: (loss) Distributions Sales Prici 2011
Vintage Housing LLC $ = $ 31,33t $ 113 $ (1,56)) $ — $ 29,88:
WRT-Elad One South State Lender — 10,15( — — — 10,15(
RE CDO Management LL! — 1,25(C 46 — — 1,29¢
Concord Debt Holdings LL( — — 3,47¢ (3,479 — —
CDH CDO LLC — — 48C (480) — —
Sealy 11,90¢ 4,65( (4,95¢€) (250) — 11,34¢
Marc Realty 62,15( 2,44( (16,539 (2,540 (18,36¢€) 27,14¢
WRT-ROIC Lakeside Eagle LL! — 18,09: 664 (18,75() — 7
WRT-ROIC Riverside LLC 7,88: — 93€ (93¢) — 7,88:
SoCal Office Portfolio Loan LL( — 72,354 272 — — 72,62¢
FIl Cc-invest LLC — 1,80( — — — 1,80(
WRT-46th Street Gotham LL: — 8,037 621 (8,65¢) — —
LW-SOFI — 5,76( 2,171 (7,937 — —
Total $ 81,93 $ 155,86 $(12,717) $ (44,58¢) $(18,36¢) $ 162,14:
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WRT-Elad- The Trust holds its mezzanine loan interest ilivBun Center through WRT-Elad Lender LP and itsfjis participation interest
through WRT-Elad Equity LP (“Equity LP"). The Trulsas determined that One South State Street LlaGs&xiable interest entity for which
Equity LP is the primary beneficiary. Equity LP lamsolidated Sullivan Center as of February 322@ie date it acquired the profits
participation interest, and has completed purchaseunting pursuant to the guidance for busineswtomtions based on available information
obtained from the managing member of Sullivan Qente

In relation to its investment in Sullivan Centédre fTrust has elected a one-month lag period inlwitieecognizes its share of the equity earnings
of One South State Street LLC in arrears. The &ipd is allowed under the provisions of ASC 810ah@ is necessary in order for the Trust to
consistently meet its regulatory filing deadlines.

Marc Realty- On January 1, 2012, the Trust restructured orits @ivestments (180 North Michigan) and conveitsdnvestment from loans
receivable ($2,938,000) and preferred equity ($3/80) to equity investments ($6,861,000) whiciméduded in contributions in the above
table.

On March 1, 2012, the Trust sold to Marc Realtyritsrest in 3701 Algonquin for $250,000. On May 3@12, the Trust sold to Marc Realty its
interests in Salt Creek, River Road and Ridgebfook0, $1,000,000 and $1,100,000, respectively.

On May 31, 2012, the Trust sold to Marc Realtyriterest in the 30 North Michigan property for $3@),000. The purchase was financed with a
$6,550,000 secured promissory note. The note wiysstatisfied on August 3, 2012,

SoCal Office Portfolio Loar On September 28, 2012, the loan held by SoCat@®Fortfolio Loan (“SoCal”) was paid off at paruoint
venture WRT-SoCal Lender LLC (“SoCal Lender”) whindld the equity investment on SoCal received ametf capital distribution of
$44,224,000 on its investment from this transacfidre Trust's allocable share of the distributioasv$38,407,000. SoCal acquired the loan on
November 4, 2011. Earlier in 2012, SoCal obtainegcaurse repurchase facility and received netgeds of approximately $38,100,000 which
was distributed entirely to the Trust in partialeenption of its interest. The SoCal balance sheesisted of total assets of $13,000 and
$97,989,000 at December 31, 2012 and 2011, resplctnd total liabilities of $0 and $269,000 adafcember 31, 2012 and 2011,
respectively. SoCal had net income of $16,892,0@D%866,000 for the years ended December 31, 2042@11, respectively. A majority of
the proceeds from the payoff of the loan were ithisted in 2012. Any remaining funds will be utildzéo wind up and dissolve SoCal or be
distributed upon dissolution.

ROIC — Riverside Loan On September 18, 2012, the loan was paid offatThe joint venture received a return of cagtatribution of
$15,600,000 on its investment. The Trust’s alloeablare of the distribution was $7,800,000.

Northwest Atlanta Partners LP

The Trust owns, through a venture with Sealy, a 8@¥-controlling ownership interest in 12 flex peofies in Atlanta, Georgia containing an
aggregate of 472,000 square feet of space. The ifnested approximately $5,470,000 and the genpendher, an affiliate of Sealy, invested
approximately $3,647,000 for their 40% interesthia venture. The venture obtained a first mortdage of $28,750,000 bearing interest at
5.7%. In November 2010, the venture elected to staking debt service payments and the loan wagglexto special servicing.

In June 2011 the Trust made a $20,641,000 brideye o the venture. The bridge loan enabled theuvertb satisfy its first mortgage loan at a
discounted payoff amount of $20,500,000. As a tesfithe discounted payoff, the venture recognigaith on extinguishment of debt of
approximately $9,170,000, inclusive of accruedriegeand penalties totaling $2,410,000, of whighTrust’s share was $5,502,000.

In September 2011 the venture obtained replacefimamicing in the amount of $14,000,000, bearingriest at LIBOR + 5.35% and maturing
September 29, 2015. In connection with the finagcihe venture purchased an interest rate cap vdaipk LIBOR at 1% through October 1,
2013. Net proceeds from the new loan plus additicagital contributions of $4,650,000 from the Traad $3,100,000 from Sealy were used to
pay off the Trust’s bridge loan.
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Newmarket GP LLC

The Trust owns, through a venture with Sealy, a 8@¥-controlling ownership interest in a six builgioffice-flex campus containing
approximately 470,000 square feet in Atlanta, GieorBhe purchase price for the property was $47@@including assumed debt. The venture
assumed an existing $37,000,000, 6.12% first mged@an encumbering the property, which maturééamember 2016 and is non-recourse to
the Trust.

In November 2010, the venture elected to stop ngpltebt service payments and the loan has beendplattespecial servicing. The venture is
attempting to negotiate a restructuring of the aatit the special servicer. In addition, the veataontinues to aggressively market available
space at the property for lease. There are noasses that a restructuring or discounted repaywfehe debt will be accomplished.

Airpark Nashville GP

The Trust owns, through a venture with Sealy, a 5@¥-controlling ownership interest in 13 lighttdisution and service center properties in
Nashville, Tennessee. Both Sealy and the Trustiboiéed $9,308,000 for their 50% ownership in teature. The balance of the $87,200,000
property purchase price was financed through apmately $65,383,000 of proceeds, net of escrowscéoging costs from a $74,000,000 5.7
first mortgage loan that matured in May 2012. Tdemnlhas been transferred to special servicingladust is seeking an extension of the first
mortgage loan as well as other concessions frorfetiter. There are no assurances that a restmgtoridiscounted repayment will be
accomplished. The loan is non-recourse to the Trust

Sealy Impairments

During 2011 the Trust determined that, as a refudurrent market conditions, including current wgancy levels, current rental rates and an
increase in terminal capitalization rates, the ¥alue of its equity investments in Sealy were betioe carrying values. Accordingly, the Trust
assessed whether this decline in value was otlaertgmporary. In making this determination, thestronsidered the length of time which the
decline has occurred, the length of time beforexgected recovery and the lack of any comparahlései market. The Trust determined the fair
value of its investments utilizing an unleveragadttflow methodology and an estimated terminaltahpation rate. The cash flows were then
discounted using an estimated market rate. Baséldeoforegoing, all of which requires significantigment, the Trust concluded that the
declines in value were other-than-temporary, amthdi2011 the Trust recorded other-than-tempornamyairment charges of $2,900,000,
$900,000 and $1,494,000 on its investments in S¢afthwest Atlanta, Sealy Newmarket, and Sealy Mélshrespectively.

The Trust has determined that the fair value ofaéeiof its equity investments each marginally exttheir carrying values. While the ventures
continue to aggressively market available spacéefse and work with existing tenants for leasewe, declines in occupancy could cause
impairment of these ventures that could be mattoithe Trusts’s future results of operations.

Concord Debt Holdings and CDH CDO

During the years ended December 31, 2012 and 20& Trust received cash distributions from Conddetht Holdings LLC of $422,000 and
$3,474,000, respectively. The Trust recognizedtgdancome for the full amount of the distributioi$ie Trust has suspended losses of
$40,557,000 to offset against future equity incdroen Concord at December 31, 2012.

During the years ended December 31, 2012 and 204 Trust received $1,715,000 and $480,000, reispdct The Trust recognized equity
income for the full amount of the distribution. Theust has suspended losses of $32,984,000 ta effsénst future equity income from CDH
CDO LLC at December 31, 2012.

On May 1, 2012, the Trust acquired from LexingtaaRy Trust its 33.33% interest in Concord Debtditags LLC and CDH CDO LLC for an
aggregate price of $7,000,000. This acquisitioth élaccounted for using the equity method of anting and will be separate from the on-
going investment in Concord. This acquisition doesrepresent a funding of prior losses. The Twiktrecognize its praata share of income
loss in the new investment.
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Vintage Housing Holdings

The Trust has made additional investments in tiyeeggmte of $6,779,000 to the Vintage platform du2012. The venture’s new investments
included a $5,500,000 contribution to a planned @46 multi-family project in Lynnwood, Washingtoa,$750,000 contribution to a planned
204-unit multi-family property in Marysville, Wasigton and $529,000 contribution to complete theussitipn of interests in the general
partners of two multifamily properties comprisingpaoximately 490 units located in California andvisléa.

In relation to its investment in Vintage Housingl#iogs, the Trust has elected a one-month lag geflibe lag period is allowed under the
provisions of ASC 810-10 and is necessary in ofaiethe Trust to consistently meet its regulatdling deadlines.

New Joint Venture Investments

The Trust has made significant new investmentsdutie quarter ended December 31, 2012 in 701 7 WiR3stors and WRT-Fenway
Wateridge that are discussed in detail in Note 4.

Separate Financial Statements for Unconsolidat&édi8iaries

The Trust has determined that for the periods pteskin the Trust’s financial statements, certdiitsounconsolidated subsidiaries have met the
conditions of a significant subsidiary under RueéZ{w) of Regulation S-X for which the Trust is téed, pursuant to Rule 3-09 of Regulation
S-X, to attach separate financial statements abiexio its Annual Report on Form 10-K as follows:

Year(s) determine

Entity significant Exhibit
Concord Debt Holdings LLC 2011 99.1
Sealy Northwest Atlanta Partners 2011 99.7
Sealy Newmarket General Partners 2011 99.5

The Trust was granted a waiver of the requiremengsovide S-X 3-09 financial statements for itsiiggmethod joint venture investee SoCal by
the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission. Swm@athe conditions of a significant subsidiary undale 1-02(w) of Regulation S-X for
2012 solely due to the early payoff of its solegstiment in a loan asset. The proceeds from thegdagoff have been distributed, and SoCal is
expected to be dissolved in 2013.

The balance sheets of SoCal are as follows (instuods):

December 31, 20: December 31, 20:

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivale $ 11 $ 36E
Real estate debt investme — 96,97(
Receivables and other ass 2 654
Total Asset: $ 13 $ 97,98¢
LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS ' CAPITAL
Other current liabilitie: $ — $ 26¢
Member’ Capital 13 97,72(
Total Liabilities and Membe’ Capital $ 13 $ 97,98¢
Carrying value of the Tru's investments in the equi

investments $ 8 $ 72,62t
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The statements of operations for SoCal are aswasli@gn thousands):

Interest, dividends and discount accretion

Expense:
Interest
General and administratiy
Other expense

Total expense
Net income

Trusf's share of net incorr

Combined Financial Statements for UnconsolidatdusBliaries

Pursuant to Rule 4-08(qg), the following summarifiedncial data for unconsolidated subsidiaries eaet information for the entities listed

above:

For the Year Ende

December
31, 2012

7,79¢
424
12

8,23(
16,89:
9,70¢

& ||

For the Year Ende

December
31, 2011
$ 63E
26¢
26¢
$  36€
$ 272

The combined summarized statements of operationsabestate equity investments are as followsh@usands):

ASSETS

Real estate, n¢

Cash and cash equivalel
Receivables and other ass
Other asset

Total Asset:

LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS ' CAPITAL
Mortgage and notes payal

Other current liabilitie!

Other liabilities

Non-controlling interest:

Member’ Capital

Total Liabilities and Membe’ Capital

Carrying value of the Trust’s investments in theigg
investments

98

December 31, 20:

$ 627,36
19,23(
52,68(
55,97+
$  75524(

$ 512,69¢
21,09t

65,14¢

29,97¢
126,33:

$ 755,24¢

$ 71,06¢

December 31, 20:

$ 503,22t
6,13¢

38,99¢

31,80(

$ 580,16(

$ 340,63
17,27+

50,97(

13,77¢
157,49¢

$ 58016

$ 57,03:
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The combined summarized statements of operationsabestate equity investments are as followsh@usands):

For the Year Ende For the Year Ende For the Year Ende
December 31, 20: December 31, 20: December 31, 20:
Total revenue $ 89,59¢ $ 54,60( $ 49,07:
Expense:
Operating 31,05 22,34( 20,34:
Real estate taxe 7,27¢ 5,97¢ 5,87:
Interest 22,10: 13,33( 9,03:
Depreciation and amortizatic 21,72« 16,06¢ 13,61¢
Other expense 5,89¢ 92¢ 48€
Total expense 88,047 58,64: 49,35(
Other income
Gain from extinguishment of de — — 2,207
Net income (loss $ 1,54¢ $ (4,045 $ 1,92¢
Trusf's share of net income (los® $ 5,60¢ $ (1,635 $ 1,10¢

(1) The Trust records its investments in WRT-Elad &intage Housing LLC on a one month lag, thersfamounts in the Trust's financial
statements for the year ended December 31, 2012agex on balances and results from WRT-Elad anthiyé Housing LLC for the
12 month period ended November 30, 2(

The combined summarized balance sheets of thedloamther equity investments are as follows (iufamds):

December 31, 20: December 31, 20:
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivale! $ 2,201 $ 79¢
Real estate debt investme 260,65: 223,90:
Securities available for sa 95,99¢ 103,51¢
Receivables and other ass 2,22¢ 3,517
Other asset 27,79 27,98¢
Total Assets 388,86( $ 359,71¢
LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS ' CAPITAL
Non-recourse secured financin $ 275,88l $ 306,63
Other current liabilitie: 3,23¢ 1,64k
Other liabilities 33,90t 36,78¢
Member!’ Capital 75,84: 14,64¢
Total Liabilities and Membe’ Capital $ 388,86( $ 359,71t
Carrying value of the Tru's investments in the equity investme $ 21,44° $ 9,18
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The combined summarized statements of operatioltanfand other equity investments are as follawghpusands):

For the Year Ende For the Year Ende For the Years Endi
December 31, 20: December 31, 20: December 31, 201
Interest, dividends and discount accretion $ 28,56¢ $ 24,25 $ 6,917
Expense:
Interest 8,411 9,127 3,25¢
Loan loss provisiol 10,74¢ 3,88¢ —
General and administrati\ 6,95¢ 7,21¢ 84(C
Other expense 13C 67 —
Total expense 26,24: 20,29¢ 4,09¢
Other income
Gain on debt extinguishme — 8,257 17,00(
Gain (loss) on sale of investme 28t (1,25%) (7,129
Other income 61€ 324 —
Total other incom« 90z 7,31¢ 9,871
Net income $ 3,22¢ $ 11,27( $ 12,69(
Trusfs share of net incon $ 2,55¢ $ 2,12¢ $ A7z

9. Debt
Mortgage Loans Payable

The Trust had outstanding mortgage loans payat#2&®,576,000 and $230,940,000 at December 31, 20d 2011, respectively. The
mortgage loan payments of principal and interestg@nerally due monthly, quarterly or semi-annualiyg are collateralized by applicable real
estate of the Trust.

The Trust’s mortgage loans payable at Decembe2@2 and 2011 are summarized as follows (in thalsan

December 3: December 3:
Spread Over Interest Rate at
Location of Collater: Maturity LIBOR/Prime December 31, 20: 2012 2011

Amherst, NY Oct 201z — 5.65% $ 15,22t $ 15,68:
Memphis, TN Aug 201¢ Libor + 2.5% (5 3.0(% 13,40¢ —
Chicago, IL Apr 2015 — 6.25% 8,70( 8,90(
Lisle, IL (3) Oct 2014 Libor + 2.5% (1 2.71% 5,752 21,00(
Chicago, IL Mar 201¢€ — 5.75% 20,20( 20,52:
Houston, TX Apr 2016 — 6.15% 52,05: 56,42:
New York, NY May 201¢ Libor + 2.5% (2 3.5(% 51,98 49,58t
Greensboro, N( Aug 201¢ — 6.22% 15,13¢ —
Cerritos, CA Jan 2017 — 5.07% 23,18
Lisle, IL Mar 2017 — 5.55% 5,54: 5,60(
Orlando, FL Jul 2017 — 6.4(% 37,58( 38,13:
Plantation, FL Apr 2018 — 6.4% 10,81 10,92%
Meriden, CT Oct 2022 — 3.95% 21,00( —
Indianapolis, IN N/A — N/A — (4) 4,16¢

$ 280,57¢ $ 230,94(
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(1) The loan has an interest rate cap which caps LIROR%.

(2) The loan has a LIBOR floor of 19

(3) The loan was previously collateralized by threepprties. Two of the properties were released fimennhortgage upon partial repaymer
October 2012

(4) Mortgage loan was satisfied September 2012 up@na$aCircle Tower operating proper

(5) The loan has a LIBOR floor of 0.5% and an interatt cap which caps LIBOR at 0.5

The Trust determines the fair value of its mortglages payable using discounted cash flow analygeiscounting future cash payments at
interest rates the Trust believes approximate tineent market. In determining the current marké&sathe Trust adds its estimate of market
spreads to the quoted yields on federal governtneasury securities. The inputs used in determittiegestimated fair value of the Trust's
mortgage loans payable are categorized as levettgifair value hierarchy. The estimated fair eaddi the Trust's mortgage loans payable and
revolving line of credit are less than their cutrearrying value by $9,653,000 and $12,604,000extenber 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

NonRecourse Secured Financings

The Trust’s non-recourse secured financings at Dbee 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011 are summaaizéalows (in thousands):

Interest Rate

December 3: December 3:
Spread Ove December 31
Collatera Maturity LIBOR/Prime 2012 2012 2011
Hotel Wales Loan LIBOR plus
)
Oct 201 1.25% 427% $ 14,000 $ 14,00(
San Marbeya Loa Jan 201 — 4.8% 15,15( 15,15(

$ 29,15C $ 29,15(

(1) The loan has a LIBOR floor of 39

The Trust determines the fair value of its sectir@hcing using a discounted cash flow analysedibgounting future cash payments at interest
rates that the Trust believes approximate the numarket. In determining the current market rattes, Trust adds its estimate of market spreads
to the quoted rates for recent market transactibns.inputs used in determining the estimatedviaine of the Trust's secured financings are
categorized as level 3 in the fair value hierardfe estimated fair value of the Trust's securadritings are greater than their carrying value by
$333,000 and $152,000 at December 31, 2012 and 2&dfdectively.

Recourse Secured Financings

In November 2012, the Trust obtained a $25,0006080 which is secured by the Queensridge loanveabés. As of December 31, 2012, the
recourse secured financing has a carrying val&28f770,000, bears interest at a rate of LIBOR #1086 and matures on November 15, 2014.
The inputs used in determining the estimated falive of the Trust's secured financings are categdras level 3 in the fair value hierarchy. The
fair value of the loan approximates its carryinguesat December 31, 2012.

101



Table of Contents

10.

11.

Notes Payable

In conjunction with the loan modification on theperty located in Cerritos, California the Trustrsed a $14,500,000 B Note that bears
interest at 6.6996% per annum and requires moptaynents of approximately $12,000 with the balasfdhe interest accruing. The loan
modification agreement provides for a participatieature whereby the B Note can be fully satisfigith proceeds from the sale of the property
after the Trust receives its 9.0% priority retufrcapital, during a specified time period as ddfiimethe loan modification document. As of
December 31, 2012, the carrying value of the pagting B Note was $876,000 which approximates\alue. The inputs used in determining
the estimated fair value of the Trust’s notes psyabe categorized as level 3 in the fair valuednihy.

On October 15, 2012, an entity in which the Trugdtb an indirect interest executed a note payabilee amount of $1,600,000. The note bears
interest at 15% per annum and matures on OctohedOP2. In the consolidation of the Trust, $800,00€he note payable is eliminated for
accounting purposes. The balance of the note Beoémber 31, 2012 was $800,000 which approximaiesdlue.

Revolving Line of Credit

The Trust has a revolving line of credit in thengipal amount of $50,000,000 which bears interestBOR plus 3% and has a maturity date of
March 3, 2014 with a one year option to extendntiagurity date to March 3, 2015. The Trust must clgmagth financial covenants on an
ongoing basis. The covenants are tested as ohthefeesach quarter based upon results for the reosttly ended quarter. The Trust was in
compliance with its financial covenants under @galving line of credit as of December 31, 2012.

The revolving credit line is recourse and as ssdffiectively collateralized by all of the Trus#issets. The Trust has directly pledged certain
unencumbered consolidated operating propertiescams receivable as the borrowing base for thelvewgline of credit. The revolving credit
line requires monthly payments of interest only.tA@ extent that the amounts outstanding undefattiity are in excess of the borrowing base
(as calculated), the Trust is required to makeirecipal payment to reduce such excess. The Trugtprepay from time to time without premit
or penalty and re-borrow amounts prepaid.

The outstanding balance under the facility wasr@D$40,000,000 at December 31, 2012 and 2011, cteégly. The Trust is required to pay a
commitment fee on the unused portion of the linkeictvamounted to approximately $150,000 and $110{60years ended December 31, 2012
and 2011, respectively.

Senior Notes Payable

In August 2012 the Trust issued a total $86,2504f06s 7.75% Senior Notes due August 2022 (thenf@eNotes”) at an issue price of 100% of
par value. The Trust received net proceeds of apately $83,228,000, after deducting the undeimgitiscounts, commissions and offering
expenses of $3,022,000.

The Senior Notes mature on August 15, 2022 andibeaest at the rate of 7.75% per year, payabéetgtly in arrears commencing
November 15, 2012. The Trust may redeem the S&lutgs, in whole or in part, at any time or fromeito time on or after August 15, 2015 :
redemption price in cash equal to 100% of the jpad@amount redeemed plus accrued and unpaid sitere

The Senior Notes rank senior to all of the TruBitsire indebtedness that by its terms is expresgbprdinate to the Notes; except as discussed
below, pari passu to all of the existing and futiabilities of the Trust’s subsidiaries, includitiye Operating Partnership. However, the Notes
will have priority with respect to a security ingst in a promissory note issued by the Operatimm@ahip with a principal balance equal to the
outstanding balance of the Senior Notes, which lvélpari passu with all existing and future unsedwenior indebtedness of the Operating
Partnership.

The indenture relating to the Senior Notes conte@r&ain financial restrictions and requiremenis|uding but not limited to cross-
collateralization requirements on certain of itesalidated operating properties. At December 3122¢he Trust was in compliance with the
financial restrictions and requirements.

The Trust determines the fair value of its Seniotds using the quoted market price. The inputs irsddtermining the estimated fair value of
the Trust’'s Senior Notes are categorized as leueltlie fair value hierarchy. The estimated faiueaof the Trusg Senior Note is greater than
carrying value by $2,933,000 at December 31, 2012.

The following table summarizes future principalagments of mortgage loans payable, senior notesbaynotes payable and secured
financings (not including fair market value adjustits) as of December 31, 2012 (in thousands):

Yea Amount
2013 $ 35,62¢
2014 49,47:
2015 31,13«
2016 121,91:
2017 63,73(

Thereaftel 116,94¢

$418,82:
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12.

13.

Derivative Financial Instruments

The Trust has exposure to fluctuations in markierest rates. The Trust seeks to limit its riskiterest rate fluctuations through match finan:
on its assets as well as through hedging transgectio

The Trusts objective in using interest rate derivative®iadd stability to interest expense and to man@gexposure to interest rate moveme
To accomplish this objective, the Trust primariges interest rate caps and interest rate swapriasfjits interest rate risk management strategy
relating to certain of its variable rate debt instents.

The effective portion of changes in fair value efidatives designated and that qualify as cash Hedges is recorded in accumulated other
comprehensive income and is subsequently recledsiito earnings in the period that the hedgedcamted transaction affects earnings. The
ineffective portion of the change, if any, in faalue of the derivatives is recognized directlyarnings. During the twelve months ended
December 31, 2012, interest rate caps were udeeldige the variable cash flows associated withiagistariable-rate debt. The Trust also
assesses, both at its inception and on an ongaisig,flwhether the hedging instrument is highlyatife in achieving offsetting changes in the
cash flows attributable to the hedged item. ThesThas recorded changes in fair value relateda@ffective portion of its interest rate hedges
designated and qualifying as cash flow hedgesingt&i42,000 and ($29,000) of comprehensive los(ire) for the twelve months ended
December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, resphctive

The table below presents information about the {lsuisterest rate caps that are included on thealishated balance sheet that were designated
as cash flow hedges of interest rate risk at Deeer®b, 2012 (dollars in thousands):

Estimated Fai Unrealized
Value of Cap Gain on Settle Change -|n Cap
in Valuatllons
Other Cap in Other lré%‘;?;i&%&?
Strike Notional Cost Comprehensiv Comprehensiv Income for the Ye:
Amount of
Maturity Rate of Hedge Hedge¢ Income Income Ended December :
Aug 2014 0.5% $13,40¢ $ 22 $ 4) $ — $ 4

The table below presents information about the {lsuisterest rate caps that were not designatezhsis flow hedges at December 31, 2012 (in
thousands):

Change in Cap
Valuations
Included
in Interest Expent

for the Year Ende

. Costo Estimated Fa
Notional
Amount December 31,
Maturity Strike Rat of Hedge Hedge Value 2012
Oct 2014 1.0(% $ 5,75: $174 $ 1 $ 121
May 2013 1.25% 51,98: 19¢ — 19
May 2014 1.7%% 51,98: 434 — 49

Non-controlling Interests

Deer Valley Operating Property — On March 29, 20%2Trust purchased the 3.5% non-controlling owmipriterest of its consolidated joint
venture, WRT-DV LLC, for $400,000. The Trust acctathfor this purchase as an equity transactionrdéng the difference in the $192,000
carrying value of the acquired non-controlling net&t and the purchase price as a $208,000 reduntjaid-in capital.

One East Erie/Ontario Operating Property — On Jyr&®12, the Trust purchased from Marc Realty @& 2on-controlling interest in FT-
Ontario Holdings LLC (“Ontario”) for $5,850,000. €hrust accounted for this purchase as an equaits#ction recording the difference in the
$363,000 carrying value of the acquired non-cotitrglinterest and the purchase price as a $5,487@fuction in paid-in capital.
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Houston, Texas Operating Property — During thetfoguarter of 2012, a wholly-owned subsidiary af firust conducted a tender offer to
acquire additional limited partner units in 5400&t¥®imer Holding LP. The Trust acquired an add@ldn5 limited partnership units resulting
from the offer, representing 22% of Westheimeragurchase price of $1,650,000. The Trust now 336 of Westheimer. The Trust
accounted for this purchase as an equity transarticording the difference in the $2,812,000 cagwialue of the acquired non-controlling
interest and the purchase price as a $1,162,00€aise in paid-in capital.

The changes in the Trust’'s ownership interest énstibsidiaries impacted consolidated equity duttiegperiod shown as follows:

For the Years Ended

December 31
2012 2011 2010
Net income attributable to Winthrop Realty Tr $24,63: $10,93: $16,47:
Decrease in Winthop Realty Trust paid in capitglisitnents from non-controlling
interests (4,537) — —
Changes from net income attributable
Winthrop Realty Trust and transfers from -controlling interest: $20,09¢ $10,93¢ $16,47:
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14. Common Shares
The following table sets forth information relatitggsales of Common Shares during the years endedrbber 31, 2009, 2010, 2011 and 2012:

Number of Shares Issue:

Date of Issuance /

Repurchas Repurchase Price per Sha Type of Offering
January 15, 200 61,29: $ 10.8¢ DRIP (1)

April 15, 2009 7,462 $ 8.27 DRIP

July 15, 200¢ 37,98: $ 8.72 DRIP

October 15, 200 63,47 $ 8.9¢ DRIP
November 27, 200 4,450,78. $ 9.0t Rights Offering (2
January 15, 201 47,38t $ 12.7: DRIP

April 15, 2010 44,18 $ 13.7¢ DRIP

July 15, 201( 50,43¢ $ 12.1¢ DRIP
September 27, 201 5,750,001 $ 12.25(3) Public Offering
October 15, 201 48,39¢ $ 125 DRIP

January 15, 201 58,16: $ 11.7C DRIP

April 6, 2011 5,750,001 $ 11.25(3) Public Offering
April 15, 2011 59,201 $ 11.62 DRIP

July 15, 2011 61,22¢ $ 11.3¢ DRIP

October 17, 201 82,25¢ $ 8.4¢ DRIP

January 17, 201 12,46¢ $ 10.67% DRIP

April 16, 2012 12,77¢ $ 10.6( DRIP

July 16, 201: 10,767 $ 11.9¢ DRIP

October 15, 201 11,70 $ 10.2¢ DRIP
December 1, 201 (70,040 $ 10.6C Share Repurcha

Q) The Trus's Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase |

2) Rights offering pursuant to which each holder ofrfdoon Shares and Serie-1 Preferred Shares received one basic subscri
right for every three and one-half Common Sharesemlyor in the case of Series B-1 Preferred Shanesbasic subscription right
for every three and o-half Common Shares issuable upon conversion of Secies I-1 Preferred Share

3) Before underwriting discoun

15. Common Share Options

In May 2007 the Trust’s shareholders approved thatiWkbp Realty Trust 2007 Long Term Incentive P(dre “2007 Plan”) pursuant to which
the Trust can issue options to acquire Common Shaard restricted share awards to its Trustees;tdieeand consultants. There are 100,000
Common Shares reserved for issuance under theRl@@7and as of December 31, 2012, no stock optionsstricted stock awards have been
issued.

In December 2003 the Board of Trustees grantedd®Ptions under a Long Term Incentive Performdfiea to a Trustee who was Interim
Chief Executive Officer and Interim Chief Financ@ificer. The options have an exercise price of.$3&nd expire on December 16, 2013. To
date no options have been exercised. There weogheo options granted, cancelled or expired aridanch 2005 the plan terminated.
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16.

Discontinued Operations

The Trust’s properties in Athens, Georgia; Indiasiep Indiana; Lafayette, Louisiana; St. Louis, Bbsiri; Knoxville, Tennessee; Memphis,
Tennessee and Sherman, Texas are classified asfilised operations.

In October 2009 a tenant of the Trust's retaillaased properties, The Kroger Company (“Krogerdyjfied the Trust of its intention not to
exercise its lease renewal options on six buildewtaining approximately 281,000 square feet t#ilrspace. Concurrently, Kroger also notit
the Trust that it would be exercising its optiorptachase one of these six properties, the Ath@asrgia property, resulting in the Trust
classifying that property in discontinued operasieffective with the fourth quarter of 2009. Upeweipt of the notice, management actively
marketed the remaining locations for lease or sale.

The Lafayette, Louisiana and Sherman, Texas logsiticere classified as discontinued operations &epfember 30, 2010. During the quarter
ended September 30, 2010, management determineitiéhaotential market rents were not sufficientdoer prospective ground lease paym
plus the costs to convert these properties to aritant facilities. Therefore the Trust decidegéomit the ownership of the Sherman, Texas and
Lafayette, Louisiana properties to revert backland owners as of November 1, 2010. The Trestrded a $704,000 impairment charge
related to these investments which is includedsoahtinued operations for the year ended Decei®be?010.

The Knoxville, Tennessee location was classifiediasontinued operations as of September 30, 2Ddfing the quarter ended September 30,
2010, management determined that after having esegtits purchase option under its ground leaseaaqdiring the land in October 2010 the
best course of action was to pursue a sale ofefleestate. As a result, the Trust recorded a $6R6mpairment charge which is included in
discontinued operations for the year ended Dece®ibe2010. In August 2011 the Trust sold its KndgyiTennessee property for net proceeds
of $2,151,000.

With respect to Kroger’s purchase of the Athensyr@ia property, in accordance with a three partgagent between the Trust, Kroger and the
land owner, an appraisal process was conducteetésrdine the fair market value of the property a&gsult of the finalization of the appraisal
process, the Trust recorded an impairment charg§d 390,000 during the year ended December 31,.2010

In January 2011 the Trust classified the St. Lodissouri property into discontinued operationsFebruary 2011 the Trust entered into an
agreement to sell this property. In December 20&1Trust sold its St. Louis, Missouri property fat proceeds of $1,485,000.

In September 2012, the Indianapolis, Indiana anchptes, Tennessee properties were classified asrtiscied operations and sold. The
Indianapolis, Indiana property was sold for netcpexds of $945,000. The Memphis, Tennessee prowadysold, and the Trust recorded a
$698,000 impairment charge, offset by $592,00Cetfeament income which is included in discontinegerations for the year ended
December 31, 2012.

Results for discontinued operations for the yeaded December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 are as ®lliovthousands):

2012 2011 2010
Revenues $1,05¢ $ 26E $ 1,082
Gain on sale of investments in real es 94t 392 —
Settlement incom 592 — —
Operating expenst¢ (765) (227) (209
Depreciation and amortizatic (400) 2 (155
Impairment los: (69¢€) — (2,720
Interest expens (800) — —
Income (loss) from discontinued operatic $ (67 $ 42¢ $(1,907)
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17.

Federal and State Income Taxe

The Trust has made no provision for regular curcerteferred federal income taxes and no defersd s1come taxes have been provided fc

the basis that the Trust operates in a mannerdeteto enable it to continue to qualify as a regte investment trust under Sections 856-860 of
the Code. In order to qualify as a REIT, the Tisglenerally required each year to distributescsitareholders at least 90% of its taxable income
(excluding any net capital gain). The Trust intetalsomply with the foregoing minimum dividend ré@ments. As of December 31, 2011, the
Trust has net operating loss carryforwards of agprately $4,830,000 which will expire in 2023. Theust does not expect to utilize any of the
net operating loss carryforwards to offset 2012d& income. The Trust treats certain items ofrime@nd expense differently in determining
income reported for financial and tax purposes.

The Trust’s capital loss carryforwards of $43,480,@re not available in certain states and loeslitvhere the Trust has an obligation to pay
income taxes. The Trust's capital loss carryforwari! expire from 2014 through 2015. In additiaertain states and localities disallow state
income taxes as a deduction and exclude interestria from United States obligations when calcutptaxable income. Federal and state tax
calculations can differ due to differing recognitiof net operating losses. Accordingly, the Trwest hecorded $234,000, $379,000 and $134,000
in state and local taxes for the years ended Deeef3th 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Both of the Series B-1 Preferred and Series C RegfeShares were fully redeemed in 2011.
The 2011 and 2010 cash dividends per Series Bferifed Share for an individual shareholder’s incdmepurposes were as follows:

Capital Gain Nontaxable Total Dividend

Ordinary Dividend 15% Rate Distributior Paid
2011 $ 1.3C $ = $ — $ 1.3C
2010 2.0¢ — — 1.22

The 2011 and 2010 cash dividends per Series Criedf8hare for an individual shareholder’s incomegurposes were as follows:

Capital Gain Nontaxable Total Dividend

Ordinary Dividend 15% Rate Distributior Paid
2011 $ 1.3C $ = $ — $ 1.3C
2010 2.0¢ — — 2.0z

The 2012 and 2011 cash dividends per Series Ddredf€hare for an individual shareholder’s incomegurposes were as follows:

Capital Gain Nontaxable Total Dividend

Ordinary Dividend 15% Rate Distributior Paid
2012 $ 2.31 $ = $ — $ 2.31
2011 0.21 — — 0.21
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18.

The 2012, 2011 and 2010 cash dividends per ComrhareSor an individual shareholder’s income taxposes were as follows:

Capital Gain Nontaxable Total Dividend

Ordinary Dividend 15% Rate Distributior Paid
2012 $ 0.4¢ $ = $ — $ 0.4¢
2011 0.6¢ — — 0.6¢
2010 0.77 — — 0.77

The following table reconciles GAAP net incomeihatitable to the Trust to taxable income (in thowulsan

For the Years Ended December

2012 2011 2010
Net income(loss) attributable to Winthrop Realtyi§t $24,63: $ 10,93¢ $ 16,47
Book/Tax differences from depreciation and amotiiraexpenst 5,291 4,58¢ 18¢
Book/Tax differences of accretion of disco! (8,337%) (13,409 (8,782)
Book/Tax differences of unrealized ga (6,927) (2,78%) (10,080
Book/Tax differences on gains/losses from capitaigaction: (1,87¢) (5,847 1,65¢
Book/Tax differences on Preferred She — 1,42¢ 1,56:
Book/Tax differences for impairment loss 3,26( 7,60( 2,72(C
Book/Tax differences on investments in unconsoéidaoint venture: 4,131 31,63« 15,66!
Other book/tax differences, n (8,78)) (76€) (139
Book/Tax differences on dividend incor (452) 377 93
Book/Tax differences of market discot 14,06¢ 13,25( —
Taxable incom: $25,01¢ $ 46,26 $ 19,36:

Commitments and Contingencie:

The Trust is involved from time to time in litigati on various matters, including disputes with mesa@and disputes arising out of agreements to
purchase or sell properties. Given the nature efTtlust’s business activities, these lawsuits arsidered routine to the conduct of its business.
The result of any particular lawsuit cannot be prtedl because of the very nature of litigation, litigation process and its adversarial nature,
and the jury system. The Trust does not expectligaliabilities, if any, that may ultimately resédom such legal actions will have a material
adverse effect on its financial condition or reswlt operations.

In addition to the initial purchase price of cantidans and operating properties and initial inwestts in equity investments, the Trust has future
funding commitments which total approximately $321,000 at December 31, 2012. The Trust also hamgriease commitments of
$1,282,000, $1,405,000, $1,463,000, $1,592,008551000 and $109,418,000 for the years ended Demedib 2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017
and thereafter, respectively.

In 2011 the Trust was conveyed title to the landastying the Churchill, Pennsylvania property. Ptmthe conveyance of the land, a Phase Il
environmental study was performed. The study faiadlthere were certain contaminants at the prp@déirof which were within permitted
ranges. In addition, given the nature and use@ptperty currently and in the past, it is possthat additional contamination could occur
which could require remediation. The Trust belietrest based on applicable law and existing agre&sragry such remediation costs would be
the responsibility of a prior owner or tenant.
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19.

Relatec-Party Transactions
FUR Advisors

The activities of the Trust are administered by FAlRisors LLC (“FUR Advisors”) pursuant to the tesrof the Advisory Agreement between
the Trust and FUR Advisors. Effective January 1,2ahe Advisory Agreement was amended and restetéch revised terms including a
description of the incentive fee are set forth mtdN24 — Subsequent Events.

FUR Advisors is controlled by and partially ownedthe executive officers of the Trust. Pursuartheterms of the Advisory Agreement, FUR
Advisors is responsible for providing asset manag@rservices to the Trust and coordinating withTthest’'s shareholder transfer agent and
property managers. Under the Advisory Agreemeeffiect during 2010, 2011 and 2012, FUR Advisors emtitled to receive a base
management fee and an incentive fee in accordaitheéhe terms of the Advisory Agreement. The bassmagement fee, which is paid on a
quarterly basis, equals to 1.5% of (i) the issugraze of our outstanding equity securities plijsQi25% of any equity contribution by an
unaffiliated third party to a venture managed kg Tust. Pursuant to the terms of the Advisory &grent, no incentive fee was payable during
the years ended 2010, 2011 or 2012. In additiorR Rldvisors or its affiliate is also entitled to e2ee property management fees and
construction management fees at commercially reddemates.

The following table sets forth the fees and reinsbarents paid by the Trust for the years ended DieeeB1, 2012, 2011 and 2010 to FUR
Advisors and Winthrop Management (in thousands):

For the Years Ende

December 31, 20: December 31, 20: December 31, 20:
Base Asset Management Fee (1) $ 8,95 $ 7,69( $ 5,22¢
WRP Sul-Management LLC Cred — — (129
Property Management Fi 724 537 24¢€
Construction Management F 12¢& 1 24
$ 9,80¢ $ 8,22¢ $ 5,36¢

(1) The base asset management fee attributabiértopiarty equity contributions amounted to $139,0849,000 and $10,000 for the years
ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respsci

Winthrop Management

Winthrop Management, an affiliate of FUR Advisorgldhe Trust executive officers, assumed property managernsspbnsibilities for variot
properties owned by the Trust pursuant to the terhirsdividual property management agreements.

Credits

WRP Sub-Management LLC (“WRP Sub-Management”),féiliade of FUR Advisors provided accounting, caaal management and loan
brokerage services to CDO-1 and its subsidiarie@PVBub-Management received reimbursement of diretindirect expenses totaling
$716,000 for the year ended December 31, 201G;dardance with the terms of the agreement. Ofdtrisunt, $259,000 was paid to reimburse
it for costs associated with providing accounting ather “back-office” services for the benefit@bncord and CDO-1 (the “Affiliate Amount”).
Because the Trust pays an advisory fee to FUR Advihereas the Trust’s partners in Concord dothetadvisory fee payable to FUR
Advisors by the Trust was reduced by 50% of theliate Amount to ensure equal treatment of the Tamsl its partners with respect to the
reimbursements paid by Concord. For the year eBdm@mber 31, 2010, the Trust received and utilzerkedit of $129,000 against the base
management fee.
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20.

21.

Other Transactions

On October 4, 2012 the Trust purchased from ahaaéfiof FUR Advisors for $75,000 a 100% membershiprest in the entity that holds fee
simple title to a Class B office building locatedGerritos, California. See Note 4 for a detailedaiption of this transaction and for additional
activity between the Trust and Concord or CDH CDO.

Future Minimum Lease Payments
Future minimum lease payments scheduled to beveteinder non-cancellable operating leases ar@las/é (amounts in thousands):

Yea Amount
2013 41,01°
2014 39,59
2015 36,98¢
2016 32,86¢
2017 30,38(

Thereaftel 122,34¢

$303,19:

Spectra Energy represented more than 10% of theerbasal revenues of the Trust for the year endeceBber 31, 2012 contributing
approximately 19.7%. This tenant represented apmately 17.5% of the total rentable square footafgne consolidated operating portfolio.

Spectra Energy represented more than 10% of theerbagal revenues of the Trust for the year endeckeBiber 31, 2011 contributing
approximately 21.8%. This tenant represented apmately 14.5% of the total rentable square footafgne consolidated operating portfolio.

Spectra Energy, Siemens Real Estate and Viacorh,afaghich represented more than 10% of revenu@yributed approximately 44% of the
base rental revenues of the Trust for the yearceBeEember 31, 2010. These tenants representedxapptely 43% of the total rentable square
footage of the consolidated operating propertyfphbotfor the year ended December 31, 2010.

These revenues are reported in the operating grep&usiness segment.

Reportable Segment:

The Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASBl)dance on segment reporting establishes stanétardse way that public business
enterprises report information about reportablereags in financial statements and requires thaettemterprises report selected financial
information about reportable segments in finanaabrts issued to shareholders.

Based on the Trust's method of internal reportimgnagement determined that is has three repodaglaents: (i) the ownership of operating
properties; (ii) the origination and acquisitionloins and debt securities secured directly oréuntly by commercial and multi-family real
property — collectively, loan assets; and (iii) tvenership of equity and debt securities in othEiT® — REIT securities. The accounting policies
of the segments are identical to those describétbie 2.

The operating properties segment includes all @fTthust’s wholly and partially owned operating pedges. The loan assets segment includes all
of the Trust's activities related to real estatni®including loans receivable, loan securitieseqdty investments in loan related entities. The
REIT securities segment includes all of the TruatBvities related to the ownership of securitiesther publicly traded real estate companies.
In addition to its three business segments, thetTaports non-segment specific income and expaemder corporate income (expense).

110



Table of Contents

The following table summarizes the Trust's assgteeportable segment and capital expenditures ieduor the Trust's operating properties for
the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 (irsdinols):

December 31, 20: December 31, 20:

Assets
Operating propertie $ 562,82: $ 442,20t
Loan asset 239,53 217,17:
REIT securities 19,69 28,85¢
Corporate

Cash and cash equivalel 97,68: 40,95:

Restricted cas — 3,91¢

Accounts receivable and prepa 33€ 504

Deferred financing cos 3,09t 31¢
Discontinued operatior — 6
Total Assets $ 923,162 $ 733,93
Capital Expenditures

Operating Propertie $ 12,417 $ 11,96:

The Trust defines net operating income for eacimseg presented as all items of income and expansetlg derived from or incurred by each
business segment before depreciation, amortizatidnnterest expense. Interest on cash reservestadend administrative expenses and other
non-segment specific income and expense itemspmted under corporate income (expense). Thewoiptable presents a summary of
revenues from operating properties, loan asset®R&id securities and expenses incurred by each eegfor the years ended December 31,
2012, 2011, and 2010 (in thousands):
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Operating Properties
Rents and reimbursemetr
Operating expenst
Real estate taxe
Equity in (loss) income of Marc Realty investme
Equity in (loss) income of Sealy Northwest Atla
Equity in loss of Sealy Airpark Nashvil
Equity in loss of Sealy Newmark
Equity in income of Vintag
Equity in income of WR-Elad
Operating incom:
Depreciation and amortization expel
Interest expens
Impairment loss on investments in real es
Impairment loss on Marc Realty equity investme
Impairment loss on Sealy equity investme
(Loss) gain on extinguishment of de
Gain on sale of equity investmel
Settlement incom
Gain on consolidation of proper
Operating properties net income (lo
Loan Assets
Interest
Discount accretiol
Equity in earnings of preferred equity investmenmMarc Realty
Equity in earnings of Le-Win Concord
Equity in earnings of Concord Debt Holdin
Equity in earnings of CDH CDt
Equity in loss of Concord Debt Holdings (
Equity in loss of CDH CDO (1
Equity in earnings of ROIC Riversic
Equity in (loss) earnings of ROIC Lakeside Ee
Equity in earnings of 46th Street Goth
Equity in earnings of Sofite
Equity in earnings of RE CDO Managem:
Equity in earnings of Socal Office Loan Portfo
Equity in loss of PSW NY(
Equity in earnings of WR-Stamford
Equity in earnings of 10 Metrotel
Equity in earnings of Mentc
Gain on sale of securities carried at fair ve
Unrealized gain on loan securities carried atvalue
Operating incom:
General and administrative expel
Interest expens
Impairment loss on preferred equity investme
Impairment loss on investment in l-Win Concord
Provision for loss on loans receival
Loan assets net incon
REIT Securities
Dividends
Gain on sale of securities carried at fair ve
Unrealized gain on securities carried at fair ve
REIT securities net incorr
Net Income
Reconciliations to GAAP Net Incom
Corporate Income (Expense
Interest and other incon
General and administratiy
Transaction cosl
Interest expens
Loss on redemption of Serie-1 Preferred Share
State and local taxe

2012 2011 2010
$ 51,37 $ 42,78¢ $ 36,27
(15,666) (14,38) (7,759
(4,765) (4,427) (2,417)
(132) (982) 1,77€
(38¢) 4,30¢ (710)
— (1,03 (1,107
(2,811 (2,936) (1,199
4,60: 112 —
90z — —
33,11¢ 23,44 24,87(
(17,666 (13,239 (9,626)
(13,01) (12,819 (12,93
(2,567) (7,600) —
— (15,76 —
— (5,299 —
(121) 9,35¢ —
397 207 —
— 5,86¢ —
— 81¢ —
15€ (15,019 2,31(
11,73¢ 11,07: 5,691
8,33: 13,40: 8,78:
— 33¢ 33¢
— 25¢ —
422 3,21¢ —
1,71¢ 48¢ —
(45€) — —
(997) — —
70€ 93¢ 47z
(42) 664 —
— 621 —
— 2,177 —
67 46 —
9,70¢ 272 —
— — (1,246)
76¢ — —
33t — —
46 — —
614 — 46¢
447 2,73¢ 5,011
33,40! 36,22( 19,51¢
(121) (75) (300)
(1,499 (85() —
31,78¢ 35,29¢ 19,21¢
1,05¢ 984 2,65¢
41 122 55¢
6,91¢ 2,78¢ 5,06(
8,011 3,89t 8,27¢
39,95: 24,17¢ 29,80
69¢ 1,17¢ 13¢
(12,399 (11,179 (8,199
(421) (51¢) (321)
(3,159 (2,09¢) (2,187)
— (100) —
(234) (379) (139)




Income from continuing operations before -controlling interes 24,45 11,09 19,10¢
Nonr-controlling interes 247 (814 (88¢)

Income from continuing operations attributable to Winthrop Realty Trust $ 24,69¢ $ 10,27¢ $ 18,21¢
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22.

Variable Interest Entities
Consolidated Variable Interest Entities

Consolidated variable interest entities are tholsera/the Trust is the primary beneficiary of a allé interest entity. The primary beneficiary is
the party that has a controlling financial intetiesthe VIE, which is defined by the entity havibgth of the following characteristics: 1) the
power to direct the activities that, when takeretbgr, most significantly impact the VEE&conomic performance, and 2) the obligation sogd
losses or the right to receive the returns fromthiie that could potentially be significant to théB/

The Trust has determined that the entity that htifldsto the Cerritos office property, is a valainterest entity. Although the Trust holds 100%
of the equity interests in this entity, the B-Notdlateralized by the property enables the seriodér to participate in the entity’s expected
residual returns. In addition, the Trust will needund expected losses and infuse additional abjutlease and stabilize property operations.
Through its equity interests in the property, tmast has both the right to the returns of the prtitd power to direct the activities of Cerritos.
Accordingly, the Trust is the primary beneficiarydshas consolidated Cerritos since its acquisiio®ctober 5, 2012.

The fair value of assets and acquired and liagdiissumed upon the acquisition and consolidafi@ewitos are discussed in Note 4. No gain or
loss was recognized in connection with the acdaisiaind consolidation of the property. At Decem®gr2012, the carrying value of the Cerr
assets and liabilities included land and buildih@2i,423,000 net of accumulated depreciation &78100, mortgage debt comprised of an A-
Note totalling $23,184,000 and participating B-Ntitalling $876,000. The outstanding mortgage debateralized by the property is non-
recourse to the Trust. The balance of lease indesynet of accumulated amortization did not maligrdiffer from the balances recognized u
acquisition and consolidation.

Variable Interest Entities Not Consolidated

Equity Method and Preferred Equity Investmentée Trust has reviewed its various equity metaod preferred equity investments and
identified 11 investments for which the Trust hoddgariable interest in a VIE. Of these 11 intes¢isere are seven investments for which the
underlying entities do not have sufficient equityisk to permit them to finance their activitieghwout additional subordinated financial support.
There are four additional entities for which theE\ssessment was primarily based on the facthkatdting rights of the entity holders are not
proportional to their obligations to absorb expddtesses and rights to receive residual returribefegal entities. These unconsolidated joint
ventures are those where the Trust is not the pyifm@neficiary of a VIE.

Loans Receivable and Loan Securitid$e Trust has reviewed its loans receivable ana $sgurities and six of these assets have beetifide!
as variable interests in a VIE because the egoitgstment at risk at the borrowing entity levahdg considered sufficient for the entity to fina
its activities without additional subordinated firtéal support.

Certain loans receivable and loan securities whare been determined to be VIEs are performinggsseeting their debt service
requirements, and the borrowers hold title to tigateral. In these cases the borrower holds lgtglto the real estate collateral and has the
power to direct the activities that most signifitgmmpact the economic performance of the VIE]uding management and leasing activities. In
the event of default under these loans the Trusgtluas protective rights and has the risk to absmsbes only to the extent of its loan investm
The borrower has been determined to be the prifmamgficiary for these performing assets.

The Trust has determined that it does not currdralye the power to direct the activities of thetuess collateralizing any of its loans receivable
and loan securities. For this reason, managemdiet/bs that it does not control, nor is it the painy beneficiary of these ventures. Accordingly,
the Trust accounts for these investments undeguigance for loans receivable and real estateidebstments.
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23.

24.

Quarterly Results of Operations (Unaudited)

The following is an unaudited condensed summath@ftesults of operations by quarter for the yeaded December 31, 2012 and 2011. The
Trust believes all adjustments (consisting of ndnmaeurring accruals) necessary to present fairghdnterim combined results in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted m thmited States of America have been included.

(In thousands, except |-share data Quarters Ende

March 31 June 3( September & December 3
2012
Revenue: $17,59¢ $18,58¢ $ 17,05 $ 19,25¢
Net income (loss) attributable to Winthrop Realtyist $ 8,258 $ 3,35¢ $ 15,10¢ $ (2,089
Net income (loss) applicable to Common Shi $ 7,32¢ $ 571 $ 12,32 $ (4,879
Per shart
Net income (loss) applicable to Common Sharesgl $ 0.27 $ 0.0Z $ 037 $ (0.19
Net income (loss) applicable to Common Sharestetil $ 0.27 $ 0.0Z $ 037 $ (0.19
2011
Revenue: $20,21: $15,87¢ $ 15,87 $ 16,28
Net income (loss) attributable to Winthrop Realtydt $ 7,19¢ $ 3,72¢ $  9,84¢ $ (9,839
Net income (loss) applicable to Common Shi $ 7,13¢ $ 3,67( $ 9,781 $ (10,58
Per shart
Net income (loss) applicable to Common Sharesgl $ 0.2¢ $ 0.11 $ 0.3( $ (039
Net income (loss) applicable to Common Sharestedil $ 0.2¢ $ 0.11 $ 0.3 $ (039

Subsequent Eventt

All relevant events or transactions that occurriéer dhe balance sheet date not otherwise disclasddncorporated in the Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements are describexhbel

Playa Vista Mezzanine LoanOn January 24, 2013 the Trust originated a $Z0080 mezzanine loan collateralized indirectly 868,000
square foot, two building, Class A office campumawonly referred to as Water's Edge at Playa Vistictvis located three miles from Los
Angeles International Airport. The loan, which issrdinate to an $80,300,000 mortgage loan, matlamesary 23, 2015, bears interest at a rate
of LIBOR plus 14.25% per annum, with a 0.50% LIB®&&vr, and requires monthly payments of interesy @ a rate of 8.25% per annum with
the remaining accrued interest being added to ipahdn addition, at maturity the Trust is entitl® a participation interest equal to 25% of net
equity value or sales proceeds of the propertgltgrnatively, if the property is not sold, the tmwver can issue to the Trust a 25% ownership
interest in the property. On March 1, 2013 the Tsadd at par a 50% pari passu participation irsteirethe loan.

RE CDO Managemenrt On February 20, 2013 the collateral managemestagent and subordinated interests related tola@exlized debt
obligation entity were sold for $2,750,000. The Sirteceived net proceeds from the sale of appraeimn&1,296,000. On March 8, 2013 the C
Notes in another collateralized debt obligatioritgntere sold for $6,240,000. The Trust receivetipteceeds from the sale of approximately
$3,120,000.

Queensridge Loan/Recourse Secured Finaneiggibsequent to December 31, 2012 the Trust haseekprincipal repayments totaling
$5,987,000 resulting from the sale of several efadbndominium units collateralizing the loan. Camently with the receipts, the Trust made
aggregate principal payments of $5,987,000 oreiteurse secured financing collateralized by theeQsiedge loan.

Advisory Agreement The Trust modified its advisory agreement withRERdvisors effective January 1, 2013 to, among rothi@gs, extended
the term for five years (subject to earlier terniima by the Trust for both cause (as defined) aitHout cause), modified the required return on
the threshold amount for which the incentive fepagable and provided for a supplemental fee paymbFUR Advisors in the event of an early
termination of the Advisory Agreement under cert@icumstance or on the liquidation or dispositidrthe Trust.

As modified, the calculation of the base asset mament fee is unchanged but the Advisory Agreemewtprovides that any dividends paid on
account of Common Shares that result in a redudidhe threshold amount (as described below)eattte of the Trust's liquidation or
disposition are deemed a reduction in the aggregstiance price of the Common Shares, therebytiggih a reduction of the base
management fee.

The growth factor on the incentive fee was modifiesn 7% per annum to the greater of (x) 4% ortly 5 year U.S. Treasury Yield plus 2.5%
(such return, the “Growth Factor”). The incentiee ftill equals to 20% of any amounts availablalfstribution in excess of the threshold
amount and is only payable at such time, if at(®@)lwhen holders of the Common Shares receiveeagge dividends above the threshold
amount or (y) upon termination of the Advisory Agmeent, if the net value of the Trust’s assets edeéee threshold amount based on then
current market values and appraisals. That isinitentive fee is not payable annually, but onlguth time, if at all, as common shareholders
have received dividends in excess of the thresaiwidunt. The threshold amount is equal to $534,224(the threshold amount at December 31,
2012) plus the issuance price for any equity irgsren the Trust issued from and after Januar132lus an annual return thereon equal to the
Growth Factor less any dividends paid from andraféemuary 1, 2013. The incentive fee will also bggble if the Advisory Agreement is
terminated, other than for cause (as defined) byTtiust or with cause by FUR Advisors, and if oa tlate of termination the net value of the
Trust's assets exceeds the threshold amount.

With respect to the supplemental fee, it is onlygide if there is (i) a termination of the Advisokgreement for any reason other than for c:



(as defined) by the Trust or with cause by FUR Adss, (ii) a disposition of all or substantially @l the Trust’s assets, or (iii) an election b th
Trust to orderly liquidate its assets. The supplatialdee, if payable, is equal to the lesser oft{@ base management fee paid to FUR Advisors
for the prior twelve month period or (ii) either) (x the case of a termination of the Advisory Agreent, 20% of the positive difference, if any
between (A) the appraised net asset value of thet'Srassets at the date of termination and (Bjhteshold amount less $104,980,000, or (y) in
the case of a disposition or liquidation, 20% of dividends paid on account of Common Shares dt 8oe as the threshold amount is reduced
to $104,980,000, which will be achieved at suctetas aggregate distributions of approximately $1#@xcess of the Growth Factor have k
paid. For example, if the Trust had been liquidatedanuary 1, 2013, the supplemental fee woulg lnave been payable if total dividends of
approximately $13.00 per Common Share had been gaitithen only until the total supplemental feiel peould have equaled $8,953,000 (the
base asset management fee for calendar 2012), ahiobnt would be achieved when total dividends paidCommon Share equaled
approximately $14.36.

In the event that the supplemental fee is payabé®nnection with a disposition, the entire fepagable upon such disposition. In all other cases
where the supplemental fee is payable, the Trysiisitted to defer payment of the first $3,000,00¢he supplemental fee for 30 days and the
balance, if any, for a period of six months. lisidetermined that the supplemental fee is legs $32000,000, FUR Advisors is obligated to
promptly return to the Trust the difference betw#en$3,000,000 paid to it and the actual suppleahéee.
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ITEM 9 — CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTA NTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
None.

ITEM 9A — CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

An evaluation was performed under the supervisimhwith the participation of our management, inalgdour Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of our diisure controls and procedures (as defined in R8#e15(e) under the Exchange Act) as of
December 31, 2012. Based on such evaluation, thet'$rChief Executive Officer and Chief Financidfi€er have concluded that, as of the end of
such period, the Trust’s disclosure controls art@dures are effective.

Management's Report on Internal Control Over Finandal Reporting

The Trust’s management is responsible for estahtisand maintaining adequate internal control direncial reporting. The Trust’s internal control
over financial reporting is a process which wadgted under the supervision of the Trust’s printgecutives and principal financial officers to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the réfjabflfinancial reporting and the preparation loé fTrust’s financial statements for external repgrt
purposes in accordance with U.S. generally accegatedunting principles.

Our internal control over financial reporting indis policies and procedures that pertain to thater@@nce of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect transactions and d&fions of assets; provide reasonable assurahae@dnsactions are recorded as necessary totpermi
preparation of financial statements in accordanitie W.S. generally accepted accounting principdesl that receipts and expenditures are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of managemed the Trustees of the Trust; and provide regtserassurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or dign of the Trust's assets that could have a riataffect on our financial statements.

As of December 31, 2012 the Trust's managementwtiad an assessment of the effectiveness of the’Jinternal control over financial reporting.
The Trust’'s management used the criteria set foytthe Committee of Sponsoring Organizations offtteadway Commission (COSO) in “Internal

Control - Integrated FrameworkBased on that assessment and those criteria, vetudeal that our internal control over financialogng is effective

as of December 31, 2012.

The effectiveness of the Trust's internal contnegiofinancial reporting as of December 31, 2012k&en audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an
independent registered public accounting firm,tated in their report appearing in this Form 10-K.

Changes in Internal Controls Over Financial Reporthg

There has been no change in our internal contred fimancial reporting during our last fiscal qeairended December 31, 2012 that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaff, our internal control over financial reporting.

ITEM 9B — OTHER INFORMATION
None
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PART Il

ITEM 10 — DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORA TE GOVERNANCE

Information about Trustees of the Trust may be tbunder the caption “Election of Trustees” preserieour Proxy Statement for the Annual
Meeting of Shareholders, expected to be held in RS, which we refer to as the Proxy Statemerat iriformation is incorporated herein by
reference.

The information in the Proxy Statement under thatioas “Executive Officers” “Section 16(a) Bene&itOwnership Reporting Compliance”,
“Audit Committee Financial Expert” and “Code of K’ presented in the Proxy Statement is incorgatéierein by reference.

ITEM 11 — EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information in the Proxy Statement under thatioas “Compensation of Trustees” and “Executiverpensation” presented in the Proxy
Statement is incorporated herein by reference.
ITEM 12 — SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS

The information in the Proxy Statement under thatioa “Security Ownership of Trustees, Officers @ithers”presented in the Proxy Staterr
is incorporated herein by reference.
ITEM 13 — CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSAC TIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information in the Proxy Statement under thatioa “Certain Transactions and Relationships” @ndependence of Trustees” presented in
the Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by esfes.
ITEM 14 — PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information in the Proxy Statement under thgtioas “Compensation of Trustees” and “Principatégntant Fees and Services” presented
in the Proxy Statement is incorporated herein ligreace.
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PART IV

ITEM 15 — EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULE S

(a) Financial Statements and Financial Statement 8edules.

(1) Financial Statements:

Report of Independent Registered Public AccourfEingn on page 60 of Iltem 8.

Management’'s Report on Internal Controls over FirdrReporting on page 115 of Iltem 9A.
Consolidated Balance Sheets - December 31, 2012@itfdon page 61 of Item 8.
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Compselemcome - For the Years Ended December 31,,21P1 and 2010 on page 62 of Item 8.
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equityr-tfie Years Ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and @ page 63 of Item 8.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows - For thesyeaded December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 on @&gasd 66 of Item 8.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements on pageisrough 114 of Item ¢
(2) Financial Statement Schedules:
Schedule Il - Real Estate and Accumulated Deptiecia
Schedule IV — Mortgage Loans on Real Estate
All Schedules, other than Il and IV, are omitted,the information is not required or is othervismished.
(b) Exhibits.
The exhibits listed on the Exhibit Index on pag@ &Pe filed as a part of this Report or incorpatdig reference.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&{the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amenithedTrust has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredolp authorized.

WINTHROP REALTY TRUST

Dated: March 13, 2013 By: /s/ Michael L. Ashner

Michael L. Ashnel
Chief Executive Office

Dated: March 13, 2013 By: /s/ John A. Garilli

John A. Garilli
Chief Financial Office

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bblpthe following persons on behalf of the
Registrant and in the capacities and on the datkeated.

Name Title Date
/sl Michael L. Ashner Trustee March 13, 201:
/sl Carolyn Tiffany Trustee March 13, 201

Arthur Blasberg, Ji

Howard Goldber

Thomas McWilliams

Scott Rudolpt

Lee Seidlel

Steven Zalkinc Trustee March 13, 201:

By: /s/ Carolyn Tiffany
Carolyn Tiffany,
as attorne-in fact
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WINTHROP REALTY TRUST

SCHEDULE I
REAL ESTATE AND ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
At December 31, 2012
(amounts in thousands)

Cost capitalized

(impaired)
subsequent to
Initial Cost to Registrar acquisition As of December 31, 201
Accumulate:
Mortgage Building and Land/Building Building and Date
Description Location Locatior Encumbrance Land Improvement and Improvemen Land Improvement Total Depreciatiol _Acquired Life
Continuing Operations
Office Orlando FL $ 37580 $ — $ 17,248 $ 42 $ — $ 17,29C $ 17,29C $ 3,517 11/200¢ 40 yre
Office Plantatior FL 10,81: — 8,91t 4,02( 4,00( 8,93t 12,93¢ 1,81 11/200: 40 yrs
Office Chicago IL 20,20( — 23,63 2,38¢ — 26,02: 26,02 4,98¢ 10/200! 40 yre
Office Amherst NY 15,22¢ 1,591 18,02 7 1,591 18,03« 19,62¢ 3,43¢  5/200t 40 yre
Office Andover MA — — 7,611 71¢ 1,20( 7,12¢ 8,32¢ 1,417 12/200¢ 40 yrs
Office South
Burlington VT — — 3,09¢ 30¢ — 3,40¢ 3,40¢ 57& 12/200¢ 40 yrs
Office Chicago IL 8,70( 1,14¢ 9,98¢ 5,61¢ 1,14¢ 15,60¢ 16,757 2,037 10/200° 40 yre
Office Houston TX 52,05 7,07¢ 62,46¢ — 7,07¢ 62,46¢ 69,54 12,62:  1/200¢ 40 yrs
Office Lisle IL 5,75z 3,77¢ 16,37: 2,40¢ 3,77¢ 18,77 22,55! 3,167  2/200¢ 40 yre
Office Lisle IL — 2,361 6,29¢ (2,366) 2,361 3,932 6,29¢ 1,007  2/200¢ 40 yrs
Office Lisle IL 5,54: 78C 2,80: 673 78C 3,47¢ 4,25¢€ 54C  2/200¢ 40 yrs
Office Phoenix AZ — 801 7,381 3,85¢ 801 11,24¢ 12,04¢ 1,44¢  8/201( 40 yrs
Office Englewooc CO — 2,58( 5,40: 3,24: 2,58( 8,64¢ 11,22¢ 80€ 11/201( 40 yrs
Office Englewooc CO — 1,82¢ 5,617 692 1,82¢ 6,304 8,13: 57¢ 12/201( 40 yrs
Office New York NY 51,98: — 52,77¢ 7,59¢ — 60,37¢ 60,37¢ 1,937 11/201: 40 yrs
Office Cerritos CA 23,18 4,11¢ 16,19( 1,27¢ 4,11¢ 17,46¢ 21,58( 157 10/201: 40 yrs
231,02¢ 26,05¢ _ 263,83 30,48: 31,25¢ _ 289,11t 320,37( _ 40,04
Retail Atlanta GA — — 4,63 (1,737 — 2,90( 2,90( 94z 11/200: 40 yrs
Retall Louisville KY — — 2,72z 37¢€ 37z 2,72¢ 3,09¢ 554 11/200: 40 yrs
Retail Greensborc NC — — 3,79 4 — 3,801 3,801 77z 11/200¢ 40 yrs
Retail Denton X — — 1,57¢ 54¢€ 91t 1,20t 2,12( 344 11/200: 40 yrs
Retall Seabrool TX — — 1,39: 61¢ 61€ 1,39¢ 2,012 285 11/200: 40 yrs
— — 14,11¢ (188  1,90¢ 12,02; 13,93: 2,89¢
Warehouse¢ Jacksonvilll FL — 2,16¢ 8,68¢ 1,771 2,16¢ 10,45¢ 12,62: 2,198 11/200¢ 40 yre
Mixed use Churchill PA — — 23,83¢ (14,129 — 9,70¢ 9,70¢ 3,96( 11/200: 40 yrs
Multi-
family Meriden CT 21,00( 2,881 22,36 29¢ 2,881 22,66¢ 25,55¢ 1,880 10/201( 40 yrs
Multi-
family Memphis TN 13,40¢ 3,08( 17,48¢ 801 3,08( 18,28¢ 21,36¢ 47C  4/201: 40 yre
Multi-
family Greensborc NC 15,13¢ 1,961 16,48: — 1,961 16,48: 18,44 10€ 11/201: 40 yrs
49,547 10,09« 88,85: (11,25¢ 10,09 77,59 _ 87,68¢ 8,61¢
Total from Continuing
Operations $ 280,57t $36,14¢ $ 366,80! $ 19,03¢ $43,25: $ 378,73 $421,98¢ $ 51,55!

The aggregate cost in the properties for federrime tax purposes was approximately $381,998.
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SCHEDULE I
REAL ESTATE AND ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
(amounts in thousands)

The following is a reconciliation of real estatseis and accumulated depreciation:

Year Ended December 3

2012 2011 2010
Real Estate
Balance at beginning of peri $363,83: $308,49¢ $249,07¢
Additions during the perioc
Land — — 9,40¢
Buildings and improvemen 12,417 11,96: 6,121
Consolidation of 450 West 14th St (26) 52,77¢ —
Consolidation of Deer Valle — — 8,18¢
Consolidation of Newbury Apartmer — — 25,25¢
Consolidation of Crossroads — — 7,98:
Purchase of Waterfor 20,56¢ — —
Purchase of Lake Bran 18,44: — —
Purchase of Cerritc 20,30« — —
Proceeds from sale of Churct (629) — —
Purchase of Crossroad — — 7,441
Transfer (to) from discontinued operatic (10,05%) (1,639 (3,970
Impairments during the peric (2,567) (7,600 —
Disposal of fully amortized asse (297) (168) (1,009
Balance at end of peric $421,98¢ $363,83: $308,49¢
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance at beginning of peri $ 44,55¢ $ 36,23 $ 31,26¢
Additions charged to operating expen 11,20° 8,644 6,39¢
Transfer (to) from discontinued operations, nei (3,919 (152) (432)
Disposal of fully amortized asse (297) (16§) (1,009
Balance at end of peric $ 51,55: $ 44,55¢ $ 36,23

(1) In 2012, the Indianapolis, Indiana and Memphennessee properties were placed into discontiopethtions. In 2011, the St. Louis, Missouri
property was placed into discontinued operatiom2010, the Lafayette, Louisiana; Knoxville, Tersees and Sherman, Texas properties were
placed into discontinued operations. In 2009, ttieeAs, Georgia property was placed into discontraperations and the Kansas City, Kansas
property was foreclose
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Schedule IV

Mortgage Loans on Real Estate
December 31, 2012
(Amounts in thousands)

Outstandin:
Interest Contractual Periodic Senior Carrying
Type of Loan Location Rate Maturity Date Payment Term Liens Face Value Principal Amount (1)
LIBOR +
Whole Loan New York, NY  4.0% 10/5/201: Interest Onl: — $ 20,00 $ 20,00 $ 20,10:
LIBOR +
Whole Loan Las Vegas, N\ 11.5% 11/15/201.  Interest Onl' — 38,77 38,771 39,17(
Whole Loan Tempe, AZ 5.88% 1/1/201f  Amortizing — 29,90: 27,00¢ 27,14¢
Whole Loan Philadelphia, P, (5) (5) Interest Onl — 70,00( 58,65( 58,65(
Whole Loan Other (2 Various Various  Various Interest Onl; — 5,43( 5,43( 5,46¢
B-Note New York, NY  7.19% 7/11/2011  Amortizing 237,47 11,14¢ 9,962 10,00¢
B-Note Burbank, CA 5.90% 4/6/201° Interest Onl  135,00( 10,00( 9,00( 9,04:
B-Note Other (3 Various Various Various Amortizing 221,61: 15,67 11,90¢ 11,97¢
Mezzanine New York, NY 14.00% 4/30/201!  Amortizing 35,18( 8,58¢ 8,58¢ 8,681
Mezzanine Other (4 Various Various  Various Interest Onl' 60,15( 13,19 11,181 11,24%
Corporate Loal n/a 15.00% 10/31/201. Interest Onl — 9,75( 9,75(C 9,75(C
$232,45. $210,23¢ $211,25(

(1) Carrying amount of loans receivable includes aatinterest of $1,014 at December 31, 2(

(2) Line item includes three whole loans each of whiagresent less than 3% of the total Loan As:

(3) Line item includes three-Notes each of which represent less than 3% ofotfaé Loan Assets

(4) Line item includes four mezzanine loans each otiwhepresent less than 3% of the total Loan As
(5) This loan was in maturity default at the tinfeoquisition. The loan was modified on Februar@13 to adjust the interest rate to 7.5% and to
extend the maturity date to February 1, 2(

Reconciliation of Mortgage Loans on Real Estate:
The following table reconciles Mortgage Loans fog years ended December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010.

Balance at January 1

Purchase and advanc
Proceeds from sa
Interest (received) accrued, t

Repayment:
Loan accretior

Discount accretion received in ce
Reclass to investment in real est

Reclass from loan securiti

Reclass from equity investmer

Reclass to equity investmer

Reclass to preferred investme
Balance at December .

121

2012 2011 2010

$114,33. $110,39' § 26,10:
177,55( 67,61¢ 122,30
(25,735 — (12,876
51€ (37) 361
(45,089 (70,289 (15,069
8,33¢ 13,40 8,78:

(15,720 (13,290 —
— — (19,210

— 662 —

— 12,54« —

(2,939 (4,65() —

— (2,029) —
$211,25( $114,33.  $110,39
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Page
Exhibit Description Numbe

3.1 Second Amended and Restated Declaration of Trust sy 21, 200¢ Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to thesl's

Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the period ended June 30, 20 —
3.2 By-laws of Winthrop Realty Trust as amended anthted on November 3, 2009 - Incorporated by refegea Exhibit 3.1 to

the Trus's Current Report on Forn-K filed November 6, 200¢ —
3.8 Amendment to By-laws - Incorporated by referencExbibit 3.1 to the Trust's Current Report on F@#K filed March 6,

2010. —
4.1 Form of certificate for Common Shares of Benefitiaérest. Incorporated by reference to Exhibittd.the Trust’'s Annual

Report on Form 1-K for the year ended December 31, 2C —
4.2 Agreement of Limited Partnership of WRT Realty L dated as of January 1, 200Beorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.!

the Trus’'s Current Report on Forn-K filed January 4, 200t —
4.: Amendment No. 1 to Agreement of Limited PartnersifigVRT Realty, L.P., dated as of December 1, 26@6rporated by

reference to Exhibit 4.4 to the Tr's Form 1+K filed March 15, 2012 —
4.4 Amendment No. 2 to Agreement of Limited PartnersifipVRT Realty, L.P., dated as of November 28, 281ricorporated b

reference to the Tri.'s Current Report on Forn-K filed November 28, 201! —
4.t Amendment No. 3 to Agreement of Limited PartnersifipVRT Realty, L.P., dated as of March 23, 2+ Incorporated b

reference to the Tr.'s Current Report on Forn-K filed March 23, 2012 —
4.€ Amended and Restated Certificate of Designatioris28% Series D Cumulative Redeemable PreferreceStud Beneficial

Interest- Incorporated by reference to the T's Current Report on Forn-K filed March 23, 2012 —
4.7 Form of Specimen Certificate for the 9.25% SerieSunulative Redeemable Preferred Shares of Beaklfiterest -

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to Trugtsm 8-A filed with the Securities and Exchanger@assion on November

23, 2011 —
4.¢ Indenture, dated August 6, 2012 between the Tn{The Bank of New York Mellon, as trusteéneorporated by reference

the Exhibit 4.1 to the Tru's Current Report on Forn-K filed August 9, 2012 —
4. First Supplemental Indenture, dated August 15, 2B&8veen the Trust and the Bank of New York Mellmtrustee and

collateral agen- Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of thesI's Current Report on Forn-K filed August 15, 2012 —

10.1 Stock Purchase Agreement between the Trust andIRRtors, LLC, dated as of November 26, 2003 pigiclg Annex A

thereto, being the list of Conditions to the Offéncorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Tihest’'s Current Report on
Form &K filed December 1, 200!
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10.9

10.1(

10.1:

10.1:

10.1¢

10.1¢

21
23.1

Third Amended and Restated Advisory Agreement datdatuary 1, 2013, between the Trust, WRT Real®; and FUR Advisor
LLC - Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to thest's Current Report on Forn-K filed February 4, 201:

Exclusivity Services Agreement between the Trust ichael L. Ashner - Incorporated by referenc&xhibit 10.4 to the Trust's
Current Report on Forn-K filed December 1, 200:

Amendment No. 1 to Exclusivity Agreement, dated &laber 7, 2005 - Incorporated by reference to ExAibi7 to the Trust's
Current Report on Forn-K filed November 10, 200

Amendment No. 2 to Exclusivity Agreement, datedrbaby 1, 2013 - Incorporated by reference to ExHibBi2 to the Trust's
Current Report on Forn-K filed February 4, 201:%

Covenant Agreement between the Trust and FUR lakedtLC - Incorporated by reference to Exhibit5Lt the Trust's Current
Report on Form-K filed December 1, 200:

Amendment No. 1 to Covenant Agreement, dated Feprd2013 - Incorporated by reference to Exhibit3lto the Truss Curren
Report on Form-K filed February 4, 201:

Amended and Restated Omnibus Agreement, dated M#&,ck005, among Gerald Nudo, Laurence Weiner aRd \Realty L.P. -
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to thes’s Form K filed March 18, 2005

Agreement, dated as of July 1, 2009, among GeraltbNLaurence Weiner and WRT Realty L.P. Incorgatdty reference t
Exhibit 10.14 to the Tru's Form 1+Q for the period ended June 30, 2009 filed Aug0s2009.

Winthrop Realty Trust 2007 Long Term Stock Inceat®lan - Incorporated by reference to the Truséfiriitive Proxy Statement
on Schedule 14A filed with the Securities and ExgleaCommission on March 30, 20(

Amended and Restated Loan Agreement, dated as @h\8a 2011, between WRT Realty L.P. and KeyBardtjdhal Associatior
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.19 to thes’s Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 2C

Guaranty from Winthrop Realty Trust and certairit®fSubsidiaries in favor of KeyBank, National Asion. Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.20 to the Tr's Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 2C

Restricted Share Award Agreement, dated Februa2913, between Winthrop Realty Trust and MichaeAshner - Incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Tr's Current Report on Forn-K filed February 4, 201z

Restricted Share Award Agreement, dated Februa2913, between Winthrop Realty Trust and Carolyffefiy - Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Tr's Current Report on Forn-K filed February 4, 201:

List of Subsidiarie:

Consent of Independent Registered Accounting - PricewaterhouseCoopers LI
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23.2 Consent of Independent Registered Accounting - KPMG LLP (Concord Debt Holdings LLC financial

23.3 Consent of Independent Registered Accounting - Frazier & Deeter, LLC (Sealy Northwest Atlanta Rars LP financials
23.4 Consent of Independent Registered Accounting - Frazier & Deeter, LLC (Sealy Newmarket General ienghip financials
24 Power of Attorney

31 Certifications Pursuant to Section 302 of the Saek-Oxley Act of 2002

32 Certification Pursuant to Section 906 of the Saek-Oxley Act of 2002

99.1 Consolidated Financial Statements of Concord Deiitidgs LLC

99.2 Consolidated Financial Statements of Sealy Northw#anta Partners L

99.3 Consolidated Financial Statements of Sealy Newn&skeaeral Partnersh

101.INS XBRL Report Instance Docume

101.SCFH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Docum

101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Calculation Linkbase Docume
101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Label Linkbase Docume

101.PRE XBRL Presentation Linkbase Docume

101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docurh

* filed herewith

— indicates furnished herewi
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Name of Entity
10 Metrotech Loan LL(

5400 Westheimer Court LL

5400 Westheimer Holding L.
5400 Westheimer Limited Partnersl
CDH CDO LLC

FT-5400 New Unit Lender LL(
FT-5400 Westheimer LL(
FT-Amherst Property LLC
FT-Amherst Property Manager LL
FT-Churchill Lender LLC
FT-Churchill Property L.P
FT-FIN Acquisition LLC

FT-FIN GP LLC

FT-Florida Property LLC
FT-Florida Property Manager LL
FT-KRG (Atlanta) LLC

FT-KRG (Denton) LLC

FT-KRG (Greensboro) LL(
FT-KRG (Louisville) LLC
FT-KRG (Seabrook) LLC
FT-KRG Property L.P

FT-Marc Class B LLC

FT-Marc Loan LLC

FT-Ontario Holdings LLC
FT-Ontario Parking LLC
FT-Ontario Parking Manager LL
FT-Ontario Property LLC
FT-Ontario Property Manager LL
FT-Orlando Property LL(C
FT-Orlando Property Manager LL
FT-WD Property LLC

Newbury Apartments LL(
Newbury Properties DE LL¢

RE CDO Management LL!

Sealy Airpark Nashville General Partners

Sealy Newmarket General Partners
Sealy Northwest Atlanta Partners L
SoCal Office Loan Portfolio LL(
SoCal OLP Holdings LL(

WRP Management LL(

WRT-1050 Corporetum Holdings LL
WRT-1050 Corporetum Property LL

WRT-1050 Corporetum Property Manager L

Exhibit 21

State of Formatio

Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware



WRT-550/650 Corporetum Property LL

WRT-550/650 Corporetum Property Manager L

WRT-701 Arboretum Property LL!
WRT-701 Arboretum Property Manager LL
WRT-701 Seventh LL(

WRT-1515 MS L.P

WRT-1515 Property GP LL(
WRT-1515MSA GP LLC

WRT-1515 Limited Partnershi
WRT-Andover Property LLC
WRT-Andover Property Manager LL
WRT-Atlanta LLC

WRT-CDH Il LLC

WRT-CDO LLC

WRT-Concord LLC
WRT-Crossroads LL(
WRT-Crossroads One LL

WRT-DV LLC

WRT-Elad One South State Lender L
WRT-Elad One South State Equity L.
WRT-Fenway Wateridge LL(
WRT-High Line LLC

WRT-Lake Brandt Property LL(
WRT-Lender LLC

WRT-Lender (Poipu) LLC
WRT-Lender (Disney) LLC
WRT-Lender (Wailea) LLC
WRT-Lender (Pinnacle) LL(
WRT-LP LLC

WRT-Marc RC Holding LLC
WRT-Marc RC LLC

WRT-Mentor Equity LLC
WRT-Nashville Airpark LLC
WRT-Property Holdings LLC
WRT-PV Lender LLC
WRT-Queensridge Lender LL

WRT Realty L.P

WRT-Rockwell LLC

WRT-ROIC Lakeside Eagle LL!
WRT-ROIC Riverside LLC
WRT-SoCal Lender LLC
WRT-South Burlington Property LL!
WRT-South Burlington Property Manager LL
WRT-Springing Member LLC
WRT-Stamford LLC

WRT-State Street Lender LL

Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
lllinois

Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware



WRT TRS Management Cor Delaware
WRT-VHH LLC Delaware
WRT-Waterford Place LL( Delaware



Exhibit 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTINGRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referémtlee Registration Statements on Form S-3 (N8-B83927) and Form S-3D (No. 3381664) o'

Winthrop Realty Trust and subsidiaries of our répated March 13, 2013, relating to the consolidditeancial statements, financial statement
schedules, and the effectiveness of internal cbatrex financial reporting, which appears in thigf 10-K.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Boston, Massachusetts
March 13, 2013



Exhibit 23.2
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTINGRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referémtlee Registration Statements on Form S-3 (N8-B83927) and Form S-3D (No. 3381664) o'
Winthrop Realty Trust and subsidiaries of our régated March 7, 2012, with respect to the conatdid balance sheet of Concord Debt Holdings
LLC and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2011 amddiated consolidated statements of operatioraggs in members’ capital, and cash flows for
the year then ended, which report appears in tleeiber 31, 2012 annual report on Form 10-K of WatiRealty Trust.

/s KPMG LLP
Boston, Massachusetts
March 13, 2013



Exhibit 23.:
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTINGRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referémtlee Registration Statements on Form S-3 (N8-883927), and Form S-3D (No. 333-161664)

of Winthrop Realty Trust and subsidiaries of oypar dated March 9, 2012, relating to the finanstatements of Sealy Northwest Atlanta Partner.
which appears in this Form 10-K.

/sl Frazier & Deeter, LLC
Atlanta, Georgia
March 11, 2013



Exhibit 23.¢
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTINGRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referémtlee Registration Statements on Form S-3 (N8-B83927) and Form S-3D (No. 3381664) o'
Winthrop Realty Trust and subsidiaries of our régated March 11, 2013, relating to the financiatements of Sealy Newmarket General Partnershig
which appears in this Form 10-K.

/sl Frazier & Deeter, LLC
Atlanta, Georgia
March 11, 2013



Exhibit 24

WINTHROP REALTY TRUST (FORMERLY KNOWN AS FIRST UNIO N
REAL ESTATE EQUITY AND MORTGAGE INVESTMENTS)

ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012

Power of Attorney — Trustees

Each of the undersigned, a Trustee of Winthrop tr@alist (formerly known as First Union Real EstRtpiity and Mortgage Investments), an
Ohio business trust (the “Trust”), which anticipaféing with the Securities and Exchange CommissiWashington, D.C., under the provisions of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, an Annual Reporform 10-K for the fiscal year ended December2®12 (the “Form 10-K”), does hereby
constitute and appoint Carolyn Tiffany, with futhwer of substitution and resubstitution, as attgiieesign for him and in his name the FormK.@nd
any and all amendments and exhibits thereto, apcad all other documents to be filed with the Sities and Exchange Commission pertaining to
the Form 10-K, with full power and authority to dod perform any and all acts and things whatsomegiired or necessary to be done in the premises
as fully to all intents and purposes as he could gdersonally present, hereby ratifying and appnguhe acts of said attorney and any such substitu

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the undersigned hasurép set his hand thists day March, 2013.

/sl Arthur Blasberg, Jr.
Arthur Blasberg, Ji

/s/ Howard Goldber
Howard Goldber

/s/ Thomas McWilliams
Thomas McWilliams

/s/ Scott Rudolph
Scott Rudolpt

/sl Lee Seidler
Lee Seidle

/s/ Steven Zalkint
Steven Zalkinc




Exhibit 31.1

WINTHROP REALTY TRUST
FORM 10-K FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012

CERTIFICATIONS

I, Michael L. Ashner, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10fRVinthrop Realty Trust;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notagorsny untrue statement of a material fact or émnittate a material fact necessary to make
the statements made, in light of the circumstanoeer which such statements were made, not misigadih respect to the period covered by this
report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememts,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, thegoks presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anare responsible for establishing and maintainiisglosure controls and procedures (as defined
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e))ilatetdnal control over financial reporting (as defihin Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15
() for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresused such disclosure controls and procedoifes designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidh®ibsidiaries, is made known to us by others withi
those entities, particularly during the period ihigh this report is being prepared,;

b) Designed such internal control over financigloring, or caused such internal control over faiahreporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggitie reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepteduatiog principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registragisslosure controls and procedures and presentidsineport our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proes] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the tegid’s internal control over financial reportiftat occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registramtourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annyabrg that has materially affected, or is reasondikely to materially
affect, the registrant’s internal control over fic#l reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anldave disclosed, based on our most recent evatuat internal control over financial reporting,
to the registrant’s auditors and the audit commitiEthe registrant’s board of directors (or pesspearforming the equivalent function):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal comtvelr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registeaability to record, process, summarize and refivancial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invaweanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: March 13, 2013 /sl Michael L. Ashner
Michael L. Ashnel
Chief Executive Office




Exhibit 31.2

WINTHROP REALTY TRUST
FORM 10-K FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012

CERTIFICATIONS

I, John A. Garilli, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10fRVinthrop Realty Trust;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notagorsny untrue statement of a material fact or émnittate a material fact necessary to make
the statements made, in light of the circumstanoeer which such statements were made, not misigadih respect to the period covered by this
report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememts,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, thegoks presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anare responsible for establishing and maintainiisglosure controls and procedures (as defined
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e))ilatetdnal control over financial reporting (as defihin Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15
() for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresused such disclosure controls and procedoifes designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidh®ibsidiaries, is made known to us by others withi
those entities, particularly during the period ihigh this report is being prepared,;

b) Designed such internal control over financigloring, or caused such internal control over faiahreporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggitie reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepteduatiog principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registragisslosure controls and procedures and presentidsineport our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proes] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the tegid’s internal control over financial reportiftat occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registramtourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annyabrg that has materially affected, or is reasondikely to materially
affect, the registrant’s internal control over fic#l reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anldave disclosed, based on our most recent evatuat internal control over financial reporting,
to the registrant’s auditors and the audit commitiEthe registrant’s board of directors (or pesspearforming the equivalent function):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal comtvelr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registeaability to record, process, summarize and refivancial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invaweanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: March 13, 2013 /s/ John A. Gatrilli
John A. Garilli
Chief Financial Office




Exhibit 32
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of WinthropaReg Trust (formerly known as First Union Real EstBquity and Mortgage Investments
(the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the annual peretwed December 31, 2012, as filed with the Seearéthd Exchange Commission on the date
hereof (the “Report”), the undersigned, in the cépss and on the date indicated below, herebyfigrtpursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as
adopted, pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanésy@xt of 2002, that: (1) the Report fully com@iwith the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d)
of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934; andh@)information contained in the Report fairly ggets, in all material respects, the financial
condition and results of operations of the Company.

Date: March 13, 2013 /sl Michael L. Ashner

Michael L. Ashnel
Chief Executive Office

Date: March 13, 2013 /s/ John A. Gatrilli

John A. Garilli
Chief Financial Office
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Independent Auditors’ Report

The Members
Concord Debt Holdings LLC:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsimeet of Concord Debt Holdings LLC and subsiekeais of December 31, 2011, and the
related consolidated statements of operations,ggeaim members’ capital, and cash flows for the yleen ended. These consolidated financial
statements are the responsibility of the Compamgsagement. Our responsibility is to express aniopion these consolidated financial statements
based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with generalepted auditing standards in the United Stdt@snerica. Those standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assarabout whether the financial statements are fregaterial misstatement. An audit includes
consideration of internal control over financigbogting as a basis for designing audit procedurasdre appropriate in the circumstances, butarot f
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effentiss of the Company’s internal control over faialreporting. Accordingly, we express no such
opinion. An audit includes examining, on a testifiasvidence supporting the amounts and disclosorée financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles usédignificant estimates made by management, dsawelvaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit providesagonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetaerferred to above present fairly, in all materggpects, the financial position of Concord Debt
Holdings LLC and subsidiaries as of December 31,12@nd the results of their operations and treshdlows for the year then ended in conformity
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

The accompanying consolidated balance sheet asadrbber 31, 2012 and 2010, and the consolidatesirstats of operations, members’ capital and
cash flows for the year ended December 31, 20X®2farthe period from August 26, 2010 (Inceptiompiugh December 31, 2010 were not audited by
us and accordingly, we do not express an opiniothem.

/sl KPMG LLP
March 7, 201z
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CONCORD DEBT HOLDINGS LLC
Consolidated Balance Sheets
December 31, 2012 (unaudited) and 2011

(In thousands)

Assets

Cash and cash equivalel

Restricted cas

Real estate debt investments carried at fair v
Securities carried at fair valt

Interest and other receivabl

Other asset

Total asset
Liabilities and Capital
Liabilities:
Other liabilities

Total liabilities
Member’ capital

Total liabilities and capite

See accompanying notes to consolidated finanassents.

2012
(unaudited)
$ 741

1,00(
23,49:
3C

10:s

29

$ 25,39t

$ 43
43
25,35:
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CONCORD DEBT HOLDINGS LLC
Consolidated Statements of Operations

Years ended December 31, 2012 (unaudited), 2011 and
the period from August 26, 2010 (Inception) throl@gcember 31, 2010 (unaudited)

(In thousands)

Period from
August 26,
2010
(inception)
through
December 31
2012 2011 2010
(unaudited (unaudited’
Income:
Interest incom $ 1,74¢ 3,47 2,10¢
Fees received from related pa 48 57 20
Total income 1,79¢ 3,52¢ 2,12¢
Expenses
Interest — 72€ 66¢
General and administratiy 622 44¢ 35€
Total expense 623 1,17¢ 1,02¢
Net investment incom 1,177 2,35¢ 1,10¢
Realized and unrealized gain (loss) from investsie
Realized gain on sale of securities carried atfaline — 37C 237
Realized loss on sale of securities carried atviaine @) (1,127 —
Realized gain on sale of real estate debt invedsrenried at fair valu — 8,63¢ —
Realized loss on sale of real estate debt investwanried at fair valu — (1,537 —
Realized loss on repurchase agreement carried aafae — (1,850) —
Realized loss on revolving credit facility carrietfair value — (845) —
Total realized (loss) gain from investments, (7) 3,65( 237
Unrealized (loss) gain on real estate debt investroaried at fair valu (1,409 3,66¢ 5,75%
Unrealized loss on securities carried at fair vi (544) 273) (925)
Unrealized loss on repurchase agreement carrifedr atalue — — (58¢)
Unrealized loss on revolving credit facility cadiat fair value — — (132)
Total unrealized (loss) gain from investments, (1,94%) 3,39:¢ 4,10¢
Total realized and unrealized (loss) gain from simeents (1,955 7,04: 4,34¢
Net (loss) income from continuing operatic (782) 9,39¢ 5,44¢
Discontinued operation
Income from discontinued operatic 13 36 104
Total income from discontinued operatic 13 36 104
Net (loss) incomu $ (769 9,43¢ 5,558

See accompanying notes to consolidated financ@#sients.
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CONCORD DEBT HOLDINGS LLC
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Members't@lapi

Years ended December 31, 2012 (unaudited), 2011 and
the period from August 26, 2010 (Inception) throl@gcember 31, 2010 (unaudited)

(In thousands)

Inland
Lexington American
WRT Concord Suk
Concord CDH |

LLC LLC LLC Total
Balance at August 26, 2010 (unaudit $ 7,19¢ 7,19¢ 7,191 21,58¢
Net income 1,894 1,894 1,76% 5,55%
Balance at December 31, 2010 (unaudi 9,09( 9,09( 8,967 27,14:
Net income 3,14¢ 3,14¢ 3,144 9,43¢
Distribution (3,21€) (3,21€) (2,900 (9,337)
Balance at December 31, 2C 9,01¢ 9,01¢ 9,20¢ 27,24«
Net loss (512) — (257) (769)
Transfer of equit 8,66¢ (8,66¢) — —
Distribution (492) (351) (280) (1,1279)
Balance at December 31, 2012 (unaudi $16,68: — 8,66¢ 25,35:

See accompanying notes to consolidated financ@#sients.
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CONCORD DEBT HOLDINGS LLC
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Years ended December 31, 2012 (unaudited), 2011 and

the period from August 26, 2010 (Inception) throl@gcember 31, 2010 (unaudited)
(In thousands)

Cash flows from operating activitie
Net (loss) incoms

Adjustments to reconcile net (loss) income to rethcprovided by operating activitie
Unrealized loss (gain) on real estate debt investroaried at fair valu

Realized gain on sale of securities carried atfaline
Realized loss on sale of securities carried atviaine

Realized loss on sale of real estate debt investwamried at fair valu
Realized gain on sale of real estate debt invedtoanied at fair valu

Realized loss on repurchase agreement carried abfae
Realized loss on credit facility carried at faitua
Unrealized loss on securities carried at fair vi
Unrealized loss on repurchase agreement carritedr atalue
Unrealized loss on credit facility carried at feaue
Changes in operating assets and liabilit
Interest receivabl
Other asset
Other liabilities
Net cash provided by operating activit
Cash flows from investing activitie
Proceeds from sale of securities carried at feires
Repayment of real estate debt investm
Proceeds from sale of real estate debt investn
Advances on real estate debt investm
Purchase of real estate debt investm
Change in restricted ca
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activi
Cash flows from financing activitie
Cash proceeds from reorganizat
Repayments on repurchase agreem
Repayment of revolving credit facili
Distribution to member
Net cash used in financing activiti
Net decrease in cash and cash equiva
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
Cash and cash equivalents at end of

Period from
August 26,
2010
(inception)
through
December 31
2012 2011 2010
(unaudited (unaudited’
$ (769 9,43¢ 5,55¢
1,402 (3,66¢) (5,759
— (370 (237)
7 1,123 —
— 1,53z —
— (8,639 —
— 1,85( —
— 84t —
544 27¢% 92t
— — 58€
— — 132
@) 28¢ 16C
78 15 (43)
(107) (185) 85
1,15¢ 2,50¢ 1,41(C
— 37C 1,68:
3 — 64t
— 56,67 771
(1,277 — 10
— (11,000 —
(1,000) 2,21¢ (80)
(2,26%) 48,25¢ 3,02¢
— — 2,76t
— (6,137) (1,069
— (35,599 (2,45()
(1,129 (9,337) (40€)
(1,129 (51,06¢) (1,157
(2,237 (309) 3,281
2,97¢ 3,281 —
$ 741 2,97¢ 3,281
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CONCORD DEBT HOLDINGS LLC
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years ended December 31, 2012 (unaudited), 2011 and

the period from August 26, 2010 (Inception) throl@gcember 31, 2010 (unaudited)

(In thousands)

Supplemental cash flow informatic
Interest paic

Supplement disclosure of noncash investing anchéimg activities
Debt assumed on sale of real estate investmeairah&rket value

Noncash investing activity
The following represents the increase in certagetssand liabilities in connection with the Comg's
reorganization

Restricted cas
Real estate debt investme
Securities
Interest receivabl
Other asset
Repurchase agreemel
Revolving credit facility
Sut-participation obligatior
Other liabilities
Member capital

See accompanying notes to consolidated financ@#sients.

2012

2011

Period from
August 26,
2010
(inception)
through
December 31
2010

(unaudited

$
$

691

56,09(

(unaudited’

68€
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CONCORD DEBT HOLDINGS LLC

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2012 (unaudited), 2011, and the pémoad August 26, 2010 (inception)
through December 31, 2010 (unaudited)

(1) Description of Business and Basis of Presentatic

@)

(b)

Formation and Ownershig

Concord Debt Holdings LLC (the Company) is a Deleanited liability company (LLC) that was origithaformed on March 31, 2006
(Formation Date). At its Formation Date, the Compamas owned 50% each by Winthrop Realty Trust (Whop) and Lexington Master
Limited Partnership (Lexington).

On August 2, 2008 (Recapitalization Date), the Camypwas recapitalized and amended and restated@sagreement to admit Inland
American Concord Sub, LLC (Inland). Inland receieredeemable preferred membership interest inagygehfor new capital invested in
the Company. Concurrently with the admission ol as a preferred member, Lexington and Winthampributed all of their interest in
the Company to Lex-Win Concord, LLC (Lex-Win), whiwas owned 50% by Winthrop and 50% by Lexingtod bex-Win was
designated as the Company’s managing member.

Winthrop and Lexington funded 100% of their cap@tammitments of $162,500,000 prior to the Compaagsiission of Inland as a
preferred member and Inland invested $76,000,0@0arCompany as a result of the Company’s recagatiin.

On August 26, 2010 (Reorganization Date or Inceptithe Company was reorganized and its LLC agreémas amended and restate:
admit two new Lexington and Winthrop affiliatesrasmbers, Lexington CDH | LLC and WRT-Concord LLGr€urrently, Inland’s
existing preferred member interest was eliminatedi llex-Win was dissolved after it distributed i80% common member interest in the
Company to the newly admitted members and Inlanglgg resulting in each member having an equa8@3common member interest
with Inland designated as the Company’s managinuioee.

As of the Reorganization Date, Winthrop and Leximgéffectively reduced their 50%/50% common menitterests and Inland
exchanged its preferred member interest for a commember interest. As a result of the Reorganinatach held an equal one-third
common member interest in the Company. Incomevisiell equally among members and distributions efrafing cash flow, capital
proceeds, and quarterly guarantees are made indacee with the LLC agreement. The Companyembers are not required to make
future capital contributions to the Company. On Mag012, WRT-Concord LLC purchased the equity @fihgton CDH | LLC and now
owns two-thirds of the common member interest em@ompany.

Business Purpose and Opening Balance Sheet at Inicep

Through its subsidiaries, the Company was origirf@imed in 2006 to acquire real estate whole | subordinate real estate debt
investments such as B-notes and mezzanine loansommohercial real estate securities including cetlaized debt obligations (CDO'’s)
and collateralized mortgage-backed securities (CMRBS&ich are further characterized as either pooids or rake bonds. A rake bond is a
junior interest in a securitized mortgage loan,chittias been structured in one or more classes &Xdd issued in a transaction that
solely relates to one particular mortgage loan.

7 (Continued
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CONCORD DEBT HOLDINGS LLC

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2012 (unaudited), 2011, and the pémoad August 26, 2010 (inception)
through December 31, 2010 (unaudited)

On the Reorganization Date, the Company divesse@mO subsidiary. Therefore, the opening balaneetstf the Company at Inception
consists of the remaining non-CDO assets accodatath a fair value basis of accounting.

(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

@

(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

Principles of Consolidatior

The consolidated financial statements include tu@ants of the Company, and its subsidiaries, whreheither wholly owned or
controlled by the Company. The Company identifietities for which control is achieved through meatiser than through voting rights
variable interest entity or VIE) through the an#@yas set forth in ASC 810onsolidation of Variable Interest Entitiasnd determines whe
and which business enterprise, if any, should datete the VIE. In addition, the Company disclosgsrmation pertaining to such entiti
wherein the Company is the primary beneficiary thieo entities wherein the Company has a signifisangable interest. All significant
intercompany transactions and balances have beeimated.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statesmé@ntonformity with accounting principles geneyaccepted in the United States of
America (GAAP) requires management to make estisnate assumptions in determining the reported ate@irassets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilitiethatdate of the consolidated financial statememdisthe reported amounts of revenue and
expenses during the reporting period. Significatingates in the consolidated financial statemertkide the valuation of the Company’s
real estate debt investments and available-forssdarities and estimates pertaining to creditulctesults could differ materially from
those estimates.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Company maintains cash deposits and restrieteld deposits, which balances from time to time; ex@eed federally insured limits.
The Company believes it mitigates its risk of Ibgsmaintaining its cash deposits with major finahaistitutions. To date, the Company
has not experienced any losses of its cash depBsitd estate debt investments and available-erssurities can potentially subject the
Company to concentrations of credit risk. Manageméithe Company performs ongoing credit evaluaiohborrowers and valuations of
the real property and interests that collateratiseCompany’s investments.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

All highly liquid investments with maturities of e months or less at time of acquisition and de@balance sheets date are considered
to be cash equivalents. The Company places itsaraltash equivalents in major financial institngio

Restricted Casl
The Company had $1,000,000 of restricted cash beaember 31, 2012, which is being held in thera&p escrow fund (see
commitments and contingencies). At December 31120t Company had no restricted funds.

8 (Continued
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(h)
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(k)

CONCORD DEBT HOLDINGS LLC

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2012 (unaudited), 2011, and the pémoad August 26, 2010 (inception)
through December 31, 2010 (unaudited)

Fair Value Measurements

The Company has elected the fair value option tasuee the Company’s financial instruments includieg) estate debt investments,
securities, and debt outstanding. The fair valuthege financial instruments is the amount thatldibe received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction beem market participants at the measurement datetlie exit price) and changes in the fair
value are recorded in earnings as unrealized gdoss in the consolidated statements of operations

Real Estate Debt Investmen

Loans are stated at the estimated fair value.daténcome is recorded on the accrual basis inrdaoce with the terms of the respective
loan. Loans on which the accrual of interest hanlmiscontinued are designated as nonaccrual loans.

The Company recognizes interest income on certaperforming real estate debt investments usingalsb-basis method. The accrual of
interest on loans is discontinued when principahterest payments are past due 90 days or wheheiapinion of management, it is
probable it will be unable to collect contractughpipal and interest in the normal course of bes@ When loans are placed on nonact
status, all interest previously accrued but noectéd is reversed against current period inténesime. Income on nonaccrual loans is
subsequently recognized only to the extent thdt taeeceived and the loan’s principal balanceeisnded collectible.

Member¢ Capital
Capital contributions, distributions, and profiteddosses are allocated in accordance with thestefrthe Company’s LLC Agreement.
Gain on Sale of Loans

All loans sold to date have been sold without reseuWhen loans are sold, a gain or loss is rezedrto the extent that the sales proceeds
plus unamortized fees and costs exceed or ar¢h@sghe carrying value of the loans. Gains angdssre determined using the specific-
identification method.

Income Taxes

The Company is an LLC and is treated as a partipefshU.S. Federal income tax purposes. Accordingb provision or benefit for
income taxes is made in the consolidated finarst&bments since taxable income or loss passagthio, and is reportable by its
members on their respective income tax returns.é¥ew the Company is required to pay certain statklocal entity level taxes which
expensed as incurred and included in general amihigtrative expenses in the consolidated statesmndperations.

Recently Issued Accounting Standar

On May 12, 2011 the Financial Accounting Stand&dard (FASB) issued Accounting Standards Updatd{N$o. 2011-04Fair Value
Measurement (Topic 820) — Amendments to Achieven®arkair Value Measurement and Disclosure Requirgsni@a U.S. GAAP and
IFRS, which results in changes to common fair valuesueament and disclosure requirements. Consequémiyamendments change the
wording used to describe many of the requiremenGAAP for measuring fair value and for disclosinfprmation about fair value
measurements. Certain amendments in this updatfydlee FASB's intent about the application of kg fair value measurement
requirements. Other amendments change requirerfoenteasuring fair value or for disclosing infornaeat about fair value measuremel
The requirements of the ASU have been includedtie 8.

9 (Continued
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CONCORD DEBT HOLDINGS LLC

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2012 (unaudited), 2011, and the pémoad August 26, 2010 (inception)
through December 31, 2010 (unaudited)

Fair Value Measurement

Accounting guidance establishes a fair value messent framework, provides a single definition of fealue based on the assumptions that
market participants would use in pricing an assdiability and requires expanded disclosure suninvgg fair value measurements.

The accounting guidance establishes a hierarchinfpaits used in measuring fair value that maximthesuse of observable inputs and
minimizes the use of unobservable inputs by reqgithat the most observable input be used whemadnai Observable inputs are inputs that
market participants would use in pricing the asséiability based on market data obtained fromrses independent of the Company.
Unobservable inputs are inputs that reflect the @amy’s assumptions about the assumptions market panticipvould use in pricing the asse
liability based on the best information availabighe circumstances. The hierarchy is measurduréetievels based on the reliability of inputs:

Level 1 — Inputs to the valuation methodology aneted prices (unadjusted) for identical assetsabilities in active markets.

Level 2 — Inputs to the valuation methodology imt#uquoted prices for similar assets and liabilitieactive markets, and inputs that are
observable for the asset or liability, either dikgor indirectly, for substantially the full terof the financial instrument.

Level 3 — Inputs to the valuation methodology amehservable and significant to the fair value mezsent. Valuations derived from other
valuation methodologies, including pricing modeliscounted cash flow models, and similar technigaed not based on market, exchange,
dealer, or broker-traded transactions. Level 3atédns incorporate certain assumptions and prajestihat are not observable in the market and
significant professional judgment in determining fhir value assigned to such assets or liabilities

In instances where the determination of the faiueaneasurement is based on inputs from differgl of the fair value hierarchy, the level in
the fair value hierarchy within which the entirérfealue measurement falls is based on the lovess linput that is significant to the fair value
measurement in its entirety.

(@) Fair Value Option

The fair value option election allows companiegtevocably elect fair value measurement attribdteccertain financial assets and
liabilities. The fair value option election is pdtted on an instrument-by-instrument basis atahitecognition for real estate debt
investments, securities, and debt outstandingeaCtimpany’s inception and ongoing. The Companyt&lbe fair value option to mitigate
a divergence between accounting and economic erpoShanges in fair value for assets and liabslife which the election is made will
be recognized in earnings as they occur.

10 (Continued
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CONCORD DEBT HOLDINGS LLC

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2012 (unaudited), 2011, and the pémoad August 26, 2010 (inception)
through December 31, 2010 (unaudited)

The following is a description of the valuationhe@ues used for investments measured at fair yakievell as the general classificatiol
such instruments pursuant to the valuation hiegsarch

Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Restricted Cash

The Company’s cash, cash equivalents, and restrigeh are generally classified within Level 1t fair value hierarchy because they
are valued using quoted market prices, broker atedeuotations, or alternative pricing sourceshwitasonable levels of price
transparency. The types of instruments valued basegioted market prices in active markets inclmdst U.S. government securities
with original maturities less than 90 days and nmoshey market securities.

Real Estate Debt Investmen

Real estate debt investments are nonpublic invergnie loan assets collateralized by real estag¢enining the fair value of nonpublic
investments involves a significant degree of manegd judgment as no quoted prices exist and suasiments are generally very
illiquid. Due to the unique nature of the individpaoperties collateralizing the Company’s loah& €Company uses the income or market
approach, as deemed appropriate. Fair value detation through the income approach is estimateauititr the use of a discounted cash
flow model. In addition to the characteristics loé tunderlying loans (including principal, contradtinterest rate, and contractual fees),
inputs to the model include interest rates, pregaymates, and credit spreads. Fair value estinfiaesinternal valuation techniques are
then verified, where possible, to prices obtairredfindependent valuation specialists that useanilyna discounted cash flow model
using similar inputs for valuation. Real estatetdebestments are classified as Level 3 of thewvalue hierarchy since valuation models
are based on significant inputs that are unobsérvalthe market.

Securities

The securities portfolio comprises commercial magepacked securities. The Company considers the &ilétyeof quoted market price

If quoted market prices are not available for thecific security, the Company may estimate theealusuch instruments using a
combination of observed transaction prices, inddpahpricing services, and relevant broker qudessideration is given to the nature of
the quotes (e.qg., indicative or firm) and the fielahip of recently evidenced market activity. Mgement also performs further analysit
the performance of the loans and collateral undeglyhe securities, the estimated value of theatetal supporting such loans and a
consideration of local, industry, and broader ecoiedrends and factors. Because significant judgraed unobservable market inputs are
used in the estimation of these metrics and thmate determination of fair value, this valuatioetirodology has been characterized as
Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy.

11 (Continued
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CONCORD DEBT HOLDINGS LLC

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2012 (unaudited), 2011, and the pémoad August 26, 2010 (inception)
through December 31, 2010 (unaudited)

(e) Items Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Bas

The following tables present for each of the failue hierarchy levels the Compasyssets and liabilities that are measured av&ie or
a recurring basis at December 31, 2012 and 201thgimsands):

Quoted
prices
in active Significant
markets for
other Significant Balance a
identical observable unobservable
assets and Decembel
liabilities inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) 2012
(unaudited;
Assets:
Cash and cash equivale $ 741 — — 741
Restricted cas 1,00( — — 1,00(
Real estate debt investme — — 23,49: 23,49:
Securities — — 30 30
Quoted
prices
in active Significant
markets for
other Significant Balance a
identical observable unobservable
assets an( Decembel
liabilities inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) 2011
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalel $ 2,97¢ — — 2,97¢
Real estate debt investme — — 23,627 23,627
Securities — — 581 581

12 (Continued
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CONCORD DEBT HOLDINGS LLC

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2012 (unaudited), 2011, and the pémoad August 26, 2010 (inception)

through December 31, 2010 (unaudited)

Changes in Level 3 Fair Value Measurements

The following is a reconciliation of the beginniagd ending balances for assets measured at faie wal a recurring basis using significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3) during the years dridiecember 31, 2012, 2011 and for the period frargust 26, 2010 (Inception) through

December 31, 2010 (in thousands):

Fair value, August 26, 2010 (unaudited) (Inception)

Total realized and unrealized gains and lossesdied in statement of
operations

Repayments of securities, investments and |

Sale of investments and securit

Fair value, December 31, 2010 (unaudit

Total realized and unrealized gains and lossesdecl in statements of
operations

Repayments of securities, investments, and |

Purchase of investmer

Debt assumed on sale of investm

Sale of investments and securit

Fair value, December 31, 20

Total realized and unrealized gains and lossesdedl in statements of
operations

Repayments of securities, investments, and |

Advance on real estate debt investmt

Debt assumed on sale of investm

Sale of investments and securit

Fair value, December 31, 2012 (unaudit

13

Sub-
Real estate Repurchase¢ participation
debt Credit
investments Securities agreement: facility obligation
$109,64¢ 9,08¢ 60,85 37,07 4,50(
5,75 (925) 58¢ 13z (237)
(10 (64E) (1,069 (2,450) (409)
(777) (1,682 — — —
114,62: 5,83¢ 60,37 34,75¢ 3,85¢
10,76¢ (1,030) 1,85( 84t —
— (370) (6,137) (35,599 (3,855
11,00( — — — —
(56,090) — (56,090) — —
(56,677) (3,85¢) — — —
23,62% 581 — — —
(1,409 (551) — — —
©) — — — —
1,272 — — — —
$ 23,49: 3C — — —

(Continued
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CONCORD DEBT HOLDINGS LLC

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2012 (unaudited), 2011, and the pémoad August 26, 2010 (inception)
through December 31, 2010 (unaudited)

Sub-
Real estate Repurchase Credit participation
debt
investments Securities agreement: facility obligation
Change in unrealized loss included in earningsedlto the investmen
still held at December 31, 2012 (unaudit $ (1,019 (5449 — — —
Change in unrealized gain (loss) included in egsirlated to th
investments still held at December 31, 2! $ 3,66¢ (273) — — —

The following table presents additional quantitatinformation about assets measured at fair vadudf Becember 31, 2012 (unaudited) on a recurring
and nonrecurring basis for which the Company héized Level 3 inputs to determine fair value (éo# in thousands).

Unobservable  Weighted

Unobservable input
Financial instruments Fair value Valuation technigue input value or range average
Real estate debt investments $23,49. Discounted cash flo Discountrat 7.1%-8.6% 7.88%

(f)  Transfers between Level 1, Level 2, and Levealf3he Fair Value Hierarchy

There were no transfers of assets or liabilitisvben Levels 1, 2, or 3 of the fair value hierardying the years ended December 31,
2012 and 2011 and period from August 26, 2010 tcebder 31, 2010.

(4) Real Estate Debt Investment:

Real estate debt investments, consisting of wtoalad, B-Note participation interests, and mezzaloiaes, are held for investment and are
carried at fair value. B-Notes are junior positi@fisvhole loans. Mezzanine loans are loans thasaberdinate to a conventional first mortgage
loan, including B Notes and senior to the borrogw@quity in a transaction. These loans may bearidim of a junior participating interest in 1
senior debt. Mezzanine financing may take the fofeans collateralized by pledges of ownershipriests in entities that directly or indirectly
control the real property or subordinated loantatedalized by second mortgage liens on the prgpert

14 (Continued
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CONCORD DEBT HOLDINGS LLC

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2012 (unaudited), 2011, and the pémoad August 26, 2010 (inception)
through December 31, 2010 (unaudited)

The Company’s methodology to fair value these itmesits considers amongst others, the collaterakvall the underlying assets. The following table
is a summary of the Company’s real estate debsinvents at December 31, 2012 and 2011 (in thousands

2012 (unaudited)

Real estate
debt
investments
at fair value Loan count
B-notes $ 10,62: 3
Mezzanine loan 12,87( 2
Total loans $ 23,49: 5
2011
Real estate
debt
investments
at fair value Loan count
B-notes $ 10,99( 3
Mezzanine loan 12,63 2
Total loans $ 23,621 5

The following table sets forth the maturity datesthe Company’s real estate debt investments e¢mber 31, 2012 and 2011 (in thousands):

December 31, 2012 (unauditec

Number of
loan asset Percentagt
Principal
Year of maturity (1) maturing balance Fair value of total
2013 3 $11,89" 10,62: 45%
2014 — — — —
2015 — — — —
2016 2 12,89¢ 12,87( 55
2017 and thereaftt — — — —
Total real estate debt investme 5 $24,79: 23,49: 10C%

15 (Continued
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CONCORD DEBT HOLDINGS LLC

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2012 (unaudited), 2011, and the pémoad August 26, 2010 (inception)
through December 31, 2010 (unaudited)

(1) Weighted average maturity is 2.28 years. Theutation of weighted average maturity is basednugh@ remaining initial term and does not take
into account any maturity extension period or thiditst to prepay the investment after a negotidtak-out period, which may be available to

borrower.
December 31, 201
Number of
loan asset Percentagt
Principal
Year of maturity (1) maturing balance Fair value of total
2012 3 $11,01¢ 10,99( 47%
2013 — — — —
2014 — — — —
2015 — — —
2016 and thereaftt 2 12,90( 12,631 53
Total real estate debt investme 5 $23,91¢ 23,62 10C%

(1) Weighted average maturity is 2.83 years. Theutation of weighted average maturity is basedruhe remaining initial term and does not take
into account any maturity extension period or thiditst to prepay the investment after a negotidtezk-out period, which may be available to
borrower. The weighted average maturity with thereise of any extension options is 3.34 ye

The Company considers a loan to be nonperformidgpdaces loans on nonaccrual status at such timeaasgement determines it is probable that it
will be unable to collect all amounts due accordimghe contractual terms of the loan. While onawmmual status, based on the Company’s judgment
as to collectibility of principal, loans are eitrercounted for on a cash basis, where interesiriads recognized only upon actual receipt of caslon

a cost-recovery basis, where all cash receiptsceeddoan’s carrying value. As of December 31, 2@i&re were two nonaccrual loans.

Credit Risk Concentrations

Concentrations of credit risk arise when a numtbdroorowers, tenants, or issuers related to the fizmy's investments are engaged in similar busi
activities or located in the same geographic lecesind are similarly affected by changes in econaronditions. The Company monitors its portfolio
to identify potential concentrations of credit riglhe Company’s real estate debt investments codgtt investments collateralized with office
buildings, and represent 100% of the unpaid preddilance and fair value of real estate debt imvests as of December 31, 2012 and 2011.

As of December 31, 2012, two loans exceeded 10#teo€ompany’s assets and for the year ended Deece8hb2012, there were three loans that
generated more than 10% of the Company’s income.

As of December 31, 2011, two loans exceeded 10#teo€ompany’s assets and for the year ended Dece3tib2011, there were no loans that
generated more than 10% of the Company’s income.

During the year ended December 31, 2012, the Coyngiamot sell any loans.

16 (Continued
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CONCORD DEBT HOLDINGS LLC

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2012 (unaudited), 2011, and the pémoad August 26, 2010 (inception)
through December 31, 2010 (unaudited)

During the year ended December 31, 2011, the Coynpald eight loans for total proceeds of $56.7 ionll The Company recognized a net
realized gain of $7.1 million from the sale in 20The Company had recognized an accumulated ureeladjain of $4.7 million at the beginning
of 2011.

(5) Securities Carried at Fair Value

The Company has a portfolio of loan securities theludes three investments at December 31, 20d2@h1. These bonds are marked to fair
value on a recurring basis.

The cost and fair value of securities at fair valteze as follows (in thousands):

2012 (unaudited)

Unrealized Unrealized
Par Cost basi: gains (losses) Fair value
CMBS:
Pool Bonds $15,39: 1,122 — (1,097) 30
Total securities at fair valt $15,39: 1,122 — (1,097) 30
2011
Unrealized Unrealized
Par Cost basi: gains (losses) Fair value
CMBS:
Pool Bonds $15,40( 1,12z — (541) 581
Total securities at fair valt $15,40( 1,127 — (541) 581

The table below shows the fair value of investmémesvailable-for-sale securities that have beeaniunrealized loss position for less than
12 months or for 12 months or longer at Decembef812 and 2011 (in thousands):

2012 (unaudited)

Less than 12 months 12 months or longer Total
Gross Gross Gross
unrealized unrealized unrealized
Fair value losses Fair value losses Fair value losses
CMBS:
Pool Bonds $ — — 3C 1,09z 30 1,09z
Total securities $ — — 30 1,092 30 1,09:

17
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CONCORD DEBT HOLDINGS LLC

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2012 (unaudited), 2011, and the pémoad August 26, 2010 (inception)
through December 31, 2010 (unaudited)

2011
Less than 12 month: 12 months or longer Total
Gross Gross Gross
unrealized unrealized unrealized
Fair value losses Fair value losses Fair value losses
CMBS:
Pool Bonds $ — — 581 (541) 581 (541)
Total securitie: $ — — 581 (541) 581 (541
2010 (unaudited)
Less than 12 monthsg 12 months or longer Total
Gross Gross Gross
unrealized unrealized unrealized
Fair value losses Fair value losses Fair value losses
CMBS:
Rake Bond: $ 3,85t — — — 3,85¢ —
Pool Bonds 1,981 (925) — — 1,981 (925)
Total securitie: $ 5,83¢ (925) — — 5,83¢ (925)

The following table presents the amortized costfairdvalue of debt securities available for safecbntractual maturity dates as of December 312:

and 2011 (in thousands).

CMBS-Pool Bonds
Due within 1 yea
After 1 but within 5 year
Total CMBS— Pool Bonds

CMBS-Pool Bonds
Due within 1 yea
After 1 but within 5 year
Total CMBS— Pool Bonds

2012 (unaudited)

Cost Fair value
$ — —

1,122 30
$1,127 30

2011

Cost Fair value
$ — —

1,122 581
$1,12: 581

Changes in fair value of securities are reflectethé statements of operations as unrealized gdosses on securities. During the year ended

December 31, 2012, the Company did not sell anyriess.

Changes in fair value of securities are reflectethé statements of operations as unrealized gdosses on securities. During the year ended
December 31, 2011, the Company sold four secufitiea total proceed of $370 thousand. The Compeaoggnized a net realized loss of $757
thousand from the sale in 2011. The Company hazhrézed an accumulated unrealized loss of $659%ti at the beginning of 2011.

18
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CONCORD DEBT HOLDINGS LLC

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2012 (unaudited), 2011, and the pémoad August 26, 2010 (inception)
through December 31, 2010 (unaudited)

Variable Interest Entities

A reporting entity is required to perform an an&yte determine if its variable interests give tatrolling financial interest in a variable irgst
entity (VIE). The analysis required under ASC 8dénitifies the primary beneficiary of a VIE as tmtity having both of the following: (1) the

power to direct the activities of a variable intrentity that most significantly impact the erititeeconomic performance and (2) the obligatio
absorb losses of the entity that could potentiadysignificant to the VIE or the right to receiveniefits from the entity that could potentially be
significant to the VIE. FASB’s accounting guidarareconsolidation requires a VIE to be consoliddtgdts primary beneficiary.

In addition, a reporting entity must assess whetheas an implicit financial responsibility to eme that a VIE operates as designed when
determining if it has the power to direct the aititag of the VIE that most significantly affect teatity’'s economic performance. FASB requires
ongoing reassessments of whether a reporting estibe primary beneficiary of a VIE. Specificalthe list of reconsideration events includes a
change in facts and circumstances where the hotdens equity investment at risk as a group logepibwer to direct the activities of the entity
that most significantly affect the entity’s econemieerformance. In addition, a troubled debt-redtmiicg is now defined as a reconsideration
event.

At December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Company haéalcestate debt investments that were deemed a VIE.

Discontinued Operations

The Company received expense reimbursements faranse and real estate taxes of approximately $03$86,000 and $104,000 for the years
ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 and period eneleehiber 31, 2010, respectively, related to an ¢tipgraroperty held for sale and
subsequently sold by the Company’s predecessarforihe Company’s inception. The property wasatelal on a loan that the Company’s
predecessor obtained through foreclosure and veasdied in discontinued operations of Company’s peedsor. Therefore the Company
included this reimbursement as income of discoetihoperations.

Commitment and Contingencies

In December 2011, Concord Real Estate CDO 2006¢l,(the CDO), Cedarwoods CRE CDO I, Ltd., ReseuReal Estate Funding CDO
2006-1 Ltd., and TCG Holdings | LLC (collectivelpe Plaintiffs), brought an action in New York Sere Court (the trial court in New York)
against Galante Holdings, Inc., Trimont Real Estadeisors, Hotspur Resorts Nevada, Ltd. AberdeealtiRéloldings, Ltd., Keycorp Real Esti
Capital Markets, Inc., and Douglas S. Rohrer (otiNely, the Defendants). The action sought to ierlee sale of the mortgage loan relating to
the JW Marriott Hotel in Las Vegas, Nevada (the LJ¥%n). Both Concord and CDO hold CMBS bonds forahithe JW Loan is underlying
asset.
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CONCORD DEBT HOLDINGS LLC

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2012 (unaudited), 2011, and the pémoad August 26, 2010 (inception)
through December 31, 2010 (unaudited)

As a condition to obtaining the injunction, in Janu2012, the New York Appellate Court requiredt tiha Plaintiffs post a $2,000,000 surety
bond. In this regard, one of the Plaintiffs (thea@nteeing Plaintiff) agreed to guaranty the oliliges under the surety bond. The CDO and each
of the other Plaintiffs entered into an agreemeittt the Guaranteeing Plaintiff pursuant to whica @DO agreed to pay its pro rata share

(25%) of any payments required to be made by ther&@ueeing-Plaintiff to the surety bond issuer af &s 50% of any amounts that the two
other co-Plaintiffs were obligated to the extemytireached their obligations. Concord, which &islds a bond in the CMBS that contains the
JW Loan, agreed to provide cash collateral forGBe’s obligations to the guaranteeing Plaintiff.cAadingly, such amount is characterized as
restricted funds. Management believes that thditikked of a claim on such amounts is remote. ABefember 31, 2012, this litigation has not
been resolved.

Relatec-Party Transactions
For the years ended December 31, 2012 and 201Campany received advancing agent fees from Con€®@ in the amount of $48,000 and
$57,000, respectively.

CDH-CDO LLC, a related party to the Company, asslithe equity interest in the property secured By@million real estate debt investments
held by the Company. The investments are schedaolethture in July 2013.

For the year ended December 31, 2011 and periddrieg August 26, 2010 and ending December 31, 20 H0Company sold real estate debt
investments and securities to an affiliate of Whafhfor net proceeds of $29,000,000 and $2,453 @3pectively, which was also the carrying
value at the time of sale.

Subsequent Event:

In connection with the preparation of the consdbddinancial statements, the Company evaluatedesjent events after the consolidated
balance sheets date of December 31, 2012 througthM2, 2013, which was the date the consolidatexh€ial statements were available to be
issued.

On February 4, 2013, the Thanksgiving loan witaegefvalue of $1,053,085 and a fair market valusOofvent into foreclosure. The loan was
carried at $0 at December 31, 2012.
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Table of Contents

Exhibit 99.2

SEALY NORTHWEST ATLANTA PARTNERS, L.P.
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS DECEMBER 31,
2012 (UNAUDITED), 2011 AND 2010 (UNAUDITED)



Table of Contents

Index to Consolidated Financial Statements

Report of Independent Registered Public AccounfEing

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, (20&a2dited) and 201 2
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the yeaded December 31, 2012 (unaudited), 2011, ahd @thaudited 3
Consolidated Statements of Part’ Capital for the years ended December 31, 2012ugited), 2011, and 2010 (unaudite 4
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the yeaed December 31, 2012 (unaudited), 2011, ahd @haudited 5
Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme 7



Table of Contents

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Partners of
Sealy Northwest Atlanta Partners, L.P.
Shreveport, Louisiana

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsimeet of Sealy Northwest Atlanta Partners, (th.“Partnership”) as of December 31, 2011,
and the related consolidated statements of opestfartners’ capital, and cash flows for the ykan ended. These consolidated financial statements
are the responsibility of the Partnership’s managemOur responsibility is to express an opiniorttese consolidated financial statements based on
our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stedgdof the Public Company Accounting Oversightld&@nited States). Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reabnassurance about whether the consolidatedcieiestatements are free of material misstatement.
The Partnership is not required to have, nor wezeemgaged to perform, an audit of its internal mdrver financial reporting. Our audit included
consideration of internal control over financigboeting as a basis for designing audit procedurasdre appropriate in the circumstances, butorot f
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effentiss of the Partnership’s internal control oirearfcial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such
opinion. An audit also includes examining, on d besis, evidence supporting the amounts and disds in the consolidated financial statements,
assessing the accounting principles used and &ignifestimates made by management, as well asagiraj the overall consolidated financial
statement presentation. We believe that our auditiges a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statetaeeferred to above present fairly, in all matieréspects, the financial position of the Partmigras
of December 31, 2011, and the results of its ojmraiand its cash flows for the year then endesbirformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

/sl Frazier & Deeter, LLC

March 9, 2012
Atlanta, Georgia
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SEALY NORTHWEST ATLANTA PARTNERS, L.P.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2012 (UNAUDITED) AND 2011

ASSETS

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Buildings and improvemen
Land
Land improvement
Tenant improvementi
Total property and equipment, at ¢
Less accumulated depreciati
Total property and equipment, r

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
RESTRICTED CASH

OTHER ASSETS
Deferred rent receivab
Deferred financing costs, net of accumulated ammatitin of $189,925 and $39,310 for 2012 and =
Prepaid expenses and other as
Other receivable
Tenant rent receivable, n
Due from related partie
Deferred leasing costs, net of accumulated amdidizaf $570,058 and $452,763 for 2012 and 2

Total other asser
TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES AND PARTNERS ' CAPITAL

LIABILITIES
Note payable, less holdback of $700,!
Accrued interest payab
Due to related partie
Accounts payable and accrued exper
Unearned revenue
Tenant security deposi

Total liabilities
PARTNERS' CAPITAL
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND PARTNERS ' CAPITAL

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbsteitements.

2

2012

(UNAUDITED) 2011

$22,600,49 $22,600,49
8,048,57! 8,048,57!
3,967,04. 3,967,04.
2,639,92! 2,450,69
37,256,04 37,066,81
7,290,67. 6,162,38!
29,965,37 30,904,42
274,84° 610,56
436,73 144 ,95;
534,87: 534,28¢
408,34 558,95¢
37,39: 82,35¢
— 37,82¢

96,31 —
4,45( 3,95(C
354,60¢ 427,31
1,435,97 1,644,68!
$32,112,93 $33,304,62
$13,773,00  $13,969,88
— 67,82¢
— 38¢€
38,28t¢ 133,42:
117,91: 123,98!
156,56: 161,26¢
14,085,76 14,456,76
$18,027,16 $18,847,85
$32,112,93 $33,304,62
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SEALY NORTHWEST ATLANTA PARTNERS, L.P.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED

DECEMBER 31, 2012 (UNAUDITED), 2011, AND 2010 (UNADITED)

REVENUES
Minimum rent
Tenant Reimbursemer
Total revenue

OPERATING EXPENSES
Depreciation and amortizatic
Repairs and maintenan
Property taxe
General and administratiy
Utilities
Management fee
Insurance
Bad debi

Total operating expens
OPERATING INCOME

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE)
Gain on extinguishment of debt and accrued inte
Other income
Interest expens

Total other income (expens
NET INCOME (LOSS)

2012

2010

(UNAUDITED) 2011 (UNAUDITED)
$2236500 $2,516,60. $ 2,559,90:
412,14¢ 444,61( 486,02!
$ 264864  $2,961,21.  $ 3,045,093
1,245,58! 1,133,83 1,085,76!
358,57 432,17( 407,33
346,47 330,23 376,81t
190,05 146,13 216,16t
153,96 144,03 171,54
94,33 106,15 102,85:
62,84 66,67 65,77
— 23,53t 30,72;
2,451,83; 2,382,76 2,456,98
196,81 578,44« 588,94’

— 9,158,57 —
13,70¢ 16,29: 9,58:
(956,217 (2,188,04) (2,051,81()
(942,50) 6,986,81 (2,042,22)
$ (745,69) $7,56526.  $(1,453,28)

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbsteigements.
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SEALY NORTHWEST ATLANTA PARTNERS, L.P.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF PARTNERS’ CAPITAL

FOR THE YEARS ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2012 (UNAUDITED), 2011, AND 2010 (UNADITED)

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2009 (UNAUDITED)
Net Loss

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2010 (UNAUDITED)
Contribution
Net Income

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2011
Distribution
Net Loss

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2012 (UNAUDITED)

Sealy Northwest

Atlanta Ventures WRT-Atlanta,
L.P. L.L.C. Total
$ 1,994,35 $ 2,991,52! $ 4,985,87!
(581,31) (871,96¢) (1,453,28)
1,413,03! 2,119,55 3,532,59!
3,100,001 4,650,00! 7,750,001
3,026,10! 4,539,15! 7,565,26.
7,539,14. 11,308,71 18,847,85
(30,000 (45,000 (75,000
(298,27) (447,419 (745,69))
$ 7,210,86 $10,816,29 $18,027,16

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbsteitements.
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SEALY NORTHWEST ATLANTA, L.P.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED

DECEMBER 31, 2012 (UNAUDITED), 2011 AND 2010 (UNAUDIED)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net income (loss

Adjustments to reconcile net income(loss) to nehgarovided by operating activitie

Depreciation expens
Bad Debt Expens

Amortization of acquired intangible
Amortization of deferred financing cos

Amortization of deferred leas

ing co:

Gain on extinguishment of debt and accrued inte
Changes in assets and liabiliti

Restricted cas
Deferred rent receivab

Prepaid expenses and other as

Tenant rent receivab
Other receivable
Due from related partie

Deferred leasing costs pe

Accrued interes

Accounts payable and accrued exper

Due to related partie
Unearned revenue
Tenant security deposi

Net cash provided by operating activit
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property and equipm

Net cash used in investing activiti

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Contributions from partne!
Deferred financing costs pa
Payments on note payal
Distributions to partner

Net cash used in financing activiti

Change in cash and cash equivalt

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR

Cash paid during the year for inter

2012

2010

(UNAUDITED) 2011 (UNAUDITED)
$ (74569) $7,56526  $(1,453,28)
1,128,28 1,019,13: 986,41
— 23,53¢ 30,72;
150,61 54,11 9,98¢
117,29 114,70( 99,36(
— (9,158,57) —
(291,78f) 254,35 126,07:
(58€) (84,24%) (124,20;)
44,96 17,60( (34,259
(96,31) 43,86 (70,52
37,82¢ (37,82 —
(500) 7,45( (11,400)
(44,597 (152,35 (151,519
(67,82 1,290,73 935,66
(95,13 108,14t (13,239
(386) 38€ —
(6,074 (51,66¢) 15,54¢
(4,709 4,37 (3,539
125,39: 1,018,98: 341,82
(189,23) (221,76) (237,74)
(189,23) (221,76) (237,74)
— 3,100,001 —

— (602,46 —
(196,87¢) (3,130,11) —
(75,000 — _
(271,876 (632,58 —
(335,71 164,64 104,08:
610,56: 445,92: 341,83

$ 27484 $ 61056. $ 44592
$ 80559 $ 843,19; $ 110615

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbsteigements.
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SEALY NORTHWEST ATLANTA, L.P.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEARS ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2012 (UNAUDITED), 2011 AND 2010 (UNAUDIED)

Supplemental Disclosure of Noncash Investing and i@ncing Transactions:

During the year ended December 31, 2011, the Raltipeentered into a discounted payoff option waitlender, whereby, the Lender reduced the
amount of note payable outstanding by $7,000,0@0reduced the amount of accrued interest outstgrigir$2,158,571.

During the year ended December 31, 2011, a refsetgt converted $4,650,000 of a note payable ttnBex’ capital.

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbsteigements.
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SEALY NORTHWEST ATLANTA PARTNERS, L.P.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2012 (UNAUDITED), 2011, AND 2010 (UNADITED)

1. ORGANIZATION

Sealy Northwest Atlanta Partners, L.P. (the “Paghip”), a Delaware limited partnership, was orgadiin December 2006 (expires
December 31, 2056) by Sealy Northwest Atlanta VierstuL.P. (“Sealy”) and WRT-Atlanta, L.L.C. (the ‘RVW™) (collectively, the “Partners”) to
acquire, own, operate, maintain, and lease cectaimmercial properties located in Marietta, Geo(the “Property”). The Partnership acquired
the Property on December 12, 2006 and began opesati

(a) Profits (Losses) Allocatio

Net profits and losses shall be allocated to thénBes in accordance with the terms of the Parhigrgreement. Profits are allocated as
follows:

0] First, to the Partners, in proportion to and toekient of the amounts necessary to cause theital&gcounts to equal the balan
of their Additional Capital Contributions PreferrB&turn Accounts; an

(ii) Second, to the Partners, in proportion to tmthe extent of the amounts necessary to caugeQhpital Accounts to equal the sum
of the amount referred to in tier (i) above, plias balance of their respective Additional Capitah@ibution Accounts; an

(i) Third, to the Partners, in proportion to and to ék&ent of the amounts necessary to cause theitaCAgcounts to equal the sum
the amount referred to in tier (ii) above, plus lfaéance of their respective Initial Capital PregerReturn Account Balances; 8

(iv)  Fourth, to the Partners, in proportion to aodhe extent of the amounts necessary to caugeQhpital Accounts to equal the sum
of the amount referred to in tier (iii) above, pthe balance of their respective Initial Capitah@tdoution Account Balances; al

(v) Fifth, to the Partners, in proportion to andhe extent of the amounts necessary to causeGhagital Accounts to equal the sum of
the amount referred to in tier (iv) to be in thengaproportions as their respective Residual Peagest ant

(vi)  Sixth, any remainder allocated to the Partnergapgrtion to their respective Residual Percentagerésts

7
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SEALY NORTHWEST ATLANTA PARTNERS, L.P.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2012 (UNAUDITED), 2011, AND 2010 (UNADITED)

1. ORGANIZATION (CONTINUED)

(b)

Losses are allocated to the Partners as follows:

@

(ii)
(i)
(iv)
)
(vi)

First, to the Partners in proportion to andhe extent of the amounts necessary to cause thardasmby which such Partners’
Capital Accounts exceed the sum referred to in(igrof the profit allocation shown above to betlie same proportions as their
respective Residual Percentages;

Second, to the Partners in proportion to amthe extent of the amounts necessary to redudeRatners’ Capital Accounts to the
sum referred to in tier (iv) of the profit allocati shown above; ar

Third, to the Partners in proportion to and toektent of the amounts necessary to reduce eache®’ Capital Accounts to th
sum referred to in tier (iii) of the profit alloéan shown above; ar

Fourth, to the Partners in proportion to aadte extent of the amounts necessary to redud¢eRatners’ Capital Accounts to the
sum referred to in tier (i) of the profit allocati shown above; ar

Fifth, to the Partners in proportion to and to éxéent of the amounts necessary to reduce eache® Capital Accounts to th
sum referred to in tier (i) of the profit allocatishown above; ar

Sixth, to the Partners in proportion to, andtie extent of the amounts necessary to causertisgiective Capital Accounts to equal
zero.

Distribution of cash flow
The Partnership’s distributable cash from operatias defined, shall be distributed as follows:

0]
(i)
(iii)

First, to the Partners in proportion to theispective Additional Capital Preferred Return Acttdamlances until such balances are
reduced to zerc

Second, to the Partners in proportion to tmegpective Initial Capital Preferred Return Accob@lances until such balances are
reduced to zero; ar

Third, any balance to the Partners in proportioth&r respective Residual Percentay

8
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SEALY NORTHWEST ATLANTA PARTNERS, L.P.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2012 (UNAUDITED), 2011, AND 2010 (UNADITED)

2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of presentation-The Partnership has adopted Financial Accounttagdards Board (FASB) Codification. The Codificatie the single
official source of authoritative accounting prineip generally accepted in the United States of AcadGAAP) recognized by the FASB to be
applied by non-governmental entities and all of@elification’s content carries the same levelwharity.

Principles of consolidatior-The Partnership’s consolidated financial statesértlude its accounts and the accounts of SealthWest
Atlanta, L.P., which holds the Property and Seatythwest Atlanta General Partner, L.L.C. All intemepany profits, balances and transactions
are eliminated in consolidation.

Cash and cash equivalertsAll highly-liquid debt instruments with originahaturities of three months or less are consideydzktcash
equivalents.

Use of estimates-The preparation of financial statements in conforwith GAAP requires management to make estimatesassumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets antlitied, the disclosure of contingent assets aadilities as of the date of the consolidated
financial statements and the reported amountsveimge and expenses during the reporting periodsiahcesults could differ from those
estimates.

Property and equipmept Property and equipment, including property imgments, are recorded at cost. Major renewals archases of
property and equipment are capitalized. Repairsnagidtenance are charged to operations as incurred.

Property and equipment are depreciated over tegmated useful lives using the straidine method. Estimated useful lives are 5 to 39 yéar
buildings and improvements, and 15 years for lamgrovements. Depreciation of tenant improvementsisputed using the straight-line
method over the life of the respective lease. Daatien expense for the years ended December 32,2011, and 2010 was $1,128,287,
$1,019,138, and $986,410, respectively.

Restricted cash— Restricted cash represents amounts escroweddpefly taxes, insurance, tenant improvements andrissions, and repairs
and improvements.

Deferred charges- Deferred charges consist of financing costs aadihg costs. Deferred financing costs are relatéite Partnership’s note
payable. Financing costs are amortized, as a coempar interest expense, over the term of the lgang a method that approximates the
effective-interest method.
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SEALY NORTHWEST ATLANTA PARTNERS, L.P.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2012 (UNAUDITED), 2011, AND 2010 (UNADITED)

2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES(CONTINUED)

Tenant rent receivable- The Partnershig’ estimate for the allowance for uncollectible ante represents the probable incurred losses witg
tenant receivables as of December 31, 2012 and

2011. The Partnership estimates probable incuaggkk based upon an evaluation of delinquent atcalong with the Partnership’s own
experience with collections and charge-offs. Thewance for doubtful accounts as of December 3122fhd 2011 was $-0- and $12,687,
respectively. Bad debt expense for the years ebdegmber 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010 was $-0-, $23:686%$30,727, respectively.

Revenue recognitior- Minimum rent revenue is recognized on a stralgig-basis over the term of the lease agreemegtsdiess of when
payments are due. Differences between rents hilledcordance with the lease terms and the minimamrevenue recognized on a straitine-
basis are reported as deferred rent receivableima¢companying consolidated financial statemdmtsant reimbursements are recognized as
revenue in the same period the related expensascareed by the Partnership.

Income taxes— No federal or state income taxes are payablééyPartnership, and none have been provided theiaccompanying
consolidated financial statements. The Partnertoarelude their respective shares of Partnerstupme or losses, determined on an income
basis, in their individual tax returns.

The Partnership recognizes the tax benefit frorararertain tax position only if it is more likelygh not the tax position will be sustained on
examination by the taxing authorities, based ortebhnical merits of the position. Tax years tlghain subject to examination by major tax
jurisdictions date back to the year ended Decer@beP009. Federal and state income tax positidtentar anticipated to be taken in the income
tax returns are attributable to the Partners amndonthe entity. As of December 31, 2012, and 2@idre are no known items which would result
in a material accrual attributable to uncertaingasitions.

Impairment of londived assets and loAived assets to be disposed-efThe Partnership reviews long-lived assets anthiceidentifiable
intangibles for impairment whenever events or clearig circumstances indicate that the carrying arthotian asset may not be recoverable.
Recoverability of assets to be held and used isaored by a comparison of the carrying amount cisset to future net cash flows expected to
be generated by the asset. If such assets aralecgdito be impaired, the impairment to be recaghig measured by the amount by which the
carrying amount of the assets exceeds the faiewaflthe assets. Assets to be disposed of aretegpairthe lower of the carrying amount or fair
value less costs to sell. There was no impairmeatge recognized during the years ended Decemb@032, 2011, and 2010.

Subsequent evertsManagement has evaluated subsequent events thktagi 8, 2013.

10
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SEALY NORTHWEST ATLANTA PARTNERS, L.P.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2012 (UNAUDITED), 2011, AND 2010 (UNADITED)

3. DEFERRED FINANCING AND LEASING COST:!

For the year ended December 31, 2011, the Partperald $602,463 of financing costs related tortee note payable. For the year ended
December 31, 2011, the Partnership wrote off $49@Tinancing costs related to the previous loaid pff in 2011 (See Note 5). Amortization
of deferred financing costs was $150,617, $54,4h8,$9,984 for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2nd 2010.

The following is a schedule by year of future arization of deferred financing costs, which are geamortized over the life of the note payal

Year Ending December 3

2013 $150,61¢
2014 150,61
2015 107,11

$408,34-

Amortization of deferred leasing costs was $117,8449.4,700, and $99,360 for the years ended Deae2®&2, 2011, and 2010, respectively.
An additional $31,646, $18,090, and $77,360 of cissions was expensed in 2012, 2011, and 2010, atésply, due to the related leases
having a life of less than one year or a total cassion amount of less than $1,000. The following &chedule by year of future amortization of
deferred leasing costs, which are being amortized the respective life of the lease:

Year Ending December 3

2013 $109,10:
2014 72,157
2015 59,057
2016 37,60:
2017 16,82:
Thereaftel 59,86¢

$354,60¢

11
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SEALY NORTHWEST ATLANTA PARTNERS, L.P.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2012 (UNAUDITED), 2011, AND 2010 (UNADITED)

4. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Partnership has entered into a managementragnéevith a property management company relat&etdy, and will pay a monthly
management fee of 3.5% of gross receipts from thpdrties, less any third-party management fee¥, &0all late payments and returned
checks collected, and an accounting fee of $2,480rmnth. Management fees paid to related paniethé years ended December 31, 2012,
2011 and 2010 were $94,331, $106,154, and $102r858¢ctively. As of December 31, 2012 and 20ldrethvere $-0- and $12,088 of accrued
management fees, respectively. The managementmagné@lso states that the related party may red¢easing commissions of 4.00% to 6.0(
Leasing commissions paid to related parties foytees ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010%261855, $49,418, and $53,887,
respectively. All employees are currently emplopgdSealy Operating Company lll, Inc., a relatedypaand the Partnership periodically
reimburses the management company for the salafrtbge onsite staff. The Partnership also reimmu&ealy & Company, L.L.C., a related
party, for miscellaneous postage, copier chargddank statement fees incurred.

During 2010 the Partnership paid $10,000 on baffefealy Acquisitions, L.L.C., a related party, émsts incurred related to the loan
renegotiation. All amounts were collected in 20Tle remaining related party receivables represmouats paid by the Partnership on behalf of
the Partners for tax preparation and annual registr fees that are expected to be reimbursedna¢ $imne in the future. No interest is due and
there are no set repayment terms on any of theecefsrty receivables.

5. NOTE PAYABLE

On December 12, 2006, the Partnership enterecamticquisition loan (the “Loanfh the amount of $28,750,000 with an unrelateditpairty tc
obtain the Property. The Loan matured January 12 280re interest at a fixed rate of 5.7% per ananthrequired interest only payments until
the loan matured.

On June 23, 2011, WRT made a $20,641,000 bridgettothe Partnership which enabled the Partnetshéatisfy its $28,750,000 first mortgz
loan at a discounted payoff amount of $20,500,8€8,lting in $9,158,571 of cancellation of debt thas reported as a gain on extinguishment
of debt and accrued interest in the consolidate@stent of operations for the year ended Decemhe2(®BL1.

12
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SEALY NORTHWEST ATLANTA PARTNERS, L.P.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2012 (UNAUDITED), 2011, AND 2010 (UNADITED)

5. NOTE PAYABLE (CONTINUED)

On September 29, 2011, the Partnership obtaindédammpent financing in the amount of $14,000,00Gihganterest at Libor plus 5.35% and
maturing on September 29, 2015. In connection thighfinancing, the Partnership purchased an irnteags cap which caps Libor at 1% through
October 1, 2013.

Net proceeds from the new loan plus additionalteapontributions of $4,650,000 from WRT and $3,000 from Sealy were utilized to pay
the bridge loan. The loan bears interest at the URDR - BBA (one month) as normally published bip&mberg Professional Service, which
was 0.21% at December 31, 2012, plus a LIBOR masggaof 5.35%, with a floor on the LIBOR rate af less than 0.25%. The maturity dat
the loan is September 29, 2015, with monthly ppatand interest payments being made on the losedban a 30-year amortization schedule.

A total of $700,000 of the loan was not funded loa ¢losing date. It has been retained by the leaslan unfunded reserve for leasing costs. No
funds have been disbursed as of December 31, 2B0&20an is collateralized by a security intereghie Property and an assignment of rent:
leases. The note is personally guaranteed by defeteies of the Partnership.

Future scheduled principal maturities are as falavDecember 31, 2012:

Year Ending December 3

2013 185,90t
2014 196,74:
2015 13,390,36

$13,773,00

6. OPERATING LEASES

The Partnership leases the Property to tenants wpaeating leases with expiration dates extenthrigf020. The leases typically provide for
minimum rent and other charges to cover certaimaipgy expenses. Minimum future rentals on non-eliable leases at December 31, 2012 are
as follows:

Years Ending December &

2013 1,926,79
2014 1,418,82
2015 1,144,47
2016 846,13:
2017 632,70:
Thereaftel 1,134,54,

$7,103,47'

13
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7. CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISk

The Company maintains its cash in bank depositghdtt times may exceed federally insured limitse Tompany has not experienced any
losses in such accounts.

14
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Partners of
Sealy Newmarket General Partnership
Shreveport, Louisiana

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsimeet of Sealy Newmarket General Partnershig‘Rartnership”) as of December 31, 2011,
and the related consolidated statements of opestfartners’ capital, and cash flows for the yban ended. These consolidated financial statements
are the responsibility of the Partnership’s manag@mOur responsibility is to express an opiniorttese consolidated financial statements based on
our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stedgdof the Public Company Accounting Oversightld&@nited States). Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reablenassurance about whether the consolidatedcieisstatements are free of material misstatement.
The Partnership is not required to have, nor wesemgaged to perform, an audit of its internal m@rver financial reporting. Our audit included
consideration of internal control over financigbogting as a basis for designing audit procedurasdre appropriate in the circumstances, butarot f
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effeotiss of the Partnership’s internal control oirearfcial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such
opinion. An audit also includes examining, on d besis, evidence supporting the amounts and disds in the consolidated financial statements,
assessing the accounting principles used and &ignifestimates made by management, as well asagirgd the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit providesagonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statataeeferred to above present fairly, in all materéspects, the financial position of the Partmigras
of December 31, 2011, and the results of its oeraiand its cash flows for the year then endembirformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

The accompanying consolidated financial statemiesite been prepared assuming that the Partnershigowiinue as a going concern. As discusse
Note 8 to the consolidated financial statementsRartnership has suffered a significant declinrgpierating cash flow from operations and recur

net losses that raise substantial doubt aboubiliyato continue as a going concern. Managemepigsis in regard to these matters are also deskcribe
in Note 8. The consolidated financial statementsatinclude any adjustments that might result ftheoutcome of this uncertainty.

/sl Frazier & Deeter, LLC

March 11, 2013
Atlanta, Georgia



SEALY NEWMARKET GENERAL PARTNERSHIP

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2012 (UNAUDITED) AND 2011

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Buildings and improvemen
Land
Tenant improvement

Total property and equipment, at ¢
Less accumulated depreciati

Total property and equipment, r
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
RESTRICTED CASH

OTHER ASSETS
Acquired intangible assets, r
Deferred rent receivab

ASSETS

Deferred financing costs, net of accumulated amatitin of $125,758 and $96,737 for 2012 and z

Prepaid expenses and other as
Tenant rent receivab
Due from related partie

Deferred leasing costs, net of accumulated amdidgizaf $317,750 and $206,145 for 2012 and 2

Total other asser

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND PARTNERS * CAPITAL

LIABILITIES
Note payable
Accrued interest payab
Accounts payable and accrued exper
Unearned revenue
Tenant security deposi
Acquired intangible obligations, n
Total liabilities

PARTNERS' CAPITAL

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND PARTNERS ' CAPITAL

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@gstents

2

2012

(UNAUDITED) 2011
$36,640,26  $36,640,26
6,286,50 6,286,501
2,359,00. 2,348,10,
4528577  45274,87
6,629,12i 5,271,68
38,656,64 40,003,18
482,18: 436,58t
6,406,93! 5,358,24:
419,80 534,28(
458,28t 517,68
116,07 145,09
36,23 37,22¢
22,44¢ 7,58z
39,10 84,04
291,16 393,48
1,383,11; 1,719,40,
$46,928,88  $47,517,41
$37,000,00  $37,000,00
9,099,09! 4,805,64
57,01 378,92!
110,47 120,44
108,04¢ 103,04¢
30¢ 1,12¢
$46,374,93  $42,409,19
$ 55395 $ 5,108,22
$46,928,88  $47,517,41




SEALY NEWMARKET GENERAL PARTNERSHIP

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED

DECEMBER 31, 2012 (UNAUDITED), 2011, AND 2010 (UNADITED

REVENUES
Minimum rent
Tenant Reimbursemer
Total revenue

OPERATING EXPENSES
Depreciation and amortizatic
Repairs and maintenan
Property taxe
General and administratiy
Management fee
Bad Debt
Insurance

Total operating expens:
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE)
Other income
Interest expens
Total other expens

NET LOSS

2012

2010

(UNAUDITED) 2011 (UNAUDITED)
$2,30548  $2,628,89 $ 3,386,61
302,38 379,43 785,32t
$2,607,87. $3,00833 $ 4,171,93
1,502,97 1,648,56 1,781,98
549,62. 644,25( 1,048,71:
323,18: 336,18: 392,87
298,65¢ 244,93 261,78
97,35¢ 104,39 144,64¢

— 22,64 —
74,15; 75,72 75,53:
2,845,94! 3,076,69 3,705,54.
(238,079 (68,367 466,39"
6,27¢ 18,56 18,99¢
(4,322,47)  (4,353,33)  (2,422,50)
(4,316,19)  (4,334,77) (2,403,500
$(4,554,27)  $(4,403,14) $(1,937,11)

See accompanying notes to consolidated financgstents.



SEALY NEWMARKET GENERAL PARTNERSHIP
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF PARTNERS’ CAPITAL
FOR THE YEARS ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2012 (UNAUDITED), 2011, AND 2010 (UNADITED)

Sealy Newmarki

WRT-Atlanta,

Ventures, L.P L.L.C. Total
BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2009 (UNAUDITED) $ 3,663,511 $ 7,784,96 $11,448,48
Net Loss (619,87¢) (1,317,23) (1,937,11)
BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2010 (UNAUDITED) 3,043,63 6,467,73. 9,511,36!
Net Loss (1,409,001 (2,994,13) (4,403,14)
BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2011 1,634,63 3,473,59! 5,108,221
Net Loss (1,457,36) (3,096,90) (4,554,27)
BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2012 (UNAUDITED) $ 177,26: $ 376,68 $ 553,95(

See accompanying notes to consolidated financgsents.
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SEALY NEWMARKET GENERAL PARTNERSHIP
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2012 (UNAUDITED), 2011, AND 2010 (UNADITED)

2012

2010

(UNAUDITED) 2011 (UNAUDITED)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net loss $(4,554,27) $(4,403,14) $(1,937,11)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash giexviby operating activitie
Depreciation expens 1,357,441 1,494,51! 1,594,341
Amortization of acquired intangible 113,65( 199,18: 472,15:
Amortization of deferred financing cos 29,02 29,02 29,02
Amortization of deferred leasing co: 111,60! 96,34¢ 64,07(
(Increase) decrease
Restricted cas (1,048,69) (1,216,69) 203,00¢
Deferred rent receivab 59,39 (121,39) (219,96¢)
Prepaid expenses and other as 992 382 811
Tenant rent receivab (14,86¢€) 12,16¢ 43,49¢
Due from related partie 44,94« (70,74 (23,300
Deferred leasing costs pe (9,277) (180,819 (186,447
Increase (decrease) |
Accrued interes 4,293,45. 4,305,47. 500,16¢
Accounts payable and accrued exper (321,919 77,644 (229,587
Unearned revenue (9,979 (77,087 (107,099
Tenant security deposi 5,00( (34,072) 21¢
Net cash provided by operating activit 56,49¢ 110,78 213,78
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property and equipm (10,907) (652,44" (788,83
Net cash used in investing activiti (10,907 (652,44" (788,83
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Distributions to partner — — —
Net cash used in financing activiti — — —
Change in cash and cash equivalt 45,59« (541,66 (575,04
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 436,58t 978,25( 1,553,29!
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR $ 482,18. $ 436,58t $ 978,25(
Cash paid during the year for inter — $ 18,84¢ $ 1,893,31!

See accompanying notes to consolidated financgsents.
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SEALY NEWMARKET GENERAL PARTNERSHIP
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2012 (UNAUDITED), 2011, AND 2010 (UNADITED)

ORGANIZATION

Sealy Newmarket General Partnership (“the Parti@isla Delaware partnership, was organized Ma@8 (expires December 31, 2056) by
Sealy Newmarket Ventures, L.P. (“Sealy”) and WRTaAta, L.L.C. (“WRT") (collectively, the “Partnersto acquire, own, hold, manage,
operate, mortgage, pledge, sell, assign, transfitease certain commercial properties locatedobbCounty, Georgia, (the “Property”). The
Partnership acquired the Property on August 20820@ began operations.

@)

Profits (Losses) Allocatio

Profits and losses are allocated to the Partnessdordance with the terms of the Partnership aggee Capital contributions of the
Partners do not earn preferred returns. Profitaboeated as follows:

0)

(ii)
(i)
(iv)
)
(vi)

First, to the Partners, in proportion to and toakient of the amounts necessary to cause theitaCAgcounts to equal the balan
of their Additional Capital Contributions PreferrBeéturn Accounts; an

Second, to the Partners, in proportion to amthe extent of the amounts necessary to caugeGhpital Accounts to equal the sum
of the amount referred to in tier (i) above, plus balance of their respective Additional Capitah@ibution Accounts; an

Third, to the Partners, in proportion to and toél&ent of the amounts necessary to cause theitaC&gcounts to equal the sum
the amount referred to in tier (ii) above, plus lfadance of their respective Initial Capital Cdottion Account Balances; al

Fourth, to the Partners, in proportion to @odhe extent of the amounts necessary to caugeQapital Accounts to equal the sum
of the amount referred to in tier (iii) above, pthe balance of their respective Initial Capitah@tution Account Balances; al

Fifth, to the Partners, in proportion to andtie extent of the amounts necessary to cause@agital Accounts to equal the sum of
the amount referred to in tier (iv) to be in thensgproportions as their respective Residual Peagest ant

Sixth, any remainder allocated to the Partnersapgrtion to their respective Residual Percentagerésts
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SEALY NEWMARKET GENERAL PARTNERSHIP
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2012 (UNAUDITED), 2011, AND 2010 (UNADITED)

1. ORGANIZATION (CONTINUED)

(b)

Losses are allocated to the Partners as follows:

@

(ii)
(i)
(iv)
)
(vi)

First, to the Partners in proportion to andhe extent of the amounts necessary to cause thardasmby which such Partners’
Capital Accounts exceed the sum referred to in(igrof the profit allocation shown above to betle same proportions as their
respective Residual Percentages;

Second, to the Partners in proportion to amthe extent of the amounts necessary to redudeRatners’ Capital Accounts to the
sum referred to in tier (iv) of the profit allocati shown above; ar

Third, to the Partners in proportion to and toektent of the amounts necessary to reduce eache®’ Capital Accounts to th
sum referred to in tier (iii) of the profit alloéan shown above; ar

Fourth, to the Partners in proportion to aadte extent of the amounts necessary to redud¢eRatners’ Capital Accounts to the
sum referred to in tier (i) of the profit allocati shown above; ar

Fifth, to the Partners in proportion to and to éxéent of the amounts necessary to reduce eache® Capital Accounts to th
sum referred to in tier (i) of the profit allocatishown above; ar

Sixth, to the Partners in proportion to, andtie extent of the amounts necessary to causertisgiective Capital Accounts to equal
zero.

Distribution of cash flow
The Partnership’s distributable cash, as defineal] be distributed as follows:

0]
(if)
(iii)

First, to the Partners in proportion to theispective Additional Capital Contributions Accobatances until such balances are
reduced to zero; ar

Second, to the Partners in proportion to tmegpective Initial Capital Preferred Return Accolb@lances until their respective
Additional Capital Preferred Return Account balanaee reduced to zero; a

Third, any balance to the Partners in proportioth&r respective Residual Percente
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SEALY NEWMARKET GENERAL PARTNERSHIP
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2012 (UNAUDITED), 2011, AND 2010 (UNADITED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of presentation and principles of consolateti- The Partnership presents its consolidated firzustatements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in thetdéhStates (“GAAP”) as provided in the FinanciacAanting Standard Board’s Accounting
Standards Codification (the “Codification” or “ASThe Codification is the single source of auttative accounting principles applied by
nongovernmental entities in the preparation ofritial statements in conformity with GAAP.

The Partnershig’ consolidated financial statements include it®ants and the accounts of Sealy Newmarket, L.Ficihwhiolds the Property, a
Sealy Newmarket General Partner, L.P. All intercampprofits, balances and transactions are eliméhat consolidation.

Use of estimates- The preparation of financial statements in comity with GAAP requires management to make estisated assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets antlitied, the disclosure of contingent assets aahlilities as of the date of the financial stateraent
and the reported amounts of revenue and expensiag dioe reporting periods. Actual results coulffedifrom those estimates.

Property and equipmepnt Property and equipment, including property imgments are recorded at cost. Major renewals archpses of
equipment are capitalized. Repairs and maintenareeharged to operations as incurred.

Property and equipment are depreciated over tBginated useful lives using the straidine method. Estimated useful lives are 5 to 3%yéar
buildings and improvements, and 15 years for lamgrovements. Depreciation of tenant improvementsmsputed using the straight-line
method over the life of the respective lease. Deatien expense for the years ended December 32,2011 and 2010 was $1,357,440,
$1,494,515, and $1,594,430, respectively.

Cash and cash equivalertsAll highly-liquid debt investments with originahaturities of three months or less are considerdzktcash
equivalents.

Restricted cash— Restricted cash represents amounts escrowed fpepiyataxes, tenant improvements, commissionsjnepad improvement
and debt service.



SEALY NEWMARKET GENERAL PARTNERSHIP
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2012 (UNAUDITED), 2011, AND 2010 (UNADITED)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIESCONTINUED)

Tenant rent receivable- The Partnershig’ estimate for the allowance for uncollectible ante represents the probable incurred losses witg
tenant receivables as of December 31, 2012 and. ZbELPartnership estimates probable incurred $dsased upon an evaluation of delinquent
accounts along with the Partnership’s own expedemith collections and charge-offs. There was fmnance for doubtful accounts as of
December 31, 2012 and 2011. There was bad debhsxpecorded for one tenant in the amount of $&fédthe year ended December 31,
2011. There was no bad debt expense for the yadesleDecember 31, 2012 and 2010.

Deferred financing costs- Deferred financing costs are related to the Rastrip’s note payable. Financing costs are amaktiae a component
of interest expense, over the term of the loangiaimethod that approximates the effective-intaresthod.

Deferred leasing costs- Deferred leasing costs are related to commisgiaits for certain tenant leases. Leasing costsapialized and
amortized over the life of the respective tenaasée

Accounting for intangible assets and liabilittesAccounting guidance for acquisitions of a bus@psor to revised guidance effective for the
first annual reporting period beginning on or aflecember 15, 2008, required that upon acquisitlmpurchase price is to be allocated to the
components of the acquisition based on the PaHipéssestimates and assumptions of each componfait'galue. These estimates and
assumptions impact the amount of costs allocatesdsn components. They also impact depreciatioemsg and gains or losses recorded on
future sales of property. First, the Partnershijgheines the value of the physical property inahgdiand, buildings, and improvements utilizing
an “as-if vacant” methodology. Factors considergdnanagement in their analysis of the “as-if vataatue include lost rentals at market rates
during an expected leasg-period and costs to execute similar leasesdimgduincremental tenant improvements, leasing caainins, and othe
related expenses. The Partnership also considersnation obtained about the property as a reduts gre-acquisition due diligence.

The balance of the purchase price is allocatedrtartt improvements and acquired intangible assdi@hilities. Tenant improvements represent
the tangible assets associated with the acquiesg$eand are valued at estimated fair market wadube acquisition date considering the
remaining lease terms. They are classified as ooent of property and equipment on the consoliifitencial statements and are depreciated
over the remaining lease terms. Expiration datexqfiired norcancellable leases extend to 2018. Acquired intdaegissets and liabilities rele

to the value of acquiring a property with existingplace operating leases and come in three fofilnacquired lease origination values,

(i) acquired above and below market in place Isaard (iii) acquired tenant relationships.

Acquired lease origination values are costs th&nBeship estimates, based on terms generally etperd in the local market, it would incur to
execute leases with terms similar to the remaitéage terms of the in-place leases, including casioms and other related expenses. They are
recorded as a component of acquired intangibleassséhe accompanying consolidated financial stetes and are amortized over the
remaining terms of the respective non-cancelladsés.



SEALY NEWMARKET GENERAL PARTNERSHIP
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2012 (UNAUDITED), 2011, AND 2010 (UNADITED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES(CONTINUED)

Acquired above and below market in place leasesem@ded based on the present value (using awiscate that reflects the risks associated
with the property acquired and the respective tex)a the difference between (i) the contractumbant to be paid pursuant to the in place lease
and (ii) management’s estimate of the fair mark&até rate for a comparable in place lease on thesition date, measured over a period equal
to the remaining non-cancellable term of the leAS®ve market in place leases are classified asygonent of acquired intangible assets in the
accompanying consolidated financial statementssae@mortized as a reduction of rental income theremaining terms of the respective
leases. Below market in place leases are classifelcomponent of acquired intangible liabilitrethe accompanying consolidated financial
statements and are amortized as an increase @ irgcdme over the remaining terms of the resped#éases.

Prepaid expenses and other asset8repaid expenses and other assets include sumhb &s prepaid insurance and vendor deposits.

Revenue recognitior- Minimum rent revenue is recognized on a stralgig-basis over the term of the lease agreemegtsdéess of when
payments are due. Differences between rents hilledcordance with the lease terms and the minimamrevenue recognized on a straitie-
basis are reported as deferred rent receivableeiednsolidated accompanying financial statemdmtisant reimbursements are accrued as
revenue in the same period the related expensescareed by the Partnership. For the years endsze®ber 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010 the
Partnership incurred $10,902, $18,389, and $2970764sts related to tenant improvements on beifaftenant, which are reimbursable to the
Partnership per the terms of the lease agreemkaseTldirect tenant costs are presented as a contpgminmepairs and maintenance and tenant
reimbursement revenue on the accompanying consefidgatements of operations.

Income taxes— No federal or state income taxes are payabl&é@yartnership, and none have been provided theiaccompanying
consolidated financial statements. The Partnertoarelude their respective shares of Partnerstupme or losses, determined on an income
basis, in their individual tax returns. The Parstép’s tax return and the amount of allocable Rasinip profits or losses are subject to
examination by federal and state taxing authoritiesuch examinations result in changes to Pastripmprofits or losses, then the tax liability of
the Partners would be changed accordingly.
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SEALY NEWMARKET GENERAL PARTNERSHIP
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2012 (UNAUDITED), 2011, AND 2010 (UNADITED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES(CONTINUED)

The Partnership recognizes the tax benefit frorararertain tax position only if it is more likelyah not the tax position will be sustained on
examination by the taxing authorities, based ortebhnical merits of the position. Tax years tlehain subject to examination by major tax
jurisdictions date back to the year ended Decer@beP009. Federal and state income tax positidtentar anticipated to be taken in the income
tax returns are attributable to the Partners andonthe entity. As of December 31, 2012, 2011, 2080, there are no known items which would
result in a material accrual attributable to ureiartax positions.

Impairment of londived assets and loAdved assets to be disposed-efThe Partnership reviews long-lived assets anthiceidentifiable
intangibles for impairment whenever events or clearig circumstances indicate that the carrying arhofian asset may not be recoverable.
Recoverability of assets to be held and used isared by a comparison of the carrying amount cisset to future net cash flows expected to
be generated by the asset. If such assets araleoedito be impaired, the impairment to be recaghig measured by the amount by which the
carrying amount of the assets exceeds the faiewaflihe assets. Assets to be disposed of areteepatrthe lower of the carrying amount or fair
value less costs to sell. There was no impairmleatge recognized during the years ended Decembh@032, 2011, and 2010.

Subsequent events Management has evaluated subsequent events thkdaigh 8, 2013, the date which the consolidatedrftial statements
were available to be issued.

DEFERRED FINANCING AND LEASING COST:

Amortization of deferred financing costs for theageended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 waB8282f&r each year. The following is a
schedule by year of future amortization of defeffiedncing costs:

Year Ending December 3

2013 29,02:
2014 29,02:
2015 29,02:
2016 29,01:

$116,07!
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SEALY NEWMARKET GENERAL PARTNERSHIP
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2012 (UNAUDITED), 2011, AND 2010 (UNADITED)

DEFERRED FINANCING AND LEASING COST{(CONTINUED)

Deferred leasing costs are related to commissiaitsfpr certain tenant leases. Leasing costs gratiaed and are amortized over the life of the
respective tenant leases. Amortization of defeleading costs was $111,605, $96,348 and $64,0bdoyears ended December 31, 2012 and

2011 and 2010, respectively. An additional $-06%3and $-0- of commissions was expensed in thesysraled December 31, 2012, 2011, and

2010, respectively, due to the related leases bawiife of less than one year or a total commissimount of less than $1,000. The following is

a schedule by year of future amortization of deféleasing costs:

Year Ending December 3

2013 $104,86"
2014 77,17:
2015 45,77«
2016 17,70¢
2017 13,97«
Thereaftel 31,67:

$291,16:
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SEALY NEWMARKET GENERAL PARTNERSHIP
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2012 (UNAUDITED), 2011, AND 2010 (UNADITED)

4.  ACQUIRED INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND OBLIGATIONS
The Partnership’s acquired intangible assets afigations as of December 31, 2012 are:

2012 2011
Acquired lease origination valu
Original allocated value $ 570,71 $ 570,71
Less: accumulated amortizati (480,24¢) (446,31
90,46" 124,39¢
Acquired above market in place lea
Original allocated value $ 1,522,85. $1,522,85.
Less: accumulated amortizati (1,193,51) (1,112,971
329,33¢ 409,88
Net book value of total acquired intangible as $ 419,80 $ 534,28(
Acquired below market in place lee
Original allocated value $ 16,130 $ 16,130
Less: accumulated amortizati (15,82) (15,007
Net book value of total acquired intangible obligas $ 30¢ $ 1,12¢

For the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 ar® Béfamortization of acquired intangible assets $113,650, $199,183, and $472,151,
respectively. Of that amount, $79,719, $141,488,%848,574 of net amortization resulting from acgdiabove and below market in place leases was
reported in minimum rent revenue for the years dridlecember 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010, respectively.
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SEALY NEWMARKET GENERAL PARTNERSHIP
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2012 (UNAUDITED), 2011, AND 2010 (UNADITED)

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Partnership has entered into a managementragnéevith a property management company relat&etdy, and will pay a monthly
management fee of 3.5% of gross receipts from thpdrty less any third-party management fees, 5084 tate payments and returned checks
collected, and an accounting fee of $2,025 per mdvianagement fees paid to related parties foy#aes ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and
2010 were $97,354, $104,399, and $144,646, respbetiThe management agreement also states thegltited party may receive leasing
commissions of 3.00% to 6.75%. Leasing commissjpaid to the related party for the years ended Déeerdl, 2012, 2011 and 2010 were
$9,276, $34,570, and $54,896, respectively. All leyges are currently employed by Sealy Operatingn@my 111, Inc., a related party, and the
Partnership periodically reimburses the managem@mnpany for the salaries of the onsite staff. Tagriership also reimburses Sealy &
Company, L.L.C., a related party, for miscellanepastage, copier charges, and bank statementrfeaséd.

During the years ended December 31, 2012, 20112@hd, the Partnership paid $0, $22,500, and $00@8pectively, on behalf of Sealy
Acquisitions, LLC, a related party, for costs in@ad related to the loan renegotiation. The remgingtated party receivables represent amounts
paid by the Partnership on behalf of the Partrarsalk preparation and annual registration feesareexpected to be reimbursed at some tir
the future. No interest is due and there are noegatyment terms on any of the related party ret@#®s. All amounts are expected to be
collected.

NOTE PAYABLE

On August 20, 2008, in connection with the acqigsibf the Property, the Partnership assumed e0$8700 note payable (the “Notdfpm the
seller. The Note bears interest at a fixed rat® ©2% per annum and matures on November 10, 20W8yieh time any unpaid principal and
interest are due. From December 2006 until Nover@b&d, monthly interest only payments are due. Fb@oember 2011 until the maturity
date, monthly principal and interest payments &4%296 are due. The Note is collateralized by ttop&rty, an assignment of rents and leases,
all deposits held by lender, all account receivablled personal guarantees from two affiliates aly5@ he Note had an outstanding balance of
$37,000,000 at December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2@1idrekt expense on the Note, exclusive of amoidizatf deferred financing costs, was
$4,293,456 $4,324,318, and $2,393,483 for the yeated December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010, resphctiv

The terms of the Note require the Partnershiprtectiall tenants of all leases to pay their rergaly into a clearing account (“Rent Accountd)
provide additional collateral to the lender. ThetRership must deposit any and all other receitts the Rent Account within two days of
receipt. All funds deposited in the Rent Accounit i transferred not less than weekly to the Rastnip’s account. The balance of the Rent
Account will be distributed in accordance with tigreement.
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SEALY NEWMARKET GENERAL PARTNERSHIP
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2012 (UNAUDITED), 2011, AND 2010 (UNADITED)

NOTE PAYABLE (CONTINUED)

Principal maturities of the Note after DecemberZ112 are as follows:

Years ending December

2013 844,28t
2014 466,40:
2015 496,17¢
2016 35,193,13

$37,000,00

Upon closing of the loan, the seller was requieddt aside certain amounts of the loan proce¢d®atrow accounts to pay future costs such as
insurance, repairs, taxes and leasing commissidrese escrow accounts were transferred to thed?ahip upon assumption of the loan. The
Partnership is required to make monthly paymeritstimese escrow accounts to pay future costs sugisarance, repairs, taxes and leasing
commissions. The balances in these escrow accailhtye distributed in accordance with the termgtef Note.

In 2010, the Partnership stopped paying interesherLoan after its November payment in order toeehte the process of negotiating a debt
restructuring of the Loan with the special servidédris was done to make available the needed ¢asis for capital expenditures and leasing
commissions to re-lease the Property. Restrictetl frr debt repayment consist of excess cash pditetlender monthly and held in a suspense
account until renegotiation of the Note is reachée restricted cash will be used to reduce thecfpal balance of the Note. See Note 8.

The Partnership has submitted its proposal foaa foodification to the special servicer and is ently in negotiations with the special servicer
on restructuring the Note. As of the date of thesotidated financial statements, no final agreerhastbeen reached. The accompanying
consolidated financial statements do not includeadjustments that might be necessary should thtedtahip be unable to restructure the debt
and continue in existence as a going concern.

Since the Note is in default, the Note is subjedhe default interest rate as described in the[d66.00% per annum in addition to the fixed
of 6.12% per annum, for a total of 11.12% per anntine default interest accrued for the year endeceihber 31, 2012

15



SEALY NEWMARKET GENERAL PARTNERSHIP
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2012 (UNAUDITED), 2011, AND 2010 (UNADITED)

NOTE PAYABLE (CONTINUED)

and 2011 was $1,850,000 and $1,850,000, respectivaie fees are charged equal to 5.00% of the pay@amount due. For the year ended
December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010, late fees of, 823, $178,468 and $13,469 were included in accinterest.

OPERATING LEASES

The Partnership leases the Property to tenants wpdeating leases with expiration dates extenthrg020. The leases typically provide for
minimum rent and other charges to cover certaimaipg expenses. Minimum future rentals on non-eliable leases at December 31, 2012 are
as follows:

Years ending December !

2013 2,111,08
2014 1,825,58:
2015 1,230,14.
2016 667,45!
Thereaftel 762,16

$7,225,51!

GOING CONCERN

The Property has experienced a significant dedfirmerating cash flow stemming from a decline éoupancy levels, lower market rents and
increased concessions to compete in the weakedasdtiial real estate market in Atlanta, Georgiankizement of the Partnership believes that a
restructuring of the terms of the Loan is necesgagnsure adequate cash flow to make necessaitglaapenditures to the Property and to pay
needed concessions for re-tenanting.

Management's proposal to the special servicer stmef a modification of the Loan. Negotiations sti# in progress with the special servicer
and no agreements have been finalized as of tieeodi#ihe consolidated financial statements. Managgnmowever, believes that a restructuring
arrangement will eventually be reached. The pastaeg willing to invest additional equity to enstirat the Partnership can continue its
operations. The accompanying consolidated finastéiements do not include any adjustments thattnbig necessary should the Partnership be
unable to restructure the debt and continue irnte&xi® as a going concern.
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SEALY NEWMARKET GENERAL PARTNERSHIP
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2012 (UNAUDITED), 2011, AND 2010 (UNADITED)

CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISF

The Company maintains its cash in bank depositghdtt times may exceed federally insured limitse Tompany has not experienced any
losses in such accounts.
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